
Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center 
1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 
 

Wednesday, September 13, 2017 
7:00 PM 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA  

PRESENTATIONS 

• Proclamation in honor of the San Mateo County LGBTQ Commission 

• Recognition of Honor Roll Students 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  

Comments on the Consent Calendar and Non-Agenda Items will be heard at this time. 
Comments on Agenda Items will be heard when the item is called. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the August 23, 2017 Regular Meeting. 

2. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for August 2017. 

3. Motion Approving the Town’s Response to the Grand Jury Report Dated July 12, 2017, Regarding 
“A Delicate Balance: Privacy vs. Protection.”  

4. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Adding Subchapter 3.02.274 to the Colma Administrative Code, 
Employment, Relating to Value of Uniforms for CalPERS Purposes and Authorizing an Increase in 
Standby Pay. 

5. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract 
with Kittelson & Associates, Inc. in the Amount of $250,000 for Preparation of Colma Systemic 
Safety Analysis Report (SSAR). 

6. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Authorizing an Updated Agreement for Financial Services with 
Regional Government Services (RGS). 

7. Motion to Receive and File the Fourth Quarter (April 2017 – June 2017) Financial Report and 
Direct Staff to Post a Copy to the Town Website. 



Page 2 of 2 
 

8. Motion to Receive and File the Semi-Annual Report of Investment Holdings, which is Presented 
for Informational Purposes. 

9. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Authorizing a Close-Out of Certain Projects and Redistribution of 
Certain Inactive Project Balances Including an Additional Appropriation of $150,000 in Fiscal Year 
2017-18. 

10. Motion to Accept Work Performed by Farallon Company on Phase 2 of the Town Hall Project as 
Complete and Authorize the Director of Public Works to File a Notice of Completion with the 
County Recorder’s Office and Make the Final Payment to Farallon Company in Accordance with 
State Prompt Payment Laws. 

PUBLIC HEARING 

11. FURTHER AMENDMENTS TO PREFERENTIAL PARKING PERMIT PLAN 

a. Consider: Motion to Introduce an Ordinance Amending Colma Municipal Code Sections 
6.02.020, 6.02.050 and 6.02.070 Relating to Preferential Parking Permits, Guest Parking 
Permits and Temporary Parking Permits, and Waive a Further Reading of the Ordinance. 

b. Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Updating the Colma Administrative Code, 
Subchapter 6.01 to Eliminate Duplicative Provisions of the Municipal Code, Chapter 6.02, 
Related to Preferential Parking Zones and Permit Parking. 

NEW BUSINESS 

12. LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES RESOLUTIONS 

Consider: Motion Directing the Voting Delegate to Vote in Support of the Two Resolutions that 
are Being Considered at the 2017 League of California Cities Conference on September 15, 2017. 

13. RESPONSE TO LAFCO PROGRESS REPORT REQUEST  

Consider: Motion to Approve the Town’s Response to the Local Agency Formation Commission 
(LAFCo) Request for a Progress Report to the 2015 Municipal Service Review (MSR) and Sphere 
of Influence (SOI) Update. 

14. SUPPORT OF THE PARIS CLIMATE AGREEMENT 

Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution of the City Council of the Town of Colma in Support of 
the Paris Climate Agreement. 

REPORTS 

Mayor/City Council       

City Manager          

ADJOURNMENT 
The City Council Meeting Agenda Packet and supporting documents are available for review at the Colma Town Hall, 1188 El 
Camino Real, Colma, CA during normal business hours (Mon – Fri 8am-5pm). Persons interested in obtaining an agenda via e-
mail should call Caitlin Corley at 650-997-8300 or email a request to ccorley@colma.ca.gov.  

Reasonable Accommodation 
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required 
by the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who requires a modification or accommodation to 
view the agenda, should direct such a request to Brian Dossey, ADA Coordinator, at 650-997-8300 or 
brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov. Please allow two business days for your request to be processed. 

mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov
mailto:brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov


Page 1 of 3 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center, 1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 
Wednesday, August 23, 2017 

7:00 p.m.  

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Helen Fisicaro called the Regular Meeting of the City Council to order at 7:05 p.m. 

Council Present – Mayor Helen Fisicaro, Vice Mayor Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez, Council 
Members Joanne F. del Rosario, John Irish Goodwin and Diana Colvin were all present 

Staff Present – Interim City Manager William C. Norton, City Attorney Christopher Diaz, 
Administrative Services Director Brian Dossey, Director of Public Works Brad Donohue, 
Police Chief Kirk Stratton, Associate Engineer Mahan Bozorginia, and Administrative 
Technician Darcy De Leon were in attendance.  

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Mayor Fisicaro asked if there were any changes to the agenda. None were requested. The 
Mayor asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. 

Action:  Council Member Del Rosario moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was 
seconded by Council Member Colvin and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor  
Raquel Gonzalez  
Joanne F. del Rosario  
John Irish Goodwin  
Diana Colvin  

5 0 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Mayor Fisicaro opened the public comment period at 7:07 p.m. Resident Lisa Sirianni made 
a comment on tobacco prevention. The Mayor closed the public comment period at 7:08 
p.m. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the July 26, 2017 Regular Meeting.

2. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for July 2017.

3. Motion to Adopt an Ordinance Adding Colma Municipal Code Chapter 6.06 Regarding
Procedures for Expediting Permit Processing for Electric Vehicle Charging Stations (second
reading).

4. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Amending Subchapter 3.03 of the Colma Administrative Code,
Relating to Personnel Policies, Substance Abuse.

Item #1



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

5. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving a Renewal of the Existing Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) Cooperation Agreement with the County of San Mateo County for 
Federal Fiscal Years 2018, 2019 and 2020. 

Action: Council Member Colvin moved to approve the Consent Calendar items #1 through 
5; the motion was seconded by Council Member Goodwin and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
 5 0    

 

NEW BUSINESS 

6. TOWN HALL BID APPROVAL 

Associate Engineer Mahan Bozorginia presented the staff report. Mayor Fisicaro opened the 
public comment period at 7:22 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed 
the public comment period. Council discussion followed. 

Action: Mayor Fisicaro moved to adopt a Resolution Approving Bid Document Package for 
the Town Hall Infill and Sitework Construction Project (Phase IV) and Authorizing Staff to 
Advertise Notice Inviting Bids from Contractors for the Town Hall Infill and Sitework 
Construction Project (Phase IV); the motion was seconded by Council Member Colvin and 
carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
 5 0    

COUNCIL CALENDARING 

The Regular City Council Meeting on Wednesday, September 13, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. and 
Wednesday, September 27, 2017 at 7:00 p.m.  

REPORTS 

Helen Fisicaro 
 Colma Concert Series on Thursdays for the month of August 
 
Interim City Manager William Norton reported that the Colma Police Department identified the 
perpetuator in the incident that injured a police officer and a $150,000 award has been set. Anti-
harassment training is available to all Town employees on August 30. 



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT  

Mayor Fisicaro adjourned the meeting at 7:37 p.m. in honor of Dolores McAdam, close 
family friend of Mayor Fisicaro; Vi MacDonald Masini, wife of Moe Masini, former farmer of 
world's largest primrose grower, which was located where Lucky Chances is; Rose Dietzen, 
family friend of  Mayor Fisicaro growing up; Pat Cavagnaro, community member, friend and 
neighbor of Fisicaro Family; Mary Donohue, Aunt of Brad Donohue; Elaine Walsh, mother 
of resident Tom Walsh and mother-in-law of former Colma Treasurer Laura Walsh. 
 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Darcy De Leon 
Administrative Technician 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Item #2









































 Page 1 

STAFF REPORT 

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Kirk Stratton, Chief of Police 

VIA:  William Norton, Interim City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 13, 2017 

SUBJECT: Grand Jury Response  

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council approve: 

MOTION APPROVING THE TOWN’S RESPONSE TO THE GRAND JURY REPORT DATED 
JULY 12, 2017, REGARDING “A DELICATE BALANCE: PRIVACY VS. PROTECTION.” 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The City Council is required under penal code section 933.05 to respond to the Grand Jury 
Report. The draft response is detailed in the analysis section of this staff report and a draft of 
the proposed response letter is attached as Attachment B. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

There are no fiscal implications associated with the approval of the Town’s response to the 
Grand Jury report. 

Background 

The County Grand Jury is a volunteer body of 19 citizens, selected at random from a pool of 
nominees, to investigate local governmental agencies and make recommendations to improve 
the efficiency of local government. The July 12, 2017 Grand Jury report contains findings and 
recommendations on a number of subjects that are applicable to agencies in San Mateo County. 
The Presiding Judge of the County Superior Court has formally requested that the Town review 
the report and file a written response indicating the following: 

• That the Town agrees or disagrees, in whole or in part, with the findings;

Item #3



                                                                                                                                       Page 2 

• That the recommendation has been implemented, will be implemented, requires further 
analysis, or will not be implemented; and 

• An explanation of the reason for any disagreement with findings or recommendations. 

ANALYSIS 

Grand Jury Findings 

The proposed July 12, 2017 Grand Jury response, which includes the Grand Jury’s findings and 
recommendations, is attached as Attachment B. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the Town’s proposed response to the July 12, 
2017 Grand Jury report regarding “A Delicate Balance: Privacy vs. Protection.” 

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Draft response letter for July 12, 2017 Grand Jury report  
B. Copy of Grand Jury report 

  
 

 



TOWN OF COLMA 
1198 El Camino Real   •  Colma, California  •  94014-3212 

Tel 650-997-8300   •   Fax 650-997-8308 

September 13, 2017 

Honorable Leland Davis, III 
Judge of the Superior Court 
Hall of Justice 
400 County Center, 8th Floor 
Redwood City, CA 94063-1655 

Re: Grand Jury Report: “A Delicate Balance: Privacy vs. Protection” 

Dear Judge Davis, III: 

The City Council received the San Mateo Civil Grand Jury report titled, “A Delicate 
Balance: Privacy vs. Protection” 

The Town was requested to submit comments in regards to the findings and 
recommendations within 90 days and no later than October 10, 2017. The Town of 
Colma’s response to both the findings and recommendations are listed below. 

The report contains some findings and recommendations that do not necessarily pertain 
to the Colma Police Department. The Colma Police Department has not purchased 
ALPR’s or Body Worn Cameras.  

The Grand Jury instructed each agency in San Mateo County to respond to findings 1-5 
(F1-F5) and recommendations 1-3 (R1-R3).  

For the “findings”, the Town was to indicate one of the following; 

1. The respondent agrees with the finding.

2. The respondent disagrees wholly or partially with the finding, in which case the
response shall specify the portion of the finding that is disputed and shall include
an explanation of the reasons therefore.

Additionally, for each Grand Jury “recommendation”, the Town was requested to report 
one of the following actions; 

1. The recommendation has been implemented, with a summary regarding the
implemented action.

2. The recommendation has not yet been implemented, but will be implemented in
the future, with a time frame for implementation.

3. The recommendation requires further analysis, with an explanation and the
scope and parameters of an analysis or study, and a time frame for the matter to

City Council 

Helen Fisicaro 
Mayor 

Raquel P. Gonzalez 
Vice Mayor 

Joanne F. del Rosario 
Council Member 

John Irish Goodwin 
Council Member 

Diana Colvin 
Council Member 

City Officials 

Bill Norton 
Interim City Manager 

Kirk Stratton 
Chief of Police 

Christopher Diaz 
City Attorney 

Caitlin Corley 
City Clerk 

Brian Dossey 
Administrative Services 

Director 

Lori Burns  
Human Resources Manager 

Brad Donohue 
Public Works Director 

Michael Laughlin, AICP 
City Planner 

Cyrus Kianpour 
City Engineer 

Attachment A



be prepared for discussion by the officer or director of the agency or department being 
investigated or reviewed, including the governing body of the public agency when 
applicable. This time frame shall not exceed six months from the date of publication of 
the Grand Jury report. 

4. The recommendation requires further analysis, with an explanation and the scope and 
parameters of an analysis or study, and a time frame for the matter to be prepared for 
discussion by the officer or director of the agency or department being investigated or 
reviewed, including the governing body of the public agency when applicable. This time 
frame shall not exceed six months from the date of publication of the Grand Jury report. 

5. The recommendation will not be implemented because it is not warranted or reasonable, 
with an explanation therefore. 

The following are responses to findings 1-5; 

F1. The County of Santa Clara passed an ordinance in 2016 requiring agencies to adopt 
policies related to any surveillance technology before such technology is acquired or activated. 
The ordinance also requires agencies to issue annual reports explaining how the technologies 
are used and what they discovered. 

Town Response: 

The Town agrees with this finding, relying on the Grand Jury’s representations in their report. 
The Town is not intimately familiar with local ordinances in other jurisdictions regarding 
surveillance technology and does not have enough information to comment on this finding. 

F2.  The County and cities in San Mateo County have not enacted any ordinances governing 
their acquisition and use of surveillance technology, or the accessibility, management, or 
retention of the information acquired. 

Town Response: 

The Town agrees with this finding, relying on the Grand Jury’s representations in their report. 

F3. The County and cities in San Mateo County do inform residents about the use of some 
surveillance tools (Automated License Plate Readers and Body Worn Cameras) at public 
forums and city council meetings: 
 

• City or Town Council meeting or staff reports posted on website: Atherton, 
Burlingame, Daly City, East Palo Alto, Hillsborough, Menlo Park, Pacifica, Redwood 
City, San Bruno, San Carlos, San Mateo, South San Francisco 

 

• Public meeting or Town Halls: East Palo Alto, Hillsborough, Menlo Park, Redwood 
City, San Carlos, Millbrae, Portola Valley, Ladera, and Emerald Hills. 

• The City of Menlo Park mentioned also having used social media for  

       this purpose.  

Town Response: 

The Town of Colma agrees that it informs residents about the use of surveillance tools at public 
forums and city council meetings. The Town is not intimately familiar with the practices in other 
jurisdictions regarding surveillance technology.   



F4. With the exception of Burlingame, which borrowed ALPR technology, the cities and 
the San Mateo County Sheriff’s Office have complied with the law requiring ALPR users to 
“conspicuously” post a link to the ALPR usage and privacy policy on their websites. 

Town Response: 

 The Town of Colma agrees that it complies with the law requiring ALPR users to 
“conspicuously” post a link to the ALPR usage and privacy policy on their websites. The Town of 
Colma has posted a link to its webpage in the event the Police Department borrows an ALPR for 
investigative purposes. The Town is not intimately familiar with the practices in other 
jurisdictions regarding surveillance technology.   

F5. With the exception of the City of San Mateo, the generic ALPR policies posted by 
cities and the Sheriff’s Office do not provide specific information that is helpful to 
residents. 

Town Response: 

The Town of Colma does not agree with this finding and believes that the policy posted on the 
Police Department web page is both specific and helpful to residents. The Town is not 
intimately familiar with the practices in other jurisdictions regarding surveillance technology.   

The following are responses to recommendations 1-3; 

R1. In addition to providing a conspicuous link to usage and privacy policies on operator 
websites (as required by law for ALPR’s), all law enforcement agencies in the County should 
create an easily accessible and simply written information webpage by December 31, 2017, 
which lists the types of surveillance tools (such as ALPR’s) and investigative tools (such as 
ShotSpotter and body worn cameras) utilized by the agency. At a minimum, such a webpage 
shall include these details about each tool. 

• What is the use and purpose of the technology, such as assisting in ongoing criminal
investigation, locating missing children, or locating stolen vehicles

• Who is authorized to collect or access the data collected

• How the system is monitored to ensure that data is secure

• Who owns the surveillance technology

• What measures were taken to ensure the accuracy of the data

• How long the data will be retained

Town Response: 

This recommendation will be implemented in part.  San Mateo County Law Enforcement 
Agencies have already, by law, posted privacy policy information on their websites as related to 
ALPRs.  The Town of Colma will expand its ALPR privacy and usage policy to include additional 
electronic equipment, if purchased, where the release of such information does not 
unnecessarily jeopardize public safety and criminal investigations, and will place that 
information in a conspicuous location on its website by December 31, 2017. 

R2. All law enforcement agencies in the County shall increase the number and types of 
opportunities for community members to voice support for or opposition to any proposed 
addition of new surveillance technologies including, but not limited to: 



• Surveying residents to better understand their concerns about law enforcement’s use of
surveillance tools and address those concerns in public meetings, Town Halls,
Neighborhood Watch sessions and other local gatherings.

• Using social media platforms such as Nextdoor to keep residents engaged and informed
about surveillance technologies and its uses in your community.

Town Response: 

The Town of Colma will implement this recommendation for tools used to conduct basic police 
business such as Body Worn Cameras and ALPRs.  Furthermore, the Town of Colma recognizes 
that not all community members utilize internet and social media, and will seek opportunities at 
public meetings, including neighborhood association meetings, neighborhood watch gatherings, 
and publicly noticed city meetings to share this information.   

This recommendation cannot be fully implemented for certain law enforcement investigative 
tools and techniques primarily used for complex criminal investigations without jeopardizing the 
ability to gather evidence for the serious crimes in question.  Therefore, the Town will not hold 
public forums or conduct similar outreach on certain investigative techniques or technology 
where doing so might compromise critical investigations. Checks and balances already exist 
through the legal system, including various warrant requirements and Fourth Amendment 
protections, regarding the use of these techniques. Certain specialized electronic tools are 
precisely aimed at members of criminal organizations, career criminals, and those under 
investigation for violent crimes, with minimal to no impact to the law-abiding public.  The Town 
does, and will continue, to take steps to ensure that the informational privacy of persons who 
are not suspects or involved in such investigations will be respected. 

All agencies in San Mateo County have signed a data and records sharing agreement with the 
Northern California Regional Intelligence Center (NCRIC) that places data in a secure repository 
located in a federal facility subject to federal and state statutes and policies addressing access, 
storage, and disclosure. 

R3. Staff shall bring to their city or town council (in case of a police department or police 
bureau) or the Board of Supervisors (in case of the Sheriff’s Office) a policy or ordinance for 
consideration at a public meeting by December 31, 2017. Such ordinances or policies should 
require, at a minimum: 

• Plans to acquire new surveillance technology be announced at public meetings and other
forums to ensure that the community is aware and engaged when new technology is
under consideration.

• Any “use policies” related to surveillance technology be readily and easy to access on
the city or County websites.

• Oversight and accountability be supported by posting periodic reports on the
effectiveness of the surveillance tools used in the community.

Town Response: 

Existing law requires that Law enforcement agencies provide information to local governing 
bodies when acquiring certain new technologies. Law enforcement agencies make policies that 
govern the use of our basic police surveillance tools and technologies  that are publicly 
available.  



However, this recommendation will not be implemented, in full, because it creates obstacles 
that could limit law enforcement’s ability to adapt and evolve to criminal activity and could 
compromise the safety and security of residents.  Law enforcement agencies may, under certain 
circumstances, be unable to wait for regularly scheduled public meetings of their governing 
bodies while in pursuit of criminals and crimes in progress.  

Furthermore, existing protections for both personal information and investigatory activities are 
adequate to address the Grand Jury’s concerns.  Existing state law, in the form of Government 
Code 6254(f), exempts investigative, intelligence, and security records from disclosure under 
the California Public Records Laws.  This exception to disclosure protects the integrity of 
investigations and the criminal legal process, as well as allowing jurisdictions to withhold certain 
information regarding individuals acquired as a result of an investigation.   

Government Code 6254 (f) recognizes the need for discretion and protects law enforcement 
agencies from disclosing investigative and tactical information that would compromise an 
agency’s crime fighting capabilities. Existing laws also prohibit the release of information 
derived from, or related to, the security of the agency’s technology systems specifically to 
ensure those upholding and protecting the public are not compromised.   

In addition to the guarantees of the Fourth Amendment, California law specifically protects 
certain kinds of personal information.  For example, under California Penal Code 1546 – 1546.4, 
known as the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, law enforcement is required to obtain 
court orders related to electronic communications intercept surveillance under Penal Code 
629.50, pen register of trap and trace device under Penal Code 630, and for electronic tracking 
devices, court orders are required under Penal Codes 1524 and 1534. 

In sum, the Town remains committed to an open and public process regarding law enforcement 
techniques wherever it is feasible and will not compromise sensitive investigations into serious 
criminal activity.  In those circumstances in which a full public discussion is not possible, the 
Town nonetheless rigorously adheres to existing legal constraints to ensure that both public 
safety and personal privacy are protected. 

This response to the Grand Jury was approved at a public meeting on September 13, 2017. 

Sincerely, 

Helen Fisicaro 

Mayor 





2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 1

        A DELICATE BALANCE: PRIVACY VS. PROTECTION 

Issue | Summary | Methodology | Glossary | Background | Discussion | Findings  
Recommendations | Requests for Responses | Bibliography | Appendixes | Responses 

ISSUE 

How do local law enforcement agencies in San Mateo County balance their constituents’ desire 
for privacy with the agencies’ use of surveillance tools in their efforts to protect the public? 

SUMMARY 

Finding that delicate balance between a community’s desire for privacy and the ability of police 
and the Sheriff to protect that same community is both a challenge and a necessity. The 
American Civil Liberties Union (ACLU) states: “Communities must be equal partners in any 
decision about the use of surveillance technology. They need to know when and why 
surveillance is being considered, what it is intended to do, and what it will really cost — both in 
dollars and in individual rights.”1 

Many local police departments and the San Mateo County Sheriff’s Office (Sheriff’s Office) 
have purchased or borrowed surveillance tools, such as Automated License Plate Readers 
(ALPRs). They also use tools, such as in-dash video cameras for patrol cars, body-worn cameras, 
and ShotSpotter2 to help them protect residents. These devices can provide evidence to identify 
and prosecute individuals who commit crimes. 

To understand the spread of these new technologies and their impact on communities, the 2016-
2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury (Grand Jury) sent a survey to the Sheriff’s Office, the 
Broadmoor Police Protection District, and 17 other law enforcement agencies throughout the 
County.3 Survey questions probed for information and details concerning the types of 
surveillance technology used; policies for collecting, managing, and storing data; and steps taken 
to ensure public awareness. The Grand Jury also checked whether law enforcement websites 
posted easily accessible policies for these tools online. 

Based on the results of its survey, and its review of policies enacted by various local 
jurisdictions, the Grand Jury recommends that local law enforcement agencies take additional 
steps to inform and notify residents when considering plans to purchase and install surveillance 
technology. Additionally, local law enforcement agencies, and their city councils, should adopt 
policies and ordinances, with community input, which reflect the communities’ desire to balance 
their safety and privacy. These policies should be posted in a conspicuous place on the agencies’ 
websites. 

1 ACLU of Northern California, “Making Smart Decisions about Surveillance: A Guide for community Transparency, 
Accountability and Oversight,” April 2016. https://www.aclunc.org/docs/20160325-
making_smart_decisions_about_surveillance.pdf. 
2 Shotspotter is a system that detects and sends the location of gunfire or other weapons using acoustic, optical, or other types of 
sensors. 
3 Recipients of survey: Sheriff’s Office, the Broadmoor Police Protection District, and the law enforcement agencies of the cities 
and towns of Atherton, Belmont, Brisbane, Burlingame, Colma, Daly City, East Palo Alto, Foster City, Hillsborough, Menlo 
Park, Millbrae, Pacifica, Redwood City, San Bruno, San Carlos, San Mateo (city), and South San Francisco. 

Attachment B



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 2

METHODOLOGY 

The Grand Jury conducted an extensive survey of police agencies in San Mateo County to 
determine: 

• The types of surveillance technology used in the jurisdiction 

• The agency’s policies for collecting, managing, and storing surveillance data 

• The precautions taken by the agency to ensure public awareness 

• Any forthcoming plans by cities or the County for ordinances related to the purchase and 
deployment of new or borrowed surveillance technology 

The Grand Jury also consulted local, state, and federal government websites for background 
information, and reviewed relevant publications. 

GLOSSARY  

Automated License Plate Readers (ALPRs): These computer-controlled, high-speed camera 
systems—generally mounted on police cars or on fixed objects such as light poles—
automatically capture an image of every license plate that comes into its view. ALPRs record 
data on each plate they scan, including not only the plate number but also the precise time, date 
and place it was encountered.4 

Body-worn cameras (BWCs): These small cameras worn by law enforcement officers record 
audio and video. Some types of cameras are always on; other types can be turned on and off by 
the wearer. 

Cell-site simulators: These devices, commonly known as International Mobile Subscriber 
Identity (IMSI) catchers or “Stingrays,” mimic cellphone towers, forcing nearby cellphones into 
connecting to the device. The cell-site simulator logs the IMSI numbers of cellphones in the area 
or captures the content of communications.5 

International Mobile Subscriber Identity (IMSI) catchers: These devices are used in the United 
States and other countries by law enforcement and intelligence agencies to intercept cellphone 
traffic and track the movements of cellphone users.  

ShotSpotter: These systems detect and send the location of gunfire or other weapons using 
acoustic, optical, or other types of sensors. 

Video surveillance: These camera systems are used to observe and record activities, with or 
without audio, in public spaces. Live camera feeds can spot crimes in real time, and video 
recordings can be used in investigations and at trial. 

                                                 
4 “Street-Level Surveillance: Automated License Plate Readers,” Electronic Frontier Foundation, accessed May 23, 2017. 
https://www.eff.org/sls/tech/automated-license-plate-readers. 
5 “Street-Level Surveillance: Cell-site Simulators,” Electronic Frontier Foundation, accessed May 23, 2017. 
https://www.eff.org/sls/tech/cell-site-simulators. 



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 3

BACKGROUND 

Surveillance tools are everywhere: Video cameras are in stores, public buildings, even at a 
neighbor’s front door. Advances in surveillance technology have assisted law enforcement in 
investigating mass shootings, tracking terrorists, and finding lost children.  

As valued as these new surveillance tools are to law enforcement, privacy experts say that 
innocent people may be targeted.6  “You have very powerful systems being purchased, most 
often in secret, with little-to-no public debate and no process in place to make sure that there are 
policies in place to safeguard community members,” said Nicole Ozer, technology and civil 
liberties policy director for the American Civil Liberties Union (ACLU) of California.7 

Recent studies show8 that the public believes it should have a say in how surveillance technology 
is used. With the issues of privacy and surveillance prominent in the news in recent years, 
Tulchin Research conducted a California statewide survey9 in 2015 for the ACLU of California 
Center for Advocacy and Policy. Tulchin was charged with assessing how likely voters think and 
feel about criminal justice and law enforcement, including how police use surveillance 
technology to track Internet, text, email, and other digital activity using handheld devices and 
computers. Tulchin found that two-thirds of voters would prefer to see local elected officials, 
such as city council members or county supervisors, approve new surveillance technologies 
before the devices are deployed (67% support). Similarly, voters want to see policies which set 
limits on surveillance use both locally (65%) and statewide (64%). The survey also indicated that 
voters want accountability from law enforcement agencies regarding the frequency of use of 
surveillance technologies (62%). The public also wants public notification before the purchase of 
new surveillance technologies (58%).10 

Public opinion in the Bay Area on surveillance  

Although the Grand Jury did not find any surveys of public opinion in San Mateo County on 
surveillance issues, the balancing of protection vs. privacy has been a subject of interest in the 
Bay Area. 

In 2015, The Center for Investigative Reporting11 and three local artists12 collaborated on the arts 
and journalism project “Eyes on Oakland.”13 The reporters and the artists visited neighborhoods 
across the city of Oakland informing residents about surveillance technology. Hundreds of 
residents participated by completing questionnaires. Participants were asked to respond to the 
prompt: “Surveillance is…”  
                                                 
6 Marisa Kendall, “Surveillance in Silicon Valley is hard to avoid,” San Jose Mercury News, February 9, 2017. 
http://www.mercurynews.com/2017/02/09/surveillance-in-silicon-valley-whos-watching-you/. 
7 Ibid. 
8 For information about Tulchin Research, go to http://www.tulchinresearch.com. 
9 See Appendix B. 
10 Tulchin Research, “California Statewide Survey Finds Voters Concerned about Privacy and Want to See Reforms Made to 
Surveillance Technology Use by Law Enforcement,” August 21, 2015, http://www.aclunc.org/docs/20150821-
aclu_surveillance_privacy_polling.pdf. 
11 For information about The Center for Investigative Reporting, go to https://www.revealnews.org/, accessed May 23, 2017. 
12Aaron McKenzie, Chris Treggiari and Peter Foucault 
13 For information on the “Eyes on Oakland” project, go to http://eyesonoakland.tumblr.com/, assessed June 8, 2017. 



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 4

Here is a sampling of the responses: 

• Surveillance is: questionable 

• Surveillance is: important 

• Surveillance can be used against a peaceful public 

• Surveillance is: Technology run amok. Just because we can do it, should we do it? 

• Surveillance is: Everywhere. Privacy is a myth in the digital era 

• Surveillance is: State violence 

• Surveillance is: Not a solution to the systemic problems that create crime and violence. 
Surveillance No! Education, Equity and Respect, Yes! 

• Surveillance is: Great!!! Bring it on. It’s for my safety, your safety. Nothing to hide14 

Privacy advocates have pointed out the impact that surveillance technology may have on 
residents: “Our concerns stem from the fact that license plate readers can scan and collect the 
information of innocent people, innocent drivers,” said Chris Conley, a policy attorney with the 
ACLU of Northern California. “Location information can reveal very sensitive information about 
people. If they’re visiting a church, or a clinic or even open-mic night at a bar, all of these things 
reveal information about a person that shouldn’t be sitting in a database somewhere.”15 

Case in point: One San Leandro resident’s eye-opening experience 
After learning that the city of San Leandro had purchased an ALPR for its Police Department in 
2008, computer security consultant Michael Katz-Lacabe asked city officials to send him a 
record of every instance the scanners photographed his car.  

An article on sfgate.com describes what Mr. Katz-Lacabe learned: 

The results shocked him. 

The paperback-size device, installed on the outside of police cars, can log thousands of 
license plates in an eight-hour patrol shift. Katz-Lacabe said it had photographed his two 
cars on 112 occasions, including one image from 2009 that shows him and his daughters 
stepping out of his Toyota Prius in their driveway. 

That photograph, Katz-Lacabe said, made him "frightened and concerned about the 
magnitude of police surveillance and data collection." The single patrol car in San 
Leandro equipped with a plate reader had logged his car once a week on average, 
photographing his license plate and documenting the time and location.16 

                                                 
14 Cole Goins, “What Oakland, California, residents think about police surveillance,” Reveal from the Center for Investigative 
Reporting, August 18, 2015. https://www.revealnews.org/article/what-oakland-california-residents-think-about-police-
surveillance/. 
15 Samantha Weigel, “Who’s watching who?: License plate readers used throughout San Mateo County,” The Daily Journal, 
April 8, 2015. http://www.smdailyjournal.com/articles/lnews/2015-04-08/whos-watching-who-license-plate-readers-used-
throughout-san-mateo-county/1776425141346.html 
16 Ali Winston, “License plate readers tracking cars,” SFGate, June 25, 2013. http://www.sfgate.com/bayarea/article/License-
plate-readers-tracking-cars-4622476.php. 



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 5

Legislation 

The California Constitution provides for a citizen’s right to privacy.17 State lawmakers are 
addressing this right as it relates to surveillance systems. In 2015, California lawmakers passed 
two laws concerning surveillance.18 

• SB 741 (2015) Mobile Communications: Privacy19 
“Cell-site simulators,” sometimes called International Mobile Subscriber Identity (IMSI) 
catchers or Stingrays, trick cellphones into connecting to them as they would to a local 
cellphone tower. This connection enables the simulator to capture an IMSI number (a 
unique number used to identify a user on the cellular network), the current location, and 
perhaps the content of the conversation. In general, law enforcement uses cell-site 
simulators to locate known suspects. A cell-site simulator casts a wide net, collecting all 
the IMSI numbers in an area until it locates the IMSI number that law enforcement is 
searching for. Also swept up are the location and IMSI numbers of all cellphones that 
happen to be nearby.20 
 
Effective January 1, 2016, SB 741, written by Senator Jerry Hill, D – San Mateo, imposes 
restrictions and requirements on data collected by cell-site simulators and how those data 
are managed and shared. According to the Electronic Frontier Foundation,21 any public 
agency using a cell-site simulator must: 

• Secure and protect the collected data from “unauthorized access, destruction, use, 
modification, or disclosure.”22 

• Adopt a usage and privacy policy that is “consistent with respect for any 
individual’s privacy and civil liberties.”23 

• Obtain approval of the legislative body (for example, the City Council) to acquire 
such systems and alert the community about the device through a public process. 
This requirement does not apply to Sheriff’s Offices, which must instead provide 
public notice online that they have acquired such devices.24 

Note: None of the respondents to the Grand Jury’s survey currently use or have plans to 
acquire a cell-site simulator. 

                                                 
17 California Constitution, Section 1. 
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?lawCode=CONS&division=&title=&part=&chapter=&article=I. 
18 ACLU of Northern California Making Smart Decisions about Surveillance: A Guide for community Transparency, 
Accountability and Oversight. April, 2016, 8-9. https://www.aclunc.org/docs/20160325-
making_smart_decisions_about_surveillance.pdf 
19 California Government Code Section 53166.  
20 Stephanie LaCambra, “Congressional Oversight Committee Wants to Rein in Police Abuse of Cell-Site Simulators,” 
Electronic Frontier Foundation DeepLinks (blog).  https://www.eff.org/deeplinks/2017/02/bipartisan-congressional-oversight-
committee-wants-probable-cause-warrants-0. 
21 David Maass, “Success in Sacramento: Four New Laws, One Veto—All Victories for Privacy and Transparency,” accessed 
June 2, 2017. https://www.eff.org/deeplinks/2015/10/success-sacramento-four-new-laws-one-veto-all-victories-privacy-and-
transparency. 
22 Ibid. 
23 Ibid. 
24 Ibid. 



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 6

• SB 34 (2015) Automated License Plate Recognition Systems: Use of Data25 
Effective January 2, 2016, SB 34, also authored by Senator Jerry Hill, D – San Mateo, 
requires agencies that collect data using ALPRs or access ALPR data to publish their 
privacy and usage policies.  Specifically, such policies shall be available to the public in 
writing, and, if the ALPR operator has an Internet Web site, the usage and privacy policy 
shall be posted conspicuously on that Internet Web site.26 

 
In a 2015 San Jose Mercury News article,27 Senator Hill told reporters that approximately 
60 law enforcement and public safety agencies in California were using ALPRs. At that 
time, however, only 8 of the agencies asked for public comment and only 16 published 
their ALPR policies for review by the public. Hill said agencies must “…have a policy in 
place on how they’re going to use it, what they’re going do with the info and how secure 
it will be. Today there is none of that.”28 
 
According to an analysis of the law by the Electronic Frontier Foundation, cities and 
counties using ALPRs are now required to provide this information:29 

• The authorized purposes for using the ALPR system and collecting ALPR 
information. 

• A description of the job title or other designation of the employees and 
independent contractors who are authorized to use or access the ALPR system, or 
to collect ALPR information. The policy shall identify the training requirements 
necessary for those authorized employees and independent contractors. 

• A description of how the ALPR system will be monitored to ensure the security of 
the information and compliance with applicable privacy laws. 

• The purposes of, process for, and restrictions on the sale, sharing, or transfer of 
ALPR information to other persons. 

• The title of the official custodian, or owner, of the ALPR system responsible for 
implementing this section. 

• A description of the reasonable measures that will be used to ensure the accuracy 
of ALPR information and correct data errors. 

• The length of time ALPR information will be retained and the process the ALPR 
operator will utilize to determine if and when to destroy retained ALPR 
information.30 

                                                 
25 California Civil Code sections 1798.29, 1798.82, and 1798.90 
26 California Civil Code section 1798.90.51 
27 Tracy Seipel and Eric Kurhi, “California Digital Privacy Laws Boosted Protecting Consumers from Big Brother, Big 
Business.” 
28 Ibid. 
29 “California Automatic License Plate Reader Policies,” Electronic Frontier Foundation, accessed March 30, 2017. 
https://www.eff.org/pages/california-automated-license-plate-reader-policies. 
30 California Civil Code, sec. 1798.90.51 



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 7

Note: Nine of the respondents to the Grand Jury’s survey currently use or have 
borrowed ALPRs. 

 

DISCUSSION  

The 2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury (Grand Jury) surveyed 19 local law 
enforcement agencies31 regarding their surveillance technology. The survey questions addressed 
these topics: 

• Types of surveillance technology used in the jurisdiction 

• Policies for collecting, managing, and storing surveillance data 

• Precautions taken to ensure public trust 

• Proposals made for a local ordinance related to the purchase and deployment of new or 
borrowed surveillance technology 

With the exception of Broadmoor,32 Colma, and Millbrae, every city and town responding to the 
Grand Jury survey uses some form of surveillance technology. The devices range from video 
cameras in police stations to more sophisticated tools, such as ALPRs. The San Mateo County 
Sheriff’s Office uses ALPRs and ShotSpotter.  

A closer look: Policies for BWCs and ALPRs 

The 2015-16 Grand Jury investigated and reported on body camera usage in the County.33 At the 
time that report was written, five police departments used body worn cameras (BWCs): 
Atherton, Belmont, Foster City, Hillsborough and Menlo Park. Today, 14 police departments and 
the Sheriff’s Office use BWCs, have purchased, or plan to implement them. Currently, Menlo 
Park is the only law enforcement agency in this group with a policy statement relating to the use 
of BWC available online. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                 
31Recipients of survey: Sheriff’s Office, the Broadmoor Police Protection District, and the police departments of the cities and 
towns of Atherton, Belmont, Brisbane, Burlingame, Colma, Daly City, East Palo Alto, Foster City, Hillsborough, Menlo Park, 
Millbrae, Pacifica, Redwood City, San Bruno, San Carlos, San Mateo (city), and South San Francisco. 
32Broadmoor Police Protection District used BWCs for a six-month period (with voluntary participation by officers).  
33 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 2015-16, “Body Cameras—The Reel Issue,” 
https://www.sanmateocourt.org/documents/grand_jury/2015/body_camera.pdf. 



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 8

City/Jurisdiction When 
Implemented 

Expected 
Implementation Policy Available Online? 

Foster City 2012  Contact Police Department for policy* 

Atherton Prior to 2016  Contact Police Department for policy* 

Belmont Prior to 2016  Contact Police Department for policy* 

Hillsborough Prior to 2016  Contact Police Department for policy* 

Menlo Park Prior to 2016  Policy available online, in Menlo Park 
Police Department Policy Manual† 

 

Implementation Coming This Year‡ 

San Bruno  6/17¶ Not applicable 

South San 
Francisco 

 7/17¶ Not applicable 

Sheriff  10/17‡ Not applicable 

Brisbane  10/17‡ Not applicable 

Burlingame  10/17¶ Not applicable 

Colma  10/17¶ Not applicable 

Pacifica  10/17‡ Not applicable 

San Mateo  10/17‡ Not applicable 

Redwood City  12/17¶ Not applicable 

East Palo Alto  Fiscal Year 
2017-2018‡ 

Not applicable 

 

No Plans to Purchase BWCs 

Broadmoor    

Daly City    

*San Mateo County Grand Jury 2015-2016, “Body Cameras—The Reel Truth,”. 
https://www.sanmateocourt.org/documents/grand_jury/2015/body_camera.pdf. 
†Menlo Park Police Department Policy Manual Policy 450, accessed May 31, 2017.  
https://www.menlopark.org/950/Department-policies. 

‡San Mateo County Grand Jury 2016-2017, “Summary of Responses to the 2015-2016 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 
Final Reports.” https://www.sanmateocourt.org/documents/grand_jury/2016/2015-2016Summary.pdf 

¶San Mateo County Grand Jury 2016-2017, “Summary of Responses to the 2015-2016 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 
Final Reports, (Second Summary).” As of June 6, 2017, this report is not yet available online. 



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 9

Survey results revealed that 9 of 19 law enforcement agencies queried in San Mateo County 
either own or have temporarily borrowed ALPRs. The Grand Jury reviewed the websites of those 
nine agencies to determine whether they were in compliance with California Civil Code, sec. 
1798.90.51, which was added pursuant to SB 34.  Section 1798.90.51 requires that “The usage 
and privacy policy shall be available to the public in writing, and, if the ALPR operator has an 
Internet Web site, the usage and privacy policy shall be posted conspicuously on that Internet 
Web site.”34 

The Grand Jury found as follows: 

Law Enforcement 
Agency ALPR Policy Conspicuously Placed? 

Sheriff Yes. 

However, the link to the policy is labeled “ALPR Policy.” 
County residents may not be familiar with the acronym. 

Burlingame No. Policy is not available on website. 

Burlingame does not own ALPRs, but has used the 
equipment on an ad hoc basis in connection with specific 
investigations.  

If an agency temporarily borrows an ALPR, it is still 
required to provide a link on its website to a policy 
statement.  No such policy statement is available on the 
Burlingame police department website. 

Daly City Yes. 

Hillsborough No. Policy is available on the website but not located in a 
conspicuous place. 

To find the policy requires searching the website or 
reading through a long list of FAQs. 

Menlo Park No. Policy is available on the website but not located in a 
conspicuous place. 

To find the policy requires searching through the online 
Police Department Policy Manual. 

San Bruno  Yes. 

San Carlos No. Policy is not available on the website.35 

San Mateo Yes. 

South San Francisco Yes. 

                                                 
34 California Civil Code, sec. 1798.90.51 
35 The City of San Carlos purchased the ALPRs but the Sheriff’s Office provides police services to the city and operates the 
vehicle with the ALPR equipment. No link to an ALPR policy is on the San Carlos Police Bureau webpage, nor does that page 
direct the public to the Sheriff’s Office website for the ALPR policy.  



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 10

In San Mateo County, all law enforcement agencies send the data they collect from ALPRs to the 
Northern California Regional Intelligence Center (NCRIC).36 Congress established the NCRIC 
in 2007, after the Bay Area was designated a high intensity drug trafficking region.37 NCRIC’s 
reach extends from Monterey County to Del Norte County,38 covering 15 counties in 
California.39 NCRIC is known as an “intelligence fusion center” which, according to the 
Department of Homeland Security, “…operate[s] as state and major urban area focal points for 
the receipt, analysis, gathering, and sharing of threat-related information between federal, state, 
local, tribal, territorial (SLTT), and private sector partners.”40 

Access to the NCRIC41 data is strictly regulated insofar as only law enforcement personnel who 
meet these criteria may use the database: 

• Have agreed to the NCRIC privacy policy and non-disclosure agreement  

• Can provide a criminal case or incident name/number 

• Have a lawful purpose with a “need to know”42 and a “right to know”43 the information. 

One common use of APLRs is to compare the license plate numbers collected against a “hot 
list.” This list contains the license plate information of vehicles associated with active 
investigations, such as Amber Alerts, missing persons, stolen vehicles, or stolen license plates.44 

 
 
 
 
 

                                                 
36 Samantha Weigel, “Who’s watching who?: License plate readers used throughout San Mateo County,” The Daily Journal, 
April 8, 2015. http://www.smdailyjournal.com/articles/lnews/2015-04-08/whos-watching-who-license-plate-readers-used-
throughout-san-mateo-county/1776425141346.html 
37 “How the NCRIC was Established,” NCRIC Northern California Regional Intelligence Center, accessed April 19, 
2017..https://ncric.org/default.aspx?MenuItemID=122&MenuGroup=NCRIC+Public+Home&AspxAutoDetectCookieSupport=1 
38 Ibid. 
39 Del Norte, Humboldt, Mendocino, Lake, Napa, Sonoma, Marin, San Francisco, Contra Costa, San Mateo, Alameda, Santa 
Cruz, Santa Clara, San Benito, Monterey Counties. See a map here of the area here: 
https://ncric.org/default.aspx?menuitemid=633&menugroup=NCRIC+Public+Home, accessed May 18, 2017. 
40 “State and Major Urban Area Fusion Centers,” U.S. Department of Homeland Security, accessed March 30, 2017. 
https://www.dhs.gov/state-and-major-urban-area-fusion-centers.  
41 NCRIC Northern California Regional Intelligence Center. “Frequently Asked Questions,” https://ncric.org/html/ALPR-FAQ-
Feb-2015.pdf, accessed May 17, 2017. 
42 According to the NCRIC “Frequently Asked Questions,” Need to know “…is established when the requested information is 
pertinent and necessary to the requesting agency in initiating, furthering, or completing the performance of a law enforcement 
activity. 
https://ncric.org/html/ALPR-FAQ-Feb-2015.pdf, accessed May 18, 2017. 
43 According to the NCRIC “Frequently Asked Questions, Right to know “…is established when the requester is acting in an 
official capacity and has statutory authority to obtain the information being sought.” 
https://ncric.org/html/ALPR-FAQ-Feb-2015.pdf, accessed May 18, 2017. 
44 “NCRIC ALPR FAQs,”  
https://ncric.org/html/ALPR-FAQ-Feb-2015.pdf, accessed May 18, 2017. 



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 11

According to The Daily Journal, ALPRs in San Mateo County, and Northern California  
generally, collect massive amounts of data:45 
 

• In a 12-hour shift, one of the City of San Mateo’s two ALPR-equipped patrol cars 
accumulated nearly 10,000 images from four cameras mounted on the roof of the cars 
(even in the dark).46 

• In one year, NCRIC amassed around 46.5 million images from its partner agencies.47 

The data are purged every 12 months, except for those records connected to a crime, which can 
be held for up to five years.  

Law enforcement places a high value on the amount and quality of the data they collect from the 
ALPRs. For example, San Mateo Police Chief Susan Manheimer informed the Daily Journal: “I 
can’t overestimate how important it really is. They’re not looking at them for collecting data to 
know where our neighbors travel, we’re specifically looking for cars involved in specific 
crimes.”48  

As the Grand Jury discovered, seven of the nine County law enforcement agencies using ALPRs 
have a link on their websites to a policy statement. This policy, in all cases, with the exception of 
Menlo Park, is a boilerplate statement provided by NCRIC.49 The information in this generic 
document does not really provide the level of detail that would be helpful to someone looking for 
specific information. For instance, the law states that the policy shall include:  
 

(E) The title of the official custodian, or owner, of the ALPR system responsible for 
implementing this section.”50  

The NCRIC policy provides the following information regarding “custodians”:51 
 

Custodian of Records and Records Requests 
Each agency operating ALPR technology retains control and ownership as the official 
custodian of its records, and must independently verify all external information obtained 
via NCRIC Information Systems. To the extent permitted by law, requests for 
information under the California Public Records Act or similar applicable laws will be 
directed back to the owner of the requested data. 

The City of San Mateo Police Department’s website provides an example of a well-executed and 
well-publicized policy in this regard. The police department currently uses ALPRs and, in 
addition to a link to the NCRIC policy statement, its website provides helpful information for 

                                                 
45 Samantha Weigel, “Who’s watching who?: License plate readers used throughout San Mateo County,” The Daily Journal, 
April 8, 2015. http://www.smdailyjournal.com/articles/lnews/2015-04-08/whos-watching-who-license-plate-readers-used-
throughout-san-mateo-county/1776425141346.html 
46 Ibid. 
47 Ibid. 
48 Ibid. 
49 See Appendix A for text of “NCRIC Automated License Plate Reader Policy.” 
50 California Civil Code, sec. 1798.90.51 
51 NCRIC, “NCRIC Automated License Plate Reader Policy. “https://ncric.org//html/NCRIC%20ALPR%20POLICY.pdf.  



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 12

residents wanting to learn about how ALPRs are used in the city.52 The explanation of the City of 
San Mateo’s use of ALPRs and links to background information, such as the answers to 
frequently asked questions help those not in law enforcement to better understand the purpose of 
ALPRs. 

 

Interacting with the Community and Building Trust 

According to the Grand Jury survey results, the only opportunity that residents may have to 
comment on the desirability of surveillance technology is at city council meetings. This table 
shows the responses to the question: “Before purchasing the technology, did you inform 
residents of your intention to acquire surveillance tools?”53 Respondents listed the types of 
interactions they used to connect with community members. 

City Response† 

Atherton 
Burlingame 
Daly City 
East Palo Alto 
Hillsborough 
Menlo Park 
Pacifica 
Redwood City 
San Bruno 
San Carlos 
San Mateo 
South San Francisco 

City or Town Council meetings, staff reports 
posted on city website 

                                                 
52 “Vehicle License Plate Readers,” San Mateo Police Department, accessed May 6, 2017. 
http://www.cityofsanmateo.org/index.aspx?nid=3211. 
53 For the actual survey responses to the question “Before purchasing the technology, did you inform residents of your intention 
to acquire surveillance tools?” see Appendix C. 



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 13

City Response† 

East Palo Alto 
Hillsborough 
Menlo Park 
Redwood City 
San Carlos 
Sheriff’s Office 

Public meetings, Town Halls  

Menlo Park* Social media 

Brisbane 
Foster City 

Did not reach out to residents 

* Colma, Pacifica, and South San Francisco stated in the survey that in the future they would use social media to 
inform residents. 

†Some cities stated they did not reach out to residents (Brisbane and Foster City). Belmont responded that the city did 
reach out, but did not provide any examples. Broadmoor Police Protection District, Colma, and Millbrae currently 
use surveillance tools, so this question did not apply to them. 

 

Planning by cities or the County to introduce ordinances to manage surveillance technology 

According to the Grand Jury survey, neither the County nor any cities in San Mateo County are 
currently considering an ordinance that outlines processes and procedures for deploying and 
managing surveillance tools. 

Other Bay Area responses to community concerns about surveillance 

Oakland Domain Awareness Center (DAC) 
In 2013, the City of Oakland was building the DAC system, a large surveillance system 
comprising 700 cameras placed in schools and public housing, with facial recognition software, 
ALPRs, and 300 terabytes of storage.54 In response, a coalition of activists alerted the 
community to the potential harm widespread surveillance could do to privacy and civil liberties. 
At city council meetings, speaker after speaker voiced concerns about surveillance technology 
and requested participation in the decision-making process.55   
As a result, in 2014, the Oakland City Council voted to confine the DAC surveillance to the Port 
of Oakland. The council also prohibited use of facial recognition software, ALPRs, and 
eliminated data retention. The council also created an ad hoc citizen’s committee, which later 
became Oakland’s Privacy Advisory Commission.56 Recently, this commission has proposed a 
“Surveillance and Community Safety Ordinance,”57 which would require the city’s departments 
to disclose any new surveillance technologies they plan to acquire. Agencies would need 
approval from the City Council before purchasing the tool or technology. The law would require 
open public hearings, to allow the public to evaluate the costs and benefits of technologies before 

                                                 
54 Brian Hofer, “How the fight to stop Oakland’s Domain Awareness Center Laid the Groundwork for the Oakland Privacy 
Commission,” ACLU of Northern California (blog), accessed Sept. 21, 2016. https://www.aclunc.org/blog/how-fight-stop-
oaklands-domain-awareness-center-laid-groundwork-oakland-privacy-commission. 
55 Ibid. 
56 Ibid. 
57 Text of proposed ordinance, accessed May 6, 2017: https://www.documentcloud.org/documents/3253520-oak061975.html. 



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 14

they are deployed. Unanimously approved by the commission, the ordinance was pending before 
the Oakland City Council as of June 6, 2017.58 
 
Santa Clara County’s surveillance technology and community safety ordinance 

In September 2016, Santa Clara County passed an ordinance to protect residents’ right to privacy 
from intrusive and invasive technologies.59 This ordinance also addresses emerging surveillance 
tools not yet created. According to the San Jose Mercury News: 
 

The ordinance is aimed at protecting the public’s right to privacy from existing and 
emerging technologies, such as drones, license plate readers, cell phone trackers or things 
that haven’t yet been realized outside of science fiction. 

The new rules require that agencies put in place public policies regarding the use of any 
surveillance technology before it is acquired or activated, and issue annual reports on 
how the technologies have been used and what they discovered.60 

Santa Clara County Supervisor Joe Simitian began advocating for an ordinance in 2014, in 
response to local law enforcement purchasing surveillance technology without informing the 
public. He became more concerned about the lack of transparency when he learned that San Jose 
police had purchased a drone and of Oakland’s plan to extend the powers of the DAC beyond the 
Port of Oakland.61 When the Santa Clara County Sheriff’s Office received a grant to buy a 
$500,000 “Stingray” cell-site simulator, Simitian, backed by many County residents, requested 
more information about this technology. A press release issued by Simitian’s office stated: 

Under the new law, officials who want to purchase and use surveillance technology in 
Santa Clara County will have to: 

• Provide analysis of the privacy and due process implications of the technology they 
wish to acquire, 

• Submit, for approval, a set of “use policies” governing the use of the technology, 
before the technology is acquired or used; and, 

• Report back annually on the use of the technology, in order to provide some measure 
of accountability. 

Simitian noted, “for years and years we’ve made budget allocations without asking the 
most basic of questions: What information are we collecting? About whom? Why? How 

                                                 
58 Darwin BondGraham, “Oakland Privacy Commission Approves Surveillance Transparency Oversight Law,” East Bay 
Express, Jan 6, 2017. 
http://www.eastbayexpress.com/SevenDays/archives/2017/01/06/oakland-privacy-commission-approves-surveillance-
transparency-and-oversight-law. 
Link to proposed ordinance, accessed May 6, 2017: https://www.documentcloud.org/documents/3253520-oak061975.html. 
https://occupyoakland.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/OPAC-Surveillance-Ordinance-Adopted.pdf. 
59 Ordinance no. NS-300.897 “An Ordinance of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Supervisors of the County of Santa 
Clara Adding Division A40 of the County of Santa Clara Ordinance code Relating to Surveillance-Technology and Community 
Safety,” accessed May 6, 2017. https://assets.documentcloud.org/documents/2854213/Attachment-149330.pdf. 
60 Eric Kurhi “Pioneering spy-tech law adopted by Santa Clara County,” The Mercury News, June 7, 2016. 
http://www.mercurynews.com/2016/06/07/pioneering-spy-tech-law-adopted-by-santa-clara-county/. 
61 Ibid. 



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 15

long will we have the information? Who’ll have access? How will we know if there’s 
misuse or abuse? I think we ought to know those answers before we spend millions of 
dollars in public funds.” 

The ordinance also provides that the Board of Supervisors, “…shall assess whether the 
benefits to the impacted County departments and the community of the surveillance 
technology outweigh the costs – including both the financial costs and reasonable 
concerns about the impact on and safeguards for privacy, civil liberties and civil rights.” 

 “I firmly believe we can both protect the public, and respect the public’s privacy and due 
process rights,” Simitian said. “In fact, I believe we’re obligated to do both.” 

The new measure is noteworthy, in part, because it both addresses specific existing 
technologies (like surveillance cameras, automated license plate readers, and cell-site 
simulators), but also attempts to be “future-proof,” by describing the kinds of surveillance 
covered.62 

Bay Area Rapid Transit’s (BART’s) proposed Surveillance Policy 

According to representatives at BART, the BART Board of Directors will be considering a 
proposal that would require board approval of any surveillance tools used by BART police or 
other BART entity.  

The ACLU of Northern California, the Oakland Privacy Working Group, and the Electronic 
Frontier Foundation (EFF) all have indicated support for such the surveillance policy, which has 
been presented to BART’s technology committee in December 2016. A senior attorney at EFF 
stated: “BART could take a big step forward toward accountability and transparency by passing 
the ordinance, which will ensure public and collective board oversight of whether to acquire 
dangerous and invasive spying tools.”63  

Proposed California State Senate Bill  
SB 21 (2017), the Police Surveillance Transparency bill64 sponsored by Senator Jerry Hill, D–
San Mateo, would extend existing privacy standards for ALPRs and cell-intercept devices to all 
surveillance technology used by law enforcement agencies. 

“SB 21 ensures that the same privacy protocols and standards that currently apply to license plate 
readers and cell site simulators apply to all other surveillance technology, including those 
developed in the future,” Senator Hill said.65 

This bill was passed by the California State Senate on May 31, 2017 and was then sent to the 
California Assembly.66 

                                                 
62 Press Release: “Joe Simitian: Cutting-edge surveillance ordinance approved for Santa Clara County,” accessed May 6, 2017. 
https://www.sccgov.org/sites/d5/newsmedia/press-releases/Pages/SurveillanceOrdinance.aspx. 
63 Joe Kukura “BART Considers Measure to Limit Surveillance,” SF Weekly, January 26, 2017. 
http://www.sfweekly.com/news/bart-considers-measure-to-limit-surveillance/. 
64 Text of bill is available at http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180SB21. 
65 “New Legislation,” Senator Jerry Hill, accessed April 3, 2017. 
https://lcmspubcontact.lc.ca.gov/PublicLCMS/imgs/SD13/2017/jan/Hill_eNews_010317_Full.htm#article1. 
66 “CA SB21|2017-2018|Regular Session,” Legiscan, accessed June 1, 2017.  https://legiscan.com/CA/bill/SB21/2017ncric. 



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 16

FINDINGS 

F1. The County of Santa Clara passed an ordinance in 2016 requiring agencies to adopt policies 
related to any surveillance technology before such technology is acquired or activated. The 
ordinance also requires agencies to issue annual reports explaining how the technologies are 
used and what they discovered. 

F2. The County and cities in San Mateo County have not enacted any ordinances governing 
their acquisition and use of surveillance technology, or the accessibility, management, or 
retention of the information acquired. 

F3. The County and cities in San Mateo County do inform residents about the use of some 
surveillance tools (Automated License Plate Readers and Body Worn Cameras) at public 
forums and city council meetings:  

• City or Town Council meeting or staff reports posted on website: Atherton, Burlingame, 
Daly City, East Palo Alto, Hillsborough, Menlo Park, Pacifica, Redwood City, San 
Bruno, San Carlos, San Mateo, South San Francisco 

• Public meeting or Town Halls: East Palo Alto, Hillsborough, Menlo Park, Redwood City, 
San Carlos, Sheriff’s Office 

• The City of Menlo Park mentioned also having used social media for this purpose. 

F4.  With the exception of Burlingame, which borrowed ALPR technology, the cities and the 
San Mateo County Sheriff’s Office have complied with the law requiring ALPR users to 
“conspicuously” post a link to the ALPR usage and privacy policy on their websites.  

F5.  With the exception of the City of San Mateo, the generic ALPR policies posted by cities 
and the Sheriff’s Office do not provide specific information that helpful to residents. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

R1. In addition to providing a conspicuous link to usage and privacy policies on operator 
websites (as required by law for ALPRs), all law enforcement agencies in the County 
should create an easily accessible and simply written information webpage by December 
31, 2017, which lists the types of surveillance tools (such as ALPRs) and investigative 
tools (such as ShotSpotter and body worn cameras) utilized by the agency. At a minimum, 
such a webpage shall include these details about each tool: 

• What is the use and purpose of the technology, such as assisting in ongoing 
criminal investigations, locating missing children, or locating stolen vehicles 

• Who is authorized to collect or access the data collected 

• How the system is monitored to ensure that the data are secure 

• Who owns the surveillance technology 

• What measures were taken to ensure the accuracy of the data 

• How long the data will be retained 



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 17

R2. All law enforcement agencies in the County shall increase the number and types of 
opportunities for community members to voice support for or opposition to any proposed 
addition of new surveillance technologies including, but not limited to:  

• Surveying residents to better understand their concerns about law enforcement’s 
use of surveillance tools and address those concerns in public meetings, Town 
Halls, Neighborhood Watch sessions and other local gatherings. 

• Using social media platforms such as Nextdoor© to keep residents engaged and 
informed about surveillance technologies and its uses in your community. 

R3. Staff shall bring to the city or town council (in the case of a police department or police 
bureau) or the Board of Supervisors (in the case of the Sheriff’s Office) a policy or 
ordinance for consideration at a public meeting by December 31, 2017.  Such ordinances or 
policies should require, at a minimum: 

• Plans to acquire new surveillance technology be announced at public meetings 
and other forums to ensure that the community is aware and engaged when new 
technology is under consideration. 

• Any “use policies” related to surveillance technology be readily available and 
easy to access on the city or County websites. 

• Oversight and accountability be supported by posting periodic reports on the 
effectiveness of the surveillance tools used in the community. 

 
 

REQUEST FOR RESPONSES 

Pursuant to Penal code section 933.05, the Grand Jury requests responses to Recommendations 
1-3 from the following: 

• San Mateo County Board of Supervisors 

• San Mateo County Sheriff’s Office 

• Broadmoor Police Protection District 

• Atherton Town Council 

• Belmont City Council 

• Brisbane City Council 

• Burlingame City Council 

• Colma City Council 

• Daly City City Council  

• East Palo Alto City Council  

• Foster City City Council 

• Half Moon Bay City Council 



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 18

• Hillsborough Town Council 

• Menlo Park City Council 

• Millbrae City Council 

• Pacifica City Council 

• Portola Valley Town Council 

• Redwood City City Council 

• San Bruno City Council 

• San Carlos City Council 

• San Mateo City Council 

• South San Francisco City Council 

• Woodside Town Council 

The governing bodies indicated above should be aware that the comment or response of the 
governing body must be conducted subject to the notice, agenda and open meeting requirements 
of the Brown Act. 



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 19

BIBLIOGRAPHY   

ACLU of Northern California Making Smart Decisions about Surveillance: A Guide for 
community Transparency, Accountability and Oversight, April 2016. 
https://www.aclunc.org/docs/20160325-making_smart_decisions_about_surveillance.pdf. 
 
Bartley, Kaitlyn. “Dashboard cameras rolled out before policy.” Half Moon Bay Review, 
February 23, 2017. http://www.hmbreview.com/news/dashboard-cameras-rolled-out-before-
policy/article_b2329fe6-f9f8-11e6-9172-3fb3fe109222.html. 
 
BondGraham, Darwin. “Oakland Privacy Commission Approves Surveillance Transparency 
Oversight Law.” East Bay Express, January 6, 2017. 
http://www.eastbayexpress.com/SevenDays/archives/2017/01/06/oakland-privacy-commission-
approves-surveillance-transparency-and-oversight-law. 
 
Electronic Frontier Foundation. “California Automatic License Plate Reader Policies,” 
Electronic Frontier Foundation. Accessed March 30, 2017. 
https://www.eff.org/pages/california-automated-license-plate-reader-policies. 
 
Electronic Frontier Foundation.  “Street-Level Surveillance: Automated License Plate Readers.” 
Accessed May 23, 2017. https://www.eff.org/sls/tech/automated-license-plate-readers. 
 
Electronic Frontier Foundation. “Street-Level Surveillance: Cell-site Simulators.” Accessed May 
23, 2017. https://www.eff.org/sls/tech/cell-site-simulators. 
 
Goins, Cole. “What Oakland, California, residents think about police surveillance.” Reveal from 
the Center for Investigative Reporting, August 18, 2015. 
https://www.revealnews.org/article/what-oakland-california-residents-think-about-police-
surveillance/. 
 
Hofer, Brian. “How the fight to stop Oakland’s Domain Awareness Center Laid the Groundwork 
for the Oakland Privacy Commission.” ACLU of Northern California (blog), Sept. 21, 2016.  
https://www.aclunc.org/blog/how-fight-stop-oaklands-domain-awareness-center-laid-
groundwork-oakland-privacy-commission. 
 
Kukura, Joe. “BART Considers Measure to Limit Surveillance.” SF Weekly, January 26, 2017. 
http://www.sfweekly.com/news/bart-considers-measure-to-limit-surveillance/. 
 
Kurhi, Eric. “Pioneering spy-tech law adopted by Santa Clara County,” The Mercury News, June 
7, 2016. 
http://www.mercurynews.com/2016/06/07/pioneering-spy-tech-law-adopted-by-santa-clara-
county/. 
 
Kendall, Marisa. “Surveillance in Silicon Valley is hard to avoid.” The Mercury News, February 
9, 2017. http://www.mercurynews.com/2017/02/09/surveillance-in-silicon-valley-whos-
watching-you/. 
 



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 20

LaCambra, Stephanie. “Congressional Oversight Committee Wants to Rein in Police Abuse of 
Cell-Site Simulators,” Electronic Frontier Foundation DeepLinks (blog) 
https://www.eff.org/deeplinks/2017/02/bipartisan-congressional-oversight-committee-wants-
probable-cause-warrants-0. 
 
Maass, David. “Success in Sacramento: Four New Laws, One Veto—All Victories for Privacy 
and Transparency.” Accessed June 2, 2017. https://www.eff.org/deeplinks/2015/10/success-
sacramento-four-new-laws-one-veto-all-victories-privacy-and-transparency. 
 
McLeod, Saul. “Maslow’s Hierarchy of Needs.” Simply Psychology. Accessed May 23,2017. 
https://www.simplypsychology.org/maslow.html. 
 
NCRIC Northern California Regional Intelligence Center. “How the NCRIC was Established.” 
Accessed April 19, 2017. 
https://ncric.org/default.aspx?MenuItemID=122&MenuGroup=NCRIC+Public+Home&AspxAu
toDetectCookieSupport=1. 
 
NCRIC Northern California Regional Intelligence Center. “Frequently Asked Questions.” 
Accessed May 18, 2017. https://ncric.org/html/ALPR-FAQ-Feb-2015.pdf. 
 
Police Executive Research Forum. “How Are Innovations in Technology Transforming 
Policing.” 
http://www.policeforum.org/assets/docs/Critical_Issues_Series/how%20are%20innovations%20i
n%20technology%20transforming%20policing%202012.pdf. 
 
Seipel, Tracy and Eric Kurhi. “California Digital Privacy Laws Boosted Protecting Consumers 
from Big Brother, Big Business,” San Jose Mercury News, October 9, 2015. 
http://www.mercurynews.com/2015/10/09/california-digital-privacy-laws-boosted-protecting-
consumers-from-big-brother-big-business/. 
 
San Mateo County Grand Jury 2015-16. Body Cameras—The Reel Issue. 
https://www.sanmateocourt.org/documents/grand_jury/2015/body_camera.pdf. 
 
San Mateo County Grand Jury 2016-2017. Summary of Responses to the 2015-2016 San Mateo 
County Civil Grand Jury Final Reports, (Second Summary). As of June 6, 2017, this report is not 
yet available online. 

Tulchin Research.“California Statewide Survey Finds Voters Concerned about Privacy and Want 
to See Reforms Made to Surveillance Technology Use by Law Enforcement.” August 21, 2015. 
http://www.aclunc.org/docs/20150821-aclu_surveillance_privacy_polling.pdf. 
 
U.S. Department of Homeland Security. “State and Major Urban Area Fusion Centers.” 
Accessed March 30, 2017. https://www.dhs.gov/state-and-major-urban-area-fusion-centers.  
 
 
 



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 21

Weigel, Samantha. “Who’s watching who?: License plate readers used throughout San Mateo 
County.” The Daily Journal, April 8, 2015. http://www.smdailyjournal.com/articles/lnews/2015-
04-08/whos-watching-who-license-plate-readers-used-throughout-san-mateo-
county/1776425141346.html. 
 
Winston, Ali. “License plate readers tracking cars.” SFGate, June 25, 2013. 
http://www.sfgate.com/bayarea/article/License-plate-readers-tracking-cars-4622476.php. 
 



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 22

APPENDIX A  

  
NCRIC Automated License Plate Reader Policy  

  
NCRIC MISSION  
  
The Northern California Regional Intelligence Center (NCRIC) is a multi-jurisdiction public safety program 
created to assist local, state, federal, and tribal public safety agencies and critical infrastructure locations 
with the collection, analysis, and dissemination of criminal threat information. It is the mission of the 
NCRIC to protect the citizens within its area of responsibility from the threat of narcotics trafficking, 
organized crime, as well as international, domestic, and street terrorism-related activities through 
information sharing and technical operations support to public safety personnel.  
  
AUTOMATED LICENSE PLATE READER (ALPR) TECHNOLOGIES  
  
To support authorized law enforcement and public safety purposes of local, state, federal, and tribal 
public safety agencies, the NCRIC utilizes Automated License Plate Reader (ALPR) technology, and 
supporting software, to gather and analyze ALPR data to enable the rapid identification and location of 
vehicles of legitimate interest to law enforcement. ALPR units are attached to law enforcement vehicles or 
deployed at fixed locations, where they collect license plate information from vehicles on public roadways 
and public property. In one common use of ALPR technology, license plate encounters are compared 
against law enforcement “hotlists” – lists of vehicles associated with active investigations, for example, 
related to Amber Alerts or other missing children, stolen vehicles, or stolen license plates. The information 
is also retained for a fixed retention period, though it is only reaccessible by law enforcement given a 
legitimate law enforcement purpose as listed below.  
  
PURPOSE  
  
This NCRIC Automated License Plate Reader Policy (ALPR Policy) defines a minimum set of binding 
guidelines to govern the use of Automated License Plate Reader Data (ALPR Data), in order to enable 
the collection and use of such data in a manner consistent with respect for individuals’ privacy and civil 
liberties.  
The NCRIC also completed a NCRIC ALPR Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) to address in further detail 
common privacy and civil liberties concerns regarding Automated License Plate Reader technology. The 
current version of this document is available on the NCRIC web site at www.ncric.org.  
  
AUTHORIZED PURPOSES, COLLECTION, AND USE OF ALPR DATA  
  
To support the mission of the NCRIC, Law enforcement personnel with a need and right to know will 
utilize ALPR technology to:  

• Locate stolen, wanted, and subject of investigation vehicles;  
• Locate and apprehend individuals subject to arrest warrants or otherwise lawfully sought by law 

enforcement;  
• Locate witnesses and victims of violent crime;  
• Locate missing children and elderly individuals, including responding to Amber and Silver Alerts; 
• Support local, state, federal, and tribal public safety departments in the identification of vehicles 

associated with targets of criminal investigations, including investigations of serial crimes;  
• Protect participants at special events; and  
• Protect critical infrastructure sites.  

   
 
 
 
 



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 23

RESTRICTIONS ON COLLECTION OF ALPR DATA AND USE OF ALPR SYSTEMS  
  
NCRIC ALPR units may be used to collect data that is within public view, but may not be used for the sole 
purpose of monitoring individual activities protected by the First Amendment to the United States 
Constitution.  
  
ALPR operators may not contact occupants of stolen, wanted, or subject-of-investigation vehicles unless 
the ALPR operators are sworn law enforcement officers. ALPR operators must rely on their parent agency 
rules and regulations regarding equipment, protection, self-identification, and use of force when stopping 
vehicles or making contact.  
  
ALPR operators must recognize that the data collected from the ALPR device, and the content of 
referenced hotlists, consists of data that may or may not be accurate, despite ongoing efforts to maximize 
the currency and accuracy of such data. To the greatest extent possible, vehicle and subject information 
will be verified from separate Law enforcement information sources to confirm the vehicle or subject’s 
identity and justification for contact. Users of ALPR Data must, to the fullest extent possible, visually 
confirm the plate characters generated by the ALPR readers correspond with the digital image of the 
license plate in question.  
  
All users of NCRIC ALPR equipment or accessing NCRIC ALPR Data are required to acknowledge that 
they have read and understood the NCRIC ALPR Policy prior to use of the ALPR System. 
  
In no case shall the NCRIC ALPR system be used for any purpose other than a legitimate law 
enforcement or public safety purpose.  
  
TRAINING  
  
Only persons trained in the use of the NCRIC ALPR system, including its privacy and civil liberties 
protections, shall be allowed access to NCRIC ALPR Data. Training shall consist of:  

• Legal authorities, developments, and issues involving the use of ALPR Data and technology  
• Current NCRIC Policy regarding appropriate use of NCRIC ALPR systems;  
• Evolution of ALPR and related technologies, including new capabilities and associated risks;  
• Technical, physical, administrative, and procedural measures to protect the security of ALPR 

Data against unauthorized access or use; and  
• Practical exercises in the use of the NCRIC ALPR system  

  
Training shall be updated as technological, legal, and other changes that affect the use of the NCRIC 
ALPR system occur.  
  
 AUDIT  
  
Access to, and use of, ALPR Data is logged for audit purposes. Audit reports will be structured in a format 
that is understandable and useful and will contain, at a minimum:  

• The name of the law enforcement user;  
• The name of the agency employing the user;  
• The date and time of access;  
• The activities executed, including any license plates searched for;  
• The supplied authorized law enforcement or public safety justification for access; and  
• A case number associated with the investigative effort generating the ALPR data query.  

  
Audit reports will be provided periodically and on request to supervisory personnel at t the NCRIC and 
partner agencies.  
  
In addition, no less frequently than every 12 months, the NCRIC will audit a sampling of ALPR system 
utilization from the prior 12 month period to verify proper use in accordance with the above authorized 



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 24

uses. Any discovered intentional misconduct will lead to further investigation, termination of system 
access, and notification of the user’s parent agency for appropriate recourse. In addition, the auditing 
data will be used to identify systemic issues, inadvertent misuse, and requirements for policy changes, 
training enhancements, or additional oversight mechanisms.  
  
These ALPR audits shall be conducted by a senior NCRIC official other than the person assigned to 
manage the NCRIC ALPR function. Audit results shall then be reported to the Director of the NCRIC.  
  
DATA QUALITY AND ACCURACY  
  
The NCRIC will take reasonable measures to ensure the accuracy of ALPR Data collected by NCRIC 
ALPR units and partner agency ALPR systems. Errors discovered in ALPR Data collected by NCRIC 
ALPR units are marked, corrected, or deleted in accordance with the type and severity of the error in 
question. Errors discovered in ALPR Data collected from partner agencies’ ALPR systems are 
communicated back to the controlling agency to be addressed as deemed appropriate by that agency or 
in accordance with the agency’s own ALPR data policies.  
  
As the downstream custodian of “hotlists”, the NCRIC will provide the most recent versions of these lists 
available and ensure the lists are refreshed from state or federal sources on a daily basis. 
   
The NCRIC acknowledges that, in rare instances ALPR units may inadvertently capture information 
contrary to the collection guidelines set forth in this policy. Such records will be purged upon identification. 
Any discovered notable increase in frequency of these incidents from specific ALPR units or agencies will 
be followed up with for equipment repairs, camera realignment, or personnel training as necessary.  
  
PHYSICAL AND ELECTRONIC SECURITY OF ALPR DATA:  
  
Data collected by ALPR systems is stored in a secured law enforcement facility with multiple layers of 
physical security and 24/7 security protections. Physical access is limited to law enforcement staff in good 
standing who have completed background investigations and possess an active security clearance at the 
“SECRET” or higher level.  
  
NCRIC will utilize strong multi-factor authentication, encrypted communications, firewalls, and other 
reasonable physical, technological, administrative, procedural, and personnel security measures to 
mitigate the risks of unauthorized access to the system.  
  
RETENTION OF ALPR DATA:  
  
ALPR Data collected by NCRIC ALPR units or shared from partner agencies’ ALPR units shall not be 
retained longer than 12 months, or the length of time required by the partner agency who is custodian of 
the record – whichever is shorter. Once the retention period has expired, the record will be purged entirely 
from all active and backup systems unless a reasonable suspicion has been established that the vehicle 
identified by the ALPR read is connected to criminal activities.  
  
ALPR records matching an entry in a current law enforcement hotlist will trigger an immediate notification 
to the officer operating the ALPR unit, the active dispatch officer at the agency owning the ALPR unit, the 
NCRIC, and the custodial agency of the hotlist. Such notifications are also subject to a maximum 
retention of 12 months.  
  
ALPR Data obtained with license plate information not appearing on hotlists, and with no immediate 
reasonable connection to criminal activity, will be retained in secure systems so as to only be made 
accessible to authorized personnel for a maximum period of twelve months, then purged entirely from all 
systems. If during the specified retention period there is information which supports a legitimate law 
enforcement purpose (see above section enumerating AUTHORIZED PURPOSES, COLLECTION, AND 
USE OF ALPR DATA) as to a license plate or partial license plate which was recorded and is retained in 
these systems, then limited access will be permitted for predicate-based querying for potential matches 



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 25

against the parameters specific to the legitimate law enforcement purpose. Such events shall be recorded 
in an access log showing date, time, name of person seeking access, agency of employment, reason for 
access, and tracking identifiers such as an agency case number.  
  
NCRIC Automated License Plate Reader Policy 5 ALPR records of vehicles having been identified and 
linked to criminal investigation will be entered into the relevant NCRIC database(s) and retained for a 
period of no more than five years. If during the fiveyear period NCRIC personnel become aware that the 
vehicle license plate information is no longer associated with a criminal investigation, it will be purged 
from the NCRIC’s databases.  
 
CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS AND RECORDS REQUESTS  
  
Each agency operating ALPR technology retains control and ownership as the official custodian of its 
records, and must independently verify all external information obtained via NCRIC Information Systems. 
To the extent permitted by law, requests for information under the California Public Records Act or 
Freedom of Information Act or similar applicable laws will be directed back to the owner of the requested 
data. 
  
SYSTEM MANAGEMENT AND ACCOUNTABILITY  
  
The NCRIC shall assign a senior officer who will have responsibility, and be accountable, for managing 
the ALPR Data collected and ensuring that the privacy and civil liberties protection and other provisions of 
this ALPR Policy are carried out. This individual shall also be responsible for managing a process for 
maintaining the most current and accurate hotlists available from NCRIC law enforcement sources. This 
individual shall also have the responsibility for the security of the hotlist information and any ALPR Data 
which is maintained by the NCRIC. It remains, however, the personal responsibility of all officers with 
access to ALPR Data to take reasonable measures to protect the privacy and civil liberties of individuals, 
as well as the security and confidentiality of ALPR Data.  
  
COMMERCIALLY CREATED ALPR DATA  
  
Except as explicitly authorized below with regard to critical infrastructure, the NCRIC will not share NCRIC 
or partner agency ALPR Data with commercial or other private entities or individuals.  
  
DISSEMINATION  
 
The NCRIC may disseminate ALPR data to any governmental entity with an authorized law enforcement 
or public safety purpose for access to such data. The NCRIC assumes no responsibility or liability for the 
acts or omissions of other agencies in making use of the ALPR data properly disseminated. Though the 
NCRIC will make every reasonable effort to ensure the quality of shared ALPR Data and hotlists, it cannot 
make absolute guarantees of the accuracy of information provided.  
  
ALPR Information may be disseminated to owners and operators of critical infrastructure in circumstances 
where such infrastructure is reasonably believed to be the target of surveillance for the purpose of a 
terrorist attack or other criminal activity. In these situations, the NCRIC also will make notification to 
appropriate local, state, and federal law enforcement agencies.  
  
Information collected by the ALPR system shall not be disseminated to private parties, other than critical 
infrastructure owners or operators, as limited above, unless authorized, in writing, by the Director of the 
NCRIC or his designee. ALPR information shall not be disseminated for personal gain or for any other 
non-law enforcement purposes.  
  
 
 
 
 



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 26

POLICY REVISIONS  
  
NCRIC ALPR Policies will be reviewed, and updated as necessary, no less frequently than every 12 
months, or more frequently based on changes in data sources, technology, data use and/or sharing 
agreements, and other relevant considerations.  
  
The most current version of the ALPR Policy may be obtained from the NCRIC website at 
http://www.ncric.org/  



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 27

APPENDIX B 
 

 



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 28

 

 



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 29

 



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 30

 



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 31

APPENDIX C 

This table shows the verbatim responses to this question from the Grand Jury’s survey of police 
departments and the Sheriff’s Office: “Before purchasing the technology, did you inform 
residents of your intention to acquire surveillance tools?” 
 

City How Cities Responded 

Atherton The projects and expenses were approved by the Town 
Council and divulged as part of the public agenda in staff 
reports. 

Belmont Belmont did respond “Yes” to the question but did not 
provide details. 

Broadmoor N/A (no surveillance technology in use). 

Brisbane Law enforcement did not reach out to the community 

Burlingame Body Worn Cameras we responded to the Grand Jury’s 
recommendation to implement and went before our City 
Council for approval. 

GPS we did not notify our community 

Police Department Cameras we did not notify our 
community 

Colma N/A (no surveillance technology in use). 

Note: The Police Department will reach out to residents at 
council meetings and social media if the Department does 
plan to acquire surveillance technology. 

Daly City Staff report to City Council for approval 

East Palo Alto ShotSpotter: This was installed during Chief Ronald Davis 
tenure and I believe there was involvement with community 
and the matter was approved by the City Council. 
Additionally, each year that I renew the contract, it goes 
before the City Council and the community has the 
opportunity to comment on the use of the system. 

Foster City Law enforcement did not reach out to the community 

Hillsborough The ALPR mobile unit purchase was introduced over the 
course of several council meetings and approved by City 
Council.  We also hosted a number of community forums on 
the topic of crime prevention and discussed the ALPR 
technology prior to and after it was approved. Additionally, 
we regularly update our council with details and statistics 
from our ALPR program.  



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 32

City How Cities Responded 

Menlo Park City council meetings, social media, community meetings 

Millbrae N/A (no surveillance technology in use) 

Pacifica Regarding the implementation of patrol vehicle cameras in 
the mid 1990’s, it is unknown what methods were used to 
inform residents. 

The police department’s body camera implementation plan 
was announced at a City Council meeting. When body 
cameras are deployed, the department plans to announce this 
vial social media and press release. 

Redwood City We did community outreach and held a community meeting 
regarding the placing of surveillance cameras on a 
pedestrian footbridge.  

Redwood City Police Department began using the ALPR 
technology in 2012. On October 6, 2015, Governor Edmund 
G. Brown Jr. signed SB 34, which added provisions to the 
California Civil Code regarding the use of ALPR systems, 
including requiring government agencies using ALPRs to 
maintain reasonable security procedures and practices, to 
implement a privacy policy, to keep records of access to 
records created through use of ALPR system, and to prevent 
unauthorized access to the system. In addition, the agency 
must disclose any security breaches and cannot sell, share, 
or transfer ALPR information, except to another public 
agency and only as permitted by law. Under Section 
1798.90.55  

(a), the new law requires: A public agency that 
operates or intends to operate an ALPR system shall 
provide an opportunity for public comment at a 
regularly scheduled public meeting of the governing 
body of the public agency before implementing the 
program. 

The Police Department has updated its Policy Manual to 
comply with the new provisions of the law. The updated 
policy regarding Automated License Plate Readers has been 
posted to the City Website as required by California Civil 
Code Section 1798.90.51 (b)(1). Because the department 
began using ALPR technology prior to the passage of SB 
34, compliance with the requirement that an opportunity for 
public comment at a regularly scheduled public meeting of 
the governing body of the public agency before 



 

2016-2017 San Mateo County Civil Grand Jury 33

City How Cities Responded 

implementing the program was not possible. The 
Department is in compliance with SB34 and is now 
providing an opportunity for public comment at a regularly 
scheduled public meeting of the governing body of the 
public agency before implementing new ALPR technology.  

San Bruno A staff report regarding the ALPR was made available on 
the city's web page. The project was also presented in a 
televised public forum at a city council meeting. 

San Carlos The decision to deploy ALPR technology was made by the 
City Council; not by the Police Bureau.  An open, “noticed” 
public meeting was held to discuss the item and take public 
comment on the issue. At the conclusion of that very public 
process, the city Council voted and directed the Police 
Bureau to deploy the ALPRs 
We also discussed the issue during Police Town Hall 
Meetings and Neighborhood Watch events. 

San Mateo (city) Depends—ALPRs are required by law to be noticed to our 
city council and we posted the privacy policy on our internet

San Mateo 
County Sheriff 

Open, noticed public meetings were held to discuss the 
items and take public comment on the issue. The meetings 
were held to help educate and inform the community. 

During the community meetings, we provided facts and also 
discussed the benefits during Town Hall Meetings and 
Neighborhood Watch events. 

South San 
Francisco 

Our intention to acquire body cameras was addressed at a 
public City Council meeting. Once the body cameras are 
implemented, we will make a public announcement by 
means of a press release and social media 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Issued: July 12, 2017 













'GOW'l1 of 'P01{~O('A ()A('('E .~
 
Tow n H,dl : 765 Porro la R()<ld , Po rto la V,IUCy, C A 94021; Te l: (650 ) Wi 1 - 1 7 (~0 h lx: (6 S0 ) 1'5[-4677 

July 27,2017 

Grand Jury Foreperson 
c/o Court Executive Officer 
400 County Center 
Redwood City, CA 94063-1655 

Re:	 Response to Grand Jury Report
 
A Delicate Balance: Privacy vs. Protection
 

Dear Grand Jury Foreperson: 

The Town Council for the Town of Portola Valley ("Town ") has reviewed the 
recommendations in the Grand Jury Report "A Delicate Balance: Privacy vs. Protection" 
and approved the following responses at the public meeting on July 26, 2017: 

Recommendation NO.1 
In addition to providing a conspicuous link to usage and privacy policies on operator 
websites (as required by law for ALPRs), all law enforcement agencies in the County 
should create an easily accessible and simply wr itten information webpage by 
December 31 , 2017 , which lists the types of surveillance tools (such as ALPRs) and 
investigative tools (such as ShotSpotter and body worn cameras) utilized by the agency. 
At a minimum , such a webpage shall include these deta ils about each tool: 

• What is the use and purpose of the technology , such as assisting in ongoing 
criminal investigations, locating missing child ren, or locating stolen vehicles 
• Who is authorized to collect or access the data collected 
• How the system is monitored to ensu re that the data are secure 
• Who owns the surve illance technology 
• What measures were taken to ensure the accuracy of the data 
• How long the data will be retained 

Response NO.1 
The Town contracts with the San Mateo County Sheriff's Department for law 
enforcement services. Therefore, the Town is not in a position to implement this 
recommendation. The Town will coope rate with the Sheriff's Department, as 
necessary, to implement the recommendation . Additionally, after a robust public 
process, on Apr il 26, 2017 , the Town Council of the Town of Portola Valley 
adopted Ordinance No 2017-418 adding Chapter 9.02, Public Safety Information , 
to the Town 's Municipal Code . This ordinance , which addresses the use and 
retention of ALPR data , and related materials are readily available on the Town 's 
website . 

C:\Users\shan lonlA ppData\LocaI\Microsoft\W indows \Temporary Internet Files\ContenLOutlook\9JGJGV5J\ 17 GrdJry Surveillance 
Irt.doc 



Grand Jury Foreperson 
Page 2 

Recommendation NO.2 
All law enforcement agencies in the County shall increase the number and types of 
opportunities for community members to voice support for or opposition to any proposed 
addition of new surveillance technologies including, but not limited to: 

• Surveying residents to better understand their concerns about law 
enforcement's use of surveillance tools and address those concerns in public 
meetings, Town Halls, Neighborhood Watch sessions and other local gatherings. 
• Using social media platforms such as Nextdoor© to keep residents engaged 
and informed about surveillance technologies and its uses in your community. 

Response NO.2 
The Town contracts with the San Mateo County Sheriff's Department for law 
enforcement services. Therefore, the Town is not in a position to implement this 
recommendation. The Town will cooperate with the Sheriff's Department, as 
necessary, to implement the recommendation. Additionally, after a robust public 
process, on April 26, 2017, the Town Council of the Town of Portola Valley 
adopted Ordinance No 2017-418 adding Chapter 9.02, Public Safety Information, 
to the Town's Municipal Code. The robust public process included a number of 
public meetings over a two-year period prior to adoption of the use of ALPR 
technology in town. 

Recommendation No.3 
Staff shall bring to the city or town council (in the case of a police department or police 
bureau) or the Board of Supervisors (in the case of the Sheriff's Office) a policy or 
ordinance for consideration at a public meeting by December 31, 2017. Such 
ordinances or policies should require, at a minimum: 

• Plans to acquire new surveillance technology be announced at public meetings 
and other forums to ensure that the community is aware and engaged when new 
technology is under consideration. 
• Any "use policies" related to surveillance technology be readily available and 
easy to access on the city or County websites. 
• Oversight and accountability be supported by posting periodic reports on the 
effectiveness of the surveillance tools used in the community. 

Response NO.3 
The Town contracts with the San Mateo County Sheriff's Department for law 
enforcement services. Therefore, the Town is not in a position to implement this 
recommendation. The Town will cooperate with the Sheriff's Department, as 
necessary, to implement the recommendation. Additionally, after a robust public 
process, on April 26, 2017. the Town Council of the Town of Portola Valley 
adopted Ordinance No 2017-418 adding Chapter 9.02, Public Safety Information, 
to the Town's Municipal Code. The robust public process included a number of 
public meetings over a two-year period prior to adoption of the use of ALPR 
technology in town. 

The Town thanks the Grand Jury for bringing this issue to our attention in an 
informative and thorough manner. Please let me know if you require additional 
information. 

C:\Users\shanlon\AppOata\Local\Microsofl\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\9JGJGV5J\17 GrdJry Surveillance Irt.doc 



Grand Jury Foreperson 
Page 3 

Mayor 

cc:	 Town Council 
Town Manager 
Town Attorney 

C:IUserslshanlonlAppDatalLocallMicrosoftlWindowslTemporary Internet FileslContenl.Ouliookl9JGJGV5J117 GrdJry Surveillance Irt.doc 





Staff Report – Value of Uniforms and Standby Pay Page 1 of 2 
 9/6/2017  
25977.00100\30127234.1

STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Lori Burns, Human Resources Manager 

Isabel C. Safie, City Attorney’s Office 

VIA:  William Norton, Interim City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 13, 2017 

SUBJECT: Revise Personnel Policies – Uniform Allowance 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following resolution: 

RESOLUTION ADDING SUBCHAPTER 3.02.274 TO THE COLMA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, 
EMPLOYMENT, RELATING TO VALUE OF UNIFORMS FOR CALPERS PURPOSES AND 
AUTHORIZING AN INCREASE IN STANDBY PAY 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

To comply with California Code of Regulations 571(a) the Town must report the cost of 
providing and maintaining non-safety related uniforms for the following Classic employees as 
special compensation reported to CalPERS:   

• For Public Works Maintenance Employees, the Town will continue to provide and
maintain non-safety related uniforms and has deemed that the value of that service is
one thousand seven hundred and eight-five ($1,785) annually per employee.  Sixty-eight
dollars and sixty-seven cents ($68.67) for each Public Works Maintenance Classic
Employee per pay period will be reported to CalPERS as special compensation.

Uniform Provision Contract cost Weekly $   103.00 

Annual Cost (x52 weeks)  5,356.00 

Annual Employee Cost (divide by 3)  1, 785.33 

Cost Per Employee Per Pay Period (divide by 26)  68.67 

In addition, the Town will increase the weekly Standby Pay for the Public Works Maintenance 
Employees from one hundred dollars ($100.00) per week to one hundred twenty dollars 
($120.00).   Since the required Employee CalPERS contribution will increase as a result of this 
newly reported special compensation, the Town met with the affected employees and 
conditionally agreed to offset their additional costs by increasing the Standby Pay subject to 

Item #4



Staff Report – Value of Uniforms and Standby Pay  Page 2 of 2 
 9/6/2017  
25977.00100\30127234.1  
 

Council approval.  Also, the amount of the Standby Pay has not increased since instituted in 
2014. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

• Because the Town is continuing to pay for the provision and maintenance of non-safety 
uniforms for the Public Works Maintenance Workers, the only additional cost is the 
annual increase of Town’s employer contribution to CalPERS of approximately four 
hundred and thirty-seven dollars ($437) per employee or a total of one thousand three 
hundred and twelve dollars ($1,312) per year. 

• The annual cost of the increase in the Standby pay will cost the Town an additional 
three hundred forty-six dollars ($346) per employee or a total of one thousand and forty 
dollars ($1,040.00) per year. 

BACKGROUND 

CalPERS has made a concerted effort to ensure that the value of providing and maintaining 
non-safety related uniforms for all Classic employees are reported as special compensation .  
Also, these amounts are included in an employee’s final compensation when calculating pension 
amounts.  CalPERS regulations require that the value of providing and maintaining these 
uniforms be documented in a written labor policy or agreement.  The proposed resolution 
amending the Colma Administrative Code ensures compliance.   
 
The amount of Standby pay has not been increased since it was established in 2014. 

Council Adopted Values 
 
Adoption of the attached resolution is the fair and responsible course of action because it 
ensures compliance with the California Code of Regulations and recognizes the dedication of our 
Public Works Maintenance Employees.  
 
Alternatives 

The Council could choose to not adopt the proposed resolution.  Doing so is not recommended, 
however, because it would hinder the Town’s compliance with the California Code of 
Regulations.  

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends adoption of the attached resolution.  

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Resolution  
B. Salary Schedule 

 



_____________________________________________________________________________
Res. No. __, CAC 3.02.274, Uniform Allowance 
25977.00100\30127233.1

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-## 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION ADDING SUBCHAPTER 3.02.274 TO 
THE COLMA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, 

EMPLOYMENT, RELATING TO VALUE OF UNIFORMS 
FOR CALPERS PURPOSES AND AUTHORIZING AN 

INCREASE IN STANDBY PAY 

The City Council of the Town of Colma hereby resolves: 

 CAC SECTION 3.02.274 ADDED. ARTICLE 1.

Section 3.02.274 to state as follows: 

3.02.274 Value of Uniforms for CalPERS Purposes 

(a) The Town shall report to CalPERS a uniform allowance as special compensation in the 
amount of $68.67 per pay period for Public Works Maintenance Workers. 

(b)  The foregoing shall be subject to the provisions and limitations under the Public 
Employees Retirement Law, including the prohibition against reporting uniform allowance as 
pensionable compensation for “new members” under the Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act 
of 2013.   

 CAC SECTION 3.02.271 AMENDED. ARTICLE 2.

Section 3.02.271, Standby Duty, is hereby renumbered as 3.02.272 

 CAC SECTION 3.02.272 AMENDED ARTICLE 3.

Section 3.02.272, Call Back Pay, is hereby renumbered as 3.02.273 

 CAC SECTION 3.02.273 AMENDED ARTICLE 4.

Section 3.02.273, After Work Hours Communications, is hereby renumbered as 3.02.271 

 CAC SECTION 3.02.273 AMENDED ARTICLE 5.

Section 3.02.273, Conflicting Provision, is hereby renumbered as 3.02.275 

 AUTHORIZATION TO INCREASE STANDBY PAY ARTICLE 6.

The City Council hereby authorizes a weekly increase in standby pay for the Public Works 
Maintenance Employees from one hundred dollars ($100.00) per week to one hundred twenty 
dollars ($120.00) per week. 

Attachment A



_____________________________________________________________________________
Res. No. __, CAC 3.02.274, Uniform Allowance  
25977.00100\30127233.1   

 SEVERABILITY. ARTICLE 7.

Each of the provisions of this resolution is severable from all other provisions. If any article, 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this resolution is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this ordinance. 

 NOT A CEQA PROJECT. ARTICLE 8.

The City Council finds that adoption of this resolution is not a "project," as defined in the 
California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to CEQA Guideline 15061(b)(3) because it does 
not have a potential for resulting in either a direct physical change in the environment or a 
reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment and concerns general policy 
and procedure making. 

 EFFECTIVE DATE. ARTICLE 9.

This resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

 
I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2017-__ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
the City Council of the Town of Colma held on September 13, 2017, by the following vote: 
1.  

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      

Joanne F. del Rosario       

John Irish Goodwin      

Diana Colvin      

Voting Tally      
 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

 



Town of Colma Pay Schedule Adopted 09/09/15
Revised 09/013/17

Incumbents

Ordinance # or 
Resolution # Dated Effective

Elected Officials (Monthly)
Mayor & City Council 924.00 ORD. 729 11/13/2013

Hourly Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6
Accounting Technician 2 35.27  37.03  38.89  40.83  42.88  -   Reso 2017-06 01/25/2017
Administrative Services Director 1 70.34  73.86  77.55  81.43  85.50  -   Reso 2016-30 06/22/2016 7/4/2016
Administrative Technician I 1 32.92  34.57  36.30  38.11  40.01  -   Reso 2017-06 01/25/2017
Administrative Technician II 0 34.57  36.30  38.11  40.01  42.01  -   Reso 2017-06 01/25/2017
Administrative Technician III 1 34.57  36.30  38.11  40.01  42.01  44.11  Reso 2017-06 01/25/2017
City Clerk 1 44.11  46.32  48.63  51.06  53.61  -   Reso 2017-34 06/28/2017
City Manager 1 95.92  -   -   -   -   -   Reso 2017-25 05/10/2017 1/1/2017
Community Service Officer 1 32.11  33.72  35.40  37.18  39.04  -   Reso 2017-06 01/25/2017
Facility Attendant 7 13.15  13.81  14.50  15.22  15.98  -   Reso 2016-16 03/23/2016
Human Resources Manager 1 48.32  50.74  53.28  55.95  58.74  -   Reso 2017-06 01/25/2017
Maintenance Technician I (7)(8) 1 32.19  33.80  35.48  37.26  39.13  -   Reso 2017-06 01/25/2017
Maintenance Technician II (7)(8) 1 33.80  35.48  37.26  39.13  41.08  -   Reso 2017-06 01/25/2017
Maintenance Technician III (7)(8) 0 33.80  35.48  37.26  39.13  41.08  43.14  Reso 2017-06 01/25/2017
Police Chief (1) 1 89.25  -   -   -   -   -   Reso 2017-24 05/10/2017 12/14/2016
Police Commander (1) 1 65.11  68.35  71.78  75.37  79.13  -   Reso 2017-06 01/25/2017
Police Communications/Dispatcher Supervisor (2)(4) 1 48.42  49.76  51.12  52.46  53.81  -   Reso 2017-05 01/25/2017
Police Dispatcher / Clerk (6)(4) 3 40.18  41.30  42.42  43.53  44.63  -   Reso 2017-05 01/25/2017
Police Officer 1 (1)(3)(5) 4 44.96  47.21  49.58  52.06  -   -   Reso 2017-04 01/25/2017
Police Officer 2 (1)(3)(5) 3 46.76  49.10  51.56  54.14  -   -   Reso 2017-04 01/25/2017
Police Officer 3 (1)(3)(5) 5 47.67  50.05  52.55  55.18  -   -   Reso 2017-04 01/25/2017
Police Sergeant 1 (1)(3)(5) 0 56.99  58.17  59.37  62.66  -   -   Reso 2017-04 01/25/2017
Police Sergeant 2 (1)(3)(5) 0 59.27  60.49  61.74  65.17  -   -   Reso 2017-04 01/25/2017
Police Sergeant 3 (1)(3)(5) 5 60.40  61.65  62.92  66.43  -   -   Reso 2017-04 01/25/2017
Public Works Maintenance Supervisor (7)(8) 1 41.10  43.16  45.31  47.58  49.95  -   Reso 2017-06 01/25/2017
Recreation Coordinator 2 32.10  33.71  35.39  37.16  39.01  -   Reso 2017-06 01/25/2017
Recreation Manager 39.13  41.08  43.14  45.29  47.56  -   Reso 2017-33 06/28/2017
Recreation Leader 7 10.65  11.18  11.74  12.33  12.95  -   Reso 2016-16 03/23/2016
Senior Recreation Leader 4 13.15  13.81  14.50  15.22  15.98  -   Reso 2016-16 03/23/2016

(1)  These positions receive a $1,025 per year uniform allowance 

(2) This position receives a 5.0%  incentive for CAD Administrator

(3)  These positions receive an additional 5% Holiday Pay

(4)  These positions receive a $774.73 per year uniform allowance

(5) These positions may receive a 5% incentive for Acting Commander, Acting Sergeant, Officer in Charge, Training Officer, and/or Detective

(6) This position may receive a 2.5%  incentive for Back-up CAD Administrator

(7) These positions may receive $120 per week stand-by pay

(8) These positions receive an in kind uniform  allowance of $68.67 per pay period

Attachment B



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



SSAR Report - Kittelson & Associates Contract  Page 1 of 4 
25977.00100\30127230.1

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Brad Donohue, Director of Public Works 

VIA:  William C. Norton, Interim City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 13, 2017 

SUBJECT: Colma Systemic Safety Analysis Report (SSAR) 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 
CONTRACT WITH KITTELSON & ASSOCIATES, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $250,000 FOR 
PREPARATION OF COLMA SYSTEMIC SAFETY ANALYSIS REPORT (SSAR) 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The proposed contract with Kittelson & Associates is for the preparation of Colma Systemic 
Safety Analysis Report (SSAR). The SSAR will identify and prioritize safety improvement projects 
that are eligible for Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) funds and other safety 
funding programs. 

The purpose of the project is to evaluate a number of major arterials and collectors within the 
Town’s roadway network utilizing a proactive safety analysis approach to hopefully prevent 
future roadway fatalities and injuries that have and or can occur within Town. The SSAR report 
will become the Colma Traffic Safety Plan, this plan will identify traffic, pedestrian and bicycles 
safety issues and concerns. Once these safety issues are identified, the report will recommend 
the proper counter measure (solution) to correct the safety issue.  Kittelson & Associates is 
recommended as the preferred consultant based on their proposal, strong project team and 
their demonstrated proficiency and understanding of the project and goals.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

The Town of Colma was awarded a California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) Grant in 
the amount of $250,000 for the SSAR study. The negotiated proposal that was agreed to by 
Kittelson and Associates is for $250,000, which will be reimbursed by the SSAR grant. In 
obtaining the $250,000 grant funds the Town had to provide a local match of $50,000. The 
Town’s local match will provide project management and oversight of the project and also a 
contingency for unforeseen and extra work if required.    

Item #5



SSAR Report - Kittelson & Associates Contract   Page 2 of 4 
25977.00100\30127230.1  
 

The Town’s estimated funding plan for the SSAR project is as follows: 
 
 

• Proposed CIP Allocation for FY 18-19 (Local Match)  $   50,000 
• SSAR Grant       $ 250,000 

Estimated Project Total  $ 300,000 
 

BACKGROUND 

The Town has been allocated $250,000 in State funds from the Systemic Safety Analysis Report 
Program (SSARP).  The Program Supplement Agreement was executed with California 
Department of Transportation (Caltrans) on 11/21/2016 for administrating this project under 
Agency-State Master Agreement No. 00416S.   

The goal of SSAR is to assist local agencies in evaluating their roadway network using systemic 
safety approach and identifying qualified safety projects for HSIP and other grant funding 
programs which, if implemented, will improve the overall safety of roadway network. 

On June 26, 2017, the Town of Colma released a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the 
preparation of the SSAR.  The RFP contained a very specific scope of work along with timely 
deliverables.  Five consultants responded to the RFP; DKS; Fehr & Peers; Kittelson & 
Associates; Stantec; and TJKM.  Staff reviewed the proposals of the five that were submitted, a 
short list of three consultants were selected among the top-ranked firms and interviewed by a 
panel consisting of Town Staff and a representative from the Police Department.  

The Town followed the Town Municipal Code and Caltrans’s Local Assistance Procedures Manual 
(LAPM) in the consultant selection process.  The evaluation was based on the technical merit of 
proposals and cost proposals were kept confidential and sealed until all proposals had been 
reviewed and most qualified consultants were selected and interviewed.  The panel reviewed 
cost proposals from the three interviewed consultants and entered into contract negotiations 
with Kittelson & Associates as being the top-ranked consultant.  

ANALYSIS 

The purpose of the Systemic Safety Analysis Report (SSAR) is to provide a detailed analysis 
that will provide implementation of safety measures across the Town that will enhance safety 
for all modes of transportation (vehicles, bicycles and pedestrians). The project involves a 
safety analysis study for a number of major arterials and collectors within the Town’s roadway 
network. These corridors include El Camino Real, Junipero Serra Boulevard, Hillside Boulevard, 
Serramonte Boulevard, Mission Road, Collins Avenue, Colma Boulevard, Lawndale Boulevard 
and F Street.   

The SSAR will include the assessment of the existing road conditions, traffic count, evaluation 
of crash data and types, development and selection of low-cost countermeasures, prioritization 
of proposed safety improvements for implementation based on higher benefit-cost ratio 
calculations, and preliminary engineering design of selected safety projects for up to five (5) 
locations. 



SSAR Report - Kittelson & Associates Contract   Page 3 of 4 
25977.00100\30127230.1  
 

The scope of services requested for this project includes the following works:  

1. Analyze crash data to determine crash patterns by location, type of crash, 
roadway/intersection types, roadway characteristics, types of road users, 
and any circumstance of the crash which would lead to potential 
countermeasure identification. In addition, analyze roadway characteristics 
to determine the risk factors associated with nominal safety design to aid in 
potential countermeasure identification and strategies. 

2. Develop a listing of potential countermeasures based on safety issues 
through systemic analysis and discussions with Town staff, City Council, and 
key stakeholders. Participants in these discussions should include, but not be 
limited to, representatives of “4 E’s” of roadway safety: Engineering, 
Education, Enforcement and Emergency Medical Services. 

3. Develop Colma Traffic Safety Plan as a final product of Systemic Safety 
Analysis Report. This document will summarize the existing conditions, list 
safety projects in a prioritized manner by location, and recommend 
strategies for improving safety throughout the Town.   

4. Develop detailed scope for priority projects to apply for HSIP Cycle funds. 
The scope will include vicinity/location map, countermeasures being applied, 
crash data and diagrams, benefits summary, benefit/cost ratio calculations, 
project narrative, and preliminary engineering design for up to five safety 
projects.  

The Consultant shall be responsible for undertaking the following tasks, summarized below: 
 

o Task 1 – Project Management;  
o Task 2 – Document Review;  
o Task 3 – Data Collection; 
o Task 4 – Data Analysis; 
o Task 5 – Countermeasure Selection and Stakeholder Workshop; 
o Task 6 – Receive consensus from the City Council; 
o Task 7 – Develop Safety Projects; 
o Task 8 – Draft Systemic Safety Analysis Report; 
o Task 9 – Preliminary Engineering Design (30% Design Plans); 
o Task 10 – Final Systemic Safety Analysis Report; and 
o Task 11 (Optional) – Prepare Sample HSIP Application  

 
Kittelson & Associates has shown proficiency with similar studies in transportation planning and 
engineering, and has partnered with BKF Engineers who has been delivering civil engineering 
and land planning services for government agencies for over 100 years. 

With all the components in the scope of work, the project is anticipated to take six (6) months 
to complete. After contacting references and a review of project scope and budget, staff is 



SSAR Report - Kittelson & Associates Contract   Page 4 of 4 
25977.00100\30127230.1  
 

recommending to the City Council that Kittelson & Associates and their subconsultant BKF 
Engineers be hired to prepare the Colma Systemic Safety Analysis Report (SSAR). 

Council Adopted Values 

The recommendation is consistent with the Council value of responsibility in improving the 
safety features on and along the major arterials and collectors within the Town’s roadways 
network. 

 
Sustainability Impact 

 
The City Council’s adoption of the resolution is consistent with the Town’s sustainability goals 
and Complete Streets Program goals as it ensures safety measures are identified to provide 
better traffic flow on Town streets. 

 
Alternatives 

The City Council could choose to not approve the resolution authorizing the contract with 
Kittelson & Associates. This is not recommended because the Town would lose the $250,000 
grant to assist with the implementation of SSAR project. Further, potential safety measures to 
improve the Town’s roadway network will not be identified. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the resolution approving and authorizing the City 
Manager to execute the contract with Kittelson & Associates for the preparation of Colma 
Systemic Safety Analysis Report (SSAR). 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution 
B. Draft Kittelson & Associates Professional Services Agreement with attached scope of 

work, budget and schedule 
 
 
 
 



Res. 2017-__, SSAR Report - Kittelson & Associates Contract Page 1 of 2 
25977.00100\30127229.1  

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-__ 
Of the City Council of the Town of Colma 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 
CONTRACT WITH KITTELSON & ASSOCIATES, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $250,000 

FOR PREPARATION OF COLMA SYSTEMIC SAFETY ANALYSIS REPORT (SSAR) 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve: 

1. Background.

(a) The Town of Colma has been allocated $250,000 in State funds from the Systemic
Safety Analysis Report Program (SSARP) by the California Department of Transportation. 

(b)  The goal of SSARP is to assist local agencies in evaluating their roadway network using 
systemic safety approach and identifying qualified safety projects for HSIP and other grant 
funding programs which, if implemented, will improve the overall safety of roadway network. 

(c) The Town of Colma released a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the preparation of the 
systematic safety analysis report (SSAR), and determined that Kittelson & Associates is the top-
ranked consultant. 

(d) Therefore, the Town of Colma desires to approve a contract with Kittelson & Associates 
for preparation of a systematic safety analysis report. 

2. Finding.

(a) The City Council finds that the contract with the Kittelson & Associates for preparation of
a systematic safety analysis report is not exempt from competitive bidding, and competitive 
bidding was duly performed pursuant to Colma Municipal Code section 1.06.220.  

3. Order

(a) The contract between the Town of Colma and Kittelson & Associates for preparation of a
systematic safety analysis report, a copy of which is on file with the City Clerk, is approved by 
the City Council of the Town of Colma.  

(b) The City Manager is authorized to execute said contract on behalf of the Town of Colma, 
with such minor technical amendments as may be deemed appropriate by the City Manager and 
the City Attorney. 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

Attachment A



Res. 2017-__, SSAR Report - Kittelson & Associates Contract Page 2 of 2 
25977.00100\30127229.1  

/ 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2017-__ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on September 13, 2017 by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 

Raquel Gonzalez 

Joanne del Rosario 

Diana Colvin 

John Irish Goodwin 

Voting Tally 

Dated ______________________ ___________________________________ 
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 

Attest:   ____________________________ 
 Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 



1 
25977.00100\29530476.1

TOWN OF COLMA 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is made and entered into as of ________________, 2017 by and between 
the Town of Colma, a municipal corporation organized and operating under the laws of the State 
of California with its principal place of business at 1198 El Camino Real, Colma, CA 94014 
(“Town”), and Kittelson & Associates, Inc., a CORPORATION, with its principal place of business 
at 1161 Mission Street, Office #563, San Francisco, CA 94103 (hereinafter referred to as 
“Consultant”).  Town and Consultant are sometimes individually referred to as “Party” and 
collectively as “Parties” in this Agreement. 

RECITALS 

A. Town is a public agency of the State of California and is in need of professional 
services for the following project: 

Colma Systemic Safety Analysis Report (SSAR) 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Project”). 

B. Consultant is duly licensed and has the necessary qualifications to provide such 
services. 

C. The Parties desire by this Agreement to establish the terms for Town to retain 
Consultant to provide the services described herein. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Services.

Consultant shall provide the Town with the services described in the Scope of Services 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A.”  

2. Compensation.

a. Subject to paragraph 2(b) below, the Town shall pay for such services in
accordance with the Schedule of Charges set forth in Exhibit “B.” 

b. In no event shall the total amount paid for services rendered by Consultant
under this Agreement exceed the sum of $250,000 [Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars]. 
This amount is to cover all printing and related costs, and the Town will not pay any additional 
fees for printing expenses.  Periodic payments shall be made within 30 days of receipt of an 
invoice which includes a detailed description of the work performed.  Payments to Consultant for 
work performed will be made on a monthly billing basis. 

3. Additional Work.

If changes in the work seem merited by Consultant or the Town, and informal consultations 
with the other party indicate that a change is warranted, it shall be processed in the following 
manner:  a letter outlining the changes shall be forwarded to the Town by Consultant with a 
statement of estimated changes in fee or time schedule.  An amendment to this Agreement shall 

Attachment B



 

2 
25977.00100\29530476.1  

be prepared by the Town and executed by both Parties before performance of such services, or 
the Town will not be required to pay for the changes in the scope of work.  Such amendment shall 
not render ineffective or invalidate unaffected portions of this Agreement. 

4. Maintenance of Records. 

Books, documents, papers, accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to costs 
incurred shall be maintained by Consultant and made available at all reasonable times during the 
contract period and for four (4) years from the date of final payment under the contract for 
inspection by Town. 

5. Time of Performance. 

Consultant shall perform its services in a prompt and timely manner and shall commence 
performance upon receipt of written notice from the Town to proceed (“Notice to Proceed”).  
Consultant shall complete the services required hereunder in accordance with the “Activity 
Schedule” set forth in Exhibit “C”.  The Notice to Proceed shall set forth the date of 
commencement of work. 

6. Delays in Performance. 

a. Neither Town nor Consultant shall be considered in default of this Agreement for 
delays in performance caused by circumstances beyond the reasonable control of the non-
performing party.  For purposes of this Agreement, such circumstances include but are not limited 
to, abnormal weather conditions; floods; earthquakes; fire; epidemics; war; riots and other civil 
disturbances; strikes, lockouts, work slowdowns, and other labor disturbances; sabotage or 
judicial restraint. 

b. Should such circumstances occur, the non-performing party shall, within a 
reasonable time of being prevented from performing, give written notice to the other party 
describing the circumstances preventing continued performance and the efforts being made to 
resume performance of this Agreement. 

7. Compliance with Law. 

a. Consultant shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, codes and 
regulations of the federal, state and local government, including Cal/OSHA requirements. 

b. If required, Consultant shall assist the Town, as requested, in obtaining and 
maintaining all permits required of Consultant by federal, state and local regulatory agencies. 

c. If applicable, Consultant is responsible for all costs of clean up and/ or removal of 
hazardous and toxic substances spilled as a result of his or her services or operations performed 
under this Agreement. 

 

 



 

3 
25977.00100\29530476.1  

8. Standard of Care 

Consultant’s services will be performed in accordance with generally accepted 
professional practices and principles and in a manner consistent with the level of care and skill 
ordinarily exercised by members of the profession currently practicing under similar conditions. 

9. Assignment and Subconsultant 

Consultant shall not assign, sublet, or transfer this Agreement or any rights under or 
interest in this Agreement without the written consent of the Town, which may be withheld for any 
reason.  Any attempt to so assign or so transfer without such consent shall be void and without 
legal effect and shall constitute grounds for termination.  Subcontracts, if any, shall contain a 
provision making them subject to all provisions stipulated in this Agreement.  Nothing contained 
herein shall prevent Consultant from employing independent associates, and subconsultants as 
Consultant may deem appropriate to assist in the performance of services hereunder. 

10. Independent Consultant 

Consultant is retained as an independent contractor and is not an employee of Town.  No 
employee or agent of Consultant shall become an employee of Town.  The work to be performed 
shall be in accordance with the work described in this Agreement, subject to such directions and 
amendments from Town as herein provided. 

11. Insurance.  Consultant shall not commence work for the Town until it has provided 
evidence satisfactory to the Town it has secured all insurance required under this section.  In 
addition, Consultant shall not allow any subcontractor to commence work on any subcontract until 
it has secured all insurance required under this section. 

a. Commercial General Liability 

(i) The Consultant shall take out and maintain, during the performance 
of all work under this Agreement, in amounts not less than specified herein, Commercial General 
Liability Insurance, in a form and with insurance companies acceptable to the Town. 

(ii) Coverage for Commercial General Liability insurance shall be at 
least as broad as the following: 

(1) Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability 
coverage (Occurrence Form CG 00 01) or exact equivalent. 

(iii) Commercial General Liability Insurance must include coverage 
for the following: 

(1) Bodily Injury and Property Damage 
(2) Personal Injury/Advertising Injury 
(3) Premises/Operations Liability 
(4) Products/Completed Operations Liability 
(5) Aggregate Limits that Apply per Project 
(6) Explosion, Collapse and Underground (UCX) exclusion 

deleted 
(7) Contractual Liability with respect to this Contract 
(8) Broad Form Property Damage 



 

4 
25977.00100\29530476.1  

(9) Independent Consultants Coverage 

 (iv) The policy shall contain no endorsements or provisions limiting 
coverage for (1) contractual liability; (2) cross liability exclusion for claims or suits by one insured 
against another; (3) products/completed operations liability; or (4) contain any other exclusion 
contrary to the Agreement. 

 (v) The policy shall give Town, its officials, officers, employees, 
agents and Town designated volunteers additional insured status using ISO endorsement forms 
CG 20 10 10 01 and 20 37 10 01, or endorsements providing the exact same coverage. 

 (vi) The general liability program may utilize either deductibles or 
provide coverage excess of a self-insured retention, subject to written approval by the Town, and 
provided that such deductibles shall not apply to the Town as an additional insured. 

b. Automobile Liability 

(i) At all times during the performance of the work under this 
Agreement, the Consultant shall maintain Automobile Liability Insurance for bodily injury and 
property damage including coverage for owned, non-owned and hired vehicles, in a form and with 
insurance companies acceptable to the Town. 

(ii) Coverage for automobile liability insurance shall be at least as 
broad as Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 00 01 covering automobile liability 
(Coverage Symbol 1, any auto). 

(iii)  The policy shall give Town, its officials, officers, employees, agents 
and Town designated volunteers additional insured status. 

(iv) Subject to written approval by the Town, the automobile liability 
program may utilize deductibles, provided that such deductibles shall not apply to the Town as an 
additional insured, but not a self-insured retention. 

c. Workers’ Compensation/Employer’s Liability 

(i) Consultant certifies that he/she is aware of the provisions of Section 
3700 of the California Labor Code which requires every employer to be insured against liability 
for workers’ compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of 
that code, and he/she will comply with such provisions before commencing work under this 
Agreement. 
 

(ii) To the extent Consultant has employees at any time during the term 
of this Agreement, at all times during the performance of the work under this Agreement, the 
Consultant shall maintain full compensation insurance for all persons employed directly by 
him/her to carry out the work contemplated under this Agreement, all in accordance with the 
“Workers’ Compensation and Insurance Act,” Division IV of the Labor Code of the State of 
California and any acts amendatory thereof, and Employer’s Liability Coverage in amounts 
indicated herein.  Consultant shall require all subconsultants to obtain and maintain, for the period 
required by this Agreement, workers’ compensation coverage of the same type and limits as 
specified in this section. 

 
 



5 
25977.00100\29530476.1

d. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions)

At all times during the performance of the work under this Agreement the Consultant shall 
maintain professional liability or Errors and Omissions insurance appropriate to its profession, in 
a form and with insurance companies acceptable to the Town and in an amount indicated herein. 
This insurance shall be endorsed to include contractual liability applicable to this Agreement and 
shall be written on a policy form coverage specifically designed to protect against acts, errors or 
omissions of the Consultant.  “Covered Professional Services” as designated in the policy must 
specifically include work performed under this Agreement. The policy must “pay on behalf of” the 
insured and must include a provision establishing the insurer's duty to defend. 

e. Minimum Policy Limits Required

(i) The following insurance limits are required for the Agreement: 

Combined Single Limit 

Commercial General Liability $1,000,000 per occurrence/ $2,000,000 aggregate 
for bodily injury, personal injury, and property  
damage 

Automobile Liability $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and 
property damage 

Employer’s Liability $1,000,000 per occurrence 

Professional Liability $1,000,000 per claim and aggregate (errors and 
omissions) 

(ii) With the exception of the Professional Liability policy, defense 
costs shall be payable in addition to the limits. 

(iii) Requirements of specific coverage or limits contained in this 
section are not intended as a limitation on coverage, limits, or other requirement, or a waiver of 
any coverage normally provided by any insurance.  Any available coverage shall be provided to 
the parties required to be named as Additional Insured pursuant to this Agreement. 

f. Evidence Required

Prior to execution of the Agreement, the Consultant shall file with the Town 
evidence of insurance from an insurer or insurers certifying to the coverage of all insurance 
required herein.  Such evidence shall include original copies of the ISO CG 00 01 (or insurer’s 
equivalent) signed by the insurer’s representative and Certificate of Insurance (Acord Form 25-
S or equivalent), together with required endorsements.  All evidence of insurance shall be signed 
by a properly authorized officer, agent, or qualified representative of the insurer and shall certify 
the names of the insured, any additional insureds, where appropriate, the type and amount of 
the insurance, the location and operations to which the insurance applies, and the expiration 
date of such insurance.   

g. Policy Provisions Required



6 
25977.00100\29530476.1

(i)  Consultant shall provide the Town at least thirty (30) days prior 
written notice of cancellation of any policy required by this Agreement, except that the Consultant 
shall provide at least ten (10) days prior written notice of cancellation of any such policy due to 
non-payment of premium.  If any of the required coverage is cancelled or expires during the term 
of this Agreement, the Consultant shall deliver renewal certificate(s) including the General 
Liability Additional Insured Endorsement to the Town at least ten (10) days prior to the effective 
date of cancellation or expiration. 

(ii) The Commercial General Liability Policy and Automobile Policy 
shall each contain a provision stating that Consultant’s policy is primary insurance and that any 
insurance, self-insurance or other coverage maintained by the Town or any named insureds shall 
not be called upon to contribute to any loss. 

(iii) The retroactive date (if any) of each policy is to be no later than the 
effective date of this Agreement.  Consultant shall maintain such coverage continuously for a 
period of at least three years after the completion of the work under this Agreement.  Consultant 
shall purchase a one (1) year extended reporting period A) if the retroactive date is advanced 
past the effective date of this Agreement; B) if the policy is cancelled or not renewed; or C) if the 
policy is replaced by another claims-made policy with a retroactive date subsequent to the 
effective date of this Agreement. 

(iv) All required insurance coverages, except for the professional 
liability coverage, shall contain or be endorsed to waiver of subrogation in favor of the Town, its 
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers or shall specifically allow Consultant or 
others providing insurance evidence in compliance with these specifications to waive their right 
of recovery prior to a loss. Consultant hereby waives its own right of recovery against Town, and 
shall require similar written express waivers and insurance clauses from each of its 
subconsultants. 

(v) The limits set forth herein shall apply separately to each insured 
against whom claims are made or suits are brought, except with respect to the limits of liability. 
Further the limits set forth herein shall not be construed to relieve the Consultant from liability in 
excess of such coverage, nor shall it limit the Consultant’s indemnification obligations to the 
Town and shall not preclude the Town from taking such other actions available to the Town under 
other provisions of the Agreement or law. 

h. Qualifying Insurers

(i) All policies required shall be issued by acceptable insurance 
companies, as determined by the Town, which satisfy the following minimum requirements: 

(1) Each such policy shall be from a company or companies 
with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII and admitted to transact in the 
business of insurance in the State of California, or otherwise allowed to place insurance 
through surplus line brokers under applicable provisions of the California Insurance Code 
or any federal law. 

i. Additional Insurance Provisions

(i) The foregoing requirements as to the types and limits of insurance 
coverage to be maintained by Consultant, and any approval of said insurance by the Town, is 
not intended to and shall not in any manner limit or qualify the liabilities and obligations otherwise 



 

7 
25977.00100\29530476.1  

assumed by the Consultant pursuant to this Agreement, including but not limited to, the 
provisions concerning indemnification. 

(ii) If at any time during the life of the Agreement, any policy of 
insurance required under this Agreement does not comply with these specifications or is 
canceled and not replaced, Town has the right but not the duty to obtain the insurance it deems 
necessary and any premium paid by Town will be promptly reimbursed by Consultant or Town 
will withhold amounts sufficient to pay premium from Consultant payments. In the alternative, 
Town may cancel this Agreement. 

(iii) The Town may require the Consultant to provide complete copies 
of all insurance policies in effect for the duration of the Project. 

(iv) Neither the Town nor any of its officials, officers, employees, agents 
or volunteers shall be personally responsible for any liability arising under or by virtue of this 
Agreement. 

j. Subconsultant Insurance Requirements.  Consultant shall not allow any 
subcontractors or subconsultants to commence work on any subcontract until they have provided 
evidence satisfactory to the Town that they have secured all insurance required under this 
section.  Policies of commercial general liability insurance provided by such subcontractors or 
subconsultants shall be endorsed to name the Town as an additional insured using ISO form CG 
20 38 04 13 or an endorsement providing the exact same coverage.  If requested by Consultant, 
Town may approve different scopes or minimum limits of insurance for particular subcontractors 
or subconsultants.   

 12. Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall defend 
(with counsel reasonably approved by the Town), indemnify and hold the Town, its officials, 
officers, employees, agents and volunteers free and harmless from any and all claims, demands, 
causes of action, suits, actions, proceedings, costs, expenses, liability, judgments, awards, 
decrees, settlements, loss, damage or injury of any kind, in law or equity, to property or persons, 
including wrongful death, (collectively, “Claims’) that arise out of, pertain to or relate to the 
negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of the Consultant.  Consultant’s obligation to 
indemnify shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by the Town, its officials, 
officers, employees, agents or volunteers. 

 13. California Labor Code Requirements. 

  a. Consultant is aware of the requirements of California Labor Code Sections 
1720 et seq. and 1770 et seq., which require the payment of prevailing wage rates and the 
performance of other requirements on certain “public works” and “maintenance” projects.  If the 
services are being performed as part of an applicable “public works” or “maintenance” project, as 
defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws, and if the total compensation is $1,000 or more, Consultant 
agrees to fully comply with such Prevailing Wage Laws, if applicable.  Consultant shall defend, 
indemnify and hold the Town, its officials, officers, employees and agents free and harmless from 
any claims, liabilities, costs, penalties or interest arising out of any failure or alleged failure to 
comply with the Prevailing Wage Laws.  It shall be mandatory upon the Consultant and all 
subconsultants to comply with all California Labor Code provisions, which include but are not 
limited to prevailing wages, employment of apprentices, hours of labor and debarment of 
contractors and subcontractors. 



 

8 
25977.00100\29530476.1  

  b. If the services are being performed as part of an applicable “public works” 
or “maintenance” project, then pursuant to Labor Code Sections 1725.5 and 1771.1, the 
Consultant and all subconsultants performing such Services must be registered with the 
Department of Industrial Relations.  Consultant shall maintain registration for the duration of the 
Project and require the same of any subconsultants, as applicable.  This Project may also be 
subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.  It 
shall be Consultant’s sole responsibility to comply with all applicable registration and labor 
compliance requirements. 

 14. Verification of Employment Eligibility. 

 By executing this Agreement, Consultant verifies that it fully complies with all requirements 
and restrictions of state and federal law respecting the employment of undocumented aliens, 
including, but not limited to, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as may be amended 
from time to time, and shall require all subconsultants and sub-subconsultants to comply with the 
same.   

 15. Town Material Requirements.   

 [INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

16. Laws and Venue. 

This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California.  
If any action is brought to interpret or enforce any term of this Agreement, the action shall be 
brought in a state or federal court situated in the County of San Mateo, State of California.   

17 Termination or Abandonment 

a. Town has the right to terminate or abandon any portion or all of the work 
under this Agreement by giving ten (10) calendar days written notice to Consultant.  In such event, 
Town shall be immediately given title and possession to all original field notes, drawings and 
specifications, written reports and other documents produced or developed for that portion of the 
work completed and/or being abandoned.  Town shall pay Consultant the reasonable value of 
services rendered for any portion of the work completed prior to termination.  If said termination 
occurs prior to completion of any task for the Project for which a payment request has not been 
received, the charge for services performed during such task shall be the reasonable value of 
such services, based on an amount mutually agreed to by Town and Consultant of the portion of 
such task completed but not paid prior to said termination.  Town shall not be liable for any costs 
other than the charges or portions thereof which are specified herein.  Consultant shall not be 
entitled to payment for unperformed services, and shall not be entitled to damages or 
compensation for termination of work. 

b. Consultant may terminate its obligation to provide further services under 
this Agreement upon thirty (30) calendar days’ written notice to Town only in the event of 
substantial failure by Town to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no 
fault of Consultant. 

 18 Documents.  Except as otherwise provided in “Termination or Abandonment,” 
above, all original field notes, written reports, Drawings and Specifications and other documents, 
produced or developed for the Project shall, upon payment in full for the services described in this 
Agreement, be furnished to and become the property of the Town. 



9 
25977.00100\29530476.1

19. Organization

Consultant shall assign Erin Ferguson as Project Manager.  The Project Manager shall 
not be removed from the Project or reassigned without the prior written consent of the Town. 

20. Limitation of Agreement.

This Agreement is limited to and includes only the work included in the Project described 
above. 

21. Notice

Any notice or instrument required to be given or delivered by this Agreement may be given 
or delivered by depositing the same in any United States Post Office, certified mail, return receipt 
requested, postage prepaid, addressed to: 

TOWN: 

Town of Colma 

1198 El Camino Real 

Colma, CA 94014  

Attn:  William Norton, Interim City Manager 

Bill.Norton@colma.ca.gov 

CONSULTANT: 

Kittelson & Associates, Inc. 

1161 Mission Street, Office #563 

San Francisco, CA 94103 

Attn: Erin Ferguson, Project Manager 

eferguson@kittelson.com 

and shall be effective upon receipt thereof. 

22. Third Party Rights

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or benefits to anyone other 
than the Town and the Consultant. 

23. Equal Opportunity Employment.

Consultant represents that it is an equal opportunity employer and that it shall not 
discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, 
national origin, ancestry, sex, age or other interests protected by the State or Federal 
Constitutions.  Such non-discrimination shall include, but not be limited to, all activities related to 
initial employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or 
termination. 

24. Entire Agreement

This Agreement, with its exhibits, represents the entire understanding of Town and 
Consultant as to those matters contained herein, and supersedes and cancels any prior or 
contemporaneous oral or written understanding, promises or representations with respect to 
those matters covered hereunder.  Each party acknowledges that no representations, 
inducements, promises or agreements have been made by any person which are not incorporated 
herein, and that any other agreements shall be void.  This Agreement may not be modified or 
altered except in writing signed by both Parties hereto.  This is an integrated Agreement. 



 

10 
25977.00100\29530476.1  

25. Severability 

The unenforceability, invalidity or illegality of any provision(s) of this Agreement shall not 
render the provisions unenforceable, invalid or illegal. 

26. Successors and Assigns 

This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the successors in 
interest, executors, administrators and assigns of each party to this Agreement.  However, 
Consultant shall not assign or transfer by operation of law or otherwise any or all of its rights, 
burdens, duties or obligations without the prior written consent of Town.  Any attempted 
assignment without such consent shall be invalid and void. 

27. Non-Waiver 

None of the provisions of this Agreement shall be considered waived by either party, 
unless such waiver is specifically specified in writing. 

28. Time of Essence 

Time is of the essence for each and every provision of this Agreement. 

29. Town’s Right to Employ Other Consultants 

Town reserves its right to employ other consultants, including engineers, in connection 
with this Project or other projects. 

30. Prohibited Interests 

Consultant maintains and warrants that it has not employed nor retained any company or 
person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for Consultant, to solicit or secure this 
Agreement.  Further, Consultant warrants that it has not paid nor has it agreed to pay any 
company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for Consultant, any fee, 
commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or other consideration contingent upon or resulting 
from the award or making of this Agreement.  For breach or violation of this warranty, Town shall 
have the right to rescind this Agreement without liability.  For the term of this Agreement, no 
director, official, officer or employee of Town, during the term of his or her service with Town, shall 
have any direct interest in this Agreement, or obtain any present or anticipated material benefit 
arising therefrom. 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 



 

11 
25977.00100\29530476.1  

SIGNATURE PAGE FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE TOWN OF COLMA 

AND KITTELSON & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date 
first written above. 

TOWN OF COLMA 

Approved By: 
 
       
William Norton 
Interim City Manager 
 
 

Approved as to Form: 

 
________________________________ 
Christopher J. Diaz 
City Attorney 
 

Kittelson & Associates, Inc. 

 

       
Signature 

Erin Ferguson                  
Name 
 
Project Manager     
Title 
 
       
Date 

 

 

  



 

25977.00100\29530476.1  

EXHIBIT A 

Scope of Services 
  



A-1 

Kittelson & Associates, Inc. 

Colma Systemic Safety Analysis Report (SSAR) 

Detailed Scope of Work 
The following describes our proposed scope for providing the deliverables identified in the RFP and to 

meet the Town’s overarching goal to improve safety across their street network. 

Task 1 Project Management 

TASK 1 PURPOSE Facilitate routine and regular communication between the Town staff and our team’s 

project manager to ensure the project stays on schedule and on budget and exceeds the Town’s needs 

and expectations. 

Subtask 1.1 Progress Meetings 

We will prepare for and conduct up to six (6) progress meetings with Town staff over the duration of the 

project. Our preparation for these meetings and follow-up from them will include agendas and meeting 

minutes. The overarching purpose of these meeting will be to assess the process being used and the 

results being generated, and identify opportunities for improvement prior to next project task. Based on 

this purpose and the proposed project schedule (shown in the Project Schedule section), we propose the 

six meetings be conducted at the project milestones shown below. 

Subtask 1.2 Finalized Project Budget and Detailed Project Schedule 

We will prepare a draft final project budget and draft detailed project schedule in advance of the kick-

off meeting (noted in Subtask 1.1). During the kick-off meeting, we will obtain Town staff input and 

suggested revisions to those items. Following the kick-off meeting, we will provide the finalized project 

budget and detailed project schedule. 

Subtask 1.3 Bi-Weekly Check-In Conference Calls 

Given the project schedule and the relatively quick pace at which the consultant team will be moving 

with the analysis and findings, we recommend bi-weekly check-in conference calls between the Town 

project manager and KAI team project manager to ensure timely coordination. These would be in 

addition to the six in-person progress meetings discussed in Subtask 1.1. 

Task 1 Deliverables  

• Finalized project budget 

• Detailed project schedule in Microsoft Project Format 

• Up to six (6) progress meetings with agendas and meeting minutes 

• Bi-weekly conference calls 



A-2 

SUMMARY OF PROJECT MEETINGS 

Meeting #1 Kick-Off Meeting 

We would present the draft final budget and detailed schedule for discussion with Town staff. We would 

revise the final budget and detailed schedule following the kick-off meeting. This meeting would also 

provide an opportunity for us to discuss data needs and existing data availability, and identify specific 

roadway data we will need to collect in Task 3. 

Meeting #2 Initial Data Analysis Results 

We would present the findings from data analysis results to Town staff providing an opportunity for 

comments, questions, and discussion. This meeting would also be timed to allow coordination and 

planning for the activities to occur with countermeasure selection and related stakeholder workshop. 

Meeting #3 Recap of Stakeholder Workshop and Preparation for City Council 

We would discuss the input received from the stakeholders related to the countermeasure selection 

including how it was incorporated. We would also discuss and present the information and 

recommendations to be presented to City Council for their review, input and approval. 

Meeting #4 Discussion of Safety Projects 

We would conduct this meeting with Town staff part way through the Task 7 Develop Safety Projects. 

We would present the draft safety projects enabling Town staff to provide input, ask questions, and 

provide direction. 

Meeting #5 Initiate 30% Design Plans 

We would use this meeting as a kick-off meeting specific to the 30% Design Plans for the highest priority 

locations and projects. This will enable more specific and detailed coordination related to the locations 

and projects selected for design. 

Meeting #6 Discuss Draft Safety Plan and Systemic Safety Analysis Report 

We would use this meeting to discuss the draft Safety Plan and SSAR providing an opportunity for the 

Town to share their questions, comments, and direction with us before we produce the final version of 

each. 

Task 2 Document Review 

TASK 2 PURPOSE Confirm the scope, focus, and methodology to be used in conducting the systemic 

safety analysis for the Town. 

Subtask 2.1 Identify Documents to Review 

We will identify the local, regional, state, and national documents most likely to be relevant for 

informing the Town’s SSAR. Such documents include but are not limited to the California Strategic 

Highway Safety Plan (SHSP); the Town’s Capital Improvement Program; San Mateo County 

Comprehensive Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan (2011); Colma General Plan – Circulation Element (2014); 

the Town’s Complete Streets Policies; applicable Engineering Design Standards; the Town’s existing 



A-3 

safety related policies and practices considered safety countermeasures; the most recent Highway 

Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) guidance from Caltrans and FHWA; and the Federal Highway 

Administration’s (FHWA) resources and recommended case studies. 

We will also conduct a literature review on current research and best practices case studies regarding 

system-wide statistical safety analysis and countermeasures; this will include researching multimodal 

safety efforts such as Vision Zero, as well as the Federal Highway Administration’s (FHWA) Office of 

Safety resources. Through the review, we will identify key factors related to collisions, data collection, 

and best practices regarding how to apply treatments. 

Finally, we will establish open line of communication and plan for future coordination with the on-going 

Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue Master Plan project and consultant team. This will be 

particularly critical as the SSAR progresses into data collection, analysis and ultimately identifying 

specific safety projects.  

Subtask 2.2 Conduct Document Review 

We will conduct a detailed review of documents, policies, and safety research relevant to the Town’s 

SSAR identified in Subtask 2.1. We will summarize the key findings that may impact the Town SSAR, and 

identify any required actions based on the findings. 

The review and summary will also include findings from the literature review focused on current 

research and best practices case studies noted in Subtask 2.1. Our team brings considerable experience 

researching and developing national guidance related to roadway safety, including serving on multiple 

National Cooperative Highway Research Program (NCHRP) and FHWA projects related specifically to the 

HSIP process, countermeasure selection, and systemic safety. In addition, we have conducted statistical 

analyses on collision and roadway data for a variety of agencies. Given our experience and 

understanding of the state of the practice, we will efficiently and thoroughly conduct this literature 

review and deliver a summary document that is informative to the update process. 

Task 2 Deliverables 

• Summary of document review highlighting current “note-worthy practices” and summarizing 

suggested methodology for the project 

• Initiate coordination with and establish coordination plan with Serramonte Boulevard and 

Collins Avenue Master Plan Project and consultant team 

Task 3 Data Collection 

TASK 3 PURPOSE Establish a complete and accurate database to be used for the crash and roadway data 

analysis, the results of which will inform the core content of the Town’s Safety Plan and SSAR. 

Subtask 3.1 Crash Data 

We will compile the most recent, complete five years of collision data starting with year 2011. We will 

also consider year 2016 in the analysis. We will work the data available from the Town’s Records 

Management System, the I-SWITRS database, and UC Berkeley’s Transportation Injury Mapping System 



A-4 

(TIMS). We will develop a collision database in GIS format to enable us to map the crashes across and 

along the nine study corridors. We will also compile the crash data for the entire Town into a 

comprehensive spreadsheet database to use for analysis of town-wide crash trends and patterns. 

We will also obtain and review the police reports for fatal and severe injury collisions on the study 

corridors. This will enable us to incorporate additional details of the collision events into the database 

providing an opportunity for a better understanding of the contributing factors—and therefore, 

potential countermeasures. 

Subtask 3.2 Roadway Characteristic Data 

Obtaining Roadway Data to Incorporate into Systemic Analysis 

From our experience conducting other systemic safety analyses, we know that supplementing collision 

data with contextual variables is particularly valuable for more effectively addressing collision patterns. 

Contextual variables include: 

• Roadway characteristics (roadway classification, number of lanes, vehicle speeds, type of 

intersection control, etc.) 

• Land use data (locations of schools, parks, senior centers, etc.) 

• Demographic data (population, employment, age, race, gender, etc.) 

We will pull such information from existing Town, regional, and state databases. We will also inventory 

recently planned or implemented countermeasures (as discussed in Subtask 3.3). This will allow us to 

make more informed systemic safety project recommendations. 

To the extent that there are critical missing roadway characteristic data, we conduct field reviews and 

reviews of aerial photographs to obtain those data attributes.  

We will organize all of the roadway characteristic data obtained and collected into the same GIS 

database as the crash data thereby making it possible to consider, by location on the street network, the 

crash and roadway or land use characteristics that may be contributing factors. 

Reviewing Existing Locations for Design Standards Compliance 

With respect to the review of the nine study corridors for compliance with design standards and the CA 

MUTCD, given the magnitude of such a data collection effort, to maximize the value of the City’s funding 

we propose to conduct a specific review of locations design standards and criteria consistency based on 

crash data analysis, contributing factors, risk factors identified, and the top five locations identified as 

priorities. To the degree to which there are contributing factors that indicate potential issues related to 

roadway infrastructure or design elements as they relate to design standards, we will review those 

features for compliance to the relevant design requirements. The top five locations and projects 

selected for the 30% Design Plans in Task 9 will be reviewed in greater detail as it relates to design 

standards and CA MUTCD compliance. 



A-5 

We believe the above approach for reviewing the study area for design standard compliance is 

appropriate from a safety perspective, given the profession’s evolution in considering safety from a 

quantitative and substantive perspective.  

Roadway safety analysis has evolved over time and the SSAR program is a representation of the industry 

recognition of quantitative safety. Historically, there has been a reliance on “nominal” safety: if it meets 

standards it must be safe and if does not meet standards it must not be safe. Design standards and 

policy compliance can affect a road users’ perception of operational and safety performance; however 

there are numerous factors and considerations that affect crash frequency and severity. Meeting criteria 

and standards alone is no longer the preferred way to measure safety and risk as our industry relies on 

principles of the AAHSTO’s Highway Safety Manual and other performance-based research. 

Safety is a continuum and not an absolute. Simply meeting a specific dimension does not ensure a 

feature or configuration is “safe”; there are many roadways and intersections that meet current criteria 

that still result in an unexpected number of crashes. Quantitative safety performance is based on 

considering crash risk and optimizing the magnitude of investment to reach a risk level.  

Subtask 3.3 Existing Systemic Countermeasures on the Street Network 

As noted in Subtask 3.2, we will inventory the recently planned or implemented countermeasures or 

safety projects within the Town and include those in the GIS-based database to be sure they are 

appropriately accounted for and considered in the analysis. Incorporating the information into the GIS 

database will enable us to easily map and develop tables of the countermeasures that have been 

deployed. The data for the existing systemic countermeasures will include: location, type of treatment, 

date of installation, and current status. 

Subtask 3.4 Traffic Count Data 

We will collect vehicle traffic counts via pneumatic tubes that also collect vehicle classification and 

speed data. Figure 1 identifies the 13 locations at which we suggest conducting such counts over seven 

(7) consecutive days, 24 hours per day. The data will be organized in 15-minute increments. Before 

finalizing the data collection locations, we will coordinate with Town staff as well as with the consultant 

team leading the work on the Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue Master Plan project.  

Figure 1. Proposed Daily Traffic Count Locations 



A-6 

 

We selected the approximate locations shown in Figure 1 to be able to understand traffic volume 

fluctuations throughout the Town and obtain at least one 7-day, 24-hour per day count on each study 

corridor. For the three corridors with the greatest proportion of fatal and injury crashes (El Camino Real, 

Junipero Serra Boulevard, and Serramonte Boulevard), we identified two 7-day, 24-hour per day count 

locations to provide a more complete understanding of how volumes may fluctuate along those 

corridors. 

After the data analysis has been conducted and the top six (6) locations identified, we will conduct peak 

period, multimodal turning movement counts at those locations.  

Task 3 Deliverables 

• Summary Data in a GIS-database including: 

• Crash data collected through SWITRS, TIMS and Police Department 

• Roadway characteristics for locations being considered for safety improvements 

• Traffic count report with the following information, but not limited to:  

o Station identification number 

o Road number 

o Direction and lane; weather condition 

o Date shall be included in an appendix to the final report 



A-7 

Task 4 Data Analysis 

TASK 4 PURPOSE Identify the dominant crash patterns and trends; relation of those patterns and trends 

to the state’s Strategic Highway Safety Plan (SHSP) challenge areas; risk factors associated with those 

patterns and trends; and locations with an overrepresentation of risk factors and severe crash history. 

Subtask 4.1 Town Crash Data Analysis 

We will analyze the town-wide crash data using two complementary approaches: 

• Descriptive Crash Statistics. Using cross-tabulations, graphs, and summary charts of crash 

severities, types, and primary contributing factors, we will develop descriptive statistics for the 

study corridors and citywide. Results would indicate the degree to which the dominant crash 

characteristics overlap with the state’s SHSP challenge or focus areas, and provide a clear 

picture for Town staff of overarching safety performance across the Town. 

• Spatial Network Analysis. Using a GIS-based software tool KAI has developed through similar 

systemic safety projects, we will map the reported crashes and their associated attributes (e.g., 

severity, primary contributing factors) on the Town’s high-risk corridors. We will then analyze 

the crash data and physical characteristics of the intersections and roadway segments along 

those corridors to identify potential risk factors (Subtask 4.2). 

Subtask 4.2 Identify Risk Factors and Potential Countermeasures 

We will review the physical and operational characteristics at the highest-ranked locations (from 

Subtask 4.1) to identify recurring physical characteristics associated with the crash patterns and trends. 

These recurring physical characteristics are considered potential risk factors. 

Using the risk factors identified for each of the Town’s dominant challenge areas, we will identify 

countermeasures (both engineering and non-engineering), planning cost estimates, and issues or 

constraints that may limit implementation. As part of this effort we will use Caltrans’ Local Roadway 

Safety Manual and the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) Crash Modification Factor 

Clearinghouse to document the expected effectiveness of each countermeasure. The cost and 

effectiveness will inform draft priorities for implementation. 

Subtask 4.3 Identify Initial Priority Locations Based on Risk Factors and Crash Data 

Using the results from Subtask 4.2, we will prioritize road segments and intersections based on the 

number of risk factors present as well as the number and severity of crashes locations have experienced. 

This ensures the priorities consider locations with a history of crashes and locations with risk factors that 

could lead to crashes.  

Our team has conducted similar analyses and developed similar tools as part of the following projects:  

• Pedestrian Safety Strategy for the City of Oakland  

• Safer Streets Project for the City of Pasadena  

• Safety Management Plan for Clark County, Washington  



A-8 

• Safety Analysis Planning for NOACA (Cleveland Ohio MPO) 

• Oregon State Pedestrian and Bicycle Safety Implementation  

• Caltrans District 4 Bicycle Plan  

Task 4 Deliverables 

• Summary of data analysis results, with list of candidate locations with high potential for crashes 

(Also will be provided in Final Report)  

Task 5 Countermeasure Selection and Stakeholder Workshop 

TASK 5 PURPOSE Work with the community to identify engineering and non-engineering 

countermeasures that will be effective at reducing crashes and crash risk, and also are broadly 

supported for implementation. 

Subtask 5.1 Stakeholder Workshop #1 

The community plays a major role in neighborhood improvements, and our outreach effort will help us 

to understand the project locations through the community eye. Incorporating this perspective will 

increase the competitiveness of program project applications. 

We will develop a community input platform composed of a project website or web-based input 

platform, and a social media platform. Our project team will efficiently develop these tools to meet the 

needs of the project and community. We will use these platforms for feedback as well as to distribute 

information about meetings and project concepts. 

We will also hold a community workshop to discuss safety concerns identified through our data analysis 

and potential countermeasures. The workshop will educate the public and key stakeholders about the 

project, share initial findings, generate a list of possible countermeasures, and develop partnerships and 

synergies between stakeholders. Working with the Town, we will identify a list of key stakeholders, 

including Town planning and public works/engineering agencies, Caltrans, police and sheriff, emergency, 

and first responders. Finally, we will coordinate with the consultant team leading the work on the 

Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue Master Plan project to identify how proposed or potential 

changes identified within that work could improve safety or create additional opportunities for further 

enhancements that would improve roadway safety. 

Subtask 5.2 Engineering Countermeasures 

Within this task, we will organize the promising countermeasures into two categories: 1) low-cost 

systemic improvements; and 2) potential capital safety improvement projects. This recognizes that not 

all safety issues identified will be able to be effectively addressed through low-cost systemic 

improvements. In some instances, a larger capital investment may be needed and appropriate.  

 



A-9 

Subtask 5.3 Non-Engineering Countermeasures 

We will document suitable non-engineering policies, programs, and practices that support traffic safety. 

These may include educational programs and campaigns, enforcement schemes and technologies, 

public health initiatives, and other possible countermeasures. Key to this task will be the identification 

of resources and capacities present in Colma to create successful traffic safety policies, programs and 

practices.  

Task 5 Deliverables 

• Memorandum summarizing the prioritized listing of traffic safety countermeasures  

o Town staff will approve the listing of potential countermeasures to ensure they are 

commensurate with the intent of the Town’s Traffic Safety Plan to be included in the 

final report  

• Prepare for and conduct Stakeholder Workshop #1 , including: 

o PowerPoint presentation providing the overall framework for roadway safety planning 

to inform stakeholders on systemic analysis and potential safety countermeasures and 

strategies 

o Boards, maps, and materials to communicate the draft findings and solicit input from 

stakeholders 

o Summary of minutes of the workshop including local safety issues and concerns should 

be included in a memo format within the final report 

Task 6 Receive Consensus from City Council 

TASK 6 PURPOSE Obtain input and support from City Council for the proposed treatments and locations 

identified through the safety analysis and Stakeholder Workshop #1. The outcome will inform the 

development of safety projects and final content of the Safety Plan and SSAR. 

Subtask 6.1 Compile Stakeholder Input and Update Safety Recommendations 

We will work with Town staff to compile the stakeholder feedback from Workshop #1 and identify 

adjustments to the safety recommendations based on the input received. Using the updated 

information, we will prepare a PowerPoint presentation to provide to City Council that addresses: 

• Overall Framework for Safety Planning; 

• Local Issues and Concerns; 

• Stakeholder Input; 

• Crash Data Analysis; and 

• Potential Countermeasures. 

Town staff will review and approve the presentation materials prior to the City Council meeting. 

Subtask 6.2 Present Updating Information to City Council  

We will attend and present the PowerPoint presentation and materials developed in Subtask 6.1 to City 

Council to gather their input and reach consensus. We will also prepare for the meeting by preparing an 



A-10 

agenda and as follow-up activities to the meeting, we will provide meeting minutes, compilation of 

comments received, and a refined list of countermeasures based on City Council input. 

Task 6 Deliverables  

• Refined PowerPoint presentation addressing topics identified in Subtask 6.1 

• Prepare for and attend City Council meeting  

• Provide follow-up items from City Council meeting as identified in Subtask 6.2 

Task 7 Develop Safety Projects 

TASK 7 PURPOSE Develop projects based on final countermeasures and priorities for implementation. 

Subtask 7.1 Finalize and Prioritize Countermeasures and Stakeholder Workshop #2 

We will conduct a meeting with Town staff and key stakeholders to present the feedback we received 

from Workshop #1 and how that influenced the final prioritized list of countermeasures. The meeting 

will provide closure for stakeholders and also clearly communicate how the prioritized countermeasures 

will advance forward into projects. 

Subtask 7.2 Identify and Prioritize Locations for Countermeasures and Calculate 

Benefit/Cost Ratios 

We will review the prioritized locations from Task 4 to determine how those systemic treatments could 

be applied to the high-risk corridors. We propose conducting field reviews of the locations to be sure the 

systemic treatments being identified are appropriate. We will then work with the Town to identify the 

highest-priority locations and projects for which project scopes and concept designs can be developed 

and made ready for future HSIP applications (see Subtask 7.3). As part of these activities, we will 

calculate benefit/cost ratios to help inform the priority projects for which scopes and designs will be 

developed. We will document the methodology used for the benefit/cost ratio calculations and to the 

extent possible employ the methodology typically used in the HSIP grant application process. The 

resulting final list of locations and projects will identify those eligible for HSIP funds as well as other 

grant funding programs.  

Subtask 7.3 Develop Project Scopes, Concept Designs  

We will develop preliminary project scopes for up to ten (10) locations. We will lead a field study of each 

priority location, guiding Town staff and key stakeholders of each site to examine existing conditions and 

discuss the desirability and feasibility of the set of location-specific engineering enhancements identified 

at a planning level through the previous tasks. 

We will prepare concept design exhibits with current and proposed conditions, preliminary engineers’ 

estimates, and benefit-cost analysis summaries for the ten (10) prioritized projects, selected in 

coordination with the Town’s project manager. The scopes will be written to highlight key elements of a 

successful HSIP application, including: 

• Location maps and plans with project extents 

• Statement of need through data-based collision assessment 



A-11 

• Description of paired safety treatments and how treatments will address safety needs 

• Inventory of safety countermeasures previously deployed or programmed 

• Project costs and implementation schedule 

This information and work will be the starting point for the 30% Design Plan development in Task 9.  

Task 7 Deliverables 

• Memorandum detailing prioritized safety projects It will clearly identify: 

o Location map (beginning and ending points) of each project 

o Types of safety improvements 

o Benefit/Cost ratio for each project 

o Methodology for how the projects were selected and prioritized 

• The above memorandum will also be included in the final report, and supplemented with a table 

or similar method detailing the financial aspects of implementation, including, but not limited 

to, estimated total project cost, construction by year; expected funding sources and amount for 

each project. 

• Field Reviews of High-Priority Locations for Safety Projects 

Task 8 Draft Systemic Safety Analysis Report 

TASK 8 PURPOSE Develop and present to City Council the draft SSAR to obtain final comments before 

finalizing findings and documentation. 

Subtask 8.1 Prepare Draft Safety Plan and SSAR 

We will create the Draft SSAR following the Caltrans SSARP Guidelines as outlined in the RFP. Our 

project manager, Erin Ferguson, PE, will serve as the engineer of record. We will include in the report a 

vicinity map; crash characteristics, patterns, and trends; data gathering and data used; data analysis; 

countermeasures considered and selected; benefit summary; benefit/cost ratio calculations and 

methodology; and recommended safety projects including funding sources. 

Subtask 8.2 Prepare for and Attend City Council Meeting 

We will develop a PowerPoint presentation (and if needed additional supporting materials such as 

maps) to share, with City Council, the overall process of traffic safety and crash data analysis, local issues 

and concerns, selection and prioritization of countermeasures, Benefit/Cost ratios, and recommended 

projects documented in draft SSAR. We will record the input provided by City Council members to be 

able to incorporate into the Final Colma Safety Plan and SSAR, as appropriate. 

Task 8 Deliverables 

• PowerPoint presentation addressing overall process of traffic safety and crash data analysis, 

local issues and concerns, selection and prioritization of countermeasures, Benefit/Cost ratios, 

and recommended projects  

• Five (5) hard copies and electronic copies of the draft SSAR will be provided to the Town 



A-12 

Task 9 Preliminary Engineering Design (30% Design Plans) 

TASK 9 PURPOSE Develop 30% design plans and cost estimates for improvements at selected locations 

to inform HSIP grant applications as well as other potential funding sources. 

Subtask 9.1 Draft Design Plans and Cost Estimates 

We will perform preliminary engineering design of the selected projects for up to five (5) locations based 

on the priority list of locations and recommended countermeasures developed by the project team and 

consented by the City Council. Each location may be an intersection, a single block, a mid-block crossing, 

or similar discrete area. This area will be able to fit on a single 24”x36” plan sheet at 10 or 20-scale. 

We will then prepare 30% engineering design level layout plans at a convenient scale, with aerial photos 

as background, showing the preliminary design of recommended improvements. 

Improvements may include Complete Streets and Green Streets elements. Design will be sufficient to 

identify significant project cost components, potential right of way needs, and potential environmental 

constraints. Details such as pole and conductor schedules (for traffic signal plans), trench details, curb or 

planter wall details will not be included. Where there may be topographic survey available (i.e., Collins 

Road or Serramonte Boulevard), we will use this data to inform the preliminary design. We will not be 

including this topographic survey as a basemap or include related vertical design information. The 

backgrounds will be using aerial photos with design mostly based on site observations. 

We will coordinate with Town staff to determine the format and setup of plan sheets. Plan sheets may 

include Existing Conditions, Improvement Plan, and a Utility and Storm Drain Plan, depending on the 

type and complexity of the project. 

We will generate total project cost estimates of the recommended improvements at 30% engineering 

design level for each selected project. 

Subtask 9.2 Final Design Plans and Cost Estimates 

We will prepare the final design plan and cost estimates based on the Town’s review and comments on 

the draft versions provided. We assume that the Town will complete its review of the material within a 

one week time period. We will provide a record of how each comment provided was addressed. 

Task 9 Deliverables 

• Five (5) hard copies and electronic copies of the 30% engineering design level layout plans in

PDF and AutoCAD formats and total project cost estimates including, but not limited to, right of

way acquisitions, environmental review, engineering design and construction costs in Excel

format

Task 10 Final Systemic Safety Analysis Report 

TASK 10 PURPOSE Prepare the final Colma Road Safety Plan and SSAR that adheres to the Caltrans 

SSARP Guidelines, while meeting the needs of the Town. 



A-13 

Subtask 10.1 Finalize the Town Safety Plan and SSAR 

We will finalize the SSAR based on the input and comments received from the Draft SSAR developed in 

Task 8. We will create the Colma Road Safety Plan by comprehensively documenting the full process 

used to develop it including the comments received, as well as the response to those comments, from 

stakeholders and City Council as well those involved in its development. The report will meet Caltrans 

requirements and will be organized and prepared in a manner that is understood by the stakeholders 

whose input will help to shape and inform it. 

The final Colma Road Safety Plan and SSAR will also serve as the source of information from which the 

Town will be able to apply for HSIP grant funds to be able to implement the recommended projects. 

Therefore, it will detail the prioritized projects and include, per high-priority project: 

• Vicinity/location map; 

• Countermeasures being applied;  

• Crash data and diagrams; 

• Benefit/cost ratio calculations; 

• Project narrative; and 

• Preliminary engineering design (30% plans). 

Task 10 Deliverables 

• Five (5) hard copies and electronic copies of the final report for review and record. The final 

report must fulfill the reporting requirements for Caltrans SSAR Program 

• Revisions to the final SSAR documentation to address Caltrans comments, if needed 

Task 11 Prepare Sample HSIP Application 

TASK 11 PURPOSE Enable the Town to prepare successful HSIP grant applications to fund the prioritized 

safety improvement projects identified in the SSAR. 

Subtask 11.1 Develop a Sample HSIP Application 

We will develop an HSIP application for the highest priority project identified and developed through 

this SSAR project. We will provide the application to the Town for their submittal into the next HSIP 

grant cycle. We will also use the application as a basis for the training discussed in Subtask 11.2.  

Subtask 11.2 Conduct Training Workshop for HSIP Applications 

We will organize and conduct a training workshop for Town staff on how to prepare a success HSIP grant 

application. We will use the sample HSIP application to inform the training. The training materials will 

also include additional tips and tools (e.g., guidance for benefit/cost ratio calculations) to make it 

easier/more efficient for Town staff to prepare future HSIP applications.  

Task 11 Deliverables 

• One copy of sample HSIP grant application in Word document 

• One training workshop to demonstrate Town staff on how to prepare future HSIP grant 

applications using the most current available HSIP guidelines and grant application form. 



 

25977.00100\29530476.1  

EXHIBIT B 

Schedule of Charges/Payments 
 
Consultant will invoice Town on a monthly cycle.  Consultant will include with each invoice a 
detained progress report that indicates the amount of budget spent on each task.  Consultant will 
inform Town regarding any out-of-scope work being performed by Consultant.  This is a time-and-
materials contract. 
  



T
o

w
n

 o
f 

C
o

lm
a

 -
 S

y
st

e
m

ic
 S

a
fe

ty
 A

n
a

ly
si

s 
R

e
p

o
rt

K
it

te
ls

o
n

 A
ss

o
ci

a
te

s,
 I

n
c.

 T
e

a
m

 -
 C

o
st

 P
ro

p
o

sa
l

P
ro
je
c
t 
N
a
m
e
:

C
o
lm

a
 S

y
st

e
m

ic
 S

a
fe

ty
 A

n
a
ly

si
s 

R
e
p
o
rt

 (
S
S
A
R

)

P
ro
je
c
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
r:

E
ri
n
 F

e
rg

u
so

n

K
A
I 
P
ro
je
c
t 
N
u
m
b
e
r:

2
1
6
9
8

D
a
te
:

A
u
g
 3

1
, 

2
0
1
7

E
ri
n
 F

e
rg

u
so

n
, 

P
E

B
ri
a
n
 R

a
y
, 

P
E

M
a
tt

 B
ra

u
g
h
to

n
M

ik
e
 A

ls
to

n
Ja

so
n
 M

a
n
sf

ie
ld

, 

P
E

B
ri
a
n
 S

co
tt

B
o
b
b
y
 L

in
, 

P
E

P
ro

je
ct

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r

S
r.

 P
ro

je
ct

 P
ri
n
ci

p
a
l

S
e
n
io

r 
P
la

n
n
e
r

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti
o
n
 A

n
a
ly

st
L
e
a
d
 D

e
si

g
n
 

E
n
g
in

e
e
r

P
ri
n
ci

p
a
l

E
n
g
in

e
e
r

1
P
ro
je
c
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

1
.1

P
ro

g
re

ss
 M

e
e
ti
n
g
s 

- 
U

p
 t

o
 6

 M
e
e
ti
n
g
s

2
4

8
2
4

5
6

$
9
,6

2
4

6
6

$
1
,1

5
9

6
2

$
1
0
,7

8
3

1
.2

F
in

a
liz

e
d
 P

ro
je

ct
 B

u
d
g
e
t 

a
n
d
 D

e
ta

ile
d
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

ch
e
d
u
le

8
2

1
0

$
1
,9

7
3

0
$
0

1
0

$
1
,9

7
3

1
.3

B
i-
W

e
e
k
ly

 C
h
e
ck

-I
n
 C

o
n
fe

re
n
ce

 C
a
lls

6
6

1
2

$
1
,8

9
6

0
$
0

1
2

$
1
,8

9
6

R
e
im

b
u
rs

a
b
le

 E
x
p
e
n
se

$
1
7
3

$
1
7
3

T
a
sk

 #
1
 -

 S
u
b
to

ta
l

3
8

1
0

3
0

0
7
8

$
1
3
,4

9
3

6
0

0
6

$
1
,3

3
2

8
4

$
1
4
,8

2
5

2
D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
R
e
v
ie
w

2
.1

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 D
o
cu

m
e
n
ts

 t
o
 R

e
v
ie

w
2

2
4

8
1
6

$
2
,3

0
6

0
$
0

1
6

$
2
,3

0
6

2
.2

C
o
n
d
u
ct

 D
o
cu

m
e
n
t 

R
e
v
ie

w
6

2
8

1
6

3
2

$
4
,4

6
7

0
$
0

3
2

$
4
,4

6
7

R
e
im

b
u
rs

a
b
le

 E
x
p
e
n
se

$
0

T
a
sk

 #
2
 -

 S
u
b
to

ta
l

8
4

1
2

2
4

4
8

$
6
,7

7
3

0
0

0
0

$
0

4
8

$
6
,7

7
3

3
D
a
ta
 C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n

3
.1

C
ra

sh
 D

a
ta

6
2

1
2

2
0

4
0

$
5
,4

4
8

0
$
0

4
0

$
5
,4

4
8

3
.2

R
o
a
d
w

a
y
 C

h
a
ra

ct
e
ri
st

ic
 D

a
ta

1
6

8
2
4

3
2

8
0

$
1
1
,7

5
1

0
$
0

8
0

$
1
1
,7

5
1

3
.3

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 S

y
st

e
m

ic
 C

o
u
n
te

rm
e
a
su

re
s 

o
n
 t

h
e
 S

tr
e
e
t 

N
e
tw

o
rk

4
4

8
1
2

2
8

$
4
,1

6
3

0
$
0

2
8

$
4
,1

6
3

3
.4

T
ra

ff
ic

 C
o
u
n
t 

D
a
ta

6
2

8
1
6

3
2

$
4
,4

6
7

0
$
0

3
2

$
4
,4

6
7

R
e
im

b
u
rs

a
b
le

 E
x
p
e
n
se

$
7
,5

9
0

$
7
,5

9
0

T
a
sk

 #
3
 -

 S
u
b
to

ta
l

3
2

1
6

5
2

8
0

1
8
0

$
3
3
,4

1
9

0
0

0
0

$
0

1
8
0

$
3
3
,4

1
9

4
D
a
ta
 A
n
a
ly
s
is

4
.1

T
o
w

n
 C

ra
sh

 D
a
ta

 A
n
la

y
si

s
1
2

6
3
2

4
8

9
8

$
1
3
,3

6
9

0
$
0

9
8

$
1
3
,3

6
9

4
.2

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 R
is

k
 F

a
ct

o
rs

 a
n
d
 P

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
C
o
u
n
te

rm
e
a
su

re
s

1
6

8
2
0

4
0

8
4

$
1
2
,1

1
6

0
$
0

8
4

$
1
2
,1

1
6

4
.3

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 I
n
it
ia

l 
P
ri
o
ri
ty

 L
o
ca

ti
o
n
s 

b
a
se

d
 o

n
 R

is
k
 F

a
ct

o
rs

 a
n
d
 C

ra
sh

 D
a
ta

1
2

6
2
0

2
4

6
2

$
9
,0

7
9

0
$
0

6
2

$
9
,0

7
9

R
e
im

b
u
rs

a
b
le

 E
x
p
e
n
se

$
0

T
a
sk

 #
4
 -

 S
u
b
to

ta
l

4
0

2
0

7
2

1
1
2

2
4
4

$
3
4
,5

6
5

0
0

0
0

$
0

2
4
4

$
3
4
,5

6
5

5
C
o
u
n
te
rm

e
a
s
u
re
 S
e
le
c
ti
o
n

5
.1

S
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

W
o
rk

sh
o
p
 #

1
1
6

1
2

2
0

1
6

6
4

$
1
0
,4

4
3

0
$
0

6
4

$
1
0
,4

4
3

5
.2

E
n
g
in

e
e
ri
n
g
 C

o
u
n
te

rm
e
a
su

re
s

1
6

1
2

1
8

2
4

7
0

$
1
1
,0

7
5

0
$
0

7
0

$
1
1
,0

7
5

5
.3

N
o
n
-E

n
g
in

e
e
ri
n
g
 C

o
u
n
te

rm
e
a
su

re
s

8
4

1
6

1
6

4
4

$
6
,4

0
8

0
$
0

4
4

$
6
,4

0
8

R
e
im

b
u
rs

a
b
le

 E
x
p
e
n
se

$
0

T
a
sk

 #
5
 -

 S
u
b
to

ta
l

4
0

2
8

5
4

5
6

1
7
8

$
2
7
,9

2
6

0
0

0
0

$
0

1
7
8

$
2
7
,9

2
6

6
R
e
c
e
iv
e
 C
o
n
s
e
n
s
u
s
 f
ro
m
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il

6
.1

C
o
m

p
ile

 S
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

In
p
u
t 

a
n
d
 U

p
d
a
te

 S
a
fe

ty
 R

e
co

m
m

e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s

6
4

1
2

1
6

3
8

$
5
,5

1
0

0
$
0

3
8

$
5
,5

1
0

6
.2

P
re

se
n
t 

U
p
d
a
ti
n
g
 I

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
8

2
1
0

$
1
,9

7
3

0
$
0

1
0

$
1
,9

7
3

R
e
im

b
u
rs

a
b
le

 E
x
p
e
n
se

$
0

T
a
sk

 #
6
 -

 S
u
b
to

ta
l

1
4

6
1
2

1
6

4
8

$
7
,4

8
3

0
0

0
0

$
0

4
8

$
7
,4

8
3

7
D
e
v
e
lo
p
 S
a
fe
ty
 P
ro
je
c
ts

7
.1

F
in

a
liz

e
 a

n
d
 P

ri
o
ri
ti
ze

 C
o
u
n
te

rm
e
a
su

re
s 

a
n
d
 S

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

W
o
rk

sh
o
p
 #

2
1
6

1
0

2
0

2
4

7
0

$
1
0
,8

3
1

0
$
0

7
0

$
1
0
,8

3
1

7
.2

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 P

ri
o
ri
ti
ze

 L
o
ca

ti
o
n
s 

fo
r 

C
o
u
n
te

rm
e
a
su

re
s 

a
n
d
 C

a
lc

u
la

te
 B

e
n
e
fi
t/

C
o
st

 

R
a
ti
o
s

1
6

1
2

2
0

3
2

8
0

$
1
2
,2

3
9

0
$
0

8
0

$
1
2
,2

3
9

7
.3

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

co
p
e
s,

 C
o
n
ce

p
t 

D
e
si

g
n
s 

fo
r 

U
p
 t

o
 5

 L
o
ca

ti
o
n
s

2
0

1
8

2
8

4
6

1
1
2

$
1
7
,1

3
6

8
8

$
1
,5

4
6

1
2
0

$
1
8
,6

8
2

R
e
im

b
u
rs

a
b
le

 E
x
p
e
n
se

$
0

T
a
sk

 #
7
 -

 S
u
b
to

ta
l

5
2

4
0

6
8

1
0
2

2
6
2

$
4
0
,2

0
5

8
0

0
8

$
1
,5

4
6

2
7
0

$
4
1
,7

5
1

8
D
ra
ft
 S
y
s
te
m
ic
 S
a
fe
ty
 A
n
a
ly
s
is
 R
e
p
o
rt

8
.1

P
re

p
a
re

 D
ra

ft
 S

a
fe

ty
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 S

S
A
R

1
6

8
3
2

4
8

1
0
4

$
1
4
,6

1
1

0
$
0

1
0
4

$
1
4
,6

1
1

8
.2

P
re

p
a
re

 f
o
r 

a
n
d
 A

tt
e
n
d
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
ci

l 
M

e
e
ti
n
g

1
6

8
1
2

1
2

4
8

$
7
,9

1
0

0
$
0

4
8

$
7
,9

1
0

R
e
im

b
u
rs

a
b
le

 E
x
p
e
n
se

$
0

T
a
sk

 #
8
 -

 S
u
b
to

ta
l

3
2

1
6

4
4

6
0

1
5
2

$
2
2
,5

2
1

0
0

0
0

$
0

1
5
2

$
2
2
,5

2
1

9
P
re
li
m
in
a
ry
 E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 D
e
s
ig
n
 (
3
0
%

 D
e
s
ig
n
 P
la
n
s
)

9
.1

D
ra

ft
 D

e
si

g
n
 P

la
n
s 

a
n
d
 C

o
st

 E
st

im
a
te

s
1
2

6
1
8

$
3
,7

2
5

2
8

1
0

1
2
0

1
5
8

$
2
3
,5

8
8

1
7
6

$
2
7
,3

1
3

9
.2

F
in

a
l 
D

e
si

g
n
 P

la
n
s 

a
n
d
 C

o
st

 E
st

im
a
te

s
8

4
1
2

$
2
,4

8
3

1
2

6
7
2

9
0

$
1
3
,2

2
5

1
0
2

$
1
5
,7

0
8

R
e
im

b
u
rs

a
b
le

 E
x
p
e
n
se

$
0

T
a
sk

 #
9
 -

 S
u
b
to

ta
l

2
0

1
0

0
0

3
0

$
6
,2

0
8

4
0

1
6

1
9
2

2
4
8

$
3
6
,8

1
3

2
7
8

$
4
3
,0

2
1

1
0

F
in
a
l 
S
y
s
te
m
ic
 S
a
fe
ty
 A
n
a
ly
s
is
 R
e
p
o
rt

1
0
.1

F
in

a
liz

e
 t

h
e
 T

o
w

n
 S

a
fe

ty
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 S

S
A
R

8
5

1
2

1
6

4
1

$
6
,1

3
0

0
$
0

4
1

$
6
,1

3
0

R
e
im

b
u
rs

a
b
le

 E
x
p
e
n
se

$
0

T
a
sk

 #
1
0
 -

 S
u
b
to

ta
l

8
5

1
2

1
6

4
1

$
6
,1

3
0

0
0

0
0

$
0

4
1

$
6
,1

3
0

1
1

P
re
p
a
re
 S
a
m
p
le
 H
S
IP
 A
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n

1
1
.1

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 S
a
m

p
le

 H
S
IP

 A
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

8
4

1
2

1
6

4
0

$
5
,8

7
5

0
$
0

4
0

$
5
,8

7
5

1
1
.2

C
o
n
d
u
ct

 T
ra

in
in

g
 W

o
rk

sh
o
p
 f

o
r 

H
S
IP

 A
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

1
2

4
1
2

8
3
6

$
5
,7

0
9

0
$
0

3
6

$
5
,7

0
9

R
e
im

b
u
rs

a
b
le

 E
x
p
e
n
se

$
0

T
a
sk

 #
1
1
 -

 S
u
b
to

ta
l

2
0

8
2
4

2
4

7
6

$
1
1
,5

8
5

0
0

0
0

$
0

7
6

$
1
1
,5

8
5

T
O

T
A
L
 H

O
U

R
S

3
0
4

1
6
3

3
8
0

4
9
0

1
3
3
7

$
2
1
0
,3

0
9
.2

9
5
4

1
6

1
9
2

2
6
2

$
3
9
,6

9
0
.9

4

L
A
B
O

R
 R

A
T
E

$
1
8
2
.9

0
$
2
5
5
.0

1
$
1
3
3
.0

9
$
1
1
2
.2

0
$
1
9
3
.2

5
$
2
5
9
.0

2
$
1
2
9
.8

9

L
A
B
O

R
 C

O
S
T

$
5
5
,6

0
2

$
4
1
,5

6
6

$
5
0
,5

7
2

$
5
4
,9

7
8

$
1
0
,4

3
5

$
4
,1

4
4

$
2
4
,9

3
8

1
,5
9
9

$
2
4
2
,2
3
7

$
7
,7
6
3

T
a
s
k

It
e
m

U
n
it
 C
o
s
t

U
n
it

N
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
U
n
it
s

T
o
ta
l

1
.1

M
ile

a
g

e
 f

o
r 

T
ra

ve
l t

o
 M

e
e

ti
n

g
s

$
0

.5
4

p
e

r 
m

ile
3

2
0

$
1

7
2

.8
0

3
.4

T
u
b
e
 C

o
u
n
ts

 -
 V

o
lu

m
e
, 

C
la

ss
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
, 

S
p
e
e
d
 f

o
r 

7
-d

a
y
s,

 2
4
-h

o
u
rs

 p
e
r 

d
a
y
, 

1
5
 

m
in

u
te

 i
n
cr

e
m

e
n
ts

$
4
5
0

p
e
r 

lo
ca

ti
o
n

1
3

$
5
,8

5
0

3
.4

In
te

rs
e
ct

io
n
 M

u
lt
im

o
d
a
l 
T
u
rn

in
g
 M

o
v
e
m

e
n
t 

C
o
u
n
ts

 f
o
r 

T
w

o
, 

T
w

o
 -

H
o
u
r 

P
e
a
k
 

P
e
ri
o
d
s

$
2
9
0

p
e
r 

in
te

rs
e
ct

io
n

6
$
1
,7

4
0

$
7

,7
6

2
.8

0

E
x
p
e
n
s
e
s

T
O
T
A
L
 P
R
O
J
E
C
T
 B
U
D
G
E
T

$
2
5
0
,0
0
0

T
o

ta
l 

E
xp

e
n

se
s

H
o
u
rs

C
o
s
t

T
O
T
A
L
 H
O
U
R
S

T
O
T
A
L
 L
A
B
O
R

T
O
T
A
L
 R
E
IM

B
U
R
S
A
B
L
E
S

T
o

ta
l 

T
e

a
m

T
a
s
k

K
it
te
ls
o
n
 &
 A
s
s
o
c
ia
te
s
, 
In
c
.

B
K
F
 E
n
g
in
e
e
rs

S
U
B
T
A
S
K
/

T
A
S
K
 H
O
U
R
S

S
U
B
T
A
S
K
/

T
A
S
K
 C
O
S
T

H
o
u
rs

C
o
s
t



25977.00100\29530476.1

EXHIBIT C 

Activity Schedule 



C-1 

COLMA SSAR PROJECT SCHEDULE 





Staff Report re Update of Regional Government Services Agreement  Page 1 of 3 
[8/28/2016] 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  William C. Norton, Interim City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 13, 2017 

SUBJECT: Update Agreement with Regional Government Services (RGS) For 
Financial Services  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the Council approve a: 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN UPDATED AGREEMENT FOR FINANCIAL SERVICES 
WITH REGIONAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES (RGS) 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Since May 2012 the Town has had an agreement with Regional Government Services to provide 
services in the Finance Department. The most recent form of the agreement was effective July 
1, 2013 and amended in December 2014. The current version requires updating to reflect the 
scope of services provided, as well as refinement to the form of the agreement that has 
become a standard for agencies served by RGS. The scope is consistent with services provided 
since the assignment of Paul Rankin, RGS Senior Finance Advisor in August 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The Town is billed on an hourly basis only for the services received. No change is proposed in 
the hourly rate for Senior Finance Advisor which has been billed at $131 per hour since January 
2014. The Finance Department Professional Services line item in the adopted 2017-18 Budget 
included $75,000 for estimated services.   

ANALYSIS 

Since 2012 the Town has had an agreement with Regional Government Services to provide 
services within the Finance Department. The Finance Department is staffed by 1.8 Full-time 
Accounting Technicians positions. In order to complete the work required in a municipal 
organization there is a need for additional resources, however, this is not required on a full-time 
basis. RGS has been able to provide skilled professionals that have experience at the executive 
level in government service.  

Regional Government Services is a Joint Powers Authority (JPA) which has been operating for 
15 years. Their staff resources are experienced, knowledgeable and dedicated to public service. 
The JPA strives to deliver an in-depth understanding of the unique operational requirements 
and responsibilities of public agencies. The Advisors have extensive, hands-on experience. RGS 
has worked with government agencies, and creates seamless delivery of public services with 
their partner agencies. RGS does not operate on a for-profit basis and is supported solely by 

Item #6



Staff Report re Update of Regional Government Services Agreement  Page 2 of 3 
[8/28/2016] 

fees for services. Thus, RGS is able to provide professional services to other public agencies at 
affordable costs. 

Paul Rankin was assigned as Advisor under the agreement with the Town approximately two 
years ago. During that time he has worked with Finance Staff and the City Manager to review 
and coordinate financial reporting including budgets, quarterly finance reports and working with 
the independent Auditor. Mr. Rankin will be leaving RGS to pursue other interests. He will 
continue to assist over the next few weeks with transition to Mr. Brian Moura, who has served a 
variety of agencies.  

During the transition review it was noted that the current agreement does not reflect the form 
and conditions of more recent documents used by RGS when performing services for agencies. 
The agreement has changed over the years to address unique conditions that arise when 
serving municipal agencies. A central need is to clearly define the contract relationship and 
establish that RGS Advisors are employees of the JPA.  

The last amendment to this Agreement allowed certain Treasury functions to be performed by 
the RGS Advisor. Over the past two years that has not been included in the services provided. 
The City Manager serves as the City Treasurer and RGS representatives have not been involved 
in banking transactions. These are duties appropriately assigned to Town staff.  

The proposed agreement contains a more general scope of work consistent with what has been 
provided. As contained in Exhibit B of the updated Agreement the services include: 

Scope of Services. RGS shall assign an RGS employee or employees to perform the 
functions as described below:  

• Perform the functions as assigned by the RGS lead advisor.  
• Be reasonably available to perform the services during the normal work week.  
• Meet regularly and as often as necessary for the purpose of consulting about the scope 
of work performed with the appropriate Agency project manager and with the RGS lead.  
• Perform other duties as are consistent with the services described herein and approved 
by the RGS lead advisor.  
• Perform related work as required as approved by the RGS lead advisor.  
• Such employee may perform services at Agency offices available or at other locations.  
• Specific to Town of Colma Financial Services:  

o Assess and evaluate the municipal financial operations, providing 
recommendations for a well-functioning program; 
o Oversee the Budget process, identifying and recommending areas in which to 
change; 
o Assess and coordinate audit and financial reporting, making recommendations 
for modification;  
o Draft a variety of recommendations related to financial reports and activities; 
and  
o Provide other advisory services, as requested by the Town. 

 

In order to be responsive to the most efficient delivery of services the Agreement also includes 
lower level classifications that could be assigned if the nature of the work matched available 
resources.   

Reasons For the Recommended Action 
Authorization of the revised agreement updates the terms to reflect current operations and 
provides for the continuation of financial services.  



Staff Report re Update of Regional Government Services Agreement  Page 3 of 3 
[8/28/2016] 

COUNCIL ADOPTED VALUES 

The Staff recommendation is consistent with the Council adopted values of: 

• Responsibility: Making decisions after prudent consideration of their financial impact, 
taking into account the long-term financial needs of the agency, especially its financial 
stability. 

• Fairness: Support the public’s right to know and promote meaningful public 
involvement. 

CONCLUSION 

It is recommended that the Town Council adopt the Resolution authorizing an updated 
agreement for financial services with Regional Government Services (RGS) 

ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Resolution Authorizing An Updated Agreement For Financial Services with Regional 
Government Services (RGS)  

B. Draft Agreement 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Res 2017-##, Update Regional Government Services Financial Services Agreement Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-## 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT FOR FINANCIAL SERVICES 
WITH REGIONAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES (RGS) 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does resolve as follows. 

1. Background

(a) The Town has obtained Finance related services from Regional Government Services
(RGS) since 2012; 

(b) Regional Government Services is a California Joint Powers Authority (JPA) formed by its 
public agency members to serve local governments; 

(c) The Town has used RGS services to provide assistance with financial matters in a cost 
effective manner; and 

(d) Following a review of the current agreement RGS and Town staff found that certain 
adjustments were appropriate to update the terms in the agreement and scope of work to 
reflect the services provided. 

2. Findings

(a) Agreement Supercedes Prior Agreements. This Agreement fully replaces the Agreement
originally effective July 1, 2013, and all subsequent Amendments. 

(b) Scope of Services. The scope of services to be provided is contained in Exhibit B of the 
Agreement and is representative of the nature of services provided to the Town since August 
2015. 

(c) Rates For Senior Finance Advisor. The current rate for the Senior Finance Advisor as 
established in January 2014 shall remain unchanged through June 30, 2018 and then only 
adjusted as provided for in the Agreement.  

(d) The City Council herby approves the updated Agreement as attached hereto and by 
reference made a part hereof.  The Interim City Manager is authorized to execute the 
Agreement on behalf of the Town. 

Attachment A



Res 2017-##, Update Regional Government Services Financial Services Agreement Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
 
 

Certification of Adoption  
 
I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2017-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
the City Council of the Town of Colma held on September 13, 2017, by the following vote: 
 
 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

 Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      

Raquel Gonzalez, Vice Mayor      

Diana Colvin      

Joanne del Rosario      

John Irish Goodwin      

Voting Tally      
 
 
 
 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest: ____________________________ 
       Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



P .O.  BOX 1 3 5 0    |    CARMEL VALLEY,  CA 9 3 9 2 4    |    8 4 4 .5 8 7 .7 3 0 0    |    W W W .RGS. CA. GO V 

Preamble:  The agreement for services described below is also an agreement to engage in a 
relationship between organizations – Agency partners.  In order to establish a mutually 
respectful relationship as well as a productive one, RGS has adopted the following values and 
business methods. 

Our Values 
• Expert Services:  RGS serves exclusively public sector agencies with its team of public-sector

experts.
• Innovation:  RGS encourages and develops innovative and sustainable services to help each

Agency meet its challenges through new modes of service provision.
• Customer Driven:  RGS customizes solutions to achieve the right level and right kind of

service at the right time for each Agency’s unique organizational needs.
• Perseverance:  Sometimes the best solutions are not immediately apparent.  RGS listens,

works with you, and sticks with it until a good fit with your needs is found.
• Open Source Sharing:  RGS tracks emerging best practices and shares them, learning openly

from each other’s hard won experience.
• Commitment:  Government agencies are the public’s only choice for many services.  Public

trust is earned and must be used wisely.  And RGS will do its part.  Each Agency should and
will know how RGS sets its rates.  RGS’ pledge to you is that we will act with honesty,
openness, and full transparency.

How RGS Does Business 
When you work with RGS you can expect: 
• RGS will strive to be explicit up front and put our understandings in writing.  Before making

assumptions, we hope to talk directly to prevent any misunderstandings.
• Ongoing interaction throughout our relationship to ensure that your needs are being met,

and that projects progress appropriately and agreed-upon timelines are met.
• RGS is committed to honest interaction.
• When RGS employees are on your site, we expect them to treat people respectfully and be

treated respectfully.  If problems arise, we want to communicate early, accurately, and
thoroughly to ensure that we find mutually acceptable solutions.

• As a public Agency, partnering is valued.  We look out for each Agency’s interests consistent 
with maintaining the public trust.

• To keep expectations realistic, it is important to understand that RGS is a governmental,
joint powers authority evolving to meet changing local government needs.  RGS has
carefully constructed policies and procedures to allow maximum flexibility to meet your
needs.

Attachment B



 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services   Page 2 of 15 
Between the the Town of Colma and Regional Government Services Authority September 13, 2017 
 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services 
 
This Agreement for Management Services (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the 
thirteenth  day of September 2017, by and between the Town of Colma, a municipal Agency (“Agency”), 
and Regional Government Services Authority (RGS), a joint powers authority, (each individually  
a “Party” and, collectively, the “Parties”). 
 
RECITALS 
THIS AGREEMENT is entered into with reference to the following facts and circumstances: 
A. That Agency desires to engage RGS to render certain services to it; 
B. That RGS is a management and administrative services provider and is qualified to provide such 

services to the Agency; and 
C. That Agency has elected to engage the services of RGS upon the terms and conditions as 

hereinafter set forth. 
D. This Agreement fully replaces the Agreement originally effective July 1, 2013, and all subsequent 

Amendments. 
E. The scope of services as presented in this Agreement represent the nature of services provided 

since July 2015. 
 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
Section 1. Services.  The services to be performed by RGS under this Agreement shall include those 

services set forth in the attached Exhibits, which are incorporated by this reference 
incorporated herein and made a part hereof as though it were fully set forth herein. 
 
Where in conflict, the terms of this Agreement supersede and prevail over any terms set 
forth in the Exhibits. 
 
1.1 Standard of Performance.  RGS shall perform all services required pursuant 

to this Agreement in the manner and according to the standards observed by a 
competent practitioner of the types of services that RGS agrees to provide in the 
geographical area in which RGS operates. 

 
1.2 Lead Advisor.  To ensure quality and consistency for the services provided, RGS 

also assigns a lead advisor to Agency.  The lead advisor is available to assigned RGS 
staff and to Agency management and will check in regularly with both to address 
program/project directives.  Typically lead advisor time is not billed to Agency, 
with some exceptions where significant programmatic direction is provided. 

 
1.3 Reassignment of Personnel.  Assignment of personnel to provide the services 

described in the Exhibits is in the sole discretion of RGS. In the event that Agency, 
at any time during the term of this Agreement, desires the reassignment of 
personnel, Agency may make a request to RGS and RGS shall meet and confer in 
good faith to address the issue of concern, including but not limited to reassigning 
such person or persons. 

 
1.4 Time.  RGS shall devote such time to the performance of services pursuant to this 

Agreement as may be reasonably necessary to meet the standard of performance 
described above and to provide the services described in the Exhibits. 
 



 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services   Page 3 of 15 
Between the the Town of Colma and Regional Government Services Authority September 13, 2017 
 

Term of Agreement and Termination.  Services shall commence on or about September 1, 2017, 
and this Agreement is anticipated to remain in force to June 30, 2018. Each year thereafter, it shall be 
extended for one year unless either party gives written notice to terminate before May 1st.  This 
Agreement may be terminated by either Party, with or without cause, upon 30 days’ written notice.  
Agency has the sole discretion to determine if the services performed by RGS are satisfactory to the 
Agency which determination shall be made in good faith.  If Agency determines that the services 
performed by RGS are not satisfactory, Agency may terminate this Agreement by giving written notice 
to RGS.  Upon receipt of notice of termination by either Party, RGS shall cease performing duties on 
behalf of Agency on the termination date specified and the compensation payable to RGS shall include 
only the period for which services have been performed by RGS. 

 
Section 2. Compensation.  Payment under this Agreement shall be as provided in the Exhibits. 

 
Section 3. Effective Date.  This Agreement shall become effective on the date first herein above 

written in Section 2. 
 

Section 4. Relationship of Parties. 
 

5.1  It is understood that the relationship of RGS to the Agency is that of an 
independent contractor and all persons working for or under the direction of RGS 
are its agents or employees and not agents or employees of Agency.  The Agency 
and RGS shall, at all times, treat all persons working for or under the direction of 
RGS as agents and employees of RGS, and not as agents or employees of the 
Agency.  Agency shall have the right to control RGS only insofar as the results of 
RGS’ services rendered pursuant to this Agreement. In furtherance of this Section 
5.1, the Parties agree as follows:  

5.1.1 Agency shall not request from RGS or from an RGS employee 
providing services pursuant to this Agreement an RGS employee’s Social 
Security Number or other similar personally identifying information.  

5.1.2  Agency shall not report an RGS employee to a third party as an 
employee of Agency. For the purposes of his Section 5.1, “third party” 
means another government agency, private company, or individual.  

5.1.3 In the event that a third-party requests information about an RGS 
employee—including but not limited to personally identifying information, 
hours or locations worked, tasks performed, or compensation—Agency 
shall inform RGS of the request prior to responding. If Agency possesses 
such information about an RGS employee, the Parties shall confer in good 
faith about an appropriate and legally compliant response to the request.  

 
5.2 RGS shall provide services under this Agreement through one or more employees 

of RGS qualified to perform services contracted for by Agency.  The positions of 
RGS staff who will coordinate services to the Agency are indicated in the Exhibits.   
The Executive Director or assigned supervising RGS staff will consult with Agency 



 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services   Page 4 of 15 
Between the the Town of Colma and Regional Government Services Authority September 13, 2017 
 

on an as-needed basis to assure that the services to be performed are meeting 
Agency’s objectives. 
 

5.3 Agency shall not have the ability to direct how services are to be performed, specify 
the location where services are to be performed, or establish set hours or days for 
performance of services, except as set forth in the Exhibits. 
 

5.4 Agency shall not have any right to discharge any employee of RGS from 
employment. 
 

5.5 RGS shall, at its sole expense, supply for its employees providing services to Agency 
pursuant to this Agreement any and all benefits, such as worker’s compensation, 
disability insurance, vacation pay, sick pay, or retirement benefits; obtain and 
maintain all licenses and permits usual or necessary for performing the services; 
pay any and all taxes incurred as a result of the employee(s) compensation, 
including employment or other taxes; and provide Agency with proof of payment 
of taxes on demand. 
 

Section 5. Loss Occurrence Coverage.  RGS is self-insured and maintains loss occurrence 
coverage through its membership in the Municipal Insurance Cooperative (“MIC”), a 
California Joint Powers Authority, which is a risk purchasing joint powers authority.  
Consistent with sections 990.4 and 990.8 of the Government Code, the MIC provides 
coverage to RGS, in excess of its member retained limit, against claims for injuries to 
persons or damages to property that may arise from or in connection with the 
performance of the work hereunder by RGS and its agents, representatives, employees, 
and subcontractors. 
 
6.1 Workers’ Compensation Coverage. 

 
6.1.1 General requirements.  RGS shall, at its sole cost and expense, maintain 

Workers’ Compensation coverage and Employer’s Liability coverage with 
limits of not less than $1,000,000.00 per occurrence.   
 

6.1.2 Waiver of subrogation.  The Workers’ Compensation coverage shall be 
endorsed with or include a waiver of subrogation in favor of Agency for all 
work performed by RGS, its employees, agents, and subcontractors. 

 
6.2 Commercial General, Automobile, and Professional Liability 

Coverages. 
 
6.2.1 General requirements.  RGS, at its own cost and expense, shall maintain 

commercial general and automobile liability coverage for the term of this 
Agreement in an amount not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence, 
combined single limit coverage for risks associated with the work 
contemplated by this Agreement.  RGS shall additionally maintain 
commercial general liability coverage in an amount not less than 
$2,000,000 aggregated for bodily injury, personal injury, and property 
damage.   

 



 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services   Page 5 of 15 
Between the the Town of Colma and Regional Government Services Authority September 13, 2017 
 

6.2.2 Minimum scope of coverage.  The MIC MOC is not written on ISO 
forms but provides coverage at least as broad as the latest version of the 
following: (A) General Liability: Insurance Services Office Commercial 
General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 0001); and (B) Automobile 
Liability: Insurance Services Office Business Auto Coverage form number 
CA 001, code 1 (any auto).  

 
6.3 Professional Liability Insurance.  RGS, at its own cost and expense, shall 

maintain for the period covered by this Agreement professional liability coverage 
for licensed professionals performing work pursuant to this Agreement in an 
amount not less than $2,000,000 covering the licensed professionals’ errors and 
omissions. 
 

6.4 All Policies Requirements. 

 
6.4.1 Coverage requirements.  Each of the following shall be included in the 

coverage or added as an endorsement: 
a. Agency and its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be 

covered as additional covered parties with respect to RGS’ general 
commercial, and automobile coverage for claims, demands, and 
causes of action arising out of or relating to RGS’ performance of this 
Agreement and to the extent caused by RGS’ negligent act, error, or 
omission.   

b. An endorsement to RGS’ general commercial, and automobile 
coverages must state that coverage is primary with respect to Agency 
and its officers, officials, employees and volunteers. 

c. All coverages shall be on an occurrence or an accident basis, and not 
on a claims-made basis. 

 
6.4.2 Acceptability of coverage providers.  All coverages required by this 

section shall be acquired through providers with a Bests' rating of no less 
than A: VII or through sources that provide an equivalent level of reliability. 
 

6.4.3 Verification of coverage.  Prior to beginning any work under this 
Agreement, RGS shall furnish Agency with notifications of coverage and 
with original endorsements effecting coverage required herein.  The 
notifications and endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by 
the Municipal Insurance Cooperative to bind coverage on its behalf.  Agency 
reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all Memorandums 
of Coverage at any time. 
 

6.4.4 Subcontractors.  RGS shall include all subcontractors as insureds under 
its coverage or shall furnish separate certificates and endorsements for each 
subcontractor.  All coverages for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the 
requirements stated herein. 
 

6.4.5 Variation.  During the term of this agreement, RGS may change the 
insurance program in which it participates. RGS will provide reasonable 



 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services   Page 6 of 15 
Between the the Town of Colma and Regional Government Services Authority September 13, 2017 
 

notice of any such change to Agency and replacement copies of Certificates 
of Coverage and endorsements.  
 

6.4.6 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions.  RGS shall disclose any 
self-insured retention if Agency so requests prior to performing services 
under this Agreement or within a reasonable period of time of a request by 
Agency during the term of this Agreement. 
 

6.4.7 Maintenance of Coverages.  The coverages stated herein shall be 
maintained throughout the term of this Agreement and proof of coverage 
shall be available for inspection by Agency upon request. 
 

6.4.8 Notice of Cancellation or Reduction in Coverage.  In the event that 
any coverage required by this section is reduced, limited, or materially 
affected in any other manner, RGS shall provide written notice to Agency at 
RGS earliest possible opportunity and in no case later than five days after 
RGS is notified of the change in coverage. 

 
Section 6. Legal Requirements. 

 
7.1 Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement. 

 
7.2 Compliance with Applicable Laws.  RGS and any subcontractors shall comply 

with all laws applicable to the performance of the work hereunder. 
 

7.3 Reporting Requirements.  If there is a statutory or other legal requirement for 
RGS to report information to another government entity, RGS shall be responsible 
for complying with such requirements.    
 

7.4 Other Governmental Regulations.  To the extent that this Agreement may be 
funded by fiscal assistance from another governmental entity, RGS and any 
subcontractors shall comply with all applicable rules and regulations to which 
Agency is bound by the terms of such fiscal assistance program. 
 

7.5 Licenses and Permits.  RGS represents and warrants to Agency that RGS and 
its employees, agents, and any subcontractors have all licenses, permits, 
qualifications, and approvals of whatsoever nature that are legally required to 
provide the services contemplated by this Agreement.  RGS represents and 
warrants to Agency that RGS and its employees, agents, and subcontractors shall, 
at their sole cost and expense, keep in effect at all times during the term of this 
Agreement any licenses, permits, and approvals that are legally required to 
practice their respective professions. 
 

7.6 Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity.  RGS shall not discriminate, on 
the basis of a person’s race, religion, color, national origin, age, physical or mental 
handicap or disability, medical condition, marital status, sex, or sexual orientation, 
against any employee, applicant for employment, subcontractor, bidder for a 
subcontract, or participant in, recipient of, or applicant for any services or 
programs provided under this Agreement.  RGS shall comply with all applicable 
federal, state, and local laws, policies, rules, and requirements related to equal 



 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services   Page 7 of 15 
Between the the Town of Colma and Regional Government Services Authority September 13, 2017 
 

opportunity and nondiscrimination in employment, contracting, and the provision 
of any services that are the subject of this Agreement. 
 

Section 8. Keeping and Status of Records. 
 

8.1 Records Created as Part of RGS’ Performance.  All final versions of reports, 
data, maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, 
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in 
electronic or any other form, that RGS prepares or obtains pursuant to this 
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property 
of Agency.  RGS hereby agrees to deliver those documents to Agency upon 
termination of the Agreement, if requested.  It is understood and agreed that the 
documents and other materials, including but not limited to those described above, 
prepared pursuant to this Agreement are prepared specifically for Agency and are 
not necessarily suitable for any future or other use. 
 

8.2 Confidential Information.  RGS shall hold any confidential information 
received from Agency in the course of performing this Agreement in trust and 
confidence and will not reveal such confidential information to any person or 
entity, either during the term of the Agreement or at any time thereafter.  Upon 
expiration of this Agreement, or termination as provided herein, RGS shall return 
materials which contain any confidential information to Agency.  For purposes of 
this paragraph, confidential information is defined as all information disclosed to 
RGS which relates to Agency past, present, and future activities, as well as activities 
under this Agreement, which information is not otherwise of public record under 
California law.  Agency shall notify RGS what information and documents are 
confidential and thus subject to this section 8.2. 
 

8.3 RGS Books and Records.  RGS shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of 
account, invoices, vouchers, canceled checks, and other records or documents 
evidencing or relating to charges for services or expenditures and disbursements 
charged to Agency under this Agreement for a minimum of 3 years, or for any 
longer period required by law, from the date of final payment under this 
Agreement. 
 

8.4 Inspection and Audit of Records.  Any records or documents that Section 8.3 
of this Agreement requires RGS to maintain shall be made available for inspection, 
audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon oral or 
written request of Agency.  Under California Government Code Section 8546.7, if 
the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement exceeds $10,000.00, 
the Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, 
at the request of Agency or as part of any audit of Agency, for a period of three years 
after final payment under the Agreement. 
 

Section 9. Non-assignment.  This Agreement is not assignable either in whole or in part without 
the written consent of the other party. 
 

Section 10. Amendments.  This Agreement may be amended or modified only by written 
Agreement signed by both Parties. 
 



 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services   Page 8 of 15 
Between the the Town of Colma and Regional Government Services Authority September 13, 2017 
 

Section 11. Validity.  The invalidity, in whole or in part, of any provisions of this Agreement shall 
not void or affect the validity of any other provisions of this Agreement. 
 

Section 12. Disputes.  Should any dispute arise out of this Agreement, Agency agrees that it shall 
only file a legal action against RGS, and shall not file any legal action against any of the 
public entities that are members of RGS. 
 

Section 13. Governing Law/Attorneys’ Fees.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of 
the State of California and any suit or action initiated by either party shall be brought in 
Alameda County, California. In the event of litigation between the Parties hereto to 
enforce any provision of the Agreement, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to 
reasonable attorney’s fees and costs of litigation. 
 

Section 14. Mediation.  Should any dispute arise out of this Agreement, the Parties shall meet in 
mediation and attempt to reach a resolution with the assistance of a mutually acceptable 
mediator.  Neither Party shall be permitted to file legal action without first meeting in 
mediation and making a good faith attempt to reach a mediated resolution. The costs of 
the mediator, if any, shall be paid equally by the Parties. If a mediated settlement is 
reached, neither Party shall be deemed the prevailing party for purposes of the settlement 
and each Party shall bear its own legal costs. 

 
Section 15. Employment Offers to RGS Staff.  Should Agency desire to offer permanent or 

temporary employment to an RGS employee who is either currently providing RGS 
services to Agency or has provided RGS services to Agency within the previous six months, 
said Agency will be charged a fee equal to the full-time cost of the RGS employee for one 
month, using the most recent RGS bill rate for the RGS employee’s services to 
Agency.  This fee is to recover RGS’ expenses in recruiting the former and replacement 
RGS staff. RGS may agree in writing to waive the fee required by this section. If RGS 
agrees to waive the fee required by this section and (1) CalPERS determines that the RGS 
employee hired by Agency was a common-law employee of Agency and should have been 
enrolled as an employee of Agency while providing services pursuant to this Agreement; 
(2) CalPERS determines that a payment is required as part of enrolling the employee for 
the time that the employee provided services pursuant to this Agreement (the “payment”); 
and (3) neither RGS nor Agency challenges those determinations or the payment is 
upheld in a final  administrative appeal or court decision, then Agency shall contribute an 
amount equal to the fee waived by RGS toward the payment. If the amount of the payment 
is less than the fee, then Agency shall make the payment. If the amount of the payment is 
more than the fee, RGS shall pay the difference. In the event that the payment is a liability  
covered by Section 17.3 of this Agreement, this Section shall apply up to the amount of 
the payment and Section 17.3 shall apply to any CalPERS-related covered liability other 
than or in excess of the payment. 
 

Section 16. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including the Exhibits, comprises the entire 
Agreement. 

 
Section 17. Indemnification. 
 

17.1 RGS’ indemnity obligations. 
RGS shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency and its legislative body, 
boards and commissions, officers, and employees (“Indemnitees”) from and 



 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services   Page 9 of 15 
Between the the Town of Colma and Regional Government Services Authority September 13, 2017 
 

against all claims, demands, and causes of action by third parties, including but 
not limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of RGS’ performance of this Agreement, 
to the extent caused by RGS’ negligent act, error, or omission.  Nothing herein shall 
be interpreted as obligating RGS to indemnify Agency against its own negligence 
or willful misconduct. 
 

17.2 Agency’s indemnity obligations.  Agency shall indemnify, defend and hold 
harmless RGS and its officers, directors, employees and agents from any and all 
claims and lawsuits where such persons are named in the lawsuit solely because of 
a duty any of them performs in accordance with the services outlined in Exhibit B. 
 
It is the intent of the parties here to define indemnity obligations that are related 
to or arise out of Agency’s actions as a governmental entity.  Thus, Agency shall be 
required to indemnify and defend only under circumstances where a cause of 
action is stated against RGS, its employees or agents: 
a. which is unrelated to the skill they have used in the performance of the 

duties delegated to them under this Agreement; 
b. when the allegations in such cause of action do not suggest the active fraud 

or other misconduct of RGS, its employees, or agents; or  
c. where an Agency employee, if he had been acting in a like capacity, 

otherwise would be acting within the scope of that employment. 
 
Whenever Agency owes a duty hereunder to indemnify RGS, its employees or 
agents, Agency further agrees to pay RGS a reasonable fee for all time spent by any 
RGS employee, or spent by any person who has performed work pursuant to this 
Agreement, for the purpose of preparing for or testifying in any suit, action, or legal 
proceeding in connection with the services the assigned employee has provided 
under this Agreement. 
 

17.3 Obligations and indemnity related to CalPERS. 
 
a. RGS and Agency acknowledge and agree that, if Agency contracts with 

CalPERS for retirement benefits, it is possible that CalPERS may determine 
that RGS employees providing services pursuant to this Agreement are 
common-law employees of Agency and should be enrolled in CalPERS as 
employees of Agency, which possibility is the same as if Agency were 
contracting with a private consulting firm. Pursuant to Section 5.1 of this 
Agreement, Agency has an obligation to treat all persons working for or 
under the direction of RGS as agents and employees of RGS, and not as 
agents or employees of Agency. 
 

b. In the event that CalPERS initiates an audit of Agency that includes 
examination of whether individuals providing services to Agency are 
Agency’s common-law employees, Agency shall inform RGS within five days 
and share all communications and documents from CalPERS that it may 
legally share. Agency and RGS shall cooperate to determine the manner of 
responding to the inquiry and what, if any, documents to provide. Agency 
agrees not to ask RGS employees for personally identifying information 
 



 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services   Page 10 of 15 
Between the the Town of Colma and Regional Government Services Authority September 13, 2017 
 

c. In the event that CalPERS’ preliminary determination is that one or more 
RGS employees are common-law employees of Agency, Agency shall 
promptly inform RGS and share all communications and documents from 
CalPERS that it may legally share. RGS and Agency shall cooperate in 
determining how to respond to the direction from CalPERS in its 
preliminary determination, including but not limited to whether and how 
to make any corrections described in the preliminary determination. 
 

d. RGS and Agency each reserves the right to file an administrative appeal of 
a CalPERS determination that an RGS employee is a common-law employee 
of Agency and should be enrolled in CalPERS as an employee of Agency and 
to challenge such a decision in court. Agency assigns its right to file an 
administrative appeal of such a CalPERS determination, if Agency does not 
itself file an administrative appeal. In the event that either RGS or Agency 
files an administrative appeal or court challenge of such a CalPERS 
determination, RGS and Agency each agree to cooperate with each other in 
pursuit of the action. 
 

e. Notwithstanding Section 17.1 of this Agreement, RGS and Agency shall each 
bear their own costs in responding to a CalPERS investigation, including 
but not limited to costs of an administrative appeal or court challenge. In 
the event that (1) CalPERS determines that an RGS employee is a common-
law employee of Agency and should be enrolled as an employee of Agency; 
(2) CalPERS determines that a payment is required to enroll the employee 
as an employee of Agency; and (3) neither RGS nor Agency challenges those 
determinations or the payment is upheld in a final administrative appeal or 
court decision, RGS’ obligation for any payments to Agency for CalPERS 
benefits shall be limited to 50% of the employer’s share of those payments 
that Agency may be required to pay.    

 
Section 18. Notices.  All notices required by this Agreement shall be given to Agency and RGS in 
writing, by first class mail, postage prepaid, or by email transmission addressed as follows: 

 
Agency: Town of Colma 
 City Manager 
 1198 El Camino Real 
 Colma, CA 94014  
 E-Mail: CityManager@colma.ca.gov 
  
 
RGS: Regional Government Services Authority  
 P. O. Box 1350 
 Carmel Valley, CA  93924 
 Email: contracts@rgs.ca.gov 

 
Notice by email transmission shall be deemed given upon verification of receipt if received before 5:00 
p.m. on a regular business day or else on the next business day. 
 
 
 



 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services   Page 11 of 15 
Between the the Town of Colma and Regional Government Services Authority September 13, 2017 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed on the date 
first written by their respective officers duly authorized on their behalf. 
 
 
DATED: __________, 2017 Agency 
 
 

By: __________________________________ 
 William C. Norton, Interim City Manager 
  
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
DATED: __________, 2017 By:  _____ 
 Christopher Diaz, City Attorney 
 
 
DATED: __________, 2017 Regional Government Services Authority 
 
 
 By:   
 Richard H. Averett, Executive Director 
 
  



 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services   Page 12 of 15 
Between the the Town of Colma and Regional Government Services Authority September 13, 2017 
 

 
Exhibit A 

 
Compensation. 
1. Fees.  Agency agrees to pay to RGS the hourly rates set forth in the tables below for each RGS 

employee providing services to Agency, which are based in part on RGS’ full cost of 
compensation and support for the RGS employee(s) providing the services herein described. 
 
RGS and Agency acknowledge and agree that compensation paid by Agency to RGS under this 
Agreement is based upon RGS’ costs of providing the services required hereunder, including 
salaries and benefits of employees.  The parties further agree that compensation hereunder is 
intended to include the costs of contributions to any pensions and/or annuities for which RGS 
may be obligated for its employees or may otherwise be contractually obligated. 
 
Consequently, the parties agree that adjustments to the hourly rate shown below for “RGS Staff” 
will be made for changes to the salary and/or benefits costs provided by RGS to such employee.  
On July 1 of each year, RGS’ hourly bill rates will be adjusted by the percentage change in the 
Employment Cost Index (total compensation - not seasonally adjusted) for state and local 
government workers (“ECI”) from December of the prior year to December of the current year.  
Irrespective of the movement of the ECI, RGS will not adjust its hourly rates downward; nor will 
RGS adjust its hourly rates upward in excess of a two and one-half percentage (2.5%) change 
excepting instances where there was no increase in the prior year’s hourly rates.  In that event, 
RGS will adjust its hourly rates by the full percentage change in the ECI from March of the prior 
year to March of the current year.  
 
Annually RGS Lead Advisor shall work with Agency Staff to estimate the services needed in the 
upcoming fiscal year for budgeting purposes.  Agency shall be billed based on actual service 
hours performed.  
 
 

2. Reimbursement of RGS’ Administrative Cost.  Agency shall reimburse RGS for overhead 
as part of the hourly rate specified below, and direct external costs.  Support overhead costs are 
those expenses necessary to administering this Agreement, and are included in the hourly rate.  
Direct external costs, including such expenses as travel or other costs incurred for the exclusive 
benefit of the Agency, will be invoiced to Agency when received and without mark-up.  These 
external costs will be due upon receipt. 

 
 

3. Terms of Payment.  RGS shall submit invoices monthly for the prior month’s services.  
Invoices shall be sent approximately 10 days after the end of the month for which services were 
performed and are due and shall be delinquent if not paid within 30 days of receipt.  Delinquent 
payments will be subject to a late payment carrying charge computed at a periodic rate of one-
half of one percent per month, which is an annual percentage rate of six percent, which will be 
applied to any unpaid balance owed commencing 7 days after the payment due date.  
Additionally, in the event the Agency fails to pay any undisputed amounts due to RGS within 15 
days after payment due date, then Agency agrees that RGS shall have the right to consider said 
default a total breach of this Agreement and the duties of RGS under this Agreement may be 
terminated by RGS upon 5 working days’ advance written notice. 
 
 



 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services   Page 13 of 15 
Between the the Town of Colma and Regional Government Services Authority September 13, 2017 
 

Payment Address.  All payments due RGS shall be paid to: 
Regional Government Services Authority 
PO Box 1350 
Carmel Valley, CA 93924 
 

[EXHIBIT A CONTINUES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 
  



 

Agreement for Management and Administrative Services   Page 14 of 15 
Between the the Town of Colma and Regional Government Services Authority September 13, 2017 
 

AGENCY CONTACTS 
 
Agency Billing Contact.  Invoices are sent electronically only.  Please provide the contact person to 
whom invoices should be sent: 
 

NAME EMAIL 
Attention: Accounts Payable 

(Current Name is Jeanne O’Brien) 
ap@colma.ca.gov 

 
 
Agency Insurance Contact.  Please provide the contact person to whom the certificate of coverage 
should be sent: 

NAME ADDRESS 
Attention Records 1198 El Camino Real 

Colma, CA 94014 
 

RGS STAFF 
 

CLASSIFICATION HOURLY RATE* 
Senior Advisor $115 to $145 

Program Advisor $105 to $125 
Project Advisor $95 to $110 

Project Coordinator $65 to $80 
  

 
The initial hourly rate will be $131 for the assigned Senior Advisor. 
 
*The Hourly Rate does not include direct external costs which will be invoiced to Agency with no 
markup. Prior to each June 30th RGS shall provide City Manager with an estimate of the Annual 
Fiscal Year costs, for budget purposes. 
 
  



Agreement for Management and Administrative Services  Page 15 of 15 
Between the the Town of Colma and Regional Government Services Authority September 13, 2017 

Exhibit B 

Scope of Services.  RGS shall assign an RGS employee or employees to perform the functions as 
described below: 

• Perform the functions as assigned by the RGS lead advisor.
• Be reasonably available to perform the services during the normal work week.
• Meet regularly and as often as necessary for the purpose of consulting about the scope of work

performed with the appropriate Agency project manager and with the RGS lead.
• Perform other duties as are consistent with the services described herein and approved by the

RGS lead advisor.
• Perform related work as required as approved by the RGS lead advisor.
• Such employee may perform services at Agency offices available or at other locations.
• Specific to Town of Colma Financial Services:

o Assess and evaluate the municipal financial operations, providing recommendations for a
well-functioning program. 

o Oversee the Budget process, identifying and recommending areas in which to change
o Assess and coordinate audit and financial reporting, making recommendations for

modification 
o Draft a variety of recommendations related to financial reports and activities.
o And, provide other advisory services, as requested by the Town.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report re Fourth Quarter 2015-2016 Financial Report  Page 1 of 2 
[8/24/2016] 

STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: William C. Norton, Interim City Manager; and 

Paul S. Rankin, Contract Financial Services Advisor 

MEETING DATE: September 13, 2017 

SUBJECT: Preliminary Fourth Quarter Financial Report (April 2017 – June 2017) 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council: 

RECEIVE AND FILE THE FOURTH QUARTER (APRIL 2017 – JUNE 2017) FINANCIAL 
REPORT AND DIRECT STAFF TO POST A COPY THE TOWN WEBSITE  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In order to provide the City Council and the public with periodic updates on the Town Finances, 
Staff prepared a Quarterly Report. The focus of the information is on the General Fund. This 
report compares the current year performance to the amended Budget as well as providing a 
comparison to the previous year. This report is considered preliminary as there will be year-end 
accruals and audit entries that will impact the final numbers.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

Estimated year-end results are that actual revenue will exceed the amount budgeted and 
expenditures will be less than the amount budgeted. This results in a positive impact to the 
Town General Fund reserves. It has been recommended that additional analysis be completed 
and a plan developed to use reserves to fund liabilities. This will be presented to the City 
Council in the future. The information will address the potential use of reserves to reduce 
financial liabilities. (Liabilities may include Pension, OPEB, Facility/Infrastructure replacement, 
etc.)   

ANALYSIS 

Staff reviewed the revenue and expenditures recorded during the Fiscal Year. The reported 
results are subject to change as final accruals and adjustments are made in preparation for the 
annual financial audit. Also, since this report represents the fourth quarter comparisons are 
provided to the audited results of the previous fiscal year as well as the current year budget.  

The Quarterly Report (Attachment A) summarizes the results at a high level and also discusses 
the reasons for any significant deviations. 

Item #7



Staff Report re Fourth Quarter 2015-2016 Financial Report  Page 2 of 2 
[8/24/2016] 

For Fiscal Year 2016-17 the General Fund includes budgeted revenue of approximately $17.0 
million and expenditures totaling $14.3 million. In addition the General Fund has net budgeted 
transfers to other funds totaling approximately $5.8 million.  

Overall, General Fund revenue is projected to exceed the Budget estimate by 6.2%, while 
expenditures in the General Fund are estimated to be approximately 6.6% below the authorized 
Budget. The final actual results will be presented with the audited financial statements later this 
year. The positive impact on the General Fund will be incorporated in future discussions with 
the City Council regarding prudent planning to address current unfunded liabilities. Additional 
details are described in Attachment A.  

Reasons For the Recommended Action 
Acceptance of the report provides disclosure of current year revenue and expenditure trends.  

COUNCIL ADOPTED VALUES 
 
The Staff recommendation is consistent with the Council adopted values of: 

• Responsibility: Making decisions after prudent consideration of their financial impact, 
taking into account the long-term financial needs of the agency, especially its financial 
stability. 

• Fairness: Support the public’s right to know and promote meaningful public 
involvement. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff is requesting that the City Council receive and file the report and direct Staff to post a 
copy to the Town website.  

 
ATTACHMENT 
 

A. Preliminary Quarterly Financial Report – Fourth Quarter 2016-2017 (April 2017–June 
2017) 

 



PRELIMINARY  
QUARTERLY FINANCIAL REPORT 

FOURTH QUARTER 2016-2017 
(April 1, 2017 – June 30, 2017) 

Quarterly Financial Report (Qtr 4 FY 2016/2017) Page 1 of 5 

This report provides an overview and summarized information on the Town Finances. This is a 
preliminary report prepared prior to the completion of the annual financial audit and end of year 
accruals. The final year-end accruals will be reported as part of the annual audit and financial 
statements.  

For the Town of Colma, the General Fund represents the most significant portion of the annual 
revenue and expenditures. Therefore, the focus of the report will be on the performance of the 
General Fund, unless otherwise noted. The format of the report compares data from the Prior Year 
actual results to the Current Year Budget / Quarterly Actual. Since this report covers the final quarter 
the amount reported for the previous year are the total as reported in the Audited Financial 
Statements. The current year amounts presented provide preliminary information and a comparison 
to the amended budget, prior to any final adjustments.  

 GENERAL FUND FINANCIAL POSITION 

In Fiscal Year 2016-2017 the General Fund includes budgeted revenue of approximately $17.0 million 
and budgeted expenditures of $13.3 million. In addition the General Fund has net budgeted transfers 
to other funds of approximately $5.8 million. A transfer represents resources in one fund that are 
transferred to another fund. The transfers in the current year budget are for Capital Project funding 
and Debt Service. This includes a Transfer for the Town Hall Construction. These funds will remain in 
the CIP Fund until expended for the project.  

Total General Fund Revenue for the year is estimated to exceed budge estimate and expenditures 
prior to final accruals are less than budgeted. Overall net “transfers” are nearly the same amount as 
the budget. As presented during the 2017-18 budget deliberations the combination of all of these 
factors will have a positive impact on General Fund Reserves at year end. It has been recommended 
that additional analysis be completed and a plan developed to use reserves to fund liabilities. This will 
be presented to the City Council in the future. The information will address use of reserves to reduce 
financial liabilities. (Liabilities may include Pension, OPEB, Facility/Infrastructure replacement, etc.)  

Attachment A



 
Quarterly Financial Report (Qtr 4 FY 2015/2016)  Page 2 of 5 
 

MAJOR GENERAL FUND REVENUE SOURCES 

As shown below, over 90 percent of the budgeted General Fund Revenues are concentrated in four 
revenue types. The concentration increased slightly from the prior Fiscal Year to now represent 
92.8% of the total General Fund Revenue. 

 

As shown in the previous table three of the four Major General Fund revenue sources exceeded the 
amount included in the adopted budget. Overall the Budget for the four revenue types exceeded the 
budget by $709,783. A narrative explanation is provided below for key deviations. 

• Sales Tax exceeded the budget by approximately $452,00. This also continued a trend of 
increased sales tax over the previous year (Amount was approximately $351,000 more than 
prior year). As discussed in earlier reports vehicle sales continued to be strong throughout the 
year. The Town also had positive growth in sales tax allocated from the County pool for on-
line and other allocated sales. 

• Cardroom taxes can fluctuate from year to year based on a variety of factors. The amount 
collected was $238,510 more than the Budget. This also continued a trend of increased tax 
over the previous year (Amount was approximately $239,000 more than the previous year). 
This revenue has been increasing, however, it still remains below the $4.7 million collected in 
Fiscal Year 2013-14. 

• Property taxes were just slightly below the amount budgeted. Compared to the previous year 
this revenue had a 2% increase largely attributable to new assessed values. 

• Sewer Fees are collected on the Property Tax bill and can vary from the budget based on the 
amount levied. The Town has offset a portion of the cost of sewer services with general fund 
monies covering some expenses as part of a water conservation program. Properties 
conserving water receive a discount in the amount placed on the property tax bill.  

• Actual Sewer costs are approximately 10% more than the funds collected from users. The 
overall expenditures for sewer expenses as discussed below. 

 

 

 



 
Quarterly Financial Report (Qtr 4 FY 2015/2016)  Page 3 of 5 
 

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 

Expenditures compared to Budget in the General Fund are expected to be $942,560 below the 
amended budget. Major contributing factors are discussed in the summary section following the 
Table.  

It is worth explaining the impact of a one-time transaction occurring in the previous fiscal year. When 
compared to the prior year performance, General Fund expenditures for Fiscal Year 2017-18 were just 
slightly less than the prior year (approximately $88,000 lower in the current year). In the previous 
year the City Council approved establishing a fleet replacement fund. This action increased the 
authorized Fiscal Year 2015-16 Budget by approximately $776,000 as a one-time expense in the 
General Fund, which impacts the year to year comparison. 

 

• Expenditures overall in Fiscal Year 2017-18 were 6.6 percent below the authorized budget. 
• All except one of the Program Areas used as part of the quarterly reporting were below the 

budget.  
• In the Audited Financial Statements a single category of Public Works is presented combining 

the reporting of Engineering/Building / Planning; Public Works Maintenance; and Facility 
Maintenance. If this report format was used above there would not be any Program Area over 
budget.  

• The overage that occurred was largely contract expense associated with development 
applications and was offset by additional revenue from permits and plan checking which 
exceeded the budget estimates.  

• General Government expenditures were approximately $378,000 less in Fiscal Year 2016-17 
compared to Fiscal Year 2015-16. This reflects a difference in how OPEB / Retiree Medical 
expenses were recorded. In FY 2015-16 the full amount was recorded in General Government. 
In the current year expenses are allocated to all operating departments.  

• General Government budgetary savings in the current year were primarily due to lower than 
budgeted insurance expenses, and legal expenses.  

• Police expenditures increased by approximately $381,000 less than the Budget. This was 
primarily due to lower than expected salary and benefits due to turnover/vacancies and lower 
than budgeted use of the overtime contingency. 



 
Quarterly Financial Report (Qtr 4 FY 2015/2016)  Page 4 of 5 
 

• Public Works Maintenance was approximately $190,000 below the budget. This was due to 
increase use of Gas Tax monies for street repair, lower sewer expenses than budgeted, and 
contract maintenance expenditures that were less than the budget. 

• The year to year comparison of Public Works Maintenance costs is also skewed by one-time 
charges. A one –time expense of approximately $310,000 occurred in Fiscal Year 2015-16 for 
the establishment of a Fleet Replacement Fund.  

• Recreation Program expenses were approximately $19,000 below the budget or 1.9%.  No 
single line item contributed to the savings. 

• Facility Maintenance expenditures were approximately $117,000 below the budget.  The 
budgetary savings varied by facility.  The largest contributing factors were utility savings, and 
lower than expected one-time facility repair needs.  

The following table also displays the General Fund expenses organized by expenditure type. 

 

Overall the expenditures for the year are expected to trend within the adopted budget. Information 
related to significant deviations are discussed below:    

• As shown in the previous table salaries and benefits are the most significant portion of General 
Fund expenditures. The difference in spending from FY 2015-16 to Fiscal Year 2016-17 shows 
an increase of approximately $894,000. Factors which contributed to this include increased 
salaries including retroactive salary adjustments negotiated in Fiscal Year 2016-17 and 
increased benefit costs including pension rate increases. 

• The Operating Supplies compared to the prior year are substantially less due to the 
establishment of the Fleet Replacement Fund in Fiscal Year 2015-16.  The $776,000 in 
charges made to individual departments are included in this category.  

• Contract services include a variety of professional as well as service contracts associated with 
providing Town services. The expenditures have been relatively consistent over the last two 
years. 

• Sewer Service costs went down based on contract charges for wastewater treatment. 
• Insurance and related claims costs were less in Fiscal Year 2016-17 than the prior year. 

 
 



 
Quarterly Financial Report (Qtr 4 FY 2015/2016)  Page 5 of 5 
 

HIGH LEVEL SUMMARY – ALL FUNDS 

The Table below provides a summary of “All Funds” for the four quarters ending June 30, 2017. This 
report highlights in summary fashion key indicators of the Town Financial performance. As mentioned 
earlier the General Fund is the most significant to the operations of the Town, however, it is also 
appropriate to consider the other sources of funding. As shown the balance held in Capital Project 
Funds is approximately $15.3 million and includes additional funds transferred for the Town Hall 
Project. A total of $1.7 million remains in Trust Funds as funding for retiree liabilities. 

 

ADDITIONAL DETAILS AND INFORMATION 

This format is prepared by the Finance Department to highlight in summary fashion key indicators of 
the Town Financial performance. Additional details are available on the Town website 
www.colma.ca.gov.   



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report re Semi-Annual Report of Investments (Q3 & Q4)  Page 1 of 5 
Rev2 9.6.2017 

STAFF REPORT 

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  William C. Norton, Interim City Manager / Town Treasurer 

MEETING DATE: September 13, 2017 

SUBJECT: Semi-Annual Report of Investment Holdings 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council approve a: 

MOTION TO RECEIVE AND FILE THE SEMI-ANNUAL REPORT OF INVESTMENT 
HOLDINGS, WHICH IS PRESENTED FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

As part of day to day operations the Town maintains cash balances which can be invested to 
provide additional revenue. The City Manager has been designated by City Council Resolution as 
the Treasurer. The adopted Investment policy provides for the Treasurer to make periodic 
reports of balances held as investments. The majority of the Town investments are placed in 
public agency investment pools, which invest funds for more than one public agency. The 
reported investments are in compliance with the Town Investment policy and are appropriately 
structured to allow the Town to meet its expenditure requirements for the next six months. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The adopted FY 2016-2017 Budget projected total interest revenue (excluding Trust Funds) to 
be $141,300 for all funds. The actual interest recorded was $229,652 and 97% of that amount 
was recorded in the General Fund.  

BACKGROUND 

As stated in the adopted Town Investment policy, the Treasurer shall prepare a report to the 
City Council not less than semi-annually. The policy provides that the report is to be made 
available within 60 days following June 30th. Further the policy requires that the semi-annual 
report shall be presented at a subsequent regularly scheduled City Council Meeting. The 
report is to include an overview of the investment activity including: a monthly listing of 
investment transactions if any; a Report the beginning and ending balance by quarter; 
Provide a separate breakdown of the quarterly balance based on the Investment Pool (LAIF, 
SMCIF, etc.); Provide net Deposits and Withdrawals for the period; Identify total interest for 
the quarter; and Provide the interest rates earned including a cumulative weighted average. 
This report provides the required information, including additional narrative explanations.  

Item #8



Staff Report re Semi-Annual Report of Investments (Q3 & Q4)  Page 2 of 5 
Rev2 9.6.2017 

ANALYSIS 

Portfolio Overview  

As shown below, during the period January 2017 – June 2017 (quarters 3 and 4) of Fiscal Year 
2016-2017 the Town Portfolio averaged $34.3 million with an ending balance of $37.4 million. 
This was an increase from the $31.3 million average reported in the first two quarters. The 
amount invested each quarter fluctuated based on cash flow.  

TOWN OF COLMA SUMMARY OF PORTFOLIO 
SEMI-ANNUAL REPORT (Quarters 3 & 4 - January - June 2017) 

FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 
(Prepared September 1, 2017) 

     TOWN OF COLMA FUNDS 
    

 
Quarter 3 

 
Quarter 4 

 
 

3/31/2017 
 

6/30/2017 
 Cash In Bank $10,889,033.04  

 
$7,619,187.56  

 
     Public Agency Investment 
Pools (Schedule A) $22,479,575.88   $27,540,920.42   
TOTAL PORTFOLIO CASH & 
INVESTMENTS $33,368,608.92   $35,160,107.98   

     
     TRUSTEE FUNDS - Bank of New York Mellon 

   Town Hall Remodel Project Certificate of Participation (COP) 
 

     
     
 

Quarter 3 
 

Quarter 4 
 

 
3/31/2017 

 
6/30/2017 

 Cash With Trustee $0.00  
 

$0.00  
 Money Market Funds $85.65  

 
$1,006.85  

 Public Agency Investment 
Pool (LAIF) $1,788,153.29   $1,728,609.07   
TOTAL COP FUNDS $1,788,238.94   $1,729,615.92   

 

The quarterly balance at the end of the third quarter was $33.3 million and had increased to 
$35.1 million by the end of the fourth quarter June 30, 2017. The report includes balances held 
in First National Bank as well as Government Agency Investment pools. 

Included above, is a summary of funds obtained as part of the Town Hall Renovation Certificate 
of Participation Financing.  These funds held by the Trustee would typically not be reported as 
part of the Town Portfolio. The investment of these funds is subject to the financing 
documents. The majority of the funds are held in the State Local Agency Investment Fund 
(LAIF) and subject to restrictions on the timing of withdrawals. The Trustee Bank (Bank of New 



Staff Report re Semi-Annual Report of Investments (Q3 & Q4)  Page 3 of 5 
Rev2 9.6.2017 

York Mellon) processes withdrawals based on instructions from the Town. These funds will be 
expended as construction proceeds on the project and are shown to provide a more complete 
disclosure.  

Transaction Activity within Investment Pools 

The Town has funds invested in two government agency investment pools. Local Agency 
Investment Fund (LAIF) is managed by the State Treasurer and accepts deposits from over 
2,400 agencies throughout the State and has a portfolio in excess of $22.8 billion. These funds 
are relatively liquid with a limit of fifteen transactions per month. The San Mateo County 
Investment Fund is a similar arrangement managed by the San Mateo County Treasurer. As of 
June 30, 2017 the SMCIF had approximately $4.8 billion invested. This includes County funds as 
well as cities, school districts, and other special districts. The County pool has additional 
limitations on transactions.  

Included below is the Town balance in each of the investment pools at the beginning and end 
of each quarter including accrued interest. The net withdrawals and deposits for each quarter 
are also presented as background on the overall level of transactions. In order to provide 
additional diversity in the portfolio and to reduce the amount held in the commercial bank 
account, $5 million was deposited in LAIF. All other investment transactions in the investment 
pools were limited to the posting of quarterly accrued interest. 

SEMI ANNUAL REPORT BALANCES FOR QUARTERS 3&4 (Jan. - June 2017) 
TOWN OF COLMA REPORT OF INVESTED FUNDS FISCAL YEAR 2016-17 

STATE TREASURER - LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND (LAIF) and 
SAN MATEO COUNTY INVESTMENT FUND 

(Prepared September 1, 2017) 

       
       
QUARTER 3:                  
JAN 2017 - March 2017 

 

LAIF 

 

SMCIF 

 

TOTAL 

Beginning Balance 
 

$3,770,536.51 
 

$18,656,390.15 
 

$22,426,926.66 
Purchases / Deposits  

 
                     -    

 
                       -    

 
                       -    

Withdrawals 
 

                     -    
 

                       -    
 

                       -    
Interest Posted 

 
7,213.57  

 
45,435.65  

 
52,649.22  

Ending Balance 
 

$3,777,750.08  
 

$18,701,825.80  
 

$22,479,575.88 

       QUARTER 4:                     
APRIL 2017 - JUNE 
2017 

      Beginning Balance 
 

$3,777,750.08 
 

$18,701,825.80 
 

$22,479,575.88 
Purchases / Deposits  

 
5,000,000.00  

 
                       -    

 
5,000,000.00  

Withdrawals 
 

                     -    
 

                       -    
 

                       -    
Interest Posted 

 
11,458.77  

 
49,885.77  

 
61,344.54  

Ending Balance 
 

$8,789,208.85  
 

$18,751,711.57  
 

$27,540,920.42 



Staff Report re Semi-Annual Report of Investments (Q3 & Q4)  Page 4 of 5 
Rev2 9.6.2017 

Earnings / Distribution of Portfolio  

Outlined below is information related to the distribution of investments at the end of each 
quarter (Bank; compared to LAIF; compared To SMCIF). The average over the two quarters 
was: 18% invested in LAIF, 27% in First National Bank, and 55% in the SMCIF. Placing idle 
funds in more than one investment provides a level of diversity for the overall portfolio.  

SEMI ANNUAL INTEREST RATES FOR QUARTERS 3 & 4 (Jan. - June 2017) 
TOWN OF COLMA FISCAL YEAR 2017 

PORTFOLIO EARNINGS QUARTER 3 & QUARTER 4 
(Prepared September 1, 2017) 

        
   

QUARTER 3 
 

QUARTER 4 

   

Quarter 3       
As of 

3/31/2017 
% of 

Portfolio 
 

Quarter 4           
As of 

6/30/2017 
% of 

Portfolio 
Balance(s) 

       

 

BANK 
BALANCE $10,889,033.04  32.6% 

 
$7,619,187.56  21.7% 

 
LAIF 

 
$3,777,750.08  11.3% 

 
$8,789,208.85  25.0% 

 
SMCIF 

 
$18,701,825.80  56.0% 

 
$18,751,711.57  53.3% 

TOTAL 
 

$33,368,608.92  
  

$35,160,107.98  
 

        Interest 
Rates 

       

 

BANK 
BALANCE 0.250% 

  
0.250% 

 
 

LAIF 
 

0.780% 
  

0.920% 
 

 
SMCIF 

 
1.024% 

  
1.113% 

 
        Weighted Average 

 
0.744% 

  
0.878% 

  

The information presented above also outlines the interest earnings for the investments held by 
the Town. Overall interest rates are rising as the Federal regulators are increasing interest 
rates. Because the interest rates for the first two quarters were less, the weighted average 
earnings for the full Fiscal Year were approximately 0.743%. The total revenue recorded for the 
Fiscal Year ($229,652) was more than budgeted due to increasing interest rates and larger 
balances available for investment. The timing of capital project expenditures has resulted in 
larger balances available for investment than was assumed in the budget projection. 

As reported earlier, in addition to the Town investments the COP Project Fund is invested by the 
Trustee. These funds earned a total of $23,734 during the year. Interest earnings in this fund 
will be added to the balance available for use on the project.  

In accordance with the adopted policy the investment of public funds emphasizes safety, 
liquidity, and then yield. The public Agency pools are structured to align with these goals. 



Staff Report re Semi-Annual Report of Investments (Q3 & Q4)  Page 5 of 5 
Rev2 9.6.2017 

Reasons For the Recommended Action 

Receipt of this report complies with the adopted Investment Policy.  

Values 

The Staff recommendation is consistent with the Council adopted values of: 

• Responsibility: Making decisions after prudent consideration of their financial impact, 
taking into account the long-term financial needs of the agency, especially its financial 
stability. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the City Council receive and file the report.  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Capital Improvement Plan Funding Adjustments  Page 1 of 4 
[8/18/2017] 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Brad Donohue, Contract Public Works Director 

VIA:   William C. Norton, Interim City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 13, 2017 

SUBJECT: Capital Improvement Plan Funding Adjustments 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the City Council adopt: 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CLOSE-OUT OF CERTAIN PROJECTS AND 
REDISTRIBUTION OF CERTAIN INACTIVE PROJECT BALANCES INCLUDING AN 
ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION OF $150,000 IN FISCAL YEAR 2017-18 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The adopted Fiscal Year 2017-18 Budget includes several projects accounted for as part of the 
Capital Improvement Program. The Capital Project Fund (#31) includes funds transferred in 
prior years based on a project listing. Four projects are complete and the City Council will be 
requested to authorize the residual funds to be returned to the General Fund. In addition Staff 
have identified projects that are now on hold and do not have a set timeline to be undertaken. 
Therefore, it is proposed that a portion of the available inactive funds be reallocated to offset 
additional costs associated with the Serramonte Beautification Project. These clean-up items will 
facilitate the preparation of a new comprehensive 5 Year Capital Improvement Plan, to be 
presented later this year. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

A total of $29,499.24, is proposed to be returned to the General Fund for future appropriations 
by the City Council. The redistribution of $150,000 from inactive projects to the Serramonte 
Beautification Project will allow the project to fully funded in the current year. At a future date 
Staff will present an updated Capital Improvement Program. 

BACKGROUND 

As part of the Annual Budget the City Council has authorized appropriations towards Capital 
Projects. The funding sources are varied and include: General Fund monies transferred to the 
Capital Fund (#31); Special Revenue Funds such as Measure A Transportation Funds and other 
grants; Proceeds from Debt Issued For Town Hall (Fund #33); and Internal Service Funds for 
Fleet Replacement (#61). The City Council has the most discretion over the General Funds that 

Item #9



Capital Improvement Plan Funding Adjustments  Page 2 of 4 
[8/18/2017] 

are transferred for Capital Projects to the Capital Project Fund. 

It is appropriate for the City Council to periodically designate closed projects and direct Staff to 
account for any residual funds. Since Fund 31 is comprised of contributions from the General 
Fund the close-out of the projects will return unused funds to the General Fund.  

In addition to the completed projects it is appropriate to consider funds allocated for projects 
that may be in a “On-Hold” status and consider transferring balances to active projects or 
returning funds for future appropriation.  

These administrative adjustment will facilitate the future presentation of a new 5 Year Capital 
Improvement Plan, which will be presented based on current funding projections and City 
Council priorities.    

ANALYSIS 

Attached to this report as background is the Capital Project section from the Fiscal Year 
2017/18 Budget. The following projects in Fund #31 Capital Projects are recommended for 
closure and the remaining balances returned to the General Fund: 

Capital Project Fund (#31) Proposed Closed Projects As of 6/30/2017 

Project Original 
Budget 

Estimated 
Final Cost 

Excess $ 
Amount to 

General Fund 
#950 Painting Exterior Police 
Facility 

$ 50,000.00 $ 42,500.00 $  7,500.00 

#954 Corporation Yard 
Improvements 

$ 75,000.00 $ 67,899.85 $  7,100.15 

#986 FY 2017 Technology 
Upgrades 

$ 30,000.00 $ 29,985.48 $    14.52 

#987 Fleet & Equipment 
(Accounting excludes sweeper 
funded by Measure M Grant 
$169,205) 

$ 90,000.00 $ 75,115.43 $ 14,884.57 

TOTAL $245,000.00 $215,500.76 $ 29,499.24 

The total costs are shown as estimated pending any final adjustments required as part of year-
end entries. The Fleet Replacement project also includes an amount funded from the Internal 
Service Fund for Fleet Replacement (Fund #61), which is excluded from the presentation 
above. All unspent Fund #61 amounts will be retained in that fund for future fleet 
replacements.  



Capital Improvement Plan Funding Adjustments  Page 3 of 4 
[8/18/2017] 

Recommended Transfers Between On-Hold Projects 

As identified in the Attachment there are several projects that are currently in an “On Hold” 
status. At the same time the Town now has actual proposed costs for study and master plan for 
Serramonte Blvd Project #913. The updated estimated cost for these studies and a contingency 
is $400,000, while a total of $250,000 has been appropriated in Fiscal Year 2017-18 for this 
project. One of the reasons for the increased cost is a change in the scope of the project. The 
scope has been expanded to encompass Collins Avenue, and a portion of Junipero Serra 
Boulevard. 

In order to proceed as planned in the Adopted 2017-18 Budget with the Serramonte Project, an 
additional appropriation is proposed to be funded from on-hold projects as shown below. 

TRANSFERS FROM “ON-HOLD” PROJECTS TO #913 

Project 

Fiscal Year 
2017/18 
Budget 

Reserves / 
Future 

Funding 

Adopted 
Budget 

Plus 
Transfers 

#913 Serramonte Blvd 
Beautification Project 
(Includes Collins Ave. 
Scope) 
Transfer From #905 
Transfer From #956 

$ 250,000 0 $ 250,000 

50,000 
100,000 

#905 Collins Avenue 
Improvements 

0 $ 50,000 

#956 Lawndale Blvd. 
Landscape Improvements 

$ 100,000 

TOTAL $ 250,000 $ 150,000 $ 400,000 

Based on updated estimates of the costs for the Serramonte / Collins studies, Staff recommends 
the transfer of the $50,000 from Project #905 to Project #913 Serramonte Boulevard and a 
transfer of the $100,000 allocation to Project 956 Lawndale Landscape Improvements. The 
scope and planning for this project was put on hold during the drought and will require 
additional evaluation as part of the future CIP update. These two allocation redistributions will 
provide the total funding needed for the Serramonte Project. Since the transferred balances 
hare in reserves and have not been appropriated, the City Council will be requested to authorize 
the appropriation of these funds as an amendment to the Fiscal Year 2017-18 Budget. The two 
projects that are transferring the funds will still be evaluated for future programming as part of 
the CIP Update. 

Remaining On-Hold Projects With Funding Allocation To Be Evaluated In CIP Update 

The following table identifies the remaining project allocations that are contained in the current 
Capital Fund.  As part of the updated CIP that will be developed funding, allocations for “On-



Capital Improvement Plan Funding Adjustments  Page 4 of 4 
[8/18/2017] 

Hold” projects will be evaluated in the course of a comprehensive update. 

RESERVE BALANCES REMAINING IN CIP FUND 

Project 
Current 

Allocation / 
Reserve Balance 

#901 Hillside Boulevard Beautification $ 1,068,059 

#934 Colma Creek Channel Repairs $   50,000 

#955 Town-wide Irrigation Enhancement $   25,000 

#992 American Disability Act Transition Plan $  212,000 

TOTAL $ 1,355,059 

As part of preparing the updated comprehensive CIP, Staff will evaluate both projects 
previously identified as well as new needs over a five year period. Staff will also examine 
opportunities to phase projects based on identified funding. In order to broadly capture capital 
project needs for the Town the CIP document will also include an Unfunded Project list.  

REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Tracking of the funding for Capital Projects needs to be updated on a regular basis. These 
changes will be beneficial in planning for the updated CIP.  

COUNCIL ADOPTED VALUES 

The Staff recommendation is consistent with the Council adopted values of: 

• Responsibility: Making decisions after prudent consideration of their financial impact,
taking into account the long-term financial needs of the agency, especially its financial
stability.

• Fairness: Support the public’s right to know and promote meaningful public
involvement.

CONCLUSION 

It is recommended that the Town Council adopt the Resolution authorizing a close-out of 
certain projects and redistribution of certain inactive project balances including an additional 
appropriation of $150,000 in Fiscal Year 2017-18. 

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Resolution Authorizing a Close-Out of Certain Projects and Redistribution of Certain 

Inactive Project Balances Including an Additional Appropriation of $150,000 in Fiscal 
Year 2017-18.  

B. Fiscal Year 2017-18 Budget Excerpt Capital Improvement Plan 



 Res. 2017-##, CIP PROJECT UPDATE (Adopted #/##/2017) Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-## 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CLOSE-OUT OF CERTAIN PROJECTS AND 
REDISTRIBUTION OF CERTAIN INACTIVE PROJECT BALANCES INCLUDING AN 

ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION OF $150,000 IN FISCAL YEAR 2017-18 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve: 

1. Background

(a) The City Council adopted the Fiscal Year 2017-18 Budget on June 14, 2017 with the
adoption of Resolution 2017-31. 

(b) The adopted Budget included a Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and the action taken by 
the City Council included the appropriation of funding for Capital Projects that would incur 
expenditures in Fiscal Year 2017-18.  

(c) The CIP also identified projects which were nearly complete and those projects “on-hold” 
including funding available in the Capital Project Fund #31. 

(d) The Capital Project Fund is comprised of primarily General Fund contributions which are a 
discretionary funding source that can be reallocated based upon the action of the City Council. 

(e) It is appropriate for the Town Financial records to record the close-out of any completed 
projects, and it is proposed that any residual funds be transferred back to the General Fund. 

(f) As described in the Staff Report presented September 13, 2017 updated estimates for 
Project #913 Serramonte Blvd Beautification will require additional funds and it is proposed that 
allocations from two “On-Hold” projects be appropriated by the City Council in Fiscal Year 2017-18 
to fully fund the project .  

(g) These adjustments to the current Capital Improvement Plan will support a comprehensive 
update and development of a new 5 Year Capital Improvement Plan. 

2. Finding

The City Council finds: 
a) That four Capital Projects funded in Fund #31 in Fiscal Year 2016-17 are now complete.

Any unspent residual appropriations for these projects shall be transferred to the General 
Fund, which was the original source of funding.  The projects to be closed are: 

#950 Police Exterior Facility Painting 
#954 Corporation Yard Improvements 
#986 FY 2017 Technology Upgrades 
#987 Fleet & Equipment Replacement 

b) That the City Council hereby authorizes the the transfer of $150,000 from two
“On-Hold” projects to Project #913 Serramonte Blvd Beautification Project (Includes
Collins Ave. Scope).

Attachment A



  
Res. 2017-##, CIP PROJECT UPDATE (Adopted #/##/2017) Page 2 of 2 
 

c) The “On-Hold” Projects that will transfer allocated funds are: Project #905 Collins 
Avenue Improvements ($50,000); and Project #956 Lawndale Blvd. Landscape 
Improvements ($100,000). 
 

d) The City Council herby approves a Budget Adjustment to the adopted Fiscal Year 2017-18 
Budget increasing the appropriation for Project #913 Serramonte Blvd Beautification 
Project (Includes Collins Ave. Scope) from $250,000 to $400,000.  

 
 

Certification of Adoption 
 
I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2017-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the Town of Colma held on September 13, 2017, by the following vote: 
 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

 Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      

Diana Colvin, Vice Mayor      

Joanne del Rosario      

Raquel Gonzalez      

John Irish Goodwin      

Voting Tally      

 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:  ____________________________ 
        Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 
 



Capital 
Improvement

Plan

Attachment B





Capital Improvement Plan FY 2017-18
Overview

             

The Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) has been in place since FY 2013-14 and has been active in 
delivering various improvements and upgrades to the Town’s facilities, infrastructure needs, 
information technologies and other projects. 

Projects are grouped based upon four distinct categories:

1 – Streets, Sidewalks, Bikeways

2 – Sewers & Storm Drains

3 – City Facilities / Long Range Plans

4 – Major Equipment / Fleet

The CIP for FY 2017-18 totals $15.8 million. A significant portion of the planned activity is 
associated with projects initiated in a previous year. The most significant project is the Town 
Hall Renovation project. 

Capital projects are funded from various resources including; General Funds transferred to the 
Capital Improvement Fund (#31) in a previous year; new transfers from the General Fund; 
Grants; and Fleet Replacement Funds. Unexpended general fund monies transferred to the 
Capital Improvement Fund are reported as part of the fund, until a formal action is taken by the 
City Council to close the project and return the funds. In the coming year, a multi-year CIP will 
be developed and certain projects may be closed with the funds either transferred back to the 
General Fund or used to fund new projects. These projects are described on the following 
pages with a status of “ON-HOLD.” 

New appropriations total $2,087,000 allocated among three projects including Mission Road 
Improvements, Roadway Network Plan and Sterling Park Playground Improvements. An 
additional $1,055,000 is funded by two grants and Park in-Lieu fees. A grant of $625,000 from 
the One Bay Area Grant 2 (OBAG 2) will offset costs for the Mission Road Pedestrian/Bicycle 
Improvement project; a grant of $250,000 from the State of California will compensate the 
consultants’ costs for preparing the Systemic Safety Analysis Report; and $180,000 from the 
Town’s Park in-Lieu fees will offset the Sterling Park Playground Improvements.

FY 2017-18 CIP projects are described below.

- 103 -



CIP Overview

TYPE 1 PROJECTS – Streets, Sidewalks, Bikeways

CIP #901 HILLSIDE BOULEVARD BEAUTIFICATION (STATUS: ON HOLD)

No activity will occur for this project in FY 2017-18. Phase I of the three-phase Hillside 
Beautification Project (Hoffman Street to 600 feet south of Serramonte Boulevard) was 
completed in FY 2014-15. The project will be evaluated to determine phasing and potential 
opportunities for grant funding. The costs and estimates will also need to be updated to 
incorporate green infrastructure mandates. A reserve in the Capital Improvement Fund of 
$1,068,059 remains and will be evaluated as part of future CIP planning.  

CIP # 903 MISSION ROAD BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN IMPROVEMENT PROJECT
(STATUS: NEW FY 2017-18)

The Mission Road Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements Project includes implementation of a 
number of safety related improvements for pedestrians, bicyclists and vehicles along Mission 
Road between El Camino Real and Lawndale Boulevard. The project scope includes: relocation 
and reconstruction of the existing curb, gutter, sidewalk, driveway approaches and non-ADA 
compliant ramps; addition of new continuous sidewalk; extension of Class II bicycle lanes in the 
northbound direction; construction of bulbouts and high visibility crosswalks with rectangular 
rapid flashing beacons; installation of energy efficient street lights; and construction of 
landscape planters for drainage and storm water treatment purposes. These improvements will 
address the safety concerns expressed by the community and improve the accessibility of the 
pedestrian and bicycle facilities in compliance with San Mateo County Comprehensive Bicycle 
and Pedestrian Plan. This project also adheres to the Town of Colma’s Circulation Plan, which
consists of Complete Streets and Green Infrastructure program and policies. 

The total project cost to complete the design, construction, and project management is 
estimated at $1,375,000 and will be funded from a variety of sources. The Town has been 
awarded a total grant funding in the amount of $625,000 as part of the One Bay Area Grant 2 
(OBAG 2): $525,000 is from the Total Livable Communities (TLC) program and the remaining 
$100,000 is from the Federal Local Streets and Roads (LSR) program. The Town is also 
allocating $160,000 from local Measure A funds. This project had an original appropriation of 
$50,000 made in a prior Fiscal Year through a transfer from the General Fund. After accounting 
for the grants and Measure A funds, an additional transfer of $540,000 from the General Fund 
is included as part of the FY 2017-18 Budget.

Design of the project is scheduled to begin in early 2018, with anticipated bidding in the later 
part of 2018. Project completion is estimated to in FY 2018-19.  

CIP #905 COLLINS AVENUE IMPROVEMENT STUDY (STATUS: ON-HOLD) 

No activity will occur for this project in FY 2017-18. Significant elements of the Collins Avenue 
Improvement Study will be examined as part of the Serramonte Boulevard / Collins Avenue 
Master Plan Study. (Please see CIP #913 for details.) 

A reserve in the Capital Improvement Fund of $50,000 remains and will be evaluated as part of 
future CIP planning.

- 104 -



CIP Overview

CIP #913 SERRAMONTE BOULEVARD BEAUTIFICATION 
(STATUS: ACTIVITY PLANNED IN FY 2017-18) 

This project will provide a comprehensive review and Master Plan for Serramonte Boulevard as 
well as Collins Avenue. The project includes design of beautification elements as well as a 
Master Plan addressing vehicular traffic improvements, bicycle and pedestrian mobility, safety
improvements and green infrastructure. The plan will provide an economic development
outlook that analyzes the cost of the improvements and the incremental rate of return from 
increased business activities in the study area. The economic development component in the 
plan should also suggest funding and implementation strategies.  

This project has a current reserve of $250,000, which was transferred from the General Fund 
in a previous year.  

The project is currently out for Requests for Proposal. Staff anticipates having an agreement 
for urban designer services in place by July 2017. The project is estimated to take 
approximately one year to complete.  

CIP #956 LAWNDALE BOULEVARD LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS  
(STATUS: ON-HOLD)

The Lawndale Boulevard Landscape Improvements Project was put on hold because of the 
drought. A reserve in the Capital Improvement Fund of $100,000 remains and will be evaluated 
as part of future CIP planning.

CIP #993 ROADWAY NETWORK PLAN (STATUS: NEW FY 2017-18)

The Town of Colma was awarded a grant from the State of California to prepare a Systemic 
Safety Analysis Report (SSARP). The purpose of this grant is to study and identify safety
deficiencies in the Town’s roadway network including pedestrian sidewalks, bike paths, 
crosswalks, accessibility barriers and street lights. The study will review and recommend the 
proper counter measures to correct potential safety issues. State grants awarded under 
the Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) require that the agency demonstrate that 
any grant application includes the correct counter measures. Once completed, the SSARP will 
allow to the Town to be competitive when HSIP or other grant-funding opportunities are made
available.  

The FY 2017-18 Adopted Budget for CIP #993 is for $300,000, consisting of $250,000 funded 
through the State of California’s SSARP Grant funds and a General Fund transfer of $50,000 to 
the Capital Improvement Fund to satisfy the requirement for a local match. 

This project will be completed by March 2018, in time to apply for potential HSIP and other 
grants that may become available in May 2018.

- 105 -



CIP Overview

TYPE 2 PROJECTS – Sewers & Storm Drains

CIP #934 COLMA CREEK CHANNEL REPAIRS (STATUS: ON-HOLD)

Further definition of this project requires discussions with the Colma Creek Flood Control 
District. The potential scope of repairs will require additional funding sources and may be a 
grant opportunity.  

A reserve in the Capital Improvement Fund of $50,000 remains and will be evaluated as part of 
future CIP planning.

CIP #971 SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM ASSESSMENT (STATUS: NEAR COMPLETION)  

The FY 2016-17 Amended Budget included a $106,000 appropriation for assessing the Town’s 
sanitary sewer system’s regarding compliance with the State’s permit and the need to evaluate 
the sanitary sewer system and its capacity for future growth. The work includes a system wide 
flow monitoring study including an in-depth data analysis. This report will identify potential 
compliance issues regarding inflow and infiltration by storm water in the sanitary sewer system;
identify areas in need of repair and assess system-wide capacity.  

Approximately $106,000 was previously allocated to the Capital Improvement Fund for this 
work. Until the work is complete, any unspent funds will remain in the Capital Improvement 
Fund.  

It is expected that the work will be completed by Fall 2017. Needed improvements and 
upgrades as well as funding options will need to be considered for future years once the 
analysis has been completed. 

TYPE 3 PROJECTS – City Facilities / Long Range Plans

CIP #944 STERLING PARK PLAYGROUND IMPROVEMENTS
(STATUS: NEW FY 2017-18) 

The Sterling Park Recreation Center was remodeled in 2002. The improvements consisted of a
play structure area with a rubberized play surface, a picnic area and bocce ball court. The 
renovation includes installation of a new rubberized play surface and expansion of the 
playground area including the addition of new play structures. The improvements will also 
address accessibility and current safety requirements. In order to accommodate the expanded 
play area, the bocce ball court will be removed. Over the years, the court has not had the level 
of demand or intensity of use as is observed in the play areas.   

The cost of this renovation is estimated to be $287,500. Approximately $163,663 was recently 
collected through the Town’s Park in-Lieu Fees, and is part of the reserved balance in the 
Capital Improvement Fund. The remaining $123,837 will be funded from a transfer from the 
General Fund to the Capital Improvement Fund. 

It is expected that the project will begin in FY 2017-18.  

- 106 -



CIP Overview

CIP #947 TOWN HALL RENOVATION PROJECT (STATUS: UNDERWAY)

This multi-year project involves remodeling Colma’s Town Hall to function as a state-of-the-art 
public facility while respecting its historical elements. The improvements will address 
deficiencies with accessibility as well as energy efficiency.  

Several major components of the project have been completed: excavation and grading work, 
installation of retaining walls and foundations, and the erection of the structural steel frame. 
The remainder of the project includes the remodel of the historic 1941 building the completion 
of the addition, site work and purchase of the interior furniture. 

The funding for the project includes approximately $5.1M of financing issued as a municipal 
lease purchase Certificates of Participation (COPs) and monies previously transferred from the 
General Fund to the Capital Improvement Fund. It is estimated that a total of $12.9 million of 
work remains including professional services, furnishings and equipment. Of this amount, 
approximately $1.7 million is from the COP financing and the remainder from the Capital 
Improvement Fund. No new transfers of General Fund monies are anticipated to be necessary 
as part of the FY 2017-18 Budget.  

The project is estimated to be complete with all phases of work in early 2018.

CIP #950 – PAINTING OF THE POLICE STATION (STATUS: NEARLY COMPLETE) 

Painting of the Colma Police Station was undertaken in FY 2016-17. It is expected that nearly all 
of the funds appropriated will be utilized on the project. Any residual funds upon formal close-
out will be evaluated as part of future CIP planning.

CIP #954 CORPORATION YARD IMPROVEMENTS (STATUS: NEARLY COMPLETE)

The FY 2016-17 Amended Budget included a $75,000 appropriation for Corporation Yard 
Improvements, which consisted of installing an automatic front gate with remote access, 
installing a power rollup door to one of the bays, replacing the aluminum siding on the western 
side of the building and replacing the steel man doors to the various bays within the building.  

It is expected that all funds appropriated will be utilized on the project. Any residual funds upon 
formal close-out will be evaluated as part of future CIP planning.

CIP #955 TOWN WIDE IRRIGATION SYSTEM ENHANCEMENTS (STATUS: ON HOLD)

This project involved a comprehensive review of irrigation system enhancements city-wide.
Given the need to review both landscape and irrigation improvements in light of water reduction 
and drought response planning, the plans for this project will need to be re-evaluated. A 
reserve in the Capital Improvement Fund of $25,000 remains and will be evaluated as part of 
future CIP planning.
  

- 107 -



CIP Overview

CIP #991 GENERAL PLAN UPDATE (STATUS: ACTIVITY PLANNED IN FY 2017-18)

Work on the draft General Plan will resume during the upcoming year. It is expected that the 
activities will include obtaining consultant services to complete the remaining elements in the 
plan, including beginning the Environmental Impact Report (EIR) process.  

A reserve in the Capital Improvement Fund of $203,650 remains from prior year transfers to the 
Capital Improvement Fund. No new funding is expected to be required as part of the FY 2017-
18 Budget.

CIP #992 AMERICAN DISABILITY ACT (ADA) TRANSITION PLAN UPGRADES
(STATUS: ON-HOLD)

The Town has identified various improvements as part of an ADA transition plan. In a previous 
year, funds were transferred from the General Fund to the Capital Improvement Fund for
identified improvements. Some of the required needs have been addressed as part of the 
Town’s facilities budgets or through large-scale projects such as the Town Hall Renovation. 

A reserve in the Capital Improvement Fund of $212,000 remains and will be evaluated as part 
of future CIP planning.

TYPE 4 PROJECTS – Major Equipment / Fleet

CIP #983 ACCESS CONTROL (STATUS: UNDERWAY)

This project includes the design, purchase and installation of equipment to upgrade the current 
access control system that serves the Police Department and a future system in the renovated
Town Hall. The upgrades to the system include access control hardware, video monitoring and 
access systems. This project will be coordinated and installed during the Town Hall Renovation 
Project. The installation of an access control system at Sterling Park and the Colma Community 
Center and networking it into the main access control system was determined to be cost 
prohibitive. Alternative commercial services are being evaluated for those locations. 

The total cost of the project is $335,000, with prior appropriations to a Project Reserve in the 
Capital Improvement Fund of $210,000. An additional $125,000 transfer from the General Fund 
to the Capital Improvement Fund is part of the FY 2017-18 Adopted Budget.  

CIP #985 GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (GIS) (STATUS: UNDERWAY)

This project includes costs associated with developing and deploying mapping and other 
geographic data for use in providing public services. Remaining work involves developing key 
base layer maps and obtaining any additional computer hardware and software to use the 
system. 

A total of $25,105 was previously appropriated in the Capital Improvement Fund. It is expected 
that work will continue in FY 2017-18 and any residual funds upon formal close-out will be 
evaluated as part of future CIP planning.

- 108 -



CIP Overview

CIP #986 TOWN’S INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY UPGRADES  
(STATUS: UNDERWAY / CONTINUING)

In FY 2016-17, $30,000 was allocated for computer server, software and hardware upgrades to 
the Town’s system. It is expected that the appropriated funds will be fully utilized by year-end.
The on-going maintenance of computers as well as the backbone network requires periodic 
upgrades in order to insure that operations continue. Efforts to be undertaken in FY 2017-18 
include assessing potential efficiency opportunities including the use of hand held tablets, 
replacement of desktop computers and other equipment and technology needs in the new 
Town Hall facility and other Town-owned facilities. 

In FY 2017-18, a transfer of $50,000 will be made from the General Fund to the Capital 
Improvement Fund for this project.

CIP #987 – FLEET AND EQUIPMENT PURCHASES (STATUS: ON-GOING)

The FY 2016-17 Amended Budget for fleet and equipment replacement was $259,205. The 
Town purchased a van for the Recreation Department, a new street sweeper and a Police Patrol 
vehicle.  

The FY 2017-18 Adopted Budget includes the replacement of a Public Works vehicle, which is 
more than 15 years old, and a Police vehicle. The total budgeted is $102,000 which will come 
from reserves in the Fleet Replacement Fund. The replacement vehicles are expected to be in 
service by June 2018.

   

- 109 -



HISTORICAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS ACTUAL ACTUAL AMENDED ESTIMATED ADOPTED

901 Hillside Boulevard Beautification 2,049,378    1,941           -               -               -               
903 Mission Road Improvements 146,003       -               -               -               1,375,000    
905 Collins Avenue Improvements -               -               -               -               -               
913 Serramonte Boulevard Beautification -               -               250,000       -               250,000       
956 Lawndale Blvd Landscape Imp -               -               -               -               -               
993 Roadway Network Plan (SSARP) -               -               -               -               300,000       
934 Colma Creek Channel Repairs -               -               50,000         -               -               
971 Sanitary Sewer System Assessment 10,531         -               106,000       106,000       -               
947 Town Hall Campus Renovation 458,309       1,490,414    16,051,277 3,127,000    12,924,277
954 Corporation Yard Improvements -               -               75,000         60,000         -               
955 Townwide Irrigation System 

Enhancements -               -               25,000         -               -               
991 General Plan Update 3,920           -               -               -               203,650       
992 ADA Transition Plan Upgrades -               -               75,000         -               -               
950 Police Facility Painting -               -               50,000         42,500         -               
944 Sterling Park Playground Impvts -               -               -               -               287,500       
981 RIMS (Police Records) 294,129       -               -               -               -               
982 Townwide Telephone Sys Upgrade 159,304       -               -               -               -               
983 Access Control at Town Facilities -               -               210,000       20,000         315,000       
984 Recreation Software Upgrade 12,848         -               -               -               -               
985 Geographic Information System 3,686           -               25,105         25,105         -               
986 Town's IT Infrastructure Upgrades 48,076         -               30,000         30,000         50,000         
987 Fleet Replacements -               -               309,205       294,355       102,000       
TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 3,186,184    1,492,355    17,256,587 3,704,960    15,807,427

HISTORICAL DISTRIBUTION OF CAPITAL PROJECTS BY PROJECT CATEGORY
FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18

PROJECT TYPES ACTUAL ACTUAL AMENDED ESTIMATED ADOPTED
1 Streets,Sidewalks, Bikeways 2,195,381    1,941           250,000       -               1,925,000    
2 Sewers & Storm Drains 10,531         -               156,000       106,000       -               
3 City Facilities / Long Range Plans 462,229       1,490,414    16,276,277  3,229,500    13,415,427
4 Major Equipment / Fleet 518,043       -               574,310       369,460       467,000       

TOTAL FUNDS 3,186,184    1,492,355    17,256,587  3,704,960    15,807,427

CAPITAL PROJECTS BY SOURCE OF FUNDING
FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16 FY 2016-17 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18

CIP FUNDING SOURCES ACTUAL ACTUAL AMENDED ESTIMATED ADOPTED
22 Measure A Transportation Fund 211,135       -               -               -               160,000       
23 Transportation Grants Fund -               -               -               -               875,000       
31 Capital Improvement Fund 2,975,049    723,004       12,873,437 1,019,960    12,972,277
33 COPs Town Hall Fund -               769,350       4,333,150    2,635,000    1,698,150    
61 Fleet Replacement Fund -               -               50,000         50,000         102,000       

TOTAL FUNDS 3,186,184    1,492,354    17,256,587 3,704,960    15,807,427

- 110 -



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN FY 2017-18 

AVAILABLE
FY 2016-17 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FUTURE

ACCOUNT PROJECT AMENDED ESTIMATED ADOPTED CIP RESERVE

TYPE 1 - Streets, Sidewalks, Bikeways
Project 901 Hillside Boulevard Beautification
31-81002 Planning and Design - - - 48,059
31-81003 Construction - - - 1,020,000

PROJECT TOTAL - - -                    1,068,059
Project 903 Mission Road Improvements
31-81002 Planning and Design - - 200,000 -
31-71010 Contract Services - Const Support - - 50,000 -
23-71010 Contract Services - Const Support - - 25,000 -
22-81003 Construction - - 160,000 -
23-81003 Construction 600,000 -
31-81003 Construction - - 340,000 -

PROJECT TOTAL - -                    1,375,000 -
Project 905 Collins Avenue Improvements
31-81002 Planning and Design - - - 50,000

PROJECT TOTAL - - - 50,000
Project 913 Serramonte Blvd.  Beautification
31-81002 Planning and Design 250,000 - 250,000 -

PROJECT TOTAL 250,000 - 250,000 -
Project 956 Lawndale Blvd Landscape Imp
31-81002 Planning and Design - - - 15,000
31-81003 Construction - - - 85,000

PROJECT TOTAL - - - 100,000
Project 993 Roadway Network Plan (SSARP)
23-81002 Planning and Design - - 250,000 -
31-81002 Planning and Design - - 50,000 -

PROJECT TOTAL - - 300,000 -

SUBTOTAL TYPE 1 CIP PROJECTS 250,000 -                    1,925,000 1,218,059

TYPE 2 - Sewers & Storm Drains
Project 934 Colma Creek Channel Repairs
31-81002 Planning and Design 50,000 - - 50,000

PROJECT TOTAL 50,000 - - 50,000
Project 971 Sanitary Sewer System Assmt.
31-81002 Planning and Design 106,000 106,000 - -

PROJECT TOTAL 106,000 106,000 - -

SUBTOTAL TYPE 2 CIP PROJECTS 156,000 106,000 - 50,000

- 111 -



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN FY 2017-18 

AVAILABLE
FY 2016-17 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FUTURE

ACCOUNT PROJECT AMENDED ESTIMATED ADOPTED CIP RESERVE

TYPE 3 - City Facilities / Long Range Plans
Project 944 Sterling Park Playground Impvts.
31-71010 Contract Services -Const Support - - 10,000 -
31-81002 Planning and Design - - 25,000 -
31-81003 Construction - - 252,500 -

PROJECT TOTAL - - 287,500 -
Project 947 Town Hall Campus Renovation 
31-60014 Equipment Rental 46,846 5,000 39,846 -
31-71010 Professional Consulting 27,268 - 27,268 -
31-80005 Equipment 125,000 - 125,000 -
31-80011 Impvts Other Than Bldgs 470,000 - 470,000 -
31-90014 Misc. Maintenance - 2,000 - -
31-80200 Furniture 200,000 - 200,000 -
31-81002 Planning & Design 1,138,285 450,000 688,285 -
31-81003 Construction 9,710,728 35,000 9,675,728 -
33-81003 Construction 4,333,150 2,635,000 1,698,150 -

PROJECT TOTAL 16,051,277 3,127,000 12,924,277 -
Project 950 Police Facility Painting
31-90014 Misc. Maintenance 50,000 42,500 - 7,500

PROJECT TOTAL 50,000              42,500              -                    7,500
Project 954 Corporation Yard Improvements
31-81003 Construction 75,000 60,000 - -

PROJECT TOTAL 75,000              60,000              -                    -

Project 955 Townwide Irrigation System 
Enhancements

31-81003 Construction 25,000              -                    - 25,000
PROJECT TOTAL 25,000              -                    -                    25,000

Project 991 General Plan Update
31-81002 Planning and Design - - 203,650 -

PROJECT TOTAL - - 203,650 -
Project 992 ADA Transition Plan Upgrades
31-81003 Construction 75,000 - - 212,000

PROJECT TOTAL 75,000 - - 212,000

SUBTOTAL TYPE 3 CIP PROJECTS 16,276,277 3,229,500 13,415,427 244,500

TYPE 4 - Major Equipment / Fleet
Project 983 Access Control at Town Facilities
31-81002 Planning and Design 10,000 20,000 15,000 -
31-81003 Construction 200,000 - 300,000 -

PROJECT TOTAL 210,000            20,000              315,000            -
Project 985 Geographic Information System 
31-81002 Planning And Design 25,105 25,105 - -

PROJECT TOTAL 25,105 25,105 - -
Project 986 Town's IT Infrastructure Upgrades
31-81005 Equipment 30,000 30,000 50,000 -

PROJECT TOTAL 30,000              30,000              50,000              -

- 112 -



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN FY 2017-18 

AVAILABLE
FY 2016-17 FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FUTURE

ACCOUNT PROJECT AMENDED ESTIMATED ADOPTED CIP RESERVE
Project 987 Fleet Replacements
31-80002 Automobile Purchase 259,205 244,355 - -
61-80002 Automobile Purchase - Fleet 

Replacement
50,000              50,000              102,000 -

PROJECT TOTAL 309,205            294,355            102,000            -

SUBTOTAL TYPE 4 CIP PROJECTS 574,310            369,460            467,000            -

GRAND TOTAL CIP PROJECTS 17,256,587       3,704,960         15,807,427       1,512,559

- 113 -



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Staff Report – NOC Town Hall Project – Phase 2  Page 1 of 3 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Brad Donohue, Director of Public Works  

VIA:  William Norton, Interim City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 13, 2017 

SUBJECT: Farallon Company - Notices of Completion 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council by motion: 

ACCEPT WORK PERFORMED BY FARALLON COMPANY ON PHASE 2 OF THE TOWN HALL 
PROJECT AS COMPLETE AND AUTHORIZE THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS TO FILE 
A NOTICE OF COMPLETION WITH THE COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE AND MAKE THE 
FINAL PAYMENT TO FARALLON COMPANY IN ACCORDANCE WITH STATE PROMPT 
PAYMENT LAWS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Farallon Company has completed their construction contract obligations for Phase 2 of the 
Town Hall Project, Mass Grading, Site Improvements and Foundations work. Farallon currently 
has two active contracts with the Town; one for mass grading, site improvements and 
foundation work (“Contract 1”) and the second for completion of the remainder of the new 
building foundations, retaining walls and prep for the steel structure install (“Contract 2”).  Both 
contracts are being brought before the City Council for approval to file a Notice of Completion 
for each contract.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

The final contract amount for Contract 1 inclusive of approved change orders is $1,451,317.50.  
Final expenditures on this phase came in at $1,448,617.17 leaving a balance of $2,700.31, 
which will be returned to the project contingency fund. The approved contract amount for 
Contract 2 is $1,100,000. Final expenditures on this phase inclusive of change orders came in at 
$985,602.27 leaving a balance of $114,397.73, which will be returned to the project 
contingency fund.  

Between both contracts, the projects came in under budget and will be collectively returning 
back the amount of $117,098.04 to the project contingency fund.  

Item #10



Staff Report – NOC Town Hall Project – Phase 2    Page 2 of 3  
 

BACKGROUND 

Phase 2 of the Town Hall Project was separated into two contracts and both were awarded to 
Farallon Company. On December 9, 2015, Contract 1 required that the contractor provide mass 
excavation effort of the site, under-pin (reinforce) the existing 1941 Town Hall building 
foundation, remove and recompact suitable material beneath the new building addition and 
backfill and compact to the new designed grade. The scope of work also included a portion of 
the retaining walls and foundation work.   

Upon completion of Contract 1, Farallon Company was awarded the remainder of the work 
associated with the building foundations, retaining walls, installing imbeds for the steel 
structure and a portion of the site drainage.   

ANALYSIS 

The contractor has been paid for all contract work to date minus retention.   

Staff requests that the City Council accept work performed by Farallon Company on Phase 2 of 
the Town Hall Project as complete and authorize the Director of Public Works to file a Notice of 
Completion with the County Recorder’s Office and make the final payment to Farallon Company 
in accordance with state prompt payment laws.   

The filing of the Notice of Completion means: 

• The Town is satisfied that Farallon Company has completed the project in accordance 
with the plans and specifications. 

• At the time of the filing of the NOC, there has not been a claim filed against the Town. 
• The Town accepts Farallon Company’s work. 
• The time frame for the Stop Notice Claims commences once the Notice of Completion 

has been filed with the County Recorder’s Office.  
 
Thirty days after the Notice of Completion has been recorded, if no claims from subcontractors 
and suppliers have been filed against the Town, the Town can release the remaining 5% 
retention to the contractor - $72,430.86 for Contract 1 and $49,280.13 for Contract 2.  

To date there have been no stop notices or claims filed against the Town. 

Council Adopted Values 
 
Responsibility is one of the values that the City Council adopted within their Strategic Plan.  
By approving this request and approving filing of the Notice of Completion, the Town would be 
finalizing the project, releasing the retention payment to the contractor and closing out the 
construction contract. 
 
Alternatives 

The City Council can deny filing the notice of completion for these contracts if they deem the 
work under the contracts to be incomplete.  The result would be that the Town will not file the 
notice of completion with the County Recorder’s Office.  Such action would increase the 
timeframe which subcontractors and material suppliers have to file claims and could also result 



Staff Report – NOC Town Hall Project – Phase 2    Page 3 of 3  
 

in a claim from the contractor if payment of the retention is not made within the timelines 
under state prompt payment laws. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff has reviewed the work performed by Farallon Company and recommends that the City 
Council accept work performed by Farallon Company on Phase 2 of the Town Hall Project as 
complete and authorize the Director of Public Works to file a Notice of Completion (NOC) with 
the County Recorder’s Office and make the final payment to Farallon Company in accordance 
with state prompt payment laws.  

 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. Notice of Completion – Mass Grading and Site Improvements 
B. Notice of Completion – Foundations 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

Town of Colma 
1198 El Camino Real 
Colma, CA 94014-3212 
Attn: Brad Donohue, PW Director 

THE AREA ABOVE IS RESERVED FOR RECORDER’S USE 

[NO RECORDING FEE SHALL BE CHARGED PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT 
CODE SECTIONS 6103 AND 27383] 

TOWN OF COLMA 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT: 

1. The Town of Colma is the owner of a work of improvement described as the Mass Grading
and Site Improvements Package – Colma Town Hall and Addition Project (hereafter, the
“Work”), and of the real property on which the Work is situated, which real property is
located in the County of San Mateo, State of California and specifically described as follows:
[INSERT ADDRESS]; and

2. Farallon Company is the contractor that was awarded the construction contract by the Town
of Colma for the Work, and

3. The Work was completed by Farallon Company and accepted by the Town of Colma on
September 13, 2017; and

4. The nature of the interest of the Town of Colma is as a fee simple owner in the above-
described real property; and

5. The name and address of the Town of Colma is 1198 El Camino Real, Colma, California
94014; and

6. I, Brad Donohue, Public Works Director of the Town of Colma, am authorized by the
City Council of the Town of Colma to execute and file this Notice of Completion with the 
County Recorder of the County of San Mateo as an authorized agent of the Town of Colma.  
I have read the Notice of Completion and know the contents thereof; the same is true of my 
own knowledge. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is 
true and correct. 

Attachment A



 

 
____________________________________            ___________________ 
          (Date and Place)     Brad Donohue  
        Director of Public Works 



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

Town of Colma 
1198 El Camino Real 
Colma, CA 94014-3212 
Attn: Brad Donohue, PW Director 

THE AREA ABOVE IS RESERVED FOR RECORDER’S USE 

[NO RECORDING FEE SHALL BE CHARGED PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT 
CODE SECTIONS 6103 AND 27383] 

TOWN OF COLMA 

NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT: 

1. The Town of Colma is the owner of a work of improvement described as the Foundation
Package – Colma Town Hall Renovation and Addition Project (hereafter, the “Work”), and
of the real property on which the Work is situated, which real property is located in the
County of San Mateo, State of California and specifically described as follows: [INSERT
ADDRESS]; and

2. Farallon Company is the contractor that was awarded the construction contract by the Town
of Colma for the Work, and

3. The Work was completed by Farallon Company and accepted by the Town of Colma on
September 13, 2017; and

4. The nature of the interest of the Town of Colma is as a fee simple owner in the above-
described real property; and

5. The name and address of the Town of Colma is 1198 El Camino Real, Colma, California
94014; and

6. I, Brad Donohue, Public Works Director of the Town of Colma, am authorized by the
City Council of the Town of Colma to execute and file this Notice of Completion with the 
County Recorder of the County of San Mateo as an authorized agent of the Town of Colma. 
I have read the Notice of Completion and know the contents thereof; the same is true of my 
own knowledge. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is 
true and correct. 

Attachment B



 

 
____________________________________            ___________________ 
          (Date and Place)     Brad Donohue  
        Director of Public Works 



Staff Report re Sterling Park Parking Issues  Page 1 of 4 
25977.00100\29635999.1

STAFF REPORT 

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Kirk Stratton, Chief of Police 

VIA:  William Norton, Interim City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 13, 2017 

SUBJECT: Further Amendments to Preferential Parking Permit Plan 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council: 

INTRODUCE AN ORDINANCE AMENDING COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE SECTIONS 
6.02.020, 6.02.050 AND 6.02.070 RELATING TO PREFERENTIAL PARKING PERMITS, 
GUEST PARKING PERMITS AND TEMPORARY PARKING PERMITS, AND WAIVE A 
FURTHER READING OF THE ORDINANCE; and 

ADOPT A RESOLUTION UPDATING THE COLMA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, SUBCHAPTER 
6.01 TO ELIMINATE DUPLICATIVE PROVISIONS OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE, CHAPTER 
6.02, RELATED TO PREFERENTIAL PARKING ZONES AND PERMIT PARKING 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The proposed ordinance would modify the existing preferential parking provisions in the 
Municipal Code to reduce the existing number of days temporary parking permits can be issued 
to qualified residents or qualified merchants. The existing ordinance allows temporary parking 
permits to be issued up to (30) thirty days with no cap on the number of times a qualified 
resident or merchant can request a temporary parking permit. 

Staff is recommending that qualified residents and qualified merchants be allowed to request a 
temporary parking permit for up to (14) days, per request, and may only make the request no 
more than (15) times per year. Only one temporary parking permit may be in effect at one 
time. 

Qualified residents and qualified merchants can make the request on line or in person. 
Temporary parking permits shall be picked up at the Colma Police Department upon presenting 
such proof as may be required by the Colma Police Department of a residence or place of 
business adjacent to the area designated as a preferential parking zone. Such proof may be in 
the form of a California driver license bearing a Colma address, or in the case of a qualified 
merchant, proof of business and vehicle information. 

Item #11



Staff Report re Sterling Park Parking Issues   Page 2 of 4 
25977.00100\29635999.1  
 

FISCAL IMPACT 

NONE 

BACKGROUND 

Throughout the past year, staff has heard numerous concerns from the City Council, merchants, 
and residents of Sterling Park regarding parking issues. These concerns include the 
enforcement of parking permits, too many vehicles compared to the number of parking spaces, 
green zone enforcement hours, and problems with the permitting process itself.  

During a study session in February 2017, staff presented a number of options on how to 
potentially alleviate some of these issues. Options included; 

• Reducing the number of guest parking permits from two per residence to one  

• Reducing the number of guest parking permits from two to none, therefore, a resident 
would have to request a temporary guest permit from the police department as needed 

• Researching technology for automated guest permit processing 

• Capping the number of parking permits issued per qualified dwelling to four 

• Removing inoperable vehicles from private property 

• Changing the parking hours for green zone located at ECR at F Street 

During a second study session in March 2017, staff presented options on how to potentially 
alleviate parking issues to include; 

• Reducing the number of guest parking permits from two (2) per residence to one (1) 

• Reducing the number of guest parking permits from two (2) to zero (0) 

• Using existing ordinance to request Temporary Parking Permits 

• Capping the number of parking permits issued per qualified dwelling to four 

• Petitioning CalTrans to change the hours of enforcement in green zones on ECR 

 

On July 26, 2017, City Council agreed to revise the preferential parking provisions to cap the 
number of preferential parking permits issued to residents of qualified dwellings to (4) four and 
to reduce the number of guest parking permits to (0) zero.  

After reviewing Municipal Code Section 6.02.050(d) regarding temporary parking permits, staff 
concluded that it was necessary to amend the existing ordinance and administrative code 
provisions. The amendments would assist in reducing the amount of parking congestion in the 
Sterling Park neighborhood, would make it fair and reasonable to those requesting temporary 
parking permits and would assist in deterring those who may abuse this privilege. 
 
ANALYSIS 

Prior to revising the municipal parking code, parking permits were issued to qualified residents 
in the Sterling Park neighborhood every two years and were staggered by odd numbered 



Staff Report re Sterling Park Parking Issues   Page 3 of 4 
25977.00100\29635999.1  
 

residential dwellings and even numbered residential dwellings. Colma Municipal Code Section 
6.02.050 governed the process of issuing permits and stated the following, in relevant part:  

One Preferential Parking Permit shall be issued for each vehicle registered to a 
Qualified Resident.  

and,  

Two Guest Permits shall be issued to each dwelling unit in a preferential parking 
zone… 

Because the code provided for one permit per registered vehicle, there was no limitation on 
how many permits could be issued per resident or per dwelling unit. If a resident had eight cars 
registered to one address, that resident was legally entitled to eight permits. And because the 
code provided two guest parking permits per address, in the hypothetical example a single 
resident effectively received 10 permits. The Police Department found that approximately 12 
Sterling Park residents had more than five permits issued in 2015 and 2016.  

In calendar year 2016, 308 guest parking permits were issued to qualified residents. The 
number of parking permits issued in the calendar year 2016 to even-numbered dwellings was 
266. In 2015, odd-numbered residences were issued 186 guest parking permits and 302 
parking permits.  

The number of parking permits issued for 2015 and 2016 combined was 568. The number of 
guest parking permits issued for 2015 and 2016 was 494. Thus, the total number of permits 
(comprised of both parking and guest parking) totaled 1,062. However, a 2000 study conducted 
by the Engineering Department determined a total of 564 parking spaces were in the Sterling 
Park neighborhood – leaving a deficit of nearly 500 parking spaces. The number of actual 
parking spaces includes parking in front of driveways. 

Staff recommended eliminating the number of guest parking permits issued to dwelling units. 
This would decrease the total number of parking permits from 1,062 to 568 (assuming the 
same number of regular permits were issued). Staff had also discussed only issuing guest 
permits on an as-needed basis.  

If guest permits were eliminated then a qualified resident wanting to obtain a parking permit for 
a guest or visitor, staying more than the 2 hour minimum, may request a temporary parking 
permit from the Police Department per the existing municipal code  § 6.02.050(d) which reads, 
in part: 

The Police Department shall also issue to any qualified resident or any qualified 
merchant a Temporary Permit for use by a visitor of the applicant, as follows:  
 
(1) On an oral request of a qualified resident or merchant, the Police Department may 
issue a Temporary Permit for one day only, the date of use authorized by such permit 
being no later than ten days after issuance 
 
(2) On a written request of a qualified resident or merchant showing that issuance of a 
temporary permit is for the benefit of the resident or merchant and that it is reasonable 
to request a temporary permit for a period longer than one day, the Police Department 



Staff Report re Sterling Park Parking Issues   Page 4 of 4 
25977.00100\29635999.1  
 

shall issue a Temporary Permit for up to thirty (30) days, the last date of such use being 
no later than forty (40) days of issuance. 

 
Staff also recommended placing a cap on the number of preferential parking permits issued for 
each dwelling to no more than four. Vehicles have to be registered to a resident at the qualified 
dwelling. As noted above, there were approximately 12 residents in the entire neighborhood 
that had five or more regular parking permits.  

Staff also agreed to research additional parking enhancements, including a more automated 
permitting process (this could be tied to the issuance of guest permits on an as-needed only 
basis), modification to the parking code (hours of enforcement and other potential changes) 
and development of additional parking areas. 

A reduction in guest parking permits may also reduce the potential for unlawful acts listed in 
Colma Municipal Code § 6.02.070. These unlawful acts may include selling, renting or leasing 
any preferential parking permit. 

The Colma Police Department will continue to enforce unlawful acts, parking prohibitions and 
the vehicle code. 

Council Adopted Values 

Modifying the existing Preferential Parking Code to better address the needs of the Sterling Park 
neighborhood is consistent with the Council’s value of Responsibility because Council is 
considering the negative impacts of parking issues on the community, and with the Council’s 
value of Vision because potential modifications to the code can be an innovative way to 
enhance quality of life for our residents.  

Alternatives 

Amending the existing ordinance and administrative code provisions would enhance the quality 
of life by reducing the amount of parking congestion in the Sterling Park neighborhood, would 
make it fair and reasonable to those requesting temporary parking permits and would assist in 
deterring those who may abuse this privilege. 
 
The alternative would be to not amend the ordinance or the administrative code and to 
continue to have parking congestion that negatively impacts residents in the Sterling Park 
neighborhood and the quality of life.  
  
CONCLUSION 

Staff is recommending that Council introduce the ordinance and adopt the resolution.   

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Ordinance 
B. Resolution 



Ordinance No.-__, CMC Subchapter 6.02Preferential Parking Page 1 of 5 
25977.00100\30130077.1

ORDINANCE NO. ___ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

ORDINANCE AMENDING COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE SECTIONS 6.02.020, 6.02.050 
AND 6.02.070 RELATING TO PREFERENTIAL PARKING PERMITS, GUEST PARKING 

PERMITS AND TEMPORARY PARKING PERMITS  

The City Council of the Town of Colma does ordain as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. RECITALS. 

(a) Parking has been a long term issue in the Sterling Park neighborhood. 

(b) Past regulatory efforts have focused primarily on commuter parking impacts due 
to the nearby Colma BART station. 

(c) There continues to be a limited number of parking spaces relative to the number 
of residents’ vehicles. 

(d) The Town finds that limiting the number of preferential parking permits for 
residents and the number of temporary permits, and eliminating separate guest permits, 
is in the best interests of the health, safety, and general welfare of the residents of 
Colma. 

ARTICLE 2. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. 

The City Council hereby finds that all of the foregoing recitals and the staff report 
presented herewith are true and correct and are hereby incorporated and adopted as findings of 
the City Council as if fully set forth herein. 

ARTICLE 3. CMC SECTION 6.02.020 AMENDED. 

Section 6.02.020, subsection (g), shall be and hereby is added to the Colma Municipal Code as 
follows: 

“(g) Limits on the number of preferential parking permits and temporary parking 
permits is reasonable and necessary to provide greater harmony between the number of 
parking permits and the number of parking spaces within the preferential parking zone in 
order to ensure the effectiveness of the preferential parking program.” 

ARTICLE 4. CMC SECTION 6.02.050 AMENDED. 

Colma Municipal Code, Section 6.02.050, shall be and hereby is amended and restated to read 
as follows: 

Attachment A



 
Ordinance No.-__, CMC Subchapter 6.02Preferential Parking  Page 2 of 5 
25977.00100\30130077.1  

“6.02.050 Issuance of Permits. 

(a) Applications.  The Police Department shall issue permits, in a form to be determined 
by the Police Department and consistent with the provisions of this article, for 
preferential parking to qualified residents and qualified merchants who have completed 
an application form supplied by the Police Department.  Applicants for such permits shall 
present such proof as may be required by the Police Department of a residence or place 
of business adjacent to the area designated as a preferential parking zone. 
 
(b) Preferential Parking Permits. One Preferential Parking Permit Up to four (4) 
Preferential Parking Permits shall be issued for each vehicle registered to a Qualified 
Resident per dwelling unit in a preferential parking zone, for each vehicle registered to a 
Qualified Resident that resides at the permitted dwelling unit. One Preferential Parking 
Permit shall may be issued to each non-resident employee of a Qualified Merchant upon 
request to the Chief of Police. A Preferential Parking Permit shall remain effective for a 
period of no more than two years, or until the preferential parking zone for which such 
permit was issued is eliminated, or the permits previously issued are re-issued under a 
different time-frame in the sole discretion of the Town, whichever is less. The Chief of 
Police is authorized to issue preferential permits on an staggered basis. 

 
(c) Guest Permits.  Two Guest Permits shall be issued to each dwelling unit in a 
preferential parking zone, and two Guest Permits to each qualified merchant in a 
preferential parking zone if there is no green zone in front of such merchant’s place of 
business. Guest Permits shall be valid only during the calendar year in which they are 
issued. Guest permits shall only be valid when displayed on vehicles not owned or 
registered to a Qualified Resident, are for use on passenger motor vehicles only and shall 
not be used for boats, trailers, recreational vehicles, vehicles with a manufacturers’ gross 
vehicle weight rating of more than 12,000 pounds, or vehicles for hire.” 
 
(c)  Temporary Permits. The Police Department shall may also issue to any qualified 
resident or any qualified merchant a Temporary Permit for use by a bona fide visitor of 
the applicant, as follows: 
 
(1) On an oral request of a qualified resident or merchant, the Police Department 

may issue a Temporary Permit for one day only, the date of use authorized by 
such permit being no later than ten days after issuance; and 

(1) On a written request of a qualified resident or merchant showing that issuance of 
a temporary permit is for the benefit of the resident or merchant and that it is 
reasonable to request a temporary permit for a period longer than one day, the 
Police Department may issue a Temporary Permit for up to fourteen (14) days. 
The request can be made through the Town’s website or in person and must 
include the license plate number of the visitor’s vehicle.  A Temporary Permit may 
be denied based on misuse (e.g. the qualified resident has used the Temporary 
Permit to facilitate repeated access to BART, rather than for bona fide visitor of 
the qualified resident).  Temporary Permits may be issued for up to fourteen (14) 
days. No more than fifteen temporary permits may be issued per dwelling per 
year regardless of the number of qualified residents residing at the dwelling, and 
no more than one permit may be in effect at one time.  The resident/merchant 



 
Ordinance No.-__, CMC Subchapter 6.02Preferential Parking  Page 3 of 5 
25977.00100\30130077.1  

must retrieve each Temporary Permit in person at the Police Department and 
show a California driver license with a Colma address (or other proof of residency 
deemed appropriate by the Chief of Police) or that he/she is a qualified merchant.  

(d) Placement. Resident and Merchant Permits must be displayed from inside the rear 
window on the driver’s side of the vehicle (except for convertibles in which case the 
Permit must be displayed inside the front windshield), with the permit number or vehicle 
license number clearly visible from the outside. Temporary Permits must be suspended 
from the rear view mirror of the automobile, with the permit number or vehicle license 
number clearly visible from the outside 

(e) Conditions of permit. Each parking permit shall be subject to all conditions and 
restrictions set forth in this section and of the preferential parking zone for which it is 
issued.  

(f) Other Laws and Regulations. The issuance of a parking permit shall not be 
construed to be a permit for, or approval of, any violation of any provision of this Code 
or any other laws or regulations. 

(g) Fees. No fee shall be charged for issuance of a permit except that the city council 
may, by resolution, set a fee for replacement of lost or destroyed permits.  

(h) Appeals. Any person who has been denied a permit may appeal that decision to 
the City Manager by giving written notice thereof within ten (10) days after the decision 
of the Police Department. 

 
ARTICLE 5. CMC SECTION 6.02.070 AMENDED. 

Colma Municipal Code, Section 6.02.070, shall be and hereby is amended and restated to read 
as follows: 

6.02.070 Unlawful Acts; Punishments. 

(a) It shall be unlawful to do, or cause, any of the following, and any person who does or 
causes to be done any of the following shall be guilty of a misdemeanor: 

(1) During the hours between 8:00 AM and 9:00 PM from Monday through Friday, 
inclusive, except holidays, to stop, park or leave any vehicle standing for more 
than two hours in a preferential parking zone unless an unexpired permit validly 
issued pursuant to this ordinance is prominently displayed in the manner provided 
herein, except as otherwise provided in Municipal Code Section 6.02.325, or 
unless the vehicle is exempt from this prohibition; 

(2) To sell, rent or lease, or cause to be sold, rented or leased, for any value or 
consideration, any preferential parking permit; 

(3) To buy or otherwise acquire for value or use any preferential parking permit; 



 
Ordinance No.-__, CMC Subchapter 6.02Preferential Parking  Page 4 of 5 
25977.00100\30130077.1  

(4) To falsely represent himself or herself as eligible for a parking permit or to furnish 
false information in an application for a permit; 

(5) To copy, reproduce, or otherwise bring into existence a facsimile or counterfeit 
parking permit, or to alter a parking permit; 

(6) (A) To display a Residential or Merchant Parking Permit in a vehicle other than 
the vehicle for which such Permit was issued; or 

(7) (B) To remove chalk marks placed on tires by the Police Department. 

(b) Violation of any of the provisions of the foregoing paragraph shall constitute a 
misdemeanor punishable as set forth in section 1.05.010 of the Colma Municipal Code and a 
public nuisance subject to the provisions of Subchapter 2.01 of Chapter One of the Colma 
Municipal Code (section 2.01.010, et seq). In addition to any other remedy provided by law or 
ordinance, upon proof of a violation of this ordinance, the Town may revoke all preferential 
parking permits issued to the dwelling unit in which the person who violated this ordinance 
resided or the place of business in which the person who violated this ordinance is employed. 

 
 

ARTICLE 6. SEVERABILITY.  

Each of the provisions of this Ordinance is severable from all other provisions. If any article, 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

 
ARTICLE 7. NOT A CEQA PROJECT. 

The City Council finds that this Ordinance is not subject to the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) pursuant to Sections 15060(c)(2) (the activity will not result in a direct or 
reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment) and 15060(c)(3) (the 
activity is not a project as defined in Section 15378) of the CEQA Guidelines, California Code of 
Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, because it has no potential for resulting in physical change to 
the environment, directly or indirectly. 

 
ARTICLE 8. EFFECTIVE DATE.  

This ordinance, or a summary thereof prepared by the City Attorney, shall be posted on the 
three (3) official bulletin boards of the Town of Colma within 15 days of its passage and is to 
take force and effect thirty (30) days after its passage. 

 

 



Ordinance No. __ - Amending Municipal Code re Preferential Parking (Introduced 7/26/17) Page 5 of 5 
25977.00100\30130077.1  
9/7/17  

Certificate of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. ___ was duly introduced at a regular meeting of the 
City Council of the Town of Colma held on _______________, 2017 and duly adopted at a 
regular meeting of said City Council held on _______________, 2017 by the following vote: 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

  Aye No Abstain Not Participating   

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      

Joanne F. del Rosario       

John Irish Goodwin      

Diana Colvin      

Voting Tally      

 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 
 





Res. 2017-__, Preferential Parking – Administrative Code Update Page 1 of 2 
25977.00100\30130197.1

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION UPDATING THE COLMA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, SUBCHAPTER 6.01 TO 
ELIMINATE DUPLICATIVE PROVISIONS OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE, CHAPTER 6.02, 

RELATED TO PREFERENTIAL PARKING ZONES AND PERMIT PARKING 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve: 

1. Background.

(a) Parking has been a long term issue in the Sterling Park neighborhood.

(b) Past regulatory efforts have focused primarily on commuter parking impacts due to the
nearby Colma BART station. 

(c) There continues to be a limited number of parking spaces relative to the number of 
residents’ vehicles. 

(d) The Town finds that limiting the number of preferential parking permits for residents and 
the number of temporary permits is in the best interests of the health, safety, and general 
welfare of the residents of Colma. 

(e) The Administrative Code provisions regarding issuance of parking permits (Section 
6.01.040) and parking prohibitions (Section 6.01.050) are contained in the Colma Municipal 
Code, and therefore such duplication is appropriately deleted from the Administrative Code. 

2. Order

(a) The Colma Administrative Code, Subchapter 6.01 – Preferential Parking Zones and Permit
Parking is hereby amended and restated in full as set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference.  

(b) This resolution shall become operative upon the effective date of Ordinance No. __, entitled 
“ORDINANCE AMENDING COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE SECTIONS 6.02.020, 6.02.050 AND 6.02.070 
RELATING TO PREFERENTIAL PARKING PERMITS, GUEST PARKING PERMITS AND TEMPORARY 
PARKING PERMITS.”   

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

Attachment B



Res. 2017-__, Preferential Parking – Administrative Code Update Page 2 of 2 
25977.00100\30130197.1  
 

/ 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2017-__ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of said 
City Council held on September 13, 2017 by the following vote: 
 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor      

Raquel Gonzalez        

Joanne del Rosario       

Diana Colvin      

John Irish Goodwin      

Voting Tally      

 
 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 

 



EXHIBIT A 

Permit Parking Colma Administrative Code 
(September 2017) Page 6.01-1 

CHAPTER SIX. PARKING AND TRAFFIC 

Subchapter 6.01 - Preferential Parking Zones And Permit Parking 

6.01.010. Findings.  

The City Council finds that: 

(a) Commuter vehicles substantially and regularly interfere with the use of the majority of 
available public street parking spaces in the Sterling Park residential area by adjacent 
residents and merchants; 

(b) A shortage of reasonably available and convenient residential-related parking spaces 
exists in the Sterling Park residential area; 

(c) Commuter vehicles being driven or parked in the area of the Sterling Park residential 
area cause or are the source of unreasonable noise, traffic hazards, and environmental 
pollution; 

(d) The establishment of preferential parking zones is required to enhance or protect 
the quality of life in Sterling Park residential area and to make parking reasonably available 
and convenient for the benefit of adjacent residents and merchants; 

(e) The establishment of preferential parking zones in the Sterling Park residential area will 
also encourage the use of carpooling and mass transit by commuters; and 

(f) No alternative solution to the problems caused by commuter parking is reasonably 
feasible or practical. 

[History: Adopted Res. 99-19, 5/26/99, effective 6/30/99] 

6.01.020. Definitions. 

As used herein, the following words and phrases shall be given the meaning shown: 

(a) Commuter vehicle means a vehicle operated by a person whose destination is outside of 
the Sterling Park residential area; 

(b) Preferential parking zone shall mean the streets designated by the city council for permit 
parking. 

(c) Qualified merchant shall mean a business fronting a preferential parking zone; 

(d) Qualified resident shall mean a person who lives in a dwelling unit fronting a preferential 
parking zone; and 

(e) Sterling Park residential area shall mean Clark Street, B Street, C Street, D Street, E 
Street and F Street in the Town of Colma, except that portion of F street between Clark 
Street and the Colma Corporation Yard (601 F Street.) 



Permit Parking Colma Administrative Code 
(September 2017) Page 6.01-2 

(f) Old Mission Road residential parking area shall mean the southwesterly side of Old 
Mission Road beginning at the northern curb of the property line serving 1431 Mission Road and 
extending 181 feet northerly from that point; and the northeasterly side of Old Mission Road 
directly across from the residential properties on the southwesterly side of Old Mission Road of 
1431, 1433, 1439, 1445, 1451, and 1457 Mission Road, 181 feet to match the southwesterly 
side of Old Mission Road of 181 feet. 

[History: Adopted Res. 99-19, 5/26/99; Amended by Res. 2003-28, 6/25/03; Res. 2007-
63, 10/10/07] 

6.01.030. Establishment of Preferential Parking Zones. 

The Sterling Park residential parking area and the Old Mission Road residential parking area are 
hereby designated as a preferential parking zone for the benefit of qualified residents and 
merchants. In a preferential parking zone, vehicles displaying a permit shall be exempt from 
parking prohibitions or restrictions otherwise posted, marked or noticed. 

[History: Adopted Res. 99-19, 5/26/99, effective 6/30/99; amended Res. 2003-28, 
effective 6/25/03] 

6.01.040. Issuance of Permits Reserved. 

(a) Applications. The Police Department shall issue permits, in a form to be determined by 
the Police Department and consistent with the provisions of this article, for preferential parking 
to qualified residents and qualified merchants who have completed an application form 
supplied by the Police Department. Applicants for such permits shall present such proof as may 
be required by the Police Department of a residence or place of business adjacent to the area 
designated as a preferential parking zone. 

(b) Residential Permits. A Residential Parking Permit shall be issued for each vehicle 
registered to a Qualified Resident and shall remain effective for a period of no more than two 
years, or until the preferential parking zone for which such permit was issued is eliminated, 
whichever is less. The Chief of Police is authorized to issue preferential permits on a staggered 
basis. 

(c) Merchant Permits. A Merchant Parking Permit shall be issued for one vehicle for each 
employee regularly employed by a qualified merchant and shall remain effective for as long as 
the permit holder is employed by a qualified merchant or until the preferential parking zone 
for which such permit was issued is eliminated, whichever period is less. 

(d) Guest Permits. Two Guest Permits shall be issued to each dwelling unit in a 
preferential parking zone, and two Guest Permits to each qualified merchant in a preferential 
parking zone if there is no green zone in front of such merchant’s place of business. Guest 
Permits shall be valid only during the calendar year in which they are issued. Guest permits 
shall only be valid when displayed on vehicles not owned or registered to a Qualified Resident, 
are for use on passenger motor vehicles only and shall not be used for boats, trailers, 
recreational vehicles, vehicles with a manufacturers’ gross vehicle weight rating of more than 
12,000 pounds, or vehicles for hire. 



(e) Temporary Permits. The Police Department shall also issue to any qualified resident or 

Permit Parking Colma Administrative Code 
(September 2017) Page 6.01-3 

any qualified merchant a Temporary Permit for use by a visitor of the applicant, as follows. 

(i) On an oral request of a qualified resident or merchant, the Police Department 
may issue a Temporary Permit for one day only, the date of use authorized by such permit 
being no later than ten days after issuance; and 

(ii) On a written request of a qualified resident of merchant showing that issuance of 
a temporary permit is for the benefit of the resident or merchant and that it is reasonable to 
request a temporary permit for a period longer than one day, the Police Department shall issue 
a Temporary Permit for up to thirty (30) days, the last date of such use being no later than 
forty (40) days of issuance. 

(f) Placement. Resident and Merchant Permits must be displayed from inside the rear 
window on the drivers side of the vehicle (except for convertibles in which case the Permit 
must be displayed inside the front windshield), with the permit number or vehicle license 
number clearly visible from the outside. Guest and Temporary Permits must be suspended 
from the rear view mirror of the automobile, with the permit number or vehicle license number 
clearly visible from the outside. 

(g) Conditions of permit. Each parking permit shall be subject to all conditions and 
restrictions set forth in this section and of the preferential parking zone for which it is issued. 

(h) Other Laws and Regulations. The issuance of a parking permit shall not be construed 
to be a permit for, or approval of, any violation of any provision of this Code or any other laws 
or regulations. 

(i) Fees. No fee shall be charged for issuance of a permit except that the city council may, 
by resolution, set a fee for replacement of lost or destroyed permits. 

(j) Appeals. Any person who has been denied a permit may appeal that decision to the 
City Manager by giving written notice thereof within ten (10) days after the decision of the 
Police Department. 

[History: Adopted Res. 99-19, 5/26/99, effective 6/30/99; Res. 2007-63, 10/10/07] 

6.01.050. Prohibitions Reserved. 

(a) It shall be unlawful to do, or cause, any of the following, and any person who does or 

causes to be done any of the following shall be guilty of a misdemeanor: 

During the hours between 8:00 AM and 9:00 PM from Monday through Friday, inclusive, except 
holidays, to stop, park or leave any vehicle standing for more than two hours in a preferential 
parking zone unless an unexpired permit validly issued pursuant to this ordinance is prominently 
displayed in the manner provided herein, except as otherwise provided in Municipal Code Section 
6.02.325, or unless the vehicle is exempt from this prohibition; 

To sell, rent or lease, or cause to be sold, rented or leased, for any value or consideration, any 
preferential parking permit.; 



Permit Parking Colma Administrative Code 
(September 2017) Page 6.01-4 

iTo buy or otherwise acquire for value or use any preferential parking permit; 

To falsely represent himself or herself as eligible for a parking permit or to furnish false 
information in an application for a permit; 

To copy, reproduce, or otherwise bring into existence a facsimile or counterfeit parking permit, 
or to alter a parking permit; 

To display a Residential or Merchant Parking Permit in a vehicle other than the vehicle for which 
such Permit was issued; or 

To remove chalk marks placed on tires by the Police Department. 

(b) Violation of any of the foregoing provisions shall constitute a public nuisance subject to 

the provisions of Subchapter 11 of Chapter One of the Colma Municipal Code (section 1.11.01 
et seq). In addition to any other remedy provided by law or ordinance, upon proof of a violation 
of this ordinance, the Town may revoke all preferential parking permits issued to the dwelling 
unit in which the person who violated this ordinance resided or the place of business in which 
the person who violated this ordinance is employed. 

[History: Adopted Res. 99-19, 5/26/99, effective 6/30/99; Res. 2007-63, 10/10/07; Res. 2011-
42, 11/17/11] 

6.01.060. Exemptions. 

The following vehicles are exempt from the prohibition against parking in a preferred parking 
district without a permit, provided that the driver of the vehicle shall be responsible for 
identifying the vehicle as exempt in a manner prescribed by the Police Department: 

(a) An emergency vehicle, including a police car, fire truck and ambulance. 

(b) A utility vehicle owned by or operated under contract to a utility, whether privately, 
municipally or publicly owned, when used in the construction, operation, removal, or repair of 
utility property or facilities or engaged in authorized work in the designated preferential 
parking zone; 

(c) A government-owned vehicle identified when used in the course of official government 
business; 

(d) A commercial vehicle or trailer engaged in loading or unloading property, or parked in 
connection with or in aid of the performance of a service to or on a property located in the 
block in which such vehicle is parked; and 

(e) A privately-owned vehicle used on official Town business by a Town employee, an 
independent contractor of the Town, or an employee of an independent contractor of the 
Town. 

[History: Adopted Res. 99-19, 5/26/99, effective 6/30/99] 



Staff Report re League of California Cities Resolutions  Page 1 of 2 
September 5, 2017 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Brian Dossey, Administrative Services Director 

VIA:  William C. Norton, Interim City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 13, 2017 

SUBJECT: League of California Cities Resolutions 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council approve: 

MOTION DIRECTING THE VOTING DELEGATE TO VOTE IN SUPPORT OF THE TWO 
RESOLUTIONS THAT ARE BEING CONSIDERED AT THE 2017 LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA 
CITIES CONFERENCE ON SEPTEMBER 15, 2017. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Annual Business meeting at the League Conference is on Friday, September 15, 2017.  This 
year there will be two resolutions that will be considered and voted on.  The purpose of the 
staff report is to direct the voting delegate on how the Town wishes to vote at the Business 
meeting.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

There is no direct fiscal impact associated with this action. Attendance at various conferences is 
budgeted in the 2017 – 18 budget 

BACKGROUND 

As the Council knows, Colma has been a member of the League of California Cities for many 
years. In order for a representative from the Town to vote on Colma’s behalf on key policy-
related issues, the Council must officially designate someone as a voting delegate. The delegate 
does not necessarily need to be an elected official.  

At the June 28, 2017 meeting, the City Council appointed the Administrative Services Director 
as the alternate voting delegate to attend the Business Meeting at the Annual League of 
California Cities Conference in September. 

ANALYSIS 

Staff is seeking input on how to vote at the Business Meeting at the League of California Cities 
Annual Conference.  There are two resolutions that will be considered and voted on. 

Item #12



Staff Report re League of California Cities Resolutions  Page 2 of 2 
September 5, 2017 

RESOLUTIONS REFERRED TO PUBLIC SAFETY POLICY COMMITTEE 

1. A Resolution of the League of California Cities calling upon the Governor and Legislature
to enter into discussion with League and other Public Safety Stakeholders to identify and 
implement strategies that will reduce the unintended negative impacts of existing criminal law. 

Staff has contacted Police Chief, Kirk Stratton regarding the proposed resolution above, and he 
is in favor of this legislative action.  The Colma Police Department has experienced an increase 
in crime, specifically, drugs and thefts as a result of AB 109 and Proposition 47. 

2. A Resolution of the League of California Cities supporting Legislation amending
Government Code Section 3861 to clarify the definition of Local Control providing Broad 
Statutory Authority for Local Officials to determine Emergency Service Levels and Direct Medical 
Response within their Jurisdictions. 

Staff has also contacted Chief Balton with the Colma Fire Protection District (CFPD) and he 
stated the CFPD supports this resolution because the CFPD believes in local control and also 
that the legislation regarding Local Emergency Medical Services Agencies needs to be clarified 
to limit their authority to policy and contractual only. 

Staff has also attached the League of California Cities Annual Resolution Packet for City 
Council’s review.    

Council Adopted Values 

Participating in the annual Business Meeting furthers the Council’s adopted values of 
responsibility and vision because providing input on important local, regional and state policy 
issues protects the Town’s long term financial stability and other interests.   

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the City Council approve a motion directing the voting delegate to vote in 
support of the two resolutions being considered at the 2017 League of California Cities Annual 
Business Meeting. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. League of California Cities Annual Resolution Packet 



Annual Conference 
Resolutions Packet 

2017 Annual Conference Resolutions 

Sacramento, California 
September 13 – 15, 2017 

Attachment A



 

INFORMATION AND PROCEDURES 

RESOLUTIONS CONTAINED IN THIS PACKET: The League bylaws provide that 
resolutions shall be referred by the president to an appropriate policy committee for review and 
recommendation. Resolutions with committee recommendations shall then be considered by the 
General Resolutions Committee at the Annual Conference. 

This year, two resolutions have been introduced for consideration by the Annual Conference and 
referred to the League policy committees.   

POLICY COMMITTEES: One policy committee will meet at the Annual Conference to consider 
and take action on the resolutions referred to it. The committee is Public Safety.  The committee will 
meet from 9:00 – 11:00 a.m. on Wednesday, September 13, at the Hyatt Regency.  The sponsors of 
the resolutions have been notified of the time and location of the meeting.   

GENERAL RESOLUTIONS COMMITTEE: This committee will meet at 1:00 p.m. on Thursday, 
September 14, at the Hyatt Regency in Sacramento, to consider the report of the policy committee 
regarding the resolutions. This committee includes one representative from each of the League’s 
regional divisions, functional departments and standing policy committees, as well as other 
individuals appointed by the League president.  Please check in at the registration desk for room 
location. 

ANNUAL LUNCHEON/BUSINESS MEETING/GENERAL ASSEMBLY: This meeting 
will be held at 12:30 p.m. on Friday, September 15, at the Sacramento Convention Center. 

PETITIONED RESOLUTIONS: For those issues that develop after the normal 60-day 
deadline, a resolution may be introduced at the Annual Conference with a petition signed by 
designated voting delegates of 10 percent of all member cities (48 valid signatures required) and 
presented to the Voting Delegates Desk at least 24 hours prior to the time set for convening the 
Annual Business Meeting of the General Assembly.  This year, that deadline is 12:30 p.m., 
Thursday, September 14.  Resolutions can be viewed on the League's Web site: 
www.cacities.org/resolutions. 

Any questions concerning the resolutions procedures may be directed to Meg Desmond at the 
League office: mdesmond@cacities.org or (916) 658-8224

1

http://www.cacities.org/resolutions
mailto:mdesmond@cacities.org


GUIDELINES FOR ANNUAL CONFERENCE RESOLUTIONS 

Policy development is a vital and ongoing process within the League. The principal means for 
deciding policy on the important issues facing cities is through the League’s seven standing policy 
committees and the board of directors. The process allows for timely consideration of issues in a 
changing environment and assures city officials the opportunity to both initiate and influence policy 
decisions. 

Annual conference resolutions constitute an additional way to develop League policy. Resolutions 
should adhere to the following criteria. 

Guidelines for Annual Conference Resolutions 

1. Only issues that have a direct bearing on municipal affairs should be considered or adopted
at the Annual Conference.

2. The issue is not of a purely local or regional concern.

3. The recommended policy should not simply restate existing League policy.

4. The resolution should be directed at achieving one of the following objectives:

(a) Focus public or media attention on an issue of major importance to cities.

(b) Establish a new direction for League policy by establishing general principles around
which more detailed policies may be developed by policy committees and the board of 
directors. 

(c) Consider important issues not adequately addressed by the policy committees and 
board of directors. 

(d) Amend the League bylaws (requires 2/3 vote at General Assembly). 

2



 

 

LOCATION OF MEETINGS 
 
 

 
Policy Committee Meetings 
Wednesday, September 13 
Hyatt Regency Sacramento 
1209 L Street, Sacramento 
9:00 – 11:00 a.m.:  Public Safety 
 
General Resolutions Committee 
Thursday, September 14, 1:00 p.m. 
Hyatt Regency Sacramento 
1209 L Street, Sacramento 
 
Annual Business Meeting and General Assembly Luncheon 
Friday, September 15, 12:30 p.m. 
Sacramento  Convention Center 
1400 J Street, Sacramento 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

3



 

KEY TO ACTIONS TAKEN ON RESOLUTIONS 
Resolutions have been grouped by policy committees to which they have been assigned.  
 
 

Number   Key Word Index    Reviewing Body Action 
  

  1 2 3 
1 - Policy Committee Recommendation 
     to General Resolutions Committee 
2 - General Resolutions Committee 
3 - General Assembly 

 
 
 

PUBLIC SAFETY POLICY COMMITTEE 
       1 2 3 

 1 Implement Strategies to Reduce Negative Impacts of 
Recent Changes to Criminal Laws 

 
  

2 Local Control for Emergency Medical Response    
 

 
 
 
Information pertaining to the Annual Conference Resolutions will also be posted on each 
committee’s page on the League website: www.cacities.org.  The entire Resolutions Packet will 
be posted at: www.cacities.org/resolutions. 
   

 
 

 

4

http://www.cacities.org/


 

 

KEY TO ACTIONS TAKEN ON RESOLUTIONS (Continued) 
 

Resolutions have been grouped by policy committees to which they have been assigned. 
 
 
KEY TO REVIEWING BODIES KEY TO ACTIONS TAKEN 
 
1.  Policy Committee  

 
A  Approve 

 
2.  General Resolutions Committee 

 
D   Disapprove 

 
3.  General Assembly 

 
N   No Action 

 
 

 
R   Refer to appropriate policy committee for 

study 
ACTION FOOTNOTES 
 

 
a   Amend+ 
 

*  Subject matter covered in another resolution 
 

Aa   Approve as amended+ 

**  Existing League policy Aaa   Approve with additional amendment(s)+ 
 

***  Local authority presently exists 
 

Ra   Refer as amended to appropriate policy 
committee for study+ 

  
Raa   Additional amendments and refer+ 
 

  
Da   Amend (for clarity or brevity) and 

Disapprove+ 
 

 
 
 

Na   Amend (for clarity or brevity) and take No 
Action+ 

 
W         Withdrawn by Sponsor 

 
 
 
Procedural Note:   
The League of California Cities resolution process at the Annual Conference is guided by the League 
Bylaws.  A helpful explanation of this process can be found on the League’s website by clicking on this 
link:  Resolution Process. 

5

http://www.cacities.org/Policy-Advocacy/Policy-Development/Annual-Conference-Resolutions


 

2017 ANNUAL CONFERENCE RESOLUTIONS 
 
RESOLUTION REFERRED TO PUBLIC SAFETY POLICY COMMITTEE 
 
1. A RESOLUTION OF THE LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES CALLING UPON 

THE GOVERNOR AND LEGISLATURE TO ENTER INTO DISCUSSION WITH 
LEAGUE AND OTHER PUBLIC SAFETY STAKEHOLDERS TO IDENTIFY AND 
IMPLEMENT STRATEGIES THAT WILL REDUCE THE UNINTENDED 
NEGATIVE IMPACTS OF EXISTING CRIMINAL LAW 

 
Source: City of Whittier 
Concurrence of five or more cities/city officials: Cities: La Mirada; Lakewood; Monrovia; Pico 
Rivera; Rolling Hills; Santa Fe Springs; and South Gate 
Referred to:  Public Safety Policy Committee 
Recommendation to General Resolutions Committee: 
 
 WHEREAS, during the past several years, State legislative changes have made 
fundamental alterations to the fabric of California’s criminal justice system. Many of those 
changes have been needed and necessary, as not all crimes should be punished with jail 
sentences; and  
 
 WHEREAS, California cities, counties, and the State, however, are facing increased 
crime which endangers the health and safety of police officers, residents, business owners, and 
property due to some of these legislative changes which created a situation where violent and 
career criminals are serving little to no prison time; and  
 
 WHEREAS, negative impacts from State legislative changes have been far reaching and 
crime rates and the number of victims are skyrocketing throughout California. The negative 
impacts of these laws were unintended when voters and legislators approved the laws, which 
were instead intended to help lower the prison population in California prisons and appropriately 
rehabilitate non-violent offenders; and  
 
 WHEREAS, incentives for offenders to voluntarily enroll in substance abuse programs 
have diminished, which has had the effect of eroding the safety of our communities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, AB 109 transferred nearly 45,000 felons from the State prison system to 
local jail facilities, which were not designed to house criminals on a long-term basis and were 
unprepared for such an increase in incarcerations, resulting in lower-level criminals being 
released early, directly impacting rising property crime rates throughout the State; and 
 
 WHEREAS, many probationers who have severe mental illness are released into 
communities where they continue to commit crimes that adversely impact the safety of 
community members and drain the resources of probation departments and police departments 
throughout the state; and 
 

6



 

 WHEREAS, Proposition 47, The Safe Neighborhoods and Schools Act, downgraded a 
number of serious crimes from felonies to misdemeanors—drug possession, repeated shoplifting, 
forging checks, gun theft, and possession of date-rape drugs; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Proposition 57 categorizes rape by intoxication, rape of an unconscious 
person, human trafficking involving sex with minors, drive-by shooting, assault with a deadly 
weapon, domestic violence, hate crime causing physical injury, and corporal injury to a child as 
“non-violent” felonies and offenders convicted of violating such laws are able to avoid 
appropriate prison sentences; and  
 
 WHEREAS, under Proposition 57, criminals who commit multiple crimes against 
multiple victims will be eligible for release at the same time as offenders who only committed a 
single crime against a single victim and allows repeat criminals to be eligible for release after the 
same period of incarceration as first time offenders; and 
 
 WHEREAS, cities must join together to voice their concerns for these legislative 
changes that have created an adverse impact on the safety of residents and businesses in local 
communities. 
 
 NOW, THEFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the General Assembly of the League of 
California Cities, assembled in Sacramento on September 15, 2017, to: 
 
1. Direct League staff to consider creating a task force with other organizations and jointly 

commission a report on the unintended negative impacts of recent and future criminal law 
based on appropriate documentation by local agencies to identify necessary changes, working 
with key stakeholders to promote support for resulting advocacy efforts.  

 
2. Promote an amendment of appropriate sections of AB 109 to change the criteria justifying 

the release of non-violent, non-serious, non-sex offender inmates to include their total 
criminal and mental health history instead of only their last criminal conviction. 

 
3. Continue to advocate to place into law that for the purposes of Section 32 of Article I of the 

California Constitution, a violent offense includes any of the following:  
 

• Murder or voluntary manslaughter. 
• Mayhem. 
• Rape. 
• Sodomy by force, violence, duress, menace, or threat of great bodily harm. 
• Oral copulation by force, violence, duress, menace, or threat of great bodily harm. 
• Lewd acts on a child under the age of 14 years. 
• Any felony punishable by death or imprisonment in the state prison for life. 
• Any other felony in which the defendant inflicts great or serious bodily injury on any 

person, other than an accomplice, that has been charged and proven, or any felony in 
which the defendant uses a firearm which use has been charged and proven. 

• Attempted murder. 
• Assault with intent to commit rape or robbery. 

7



 

• Assault with a deadly weapon or instrument on a peace officer. 
• Assault by a life prisoner on a non-inmate. 
• Assault with a deadly weapon by an inmate. 
• Arson. 
• Exploding a destructive device or any explosive with intent to injure. 
• Exploding a destructive device or any explosive causing great bodily injury. 
• Exploding a destructive device or any explosive with intent to murder. 
• Robbery. 
• Kidnapping. 
• Taking of a hostage by an inmate of a state prison. 
• Attempt to commit a felony punishable by death or imprisonment in the state prison for 

life. 
• Any felony in which the defendant personally used a dangerous or deadly weapon. 
• Escape from a state prison by use of force or violence. 
• Assault with a deadly weapon. 
• Extortion as defined in Penal Code section 518, or threats to victims or witnesses as 

defined in Penal Code section 136.1, which would constitute a felony violation of Penal 
Code section 186.22. 

• Carjacking. 
• Discharge of a firearm at an inhabited dwelling, vehicle, or aircraft. 
• Throwing acid or flammable substances with intent to injure. 
• Continuous sexual abuse of a child. 

 
4. Request the State to improve the Smart Justice platform to provide an effective statewide 

data sharing to allow state and local law enforcement agencies to rapidly and efficiently share 
offender information to assist in tracking and monitoring the activities of AB 109 and other 
offenders.  

 
5. Encourage the collection and organization of real world data from cities and counties on the 

universe of post-release community supervision (PRCS) offenders. 
 
6. Encourage cities throughout California to join in these advocacy efforts to mitigate the 

unintended negative impacts of recent policy changes to the criminal justice system. 
 
7. Call for the Governor and the Legislature to work with the League and others stakeholders to 

consider and implement such criminal justice system reforms. 
 

////////// 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8



 

Background Information on Resolution No. 1 
 

Source: City of Whittier 
 
Background: 
During the past several years, State legislative changes have made fundamental alterations to the 
fabric of California’s criminal justice system. Some changes have been needed, as not all crimes 
should be punished with jail sentences. These changes included AB 109 as well as Propositions 
47 and 57.  
 
Approved in 2011, AB 109 was approved, transferring nearly 45,000 felons from the State prison 
system to local jail systems, resulting in lower-level criminals being released early. Then, 
Proposition 47, so called The Safe Neighborhoods and Schools Act, was approved by California 
voters in 2014. It reclassified and downgraded a number of serious crimes from felonies to 
misdemeanors. Similarly, Proposition 57, called The Public Safety and Rehabilitation Act, was 
approved by voters in 2016 and allows the State to provide for the release of up to 30,000 
criminals convicted of “non-violent” felonies, including rape by intoxication, driveby shooting, 
human trafficking involving sex act with minors, assault with a deadly weapon, to name a few. 
Additionally, under Prop 57 repeat criminals are eligible for release after the same period of 
incarceration as first time offenders.   
 
Now, California cities and counties are facing increasing crime rates which are being connected 
to these legislative actions which created a situation where violent and career criminals are 
serving little to no prison time while low-level offenders commit multiple crimes with limited 
consequences. This increasing level of crime endangers the health and safety of our residents, 
police officers, and property. Negative impacts from these State legislative changes have been 
far reaching, and crime rates and the number of victims are increasing throughout California. The 
negative impacts of these laws were unintended when voters and legislators approved the laws, 
which were instead intended to help lower the prison population in California prisons and 
appropriately rehabilitate non-violent offenders.  
As an example, the Public Policy Institute of California reports since 2015: 

 
• California has experienced an uptick in overall crime  
• Property crime is up 145%, violent crime up 54%  
• One in four Californians view violence and street crime in their community as a 

substantial problem  
• Arrests dropped 31% for property crimes and 68% for drug offenses (due to Prop. 47) 
• The report concludes auto theft increase is a direct result of AB109 

 
To make matters even worse, during the past two years we’ve seen officers shot, wounded and 
killed in communities throughout California including Whittier, Downey, Lancaster, Palm 
Springs, San Diego, Stanislaus County, and Modoc County. Further, the number of U.S. police 
officers killed in the line of duty hit a five-year high in 2016. The National Law Enforcement 
Officers Memorial Fund’s preliminary report shows that this year's 135 fatalities were a 10% 
increase over the 123 officers who died in the line of duty last year. 
 

9



 

When taken together the increases in crime in our communities and reductions in arrests for 
many crimes plus violent attacks against police officers underscores the need for a call to action 
amongst California’s state and local leaders. This conference resolution is an important first step 
and seeks to initiate both a dialogue as well as actions to begin reforming California’s criminal 
justice system by requesting that League staff analyze the negative impacts of recent criminal 
law, identify necessary changes, and work with stakeholders to promote support for such 
advocacy efforts. The resolution also calls on the Governor, Legislature, cities, and other 
stakeholders to work together toward reforms.  
The resolution contains three specific reforms: 
 

1. Address Issues with AB 109  
 

The conference resolution promotes the amendment of appropriate sections of AB 109 to 
change the criteria justifying the release of non-violent, non-serious, non-sex offender 
inmates to include their total criminal and mental health history instead of only their last 
criminal conviction. 

 
2. Revise the Definition of Violent Crime 

 
The resolution calls for the League to advocate to place into law for the purposes of 
Section 32 of Article I of the California Constitution, a violent offense includes any of the 
following crimes:  

 
• Murder or voluntary manslaughter 
• Mayhem 
• Rape 
• Sodomy by force, violence, duress, menace, or threat of great bodily harm 
• Oral copulation by force, violence, duress, menace, or threat of great bodily harm 
• Lewd acts on a child under the age of 14 years 
• Any felony punishable by death or imprisonment in the state prison for life 
• Any other felony in which the defendant inflicts great or serious bodily injury on any 

person, other than an accomplice, that has been charged and proven, or any felony in 
which the defendant uses a firearm which use has been charged and proven 

• Attempted murder 
• Assault with intent to commit rape or robbery 
• Assault with a deadly weapon or instrument on a peace officer 
• Assault by a life prisoner on a non-inmate 
• Assault with a deadly weapon by an inmate 
• Arson 
• Exploding a destructive device or any explosive with intent to injure 
• Exploding a destructive device or any explosive causing great bodily injury 
• Exploding a destructive device or any explosive with intent to murder 
• Robbery 
• Kidnapping 
• Taking of a hostage by an inmate of a state prison 

10



 

• Attempt to commit a felony punishable by death or imprisonment in the state prison 
for life 

• Any felony in which the defendant personally used a dangerous or deadly weapon 
• Escape from a state prison by use of force or violence 
• Assault with a deadly weapon 
• Extortion as defined in Penal Code section 518, or threats to victims or witnesses as 

defined in Penal Code section 136.1, which would constitute a felony violation of 
Penal Code section 186.22 

• Carjacking 
• Discharge of a firearm at an inhabited dwelling, vehicle, or aircraft. 
• Throwing acid or flammable substances with intent to injure. 
• Continuous sexual abuse of a child. 

 
3. Data Sharing 

 
The resolution requests the State to improve the Smart Justice platform to provide an 
effective statewide data sharing to allow state and local law enforcement agencies to 
rapidly and efficiently share offender information to assist in tracking and monitoring the 
activities of AB 109 and other offenders.  

 
////////// 

 
 

League of California Cities Staff Analysis on Resolution No. 1 
 

Staff:  Tim Cromartie 
Committee: Public Safety 
 
Summary: 
This Resolution seeks to address increases in crime in the wake of AB 109 (2011), Proposition 
47 (2014), which reclassified a host of felony offenses as misdemeanors, and Proposition 57 
(2016), which revised the rules of parole for what are designated “non-violent” offenders under 
the California Penal Code, but in fact comprise a number of criminal acts that are violent in 
nature, or may be committed to facilitate a violent outcome (for example, discharging a firearm 
from a motor vehicle). 
 
This Resolution would direct staff to seek legislation expanding the term “violent felony” as 
defined in the California Penal Code; to tighten the criteria for the release of non-violent, non-
serious, non-sex offender inmates; to mandate consideration of an inmate’s entire criminal 
history as part of the deliberations involving whether to grant in individual parole; and to 
consider creation of a task force that would be charged with issuing a report recommending 
further changes in law, and supported by documentation collected by local agencies and other 
key stakeholders.  
 
 
 

11



 

Background: 
Since 2011, changes in state law, starting with AB 109, altered the fabric of California’s criminal 
justice system.  In 2011, AB 109 began to shift nearly 45,000 felons from the state prison system 
to local county jails.  Prior to AB 109, many of California’s more heavily populated counties 
already had jail systems that were operating under court-ordered or self-imposed population 
caps.  As a result, AB 109 implementation triggered changes in that county jails experienced 
over time an influx of a rougher class of offender, and many lower level petty criminals 
committing new offenses were simply booked and released, serving no jail time at all.   
 
Proposition 47 followed in 2014, reclassifying a host of felony offenses as misdemeanors and 
increasing the threshold amount for a felony charge of grand theft from $450.00 to $900.00.  The 
effect of this change was to significantly stimulate the volume of petty theft, shoplifting, auto 
theft, and organized retail theft (shoplifting involving multiple persons with cell phones, 
designated getaway drivers, and a pre-determined escape route often involving a short trip to a 
major highway).  Proposition 57, approved by voters in 2016, facilitates the potential early 
release of a large number of “non-violent” offenders by providing that inmates are eligible for 
parole once they have served 100% of their base sentence, without regard to any time served as a 
result of any sentencing enhancements.  The universe of “non-violent” offenders could include 
individuals who have committed the following offenses: rape by intoxication, attempted drive-by 
shooting, assault with a deadly weapon, throwing acid with the intent to disfigure, to name but a 
few offenses.  Since current law defines a “non-violent offender” based on the individual’s most 
recent commitment offense, even if the individual is a repeat offender, the State Parole Board 
must still consider that person’s parole application. 
 
This state of affairs includes factors such as a higher proportion of offenders at large on our city 
streets, many of whom have had little in the way of rehabilitation programming while 
incarcerated, some with drug habits, who are more violent now that when initially incarcerated.  
Unless they engage in major illegal activity (murder, rape, arson, armed robbery), the available 
sanctions for any violations they commit, such as flash incarceration, i.e. temporary incarceration 
for 48-72 hours in a city or county jail, scarcely provide a meaningful deterrent to further 
criminal activity.   
 
Communities in California are now facing increasing crime rates which can be linked to these 
recent legislative changes, which probation officers and local law enforcement are struggling to 
monitor and contain a situation in which a dramatically increase universe of offenders are at 
large in our communities. 
 
The Public Policy Institute of California reports that since 2015: 

 
• California has experienced an increase in overall crime  
• Property crime is up 145% 
• Violent crime is up 54%  
• One in four Californians view violence and street crime in their community as a 

substantial problem  
• Arrests dropped 31% for property crimes and 68% for drug offenses (due to Prop. 47) 
• The report concludes auto theft increase is a direct result of AB 109 

12



 

Support:   
Cities of La Mirada, Lakewood, Monrovia, Pico Rivera, Rolling Hills, Santa Fe Springs, and 
South Gate 
 
Opposition: 
None received. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
The collective and cumulative effect of the current criminal justice policies has led to increased 
pressure on county general funds for increased resources for probation supervision and 
incarceration in county jails, as well as identical pressure on municipal general funds related to 
increased law enforcement activity and in some areas, increased emergency medical services 
calls.  Should the objectives outlined by the resolution be achieved, those pressures will be 
alleviated to a significant but undetermined amount.  
 
Comment: 
This measure is a response to a trend of rapidly mounting frustration among cities beset by calls 
for more law enforcement resources as a result of ongoing, sustained criminal activity.  There is 
a growing sense among law enforcement professionals and local elected officials that current 
policies which have reduced criminal penalties, reclassified felonies as misdemeanors and 
facilitated what amounts to early release of many offenders who are not truly non-violent, will in 
time result in a high-profile tragedy involving significant loss of life.  
 
Existing League Policy: 
In regard to incarceration policy, the League supports stiffer penalties for violent offenders.  In 
2014, the League joined the California Police Chiefs in opposing Proposition 47, which reduces 
sentencing penalties for specified non-serious and non-violent drug and property crimes. It 
directed that the following offenses would be treated as misdemeanors, in most instances 
irrespective of the circumstances: 

• Commercial Burglary 
• Forgery 
• Passing Bad Checks 
• Grand Theft 
• Receipt of Stolen Property 
• Petty Theft with a Prior Offense 
• Drug Possession 

 
In 2013, the League Board of Directors approved a resolution pertaining to AB 109 (2011), 
which implemented Public Safety Realignment and brought significant changes to the state’s 
incarceration policy. Specifically, it provided that specified categories of felony offenders 
previously sentenced to state prison, would prospectively be sentenced to terms in county jails.  
 
The League’s Resolution had two significant components relevant to this resolution: 

1) It urged the Governor’s office to adjust the implementation of Public Safety Realignment 
so that the criteria examined to evaluate the appropriateness of release of non-violent, 
non-serious, non-sex offender inmates would include their total criminal and mental 

13



 

history, instead of merely the most recent criminal conviction for which they are 
currently committed; and 

2) It urged the Governor’s office to expedite the development of an effective statewide 
data sharing mechanism allowing state and local law enforcement agencies too rapidly 
and efficiently share offender information to assist in tracking and monitoring the 
activities of AB 109 and other offenders. 
 

Finally, the League in 2016 opposed Proposition 57, which altered rules for parole eligibility for 
non-violent felons, potentially facilitating parole before an individual has served any time toward 
a sentencing enhancement, and ushered in new rules for good time behavior seeking to 
incentivize inmates to undergo rehabilitation programming of an educational/vocational nature. 
 
 
RESOLUTION REFERRED TO PUBLIC SAFETY POLICY COMMITTEE 
 
2. A RESOLUTION OF THE LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES SUPPORTING 

LEGISLATION AMENDING GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 38611 TO 
CLARIFY THE DEFINITION OF LOCAL CONTROL PROVIDING BROAD 
STATUTORY AUTHORITY FOR LOCAL OFFICIALS TO DETERMINE 
EMERGENCY SERVICE LEVELS AND DIRECT EMERGENCY MEDICAL 
RESPONSE WITHIN THEIR JURISDICTIONS 

Source:  City of Tracy 
Concurrence of five or more cities/city officials:  Cities: Lathrop, Lodi, Manteca, Stockton, and 
Consumnes Fire Department (Cities of Elk Grove and Galt) 
Referred to:  Public Safety Policy Committee 
Recommendation to General Resolutions Committee: 
 
 WHEREAS, Government Code Section 38611 was last amended in 1957 and does not 
contain language clarifying the broad scope of emergency services as provided by present day 
fire departments; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Government Code Section 38611 requires further definition for general law 
and charter cities in determining service levels for the delivery of emergency services 
commensurate with the resources provided by the local government body; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 7 of Article XI of the California Constitution, 
municipal governments are vested with police power which imposes on the responsibility to 
protect public safety and public health and municipal governments must provide or contract for 
fire and/or emergency medical services; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the local provision of fire protection services, rescue services, emergency 
medical services, hazardous material emergency response services, ambulance services, and 
other services relating to the protection of lives and property is critical to the public peace, 
health, and safety of the state; and 
 

14



 

 WHEREAS, local fire and/or emergency medical services are financed by local 
taxpayers and the availability and use of such services is determined by the local governing body 
of the jurisdiction to which services are directly provided; and 
 
 WHEREAS, amending Government Code Section 38611 would provide the chief of a 
fire department specific authority to protect public safety and public health within the 
jurisdictional boundaries of the fire department. 
 
 RESOLVED, that the League of California Cities General Assembly, assembled at the 
League Annual Conference on September 15, 2017 in Sacramento, calls for the Governor and the 
Legislature to work with the League and other stakeholders to amend Government Code Section 
38611 clarifying the definition of local control, providing broad statutory authority for local 
officials to determine emergency service levels and direct emergency medical response within 
their jurisdictions. 
 

////////// 
 
 

Background Information on Resolution No. 2 
 

Source:  City of Tracy 
 
Background: 
In 1980, the State Legislature enacted the Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Act in response 
to the development of paramedic services and a concern that there was a lack of medical 
oversight and coordination of emergency medical services.  The EMS Act contains 100 different 
provisions in nine separate chapters of the California Health and Safety Code.  The EMS Act 
created a two-tiered system that established a State EMS Agency to coordinate state-wide EMS 
activities and to develop state-wide minimum EMS policies and a local tier (Local EMS Agency) 
to plan, implement and evaluate an EMS System.  The statute also includes language that 
establishes “The medical direction and management of an emergency medical services system 
shall be under the medical control of the medical director of the local EMS Agency.”  In each 
county, the local EMS Agency sets local EMS policy, administers and provides medical 
oversight for cities and special fire districts to deliver EMS services within the county. 
 
In the late 1970’s, as the EMS Act was being developed, the League of California Cities weighed 
heavily concerning the impact of the proposed EMS Act on cities.  The League of California 
Cities argued against depriving a city of local control over EMS service levels.  The League of 
California Cities wrote, “We believe (local control) is important because city taxpayers 
financially support (EMS) programs and city management is responsible for their efficient 
utilization.  The city council is responsible for the level of service and the cost of the program, 
wholly unrelated to the medical questions.”  Based on that argument, additional language was 
included in the EMS policy that allowed local agencies that were providing EMS service to 
continue (and even obligated) them to continue to provide EMS services at the same levels as 
prior to 1980.  This addition to the EMS Act (Section 1797.201 – became known as “201 

15



 

Rights”) has been very controversial and has led to several lawsuits between cities/special 
districts and local EMS Agencies. 
 
The City of Tracy in San Joaquin County has become the epicenter on the issue of local control 
as it relates to who has the authority to determine which resources will respond to medical 
emergencies.  Several incidents have been noted where poor patient outcomes were the result of 
a failed county policy (SJCEMS Agency Policy 3202) that restricts local fire departments from 
responding to “low-level” emergencies.  The EMS policy decisions within San Joaquin County 
have potential implications on every local community within the state of California and 
increasingly threaten local control. 
 
Proposed Amendment  
The proposed amendment to Government Code Section 38611 would clarify local control and 
allow the local governing bodies to determine which services are directly provided within their 
respective jurisdictions.  The existing law is extremely limited in scope having been last 
amended in 1957, at a time when fire departments did not routinely provide many of the 
specialized services of today.  Changes in services provided include but are not limited to 
hazardous materials response, specialized rescue, and emergency medical services.  The 
amendment aims to support the long-standing tradition in California of local control over the 
types, levels, and availability of these services. 
 

///////// 
 

 
League of California Cities Staff Analysis on Resolution No. 2 

 
Staff:  Tim Cromartie 
Committee: Public Safety 
 
Summary: 
This resolution calls for the Governor and the Legislature to work with the League and other 
stakeholders to amend Government Code Section 38611 clarifying the definition of local control, 
providing broad statutory authority for local officials to determine emergency service levels and 
direct emergency medical response within their jurisdictions. 
 
Background: 
In 1980, the State Legislature enacted the Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Act in response 
to the development of paramedic services and a concern that there was a lack of medical 
oversight and coordination of emergency medical services.  The EMS Act contains 100 different 
provisions in nine separate chapters of the California Health and Safety Code.  The EMS Act 
created a two-tiered system that established a State EMS Agency to coordinate state-wide EMS 
activities and to develop state-wide minimum EMS policies and a local tier (Local EMS Agency) 
to plan, implement and evaluate an EMS System.   
 
The statute also includes language that establishes “The medical direction and management of 
an emergency medical services system shall be under the medical control of the medical director 

16



 

of the local EMS Agency.”  In each county, the local EMS Agency sets local EMS policy, 
administers and provides medical oversight for cities and special fire districts to deliver EMS 
services within the county. 
 
In the late 1970’s, as the EMS Act was being developed, the League of California Cities weighed 
heavily concerning the impact of the proposed EMS Act on cities.  The League argued against 
depriving a city of local control over EMS service levels.  The League wrote, “We believe (local 
control) is important because city taxpayers financially support (EMS) programs and city 
management is responsible for their efficient utilization.  The city council is responsible for the 
level of service and the cost of the program, wholly unrelated to the medical questions.”  Based 
on that argument, additional language was included in the EMS policy that allowed local 
agencies that were providing EMS service to continue (and even obligated) them to continue to 
provide EMS services at the same levels as prior to 1980.  This addition to the EMS Act (Section 
1797.201 – became known as “201 Rights”) has been very controversial and has led to several 
lawsuits between cities/special districts and local EMS Agencies. 
 
The City of Tracy in San Joaquin County has become one of the epicenters on the issue of local 
control as it relates to who has the authority to determine which resources will respond to 
medical emergencies.  Several incidents have been noted where poor patient outcomes have been 
attributed by some observers to a county policy (SJCEMS Agency Policy 3202) that restricts 
local fire departments from responding to “low-level” emergencies.  The EMS policy decisions 
within San Joaquin County have potential implications on every local community within the 
state of California and increasingly threaten local control. 
 
Support:   
Cities of Lathrop, Lodi, Manteca, City of Stockton, and Consumnes Fire Department (Cities of 
Elk Grove and Galt) 
 
Opposition: 
None received. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
This resolution, if its directive can be achieved, will have no direct fiscal impact on cities.  It will 
however, provide an atmosphere in which cities that have invested significant resources in 
building up and maintaining an independent EMS capability can have confidence that it will be 
deployed as intended. 
 
Comment: 
While this resolution calls for very specific action to clarify the rules governing emergency 
medical services, ideally it would be more generally worded to allow greater flexibility in 
pursuing legislative and other solutions to a problem that has existed for decades, spawning both 
legislation and multiple incidents of litigation. 
 
However, it accurately expresses the legitimate frustration of cities in their efforts to provide 
emergency medical services (EMS) while abiding by the directives of their local emergency 
medical services authorities (LEMSA’s), which are county entities.  Counties have broad 

17



 

discretion under existing case law in how they administer EMS under the doctrine of medical 
control.  To the degree there is dissatisfaction on the part of cities within a given county or 
counties, the following should be noted: 
 

1) A task force convened by the California Emergency Medical Services Authority, the state 
entity with jurisdiction over this subject matter, made significant headway in crafting 
regulations governing the provision of ground emergency medical transport -- until 
disputes over local control and the criteria under which a local (municipal) agency could 
lay claim to the exclusive right to provide EMS in a specific operating area led to a 
lawsuit being filed by the California Fire Chiefs Association.  That suit effectively 
suspended the work of the Task Force. 

2) Over the past two decades, multiple attempts at legislation to resolve this issue have been 
tried, most without success.  It was in part the multiple attempts at legislation that 
triggered the formation of the above-referenced task force.   

 
Existing League Policy: 
The League supports the fire service mission of saving lives and protecting property through fire 
prevention, disaster preparedness, hazardous-materials mitigation, specialized rescue, etc. as well 
as cities’ authority and discretion to provide all emergency services to their communities.  
 
The League supports and strives to ensure local control of emergency medical services by 
authorizing cities and fire districts to prescribe and monitor the manner and scope of pre-hospital 
emergency medical services, including transport through ambulance services, all provided within 
local boundaries for the purpose of improving the level of pre-hospital emergency medical 
service. 
 
The League supports legislation to provide the framework for a solution to longstanding conflict 
between cities, counties, the fire service and LEMSA’s particularly by local advisory committees 
to review and approve the EMS plan and to serve as an appeals body.  Conflicts over EMS 
governance may be resolved if stakeholders are able to participate in EMS system design and 
evaluation and if complainants are given a fair and open hearing.  
 
The League opposes legislation, regulations and standards that impose minimum staffing and 
response time standards for city fire and EMS services since such determinations should reflect 
the conditions and priorities of individual cities.  
 
The League supports Emergency 911 systems to ensure cities and counties are represented on 
decisions affecting emergency response. 
  

18



 

 
 

LETTERS OF CONCURRENCE 
Resolution No. 1 

 
Implement Strategies to Reduce Negative Impacts of 

Recent Changes to Criminal Laws  

19



20



21



22



 
 

       
                                                                                                                                                             
 
July 12, 2017 
 
General Resolutions Committee 
League of California Cities 
1400 K Street, Suite 400 
Sacramento, CA 95814  
 
RE:  2017 Conference Resolution 

Strategies to Improve Negative Impacts of Criminal Law 
Notice of Support 

 
Dear Committee: 
 
The City of Pico Rivera supports the League of California Cities Annual Conference 
Resolution calling on the Governor and Legislature to enter into discussion with the 
League and other public safety stakeholders to identify and implement strategies that will 
improve the unintended negative impacts of existing criminal law.   
 
The City of Pico Rivera has seen increases in property crime that may have resulted from 
a combination of legislative actions and voter-approved initiatives. Following are some 
specific impacts provided by the Pico Rivera Sheriff’s Department: 
 
Part I crimes 
Robbery is up 10.26% in 2017 compared to 2016  
Larceny Theft is up 4.09% in 2017 compared to 2016 
 
Part II crimes 
Weapon Law is up 9.68% in 2017 compared to 2016 
Felony Transport & or Sales of controlled substance (except Marijuana) is up 44.44% 
compared to 2016 
Misdemeanor Possession of a Controlled Substance (excluding Marijuana) is up 
56.06% compared to 2016 
Under the influence of Narcotic is up 28.57% in 2017 compared to 2016 
 
The proposed annual conference resolution seeks to turn around these negative impacts 
from existing criminal law and considers proactive measures that could reduce such 
impacts. 
  

(562) 801‐4379 
Web: www.pico‐rivera.org ∙ e‐mail: rbobadilla@pico‐rivera.org 

23



24



25



26



 
William K. Rounds, Mayor • Jay Sarno, Mayor Pro Tem 

City Council 
Richard J. Moore • Juanita Trujillo • Joe Angel Zamora   

City Manager 
Thaddeus McCormack 

 

  
July 11, 2017 

 
General Resolutions Committee 
League of California Cities 
1400 K Street, Suite 400 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
 
RE:  2017 Conference Resolution 

Strategies to Improve Negative Impacts of Criminal Law 
Notice of Support 

 
Dear Committee: 
 
The City of Santa Fe Springs supports the League of California Cities Annual Conference Resolution calling 
on the Governor and Legislature to enter into discussion with the League and other public safety 
stakeholders to identify and implement strategies that will improve the unintended negative impacts of 
existing criminal law.   
 
The City of Santa Fe Springs has seen increases in property crime that may have resulted from a 
combination of legislative actions and voter-approved initiatives. In addition, the City of Santa Fe Springs 
contracts with the Whittier Police Department for Law Enforcement Services.  In February, Whittier Police 
Department Officer Keith Boyer was gunned down by a AB 109 offender in a heinous act of indiscrimate 
violence.  We feel strongly that AB 109 and the loosening of oversight and control over recidivist offenders 
was atleast partially responsible in Officer Boyer’s death.  We believe that the proposed annual conference 
resolution seeks to turn around these negative impacts from existing criminal law and considers proactive 
measures that could reduce such impacts. 
 
The resolution directs League staff to consider creating a task force with other organizations and jointly 
commission a report on the unintended negative impacts of recent criminal law to identify necessary 
changes, working with key stakeholders to promote support for resulting advocacy efforts.  
 
The resolution also promotes an amendment of appropriate sections of AB 109 to change the criteria 
justifying the release of non-violent, non-serious, non-sex offender inmates to include their total criminal 
and mental health history instead of only their last criminal conviction. It encourages continued advocacy 
to make “violent offenses” include crimes that meet the plain language definition of “violent”. 
  
The resolution further asks the State to improve the Smart Justice platform to allow state and local law 
enforcement agencies to rapidly share information to track offenders, and encourages data collection on 
post-release community supervision offenders. 

27



 
William K. Rounds, Mayor • Jay Sarno, Mayor Pro Tem 

City Council 
Richard J. Moore • Juanita Trujillo • Joe Angel Zamora   

City Manager 
Thaddeus McCormack 

 

July 10, 2017 
Page 2 
2017 Conference Resolution 
 
The passage of this resolution would provide a range of important reforms that would enhance public safety 
in our community. For these reasons, the City of Santa Fe Springs strongly supports this resolution to 
strategically address criminal justice reforms.   
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
William K. Rounds, Mayor 
City of Santa Fe Springs 
 
 
 
 
 
 

28



29



 

LETTERS OF CONCURRENCE 
Resolution No. 2 

 
Local Control for Emergency Medical Response 

30



31



32



CITY COUNCIL

DOUG KUEHNE, Mayor
ALAN NAKANISHI,

Mayor Pro Tempore
MARK CHANDLER
BOB JOHNSON

JOANNE MOUNCE

CITY OF LODI
CITY HALL, 221 WEST PINE STREET

P.O. BOX 3006
LODt, CALIFORNIA 95241-1910

(209) 333-6702 t FAX (209) 333-6807
www.lodi.qov citvclerk@lodi.qov

July 19,2017

The Honorable JoAnne Mounce, President
League of California Cities
1400 K Street, Suite 400
Sacramento, CA 95814

RE RESOLUTION OF THE LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES SUPPORTING
LEG¡SLAT|ON AMENDING GC 5386ll TO CLARIFY DEFINITION OF LOCAL
CONTROL PROVIDING BROAD STATUTORY AUTHORITY FOR LOCAL
OFFICIALS TO DETERMINE EMERGENCY SERVICE LEVELS AND DIRECT
EMERGENCY MEDICAL RESPONSE WITHIN THEIR JURISDICTIONS

The City of Lodi supports the proposed resolution to support legislation amending
Government Code 538611 to clarify the definition of local control providing broad
statutory authority for local officials to determine emergency service levels and direct
emergency medical response within their jurisdictions.

Accordingly, we concur in the submission of the resolution for consideration by the
League of California Cities General Assembly at its annual meeting on September 15,

2017.

Government Code Section 38611 does not contain language clarifying the broad scope
of emergency services as provided by present day fire departments. The code requires
further definition for general law and charter cities in determining service levels for the
delivery of emergency services commensurate with the resources provided by the local
government body. Amending Government Code Section 38611 would provide the chief of
a fire department specific authority to protect public safety and public health within the
jurisdictional boundaries of the fire department.

The City of Lodi is in strong support of providing statutory authority for local officials to
determine emergency service levels and direct emergency medical response within their
jurisdictions.

Since rely,

Doug

STEPHEN SCHWABAUER
City Manager

JENNIFER M. FERRAIOLO
CitY Clerk

JANICE D. MAGDICH
City Attorney

ne
Mayor, ity of Lodi

DIIJMF

cc: Larry Rooney, Fire Chief, City of Lodi
Randall Bradley, City of Tracy, randall. bradlev@ci.tracy. ca. us
Stephen Qualls, League of California Cities, squalls(ôcacities.orq

N:\Administration\CLERK\Councit\CORRESP\LETTERS\lemergencyservices2.doc

33



34



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

July 13, 2017 
 
The Honorable JoAnne Mounce, President      
League of California Cities 
1400 K Street    
Sacramento, CA 95814 
 
SUBJECT:  Resolution of the League of California Cities Supporting Legislation 

Providing Broad Statutory Authority for Local Officials to Determine 
Emergency Service Levels - SUPPORT 

 
Dear President Mounce, 
 
On behalf of the City of Stockton, I wish to voice our support of the City of Tracy 
proposed resolution for consideration by League membership.  Stockton supports this 
resolution for the following reasons: 
 

1) The City of Stockton Legislative Program seeks the broadest authority for the City 
Council to make decisions locally, particularly related to the local exercise of police 
powers; 

2) The City of Stockton Legislative Program advocates for efforts that impact the 
City’s ability to enhance the well-being, quality of life, health, and safety of 
residents; 

3) The City of Stockton has experienced challenges and frustrations in delivering the 
highest quality of emergency medical services to our residents due to provision of 
the Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Act.  

4) Amendments to the EMS Act would clarify local control and allow governing bodies 
to determine which services are directly provided within their respective 
jurisdictions. 

 
For these reasons, the City of Stockton concurs with and supports the City of Tracy 
proposed resolution for consideration by League membership. 
 
 
 
 
MICHAEL TUBBS 
MAYOR 
 
MT:cc 
 
cc:  Stockton City Councilmembers  
 Kurt Wilson, Stockton City Manager 

MICHAEL TUBBS 

Mayor 

 

ELBERT HOLMAN 

Vice Mayor 

District 1 

DAN WRIGHT 

District 2 

 

SUSAN LOFTHUS 

District 3 

 

SUSAN LENZ 

District 4 

 

 CHRISTINA FUGAZI 

District 5 

 

JESÚS ANDRADE 

District 6 

 

 
 

OFFICE OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY HALL   425 N. El Dorado Street    Stockton, CA  95202 

209 / 937-8244    Fax 209 / 937-8568 

 

35



Staff Report re Response to LAFCo Progress Report Request to the 2015 MSR & SOI  Page 1 of 3 
August 30, 2017 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Brian Dossey, Administrative Services Director 

VIA:  Bill Norton, Interim City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 13, 2017 

SUBJECT: Response to LAFCo Progress Report Request to the 2015 MSR & SOI 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council by motion: 

APPROVE THE TOWN’S RESPONSE TO THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
(LAFCo) REQUEST FOR A PROGRESS REPORT TO THE 2015 MUNICIPAL SERVICE 
REVIEW (MSR) AND SPHERE OF INFLUENCE (SOI) UPDATE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Town recently received a request from LAFCo for a progress report to the 2015 Municipal 
Service Review and Sphere of Influence study for the Town of Colma (Attachment A).  In the 
2015 report, LAFCo made governance recommendations pertaining to the growing pension and 
obligation costs, the Colma Highway Lighting District, and Colma’s composite crime rate. 

Staff received the request for a progress report on August 23, 2017, and LAFCo is requesting 
the Town’s response by September 14, 2017.  Staff has prepared a draft response letter, and is 
seeking City Council approval (Attachment B). 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

BACKGROUND 

In 2015 LAFCo conducted a Municipal Service Review (MSR) and Sphere of Influence (SOI) 
Study for San Mateo County and circulated the Draft Report to Cities and Special Districts to 
review and respond to governance recommendations.  Attachment C is the final version of the 
MSR & SOI that was produced in September 2015.  The report identified three governance 
recommendations for the Town: 

1. The Town should address growing pension and employee obligation costs.

2. Merge the Colma Highway Lighting District (CHLD) within Town boundaries with the
Town of Colma.

Item #13



Staff Report re Response to LAFCo Progress Report Request to the 2015 MSR & SOI  Page 2 of 3 
August 30, 2017 

3. The Town should monitor the composite crime rate because it is statistically high, and 
determine if additional police services are warranted. 

The City Council responded to the 2015 draft report at the June 17, 2015 City Council meeting 
addressing some of the issues outlined in the report.  (Attachment D). 

ANALYSIS 

Staff recommends the City Council approve the draft response letter (Attachment B) addressing 
the governance recommendations provided by LAFCo.  In summary: 

• The Town has made efforts to address the growing pension and employee obligations 
concerns by negotiating labor agreements that change the OPEB benefits for future 
employees.  Staff intends to bring the Town’s net pension obligations before the City 
Council to consider the opportunity to contribute funds that will reduce the pension 
liability sometime in October or November of this year. 

• The Town is reviewing the feasibility of taking over the CHLD, and there is some merit 
to the recommendation, but staff needs to gather more information before bringing the 
issue before the City Council for consideration. 

• The Town agrees composite crime rate is consistently high; however, the rate is based 
on per capita. The Town’s population is 1,506, but any given day there can be 25,000 
people in Town shopping or visiting one of the Town’s cemeteries. However, Town staff 
will continue to monitor the composite crime rate to determine if additional focus on 
police services is warranted.    

 

The Town’s response also addresses its objection to the recommended dissolution of the Colma 
Fire Protection District and dissolution of Broadmoor, and encourages LAFCO to support the 
status quo alternative for each governance option in the final MSR. 

Council Adopted Values 
 
Responding to LAFCo’s Progress Report Update is the responsible action because it 
demonstrates Council’s willingness to collaborate on creating efficiencies in local government. 
 
Alternatives 

The City Council could choose from one of the following two alternatives: 

1. Approve the response letter with edit or changes. 

2. Not approve the response letter, and direct staff on how the City Council would like staff 
to address the MSR & SOI recommendations with LAFCo. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the City Council by motion, approve the response letter to LAFCo addressing 
their request for an update to the MSR and SOI. 



Staff Report re Response to LAFCo Progress Report Request to the 2015 MSR & SOI  Page 3 of 3 
August 30, 2017 

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Progress Report Request – 2015 MSR & SOI Update – Town of Colma 
B. Draft Response Letter to LAFCo 
C. Final 2015 MSR & SOI Study 
D. 2015 Response Letter to LAFCo regarding draft MSR & SOI Report 





COMMISSIONERS: DON HORSLEY, CHAIR, County ▪ MIKE O’NEILL, VICE CHAIR, City ▪ JOSHUA COSGROVE, Special District ▪ ANN DRAPER, Public
RICH GARBARINO, City ▪ JOE SHERIDAN, Special District ▪ WARREN SLOCUM, County 

ALTERNATES: VACANT, Special District ▪ HARVEY RARBACK, City ▪ SEPI RICHARDSON, Public ▪ DAVE PINE, County 

STAFF: MARTHA POYATOS, EXECUTIVE OFFICER ▪ REBECCA ARCHER, LEGAL COUNSEL ▪ JEAN BROOK, COMMISSION CLERK 

August 23, 2017 

CORRECTED* 

Bill Norton, Interim General Manager 
Town of Colma 
1198 El Camino Real 
Colma, CA 94014 

Subject: Progress Report Request – 2015 Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update – 
Town of Colma 

Dear Mr. Norton, 

As you know, on September 16, 2015, the San Mateo Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) 
accepted the final North County Municipal Service Review (MSR) and Sphere of Influence (SOI) Update, 
adopted determinations, and reaffirmed the SOI for each of four cities and six special districts in 
northern San Mateo County, including the Town of Colma. 

LAFCo requests a progress report for your agency that includes 1) the general information below, and 2) 
the status of those issues identified in the MSR, including how the recommendations have been, are 
being, or will be addressed. Please refer to the attached determinations for more detailed information. 
The entire report can be found at: 

http://lafco.smcgov.org/documents/north-county-cities-and-special-districts-final-9-16-2015 

General Information 

Please provide the documents and information requested below. 

• Financial updates:

o Provide all budgets adopted since the MSR/SOI

o Provide all audits completed since the MSR/SOI

o Describe any changes in your agency’s financial position

• Describe any new liability, including litigation, that affects your agency

• Describe any new joint powers agreements or contracts for service

Recommendations for the Town of Colma 

Please indicate the plans/actions your agency has under taken to address each of the following 
recommendations from the report. 

Attachment A



August 23, 2017 
Page 2 

MSR Recommendations 

Accountability for community service needs, including government structure and operational facilities 

Two governance options were determined: 

1) Maintain the status quo, in which case the Town should address growing pension and employee
obligation costs.

2) Merge the Colma Highway Lighting District (CHLD) within Town boundaries with the Town of
Colma, which may realize operational and fiscal efficiencies and result in a reduced assessment
for Colma residents. The Town should pursue a detailed study of this option, taking into
consideration the maintaining lighting district funds segregated from the Towns general
property tax revenue in the form of a subsidiary district.

SOI Recommendations 

Present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services that the agency provides or is 
authorized to provide 

Since the composite crime rate level is statistically high, the Town should monitor this statistic to 
determine if additional focus on police services is warranted. 

Sphere of Influence* 

Reaffirm the current Town of Colma’s coterminous sphere of influence. 

Submit Follow-up Report to LAFCo 

Please return your response to LAFCo via mail or email by September 14, 2017: 

San Mateo LAFCo 
455 County Center, 2nd Floor 
Redwood City, CA 94063 
mpoyatos@smcgov.org 

If you have any questions regarding this request, please do not hesitate to contact me at (650) 363-4224 
or mpoyatos@smcgov.org. 

Sincerely, 

Martha M. Poyatos 
Executive Officer 

Attachment: Final MSR/SOI Determinations for the Town of Colma 



August 23, 2017 
Page 3 

 
 

Town of Colma 

Recommended Municipal Service Review Determinations 

Based on the information, issues and analysis presented in this report, proposed MSR determinations 
pursuant to Government Code Section 56430, are presented below for Commission consideration: 

 

Growth and population for 
affected area. 

According to the most recent Census data, the Town of Colma has 1,492 
residents, making it San Mateo’s smallest city by population.  Colma’s 
small population grew from 1,187 in 2000 to 1,403 in 2010, increasing by 
216 residents or 18 percent.  The Association of Bay Area Governments 
(ABAG) predicts that Colma will continue modest growth over the next 20 
years to reach a population of 2,151 in 2035.  However, since the 1980s, 
Colma’s economy has become increasingly diversified with a variety of 
retail businesses, a cardroom facility, and one of Northern California’s 
largest collections of car dealerships serving a regional market.  These 
factors result in a significant spike in daytime population and have 
impacts on police services and fire protection (provided through the 
Colma Fire Protection District). 
 
 

Location and characteristics 
of any disadvantaged 
unincorporated 
communities within or 
contiguous to the sphere of 
influence. 

There are no disadvantaged unincorporated communities (DUCs) located 
within or contiguous to the Town of Colma’s sphere of influence. 

Present and planned 
capacity of public facilities, 
adequacy of public services, 
and infrastructure needs or 
deficiencies related to 
sewers, municipal and 
industrial water, and 
structural fire protection in 
any disadvantaged, 
unincorporated 
communities within or 
contiguous to the sphere of 
influence. 

There are no disadvantaged unincorporated communities (DUCs) located 
within or contiguous to the Town of Colma’s sphere of influence. 



August 23, 2017 
Page 4 
 
 
Financial ability of agencies 
to provide services. 

As a low property tax city, Colma is highly dependent on sales taxes (59 
percent) and cardroom taxes (27 percent).  The remaining 14 percent is 
derived from property taxes and other revenue sources.  Colma has 
adopted a Strategic Plan that includes development strategies to increase 
business investment to generate additional taxes and fee revenues. The 
cardroom revenues have stayed generally consistent in recent years and 
are not expected to increase substantially. 
 
Colma is in a unique situation of having set aside reserves over several 
prior years and being able to draw on those reserves during the past 
seven to eight years.  The Town’s reserve balance as of June 30, 2014 was 
$34,429,833. 
 
The Town’s leadership continues to look toward improving its financial 
situation through incorporating economic development as a key 
component of its Strategic Plan implementation.  Deteriorating 
infrastructure and a delay of major maintenance over the past seven to 
eight years has built up a backlog of maintenance projects.  Public pension 
and benefit liabilities have been calculated to be about $8.2 million over 
the next five years, and increased retirement and medical costs are 
projected. 

Status of, and opportunities 
for, shared facilities. 

The Town of Colma has engaged in a number of cooperative and 
contractual arrangements to increase management and/or operational 
efficiencies.  These include, but are not limited to, the following: 

• The Town contracts with the City of South San Francisco for 
streetlight and signal maintenance. 

• Sanitary sewer maintenance within Colma is provided by the 
North San Mateo County Sanitation District by contract. 

• Fire suppression services are provided by the Colma Fire 
Protection District. 

• Public Works, Planning and Building Department services are 
provided by CSG Consultants, Inc. 

• The Town contracts with the City of South San Francisco Police 
Department to provide dispatch services in off-peak hours. 

• Animal Control services are provided through contract with San 
Mateo County JPA with the Peninsula Humane Society (PHS). 

 
Accountability for 
community service needs, 
including government 
structure and operational 
facilities. 

The Town of Colma is governed by a five-member City Council, elected at 
large.  The Council meets on the second Wednesday of each month at 
7:30 pm.  Councilmembers are compensated $924 per month for their 
service.  Meeting agendas are posted on three public bulletin boards, and 
the Town’s website on the third business day in advance of any regular 
meeting of the City Council.  Agendas for special meetings are posted at 
least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.  Citizens may also request to be 
sent agendas and any agenda packet materials via USPS or email. 
 
Colma’s website provides the public with Internet access to City Council 



August 23, 2017 
Page 5 

 
 

agendas and minutes, public notices, announcements, budgets, audits, 
and capital improvement programs.  The website also includes a 
“transparency” link that offers the public an interactive tool to explore 
the Town’s budget in various graphical formats.   
 
Two alternative governance options were identified for the Town of 
Colma: 
 
Maintain status quo: 
 
Colma has the smallest service population (1,492 residents) of any city in 
San Mateo County.  Despite a backlog of maintenance projects (largely 
due to the recession of the past seven to eight years), the City has 
managed to maintain a substantial reserve of approximately $34.4 
million.  Services are adequate for the current service population and 
limited growth is projected in the future.  The City is highly dependent on 
sales tax and cardroom revenues. Like many cities, Colma faces growing 
pension and employee obligation costs. 
 
Merge the Town of Colma and the Colma Highway Lighting District: 
 
The Colma Highway Lighting District (CHLD), currently a County-governed 
district, provides street lighting services for a portion of the Town of 
Colma, Olympic Country Club, Broadmoor Village, unincorporated Colma, 
and a portion of San Bruno Mountain Park.  The District, formed in 1909, 
is governed by the five-member San Mateo County Board of Supervisors.  
Merging the CHLD within Town boundaries with the Town of Colma may 
realize operational and fiscal efficiencies and result in a reduced 
assessment for Colma residents.  Both agencies should pursue a detailed 
study of this option, taking into consideration the maintaining lighting 
district funds segregated from the Towns general property tax revenue in 
the form of a subsidiary district. 

Any other matter related to 
effective or efficient service 
delivery, as required by 
commission policy. 

No additional issues have been identified. 

 

  



August 23, 2017 
Page 6 
 
 
Recommended Sphere of Influence Update Determinations 

Based on the information, issues, and analysis presented in this report, proposed SOI determinations, 
pursuant to Government Code Section 56425, are presented below for Commission consideration: 

Present and planned land 
uses in the area, including 
agricultural and open-space 
lands. 

Approximately 76 percent of the land within Colma’s town boundaries 
remains committed to cemetery and agricultural land uses.  Since the 
1980s, however, Colma’s economy has become more diversified with a 
variety of retail businesses, a cardroom facility, and one of Northern 
California’s largest collections of car dealerships that serve a regional 
market.   

Present and probable need 
for public services and 
services in the area. 

Colma’s population grew from 1,187 in 2000 to 1,403 in 2010, increasing 
by 216 residents or 18 percent. The Association of Bay Area Governments 
(ABAG) predicts that Colma will continue modest growth over the next 20 
years to reach a population of 2,151 in 2035.  Even given a daytime 
population spike due to Colma’s increasingly diverse economy, the City 
has adequate capacity to serve the projected population increase. 

Present capacity of public 
facilities and adequacy of 
public services that the 
agency provides or is 
authorized to provide. 

The overall public services are provided at an adequate level based upon 
fiscal resources. Under police services, the Composite Crime Rate level is 
statistically high and should be monitored to determine if additional focus 
on police services is warranted.  

Existence of any social or 
economic communities of 
interest in the area if the 
commission determines 
they are relevant to the 
agency. 

None have been identified. 

Present and probable needs 
for those public facilities 
and services of any 
disadvantaged 
unincorporated 
communities within the 
existing sphere of influence. 

There are no disadvantaged unincorporated communities (DUCs) within 
or contiguous to the Town of Colma. 

 

Recommended Sphere of Influence:  Reaffirm the current Town of Colma’s coterminous sphere of 
influence. 



TOWN OF COLMA 
1198 El Camino Real   •  Colma, California  •  94014-3212 

Tel 650-997-8300   •   Fax 650-997-8308 

Attachment B 

September 13, 2017 

San Mateo County LAFCO 
Martha M. Poyatos, Executive Officer 
455 County Center, 2nd Floor 
Redwood City, CA 94063 

Dear Ms. Poyatos, 

The Town of Colma is in receipt of LAFCo’s progress report request to the 2015 
Municipal Service Review (MSR) and Sphere of Influence (SOI) update.  This letter is the 
City Council’s response to the request for general information and the recommendations 
for the Town of Colma highlighted in the 2015 MSR and SOI Report. 

Financial Update: 

• Town of Colma adopted budgets can be found
at https://www.colma.ca.gov/budget/.

• Town of Colma audits can be found at https://www.colma.ca.gov/audit/.

The Town remains financially viable with significant reserves to offset an economic 
decline.  As stated in the June 30, 2016 Audited Financial Statements, the General Fund 
net position (Reserves) totaled $22.6 million.  Balances in other funds totaled $13.3 
million.  Of that amount a total of $13.1 million related to funds set-aside for the 
renovation of Town Hall including proceeds from a COP financing.  The Town Council 
has established policies to maintain reserves in order to protect against major service 
reductions during economic downturns.  This includes reserves for budget stabilization, 
litigation, disaster recovery, and debt service.   

As of the date of this new response letter to LAFCO, the Town has received only one 
claim in a substantial monetary amount for an alleged roadway design defect.  The 
Town of Colma  has formally rejected the claim..  Only one  litigation matter is 
pending.  This matter was pending in 2015 and concerns alleged, but unfounded, police 
liability.  This matter is being aggressively litigated and the Town is hopeful for a 
favorable outcome. 

In February 2016, the Town adopted a resolution becoming a charter member in the 
Peninsula Clean Energy Joint Powers Authority.  Becoming a member of the Joint 
Powers Authority provides the Town with involvement as to how Peninsula Clean  
Energy is managed, as well as a seat on the Peninsula Clean Energy Joint Powers 
Authority Board of Directors. 

City Council 

Helen Fisicaro 
Mayor 

Raquel P. Gonzalez 
Vice Mayor 

Joanne F. del Rosario 
Council Member 

John Irish Goodwin 
Council Member 

Diana Colvin 
Council Member 

City Officials 

Bill Norton 
Interim City Manager 

Kirk Stratton 
Chief of Police 

Christopher Diaz 
City Attorney 

Caitlin Corley 
City Clerk 

Brian Dossey 
Administrative Services 

Director 

Lori Burns  
Human Resources Manager 

Brad Donohue 
Public Works Director 

Michael Laughlin, AICP 
City Planner 

Cyrus Kianpour 
City Engineer 



 
MSR Update: 
 
The Town Financial Statements for the year ending June 30, 2016 total net Liabilities for OPEB (Retiree 
Medical) and Net Pension Liability were $13,962,142.  These are expected to continue to increase in 
the future and are monitored on an annual basis.  To address Retiree Medical liabilities in 2015 the 
Town established an OPEB Trust fund and has been contributing funds in excess of the “pay-as-you-
go” amounts due.  The Town also negotiated as part of labor agreements approved in 2017 a change 
to the OPEB benefits for future employees.  Long term, this is expected to reduce the liability.  The 
Town will also be addressing its net pension obligation.  As part of the adopted 2017-18 Operating 
Budget general fund expenses were projected to be less than revenues.  In the near future, the City 
Council may consider the opportunity to contribute funds that will reduce the pension liability. 
 
The Town of Colma has taken the recommendation from LAFCo to review and consider the possibility 
of taking over the Town of Colma’s portion of the Colma Highway Lighting District (CHLD). Currently 
the Town and the County of San Mateo who manages the lighting district are at the beginning stages 
of reviewing and evaluating several items such as Colma’s portion of the existing street light inventory, 
annual revenue, the current fund balance and cost of operating and maintaining the system on an 
annual basis.  The Town agrees that the public may be better served if the Town can own and operate 
the street lights within the Town’s boundaries.  The one consideration that does not make sense is 
operating the system on a negative cash flow, which is why the Town is trying to gain a historical 
outlook, and make sure that assuming the CHLD is in the best interest of all those involved (Town, 
County of San Mateo and Public). If the Town is to assume all responsibility for Colma’s portion of the 
CHLD, the Town will want to be able to fund and support the system in perpetuity.  The Town’s legal 
counsel is also reviewing the various consequences if the Town were to annex Colma’s portion of the 
District, such as; the transfer of establishing future property tax revenue to support the system, and 
any past liability and potential future liability. Once these items have been evaluated, the Town will be 
able to make an informed decision as to either support or oppose LAFCo’s recommendation to annex 
Colma’s Portion of the CHLD to the Town of Colma.  
 
 SOI Update: 
 
The composite crime rate is consistently high; however the rate is based on per capita. The Town’s 
population is 1,506, but any given day there can be 25,000 people in Town shopping at Serra Center, 
280 Metro, or at Serramonte Auto Row, or visiting one of the Town’s sixteen cemeteries.  Based on 
what the Town’s average daily population is due to visitors shopping in Colma, The City Council 
continues to believe the level of Police Services is appropriate for the various land uses in Colma (i.e. 
Retail, Residential, Cemetery, etc.).  However, Town staff will continue to monitor the composite crime 
rate to determine if additional focus on police services is warranted.    
 
As stated in the Town’s June 15, 2015 response letter regarding the Draft MSR and SOI, The City 
Council strongly objects to any proposed dissolution of Colma Fire Protection District and dissolution of 
Broadmoor, and encourages LAFCo to support the status quo alternative for each governance option in 
the Draft MSR and SOI. 

 
Thank you for following up on the 2015 Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study. 
Please do not hesitate to contact Interim City Manager Bill Norton at the phone number listed above 
should you have any questions or need additional information.  



Sincerely, 

Mayor Helen Fisicaro 





Attachment C





















































Attachment D





Staff Report – Paris Climate Agreement  Page 1 of 3 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Kathleen Gallagher, Sustainability Programs Manager 

Michael P. Laughlin, City Planner 

Lori Burns, Human Resources Manager 

VIA:  William C. Norton, Interim City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 13, 2017 

SUBJECT: Support of the Paris Climate Agreement 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following: 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA IN SUPPORT OF THE 
PARIS CLIMATE AGREEMENT 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Town of Colma is a leader in climate change protection and sustainability; by approving the 
resolution the Town joins other U.S. cities in the Climate Mayors Network to support and 
implement climate protection programs and meet the goals of the Paris Climate Agreement.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

This policy statement will have no fiscal impact to the Town. The Town will continue to consider 
future climate protection programs for approval by the City Council. 

BACKGROUND 

There is consensus among the world’s leading climate scientists that global warming is caused 
by emissions of greenhouse gases (GHG) from human activities. Global warming is among the 
most significant problems facing the world today. Documented impacts of global warming 
include an increase of extreme weather events such as extended droughts, increased flood 
events, more frequent and intense forest fires, damage to food production, health impacts, loss 
of species, population migration and other significant problems. 

On April 22, 2016, as a part of a global effort to combat climate change, the United States, 
along with 225 other countries, approved the Paris Climate Agreement and agreed to take 
actions necessary to limit global temperature increase to less than 2 degrees Celsius, with an 
expectation that this goal would be reduced to 1.5 degrees in the future. The United States 
withdrew from the Paris Climate Agreement in June, 2017. As of August 28, 2017, 372 mayors 

Item #14



Staff Report – Paris Climate Agreement   Page 2 of 3 

in the United States, known as the Climate Mayors, have responded to the decision to withdraw 
by showing support for and committing to the goals of the Paris Climate Agreement. Several 
local jurisdictions within San Mateo County, including Millbrae, Burlingame, Brisbane and Menlo 
Park have expressed their support of the Paris Climate Agreement. By approving this resolution, 
Colma joins the Climate Mayors global effort to combat climate change memorialized in the 
Paris Climate Agreement.  

ANALYSIS 

The Paris Climate Agreement does not specify GHG emissions reductions targets, however, 
California’s Global Warming Solutions Act, AB 32 set a statewide goal to reduce GHG emissions 
to 1990 levels by 2020. In 2016, Governor Brown signed SB 32, codifying a new reductions 
target for statewide GHG emissions of 40% below 1990 emissions levels by 2030. The Town of 
Colma City Council pledged to reduce GHG emissions by completing GHG baseline studies, 
develop a Climate Action Plan, and other sustainability actions through committing to the U.S. 
Mayors Climate Protection Agreement, Sierra Club’s Cool Cities Program and the Silicon Valley 
Climate Protection Partnership.  

Since the approval of the Climate Action Plan, Colma has implemented several significant 
climate protection programs that include development of the commercial energy efficiency 
project that has saved over 651,202 kWh annually. The Town has also received numerous 
Beacon Awards for these efforts. Additional actions/programs include: 

• upgrading all town facilities to increase energy efficiency;  
• expanded residential and commercial recycling programs to include organics recycling to 

reduce methane, a powerful GHG; 
• implemented water conservation recommendations program to our largest cemeteries; 

and 
• implemented residential rebate programs and several other programs.  

 
By approving the attached resolution, the Colma City Council reaffirms its commitment to 
combat climate change simply by staying the course in implementing appropriate climate action 
programs in order to meet California’s statewide GHG emissions reduction targets. 

Council Adopted Values 

The recommendation is consistent with the Council value of vision because it considers the 
future health, safety and welfare of the Town and its residents. 

Sustainability Impact 

The recommended actions support the goals of the Town’s Climate action plan and commits to 
the reduction of GHG emissions.  

Alternatives 

The City Council could choose not to adopt the resolution in support for the Paris Climate 
Agreement. This alternative is not recommended since it does not align with the Town’s values 
and Climate Action Plan.  



Staff Report – Paris Climate Agreement  Page 3 of 3 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the City Council adopt the resolution supporting the Paris Climate 
Agreement. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution 

B. Paris Climate Agreement 

C. NRDC Paris Climate Agreement Information Sheet 





Res 2017-##, Paris Climate Agreement Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-## 
Of the City Council of the Town of Colma 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA IN 
SUPPORT OF THE PARIS CLIMATE AGREEMENT 

The Town of Colma City Council does resolve as follows: 

1. Background.

(a) There is consensus among the world’s leading climate scientists that global warming is
caused by emissions of greenhouse gases (GHG) from human activities is among the
most significant problems facing the world today.

(b) Documented impacts of global warming include an increase of extreme weather events
such as extended droughts, increased flood events, more frequent and intense forest
fires, damage to food production, health impacts, loss of species, population migration
and other significant problems.

(c) The Paris Climate Agreement resulted in a commitment from almost every nation,
including the United States, to take action and enact programs to limit global
temperature increase to less than 2 degrees Celsius, with an expectation that this goal
would be reduced to 1.5 degrees in the future.

(d) The United States withdrew from the Paris Climate Agreement in June, 2017. As of
August 28, 2017, 372 mayors in the United States, known as the Climate Mayors, have
responded to the decision to withdraw by showing support for and committing to the
goals of the Paris Climate Agreement.

(e) The State of California has mandated statewide reduction of the 2030 GHG emissions
target by:

(i) Reducing today’s petroleum use in cars and trucks by up to 50%; increasing 
from one third to 50% our electricity derived from renewable sources;  

(ii) Doubling the energy efficiency savings achieved at existing buildings and making 
heating fuels cleaner; 

(iii) Reducing the release of methane, black carbon and other short-lived climate 
pollutants; 

(iv) Managing farm and rangelands, forests and wetlands so they can store carbon; 
and 

(v) Periodically updating the state’s climate adaptation strategy. 

(f) The Town of Colma is committed to meet the goals enshrined in the Paris Climate 
Agreement. 

Attachment A



Res 2017-##, Paris Climate Agreement Page 2 of 2 

2. Order

(a) The City Council hereby indicates its commitment to reducing GHG emissions through
the implementation of the Town’s Climate Action Plan; and

(b) Joins other US cities in the Climate Mayors network in adopting and supporting the goals
of the Paris Climate Agreement; and

(c) Commits to exploring the potential benefits and costs of adopting policies and programs
that promote the long-term goal of GHG emissions reduction while maximizing economic
and social co-benefits of such action.

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2017-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on September 13, 2017 by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 

Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez 

Joanne F. del Rosario 

John Irish Goodwin 

Diana Colvin 

Voting Tally 

Dated ______________________ ___________________________________ 
Helen Fisicaro, Mayor 

Attest:   ____________________________ 
 Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 



PARIS AGREEMENT 

(mm 
UNITED NATIONS 

2015 

Attachment B



PARIS AGREEMENT 

The Parties to this Agreement, 

Being Parties to the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate 
Change, hereinafter referred to as "the Convention", 

Pursuant to the Durban Platform for Enhanced Action established by 
decision 1/CP.17 of the Conference of the Parties to the Convention at its 
seventeenth session, 

In pursuit of the objective of the Convention, and being guided by its 
principles, including the principle of equity and common but differentiated 
responsibilities and respective capabilities, in the light of different national 
circumstances, 

Recognizing the need for an effective and progressive response to the 
urgent threat of climate change on the basis of the best available scientific 
knowledge, 

Also recognizing the specific needs and special circumstances of 
developing country Parties, especially those that are particularly vulnerable to the 
adverse effects of climate change, as provided for in the Convention, 

Taking full account of the specific needs and special situations of the least 
developed countries with regard to funding and transfer of technology, 

Recognizing that Parties may be affected not only by climate change, but 
also by the impacts of the measures taken in response to it, 

Emphasizing the intrinsic relationship that climate change actions, 
responses and impacts have with equitable access to sustainable development and 
eradication of poverty, 

Recognizing the fundamental priority of safeguarding food security and 
ending hunger, and the particular vulnerabilities of food production systems to the 
adverse impacts of climate change, 



Taking into account the imperatives of a just transition of the workforce and 
the creation of decent work and quality jobs in accordance with nationally defined 
development priorities, 

Acknowledging that climate change is a common concern of humankind, 
Parties should, when taking action to address climate change, respect, promote and 
consider their respective obligations on human rights, the right to health, the rights 
of indigenous peoples, local communities, migrants, children, persons with 
disabilities and people in vulnerable situations and the right to development, as 
well as gender equality, empowerment of women and intergenerational equity, 

Recognizing the importance of the conservation and enhancement, as 
appropriate, of sinks and reservoirs of the greenhouse gases referred to in the 
Convention, 

Noting the importance of ensuring the integrity of all ecosystems, including 
oceans, and the protection of biodiversity, recognized by some cultures as Mother 
Earth, and noting the importance for some of the concept of "climate justice", 
when taking action to address climate change, 

Affirming the importance of education, training, public awareness, public 
participation, public access to information and cooperation at all levels on the 
matters addressed in this Agreement, 

Recognizing the importance of the engagements of all levels of government 
and various actors, in accordance with respective national legislations of Parties, in 
addressing climate change, 

Also recognizing that sustainable lifestyles and sustainable patterns of 
consumption and production, with developed country Parties taking the lead, play 
an important role in addressing climate change, 

Have agreed as follows: 

Article 1 

For the purpose of this Agreement, the definitions contained in Article 1 of 
the Convention shall apply. In addition: 

- 2 -



(a) "Convention" means the United Nations Framework Convention on 
Climate Change, adopted in New York on 9 May 1992; 

(b) "Conference of the Parties" means the Conference of the Parties to the 
Convention; 

(c) "Party" means a Party to this Agreement. 

Article 2 

1. This Agreement, in enhancing the implementation of the Convention, 
including its objective, aims to strengthen the global response to the threat of 
climate change, in the context of sustainable development and efforts to eradicate 
poverty, including by: 

(a) Holding the increase in the global average temperature to well below 
2°C above pre-industrial levels and pursuing efforts to limit the temperature 
increase to 1.5°C above pre-industrial levels, recognizing that this would 
significantly reduce the risks and impacts of climate change; 

(b) Increasing the ability to adapt to the adverse impacts of climate 
change and foster climate resilience and low greenhouse gas emissions 
development, in a manner that does not threaten food production; and 

(c) Making finance flows consistent with a pathway towards low 
greenhouse gas emissions and climate-resilient development. 

2. This Agreement will be implemented to reflect equity and the principle of 
common but differentiated responsibilities and respective capabilities, in the light 
of different national circumstances. 

Article 3 

As nationally determined contributions to the global response to climate 
change, all Parties are to undertake and communicate ambitious efforts as defined 
in Articles 4, 7, 9, 10, 11 and 13 with the view to achieving the purpose of this 
Agreement as set out in Article 2. The efforts of all Parties will represent a 
progression over time, while recognizing the need to support developing country 
Parties for the effective implementation of this Agreement. 

- 3 -



Article 23 

1. In order to achieve the long-term temperature goal set out in Article 2, 
Parties aim to reach global peaking of greenhouse gas emissions as soon as 
possible, recognizing that peaking will take longer for developing country Parties, 
and to undertake rapid reductions thereafter in accordance with best available 
science, so as to achieve a balance between anthropogenic emissions by sources 
and removals by sinks of greenhouse gases in the second half of this century, on the 
basis of equity, and in the context of sustainable development and efforts to 
eradicate poverty. 

2. Each Party shall prepare, communicate and maintain successive nationally 
determined contributions that it intends to achieve. Parties shall pursue domestic 
mitigation measures, with the aim of achieving the objectives of such 
contributions. 

3. Each Party's successive nationally determined contribution will represent a 
progression beyond the Party's then current nationally determined contribution and 
reflect its highest possible ambition, reflecting its common but differentiated 
responsibilities and respective capabilities, in the light of different national 
circumstances. 

4. Developed country Parties should continue taking the lead by undertaking 
economy-wide absolute emission reduction targets. Developing country Parties 
should continue enhancing their mitigation efforts, and are encouraged to move 
over time towards economy-wide emission reduction or limitation targets in the 
light of different national circumstances. 

5. Support shall be provided to developing country Parties for the 
implementation of this Article, in accordance with Articles 9, 10 and 11, 
recognizing that enhanced support for developing country Parties will allow for 
higher ambition in their actions. 

6. The least developed countries and small island developing States may 
prepare and communicate strategies, plans and actions for low greenhouse gas 
emissions development reflecting their special circumstances. 

7. Mitigation co-benefits resulting from Parties' adaptation actions and/or 
economic diversification plans can contribute to mitigation outcomes under this 
Article. 

- 4 -



8. In communicating their nationally determined contributions, all Parties shall 
provide the information necessary for clarity, transparency and understanding in 
accordance with decision 1/CP.21 and any relevant decisions of the Conference of 
the Parties serving as the meeting of the Parties to this Agreement. 

9. Each Party shall communicate a nationally determined contribution every 
five years in accordance with decision 1/CP21 and any relevant decisions of the 
Conference of the Parties serving as the meeting of the Parties to this Agreement 
and be informed by the outcomes of the global stocktake referred to in Article 14. 

10. The Conference of the Parties serving as the meeting of the Parties to this 
Agreement shall consider common time frames for nationally determined 
contributions at its first session. 

11. A Party may at any time adjust its existing nationally determined 
contribution with a view to enhancing its level of ambition, in accordance with 
guidance adopted by the Conference of the Parties serving as the meeting of the 
Parties to this Agreement. 

12. Nationally determined contributions communicated by Parties shall be 
recorded in a public registry maintained by the secretariat. 

13. Parties shall account for their nationally determined contributions. In 
accounting for anthropogenic emissions and removals corresponding to their 
nationally determined contributions, Parties shall promote environmental integrity, 
transparency, accuracy, completeness, comparability and consistency, and ensure 
the avoidance of double counting, in accordance with guidance adopted by the 
Conference of the Parties serving as the meeting of the Parties to this Agreement. 

14. In the context of their nationally determined contributions, when recognizing 
and implementing mitigation actions with respect to anthropogenic emissions and 
removals, Parties should take into account, as appropriate, existing methods and 
guidance under the Convention, in the light of the provisions of paragraph 13 of 
this Article. 

15. Parties shall take into consideration in the implementation of this Agreement 
the concerns of Parties with economies most affected by the impacts of response 
measures, particularly developing country Parties. 

- 5 -



16. Parties, including regional economic integration organizations and their 
member States, that have reached an agreement to act jointly under paragraph 2 of 
this Article shall notify the secretariat of the terms of that agreement, including the 
emission level allocated to each Party within the relevant time period, when they 
communicate their nationally determined contributions. The secretariat shall in turn 
inform the Parties and signatories to the Convention of the terms of that agreement. 

17. Each party to such an agreement shall be responsible for its emission level as 
set out in the agreement referred to in paragraph 16 of this Article in accordance 
with paragraphs 13 and 14 of this Article and Articles 13 and 15. 

18. If Parties acting jointly do so in the framework of, and together with, a 
regional economic integration organization which is itself a Party to this 
Agreement, each member State of that regional economic integration organization 
individually, and together with the regional economic integration organization, 
shall be responsible for its emission level as set out in the agreement 
communicated under paragraph 16 of this Article in accordance with paragraphs 13 
and 14 of this Article and Articles 13 and 15. 

19. All Parties should strive to formulate and communicate long-term low 
greenhouse gas emission development strategies, mindful of Article 2 taking into 
account their common but differentiated responsibilities and respective capabilities, 
in the light of different national circumstances. 

Article 5 

1. Parties should take action to conserve and enhance, as appropriate, sinks and 
reservoirs of greenhouse gases as referred to in Article 4, paragraph 1 (d), of the 
Convention, including forests. 

2. Parties are encouraged to take action to implement and support, including 
through results-based payments, the existing framework as set out in related 
guidance and decisions already agreed under the Convention for: policy approaches 
and positive incentives for activities relating to reducing emissions from 
deforestation and forest degradation, and the role of conservation, sustainable 
management of forests and enhancement of forest carbon stocks in developing 
countries; and alternative policy approaches, such as joint mitigation and 
adaptation approaches for the integral and sustainable management of forests, 
while reaffirming the importance of incentivizing, as appropriate, non-carbon 
benefits associated with such approaches. 

- 6 -



Article 23 

1. Parties recognize that some Parties choose to pursue voluntary cooperation 
in the implementation of their nationally determined contributions to allow for 
higher ambition in their mitigation and adaptation actions and to promote 
sustainable development and environmental integrity. 

2. Parties shall, where engaging on a voluntary basis in cooperative approaches 
that involve the use of internationally transferred mitigation outcomes towards 
nationally determined contributions, promote sustainable development and ensure 
environmental integrity and transparency, including in governance, and shall apply 
robust accounting to ensure, inter alia, the avoidance of double counting, consistent 
with guidance adopted by the Conference of the Parties serving as the meeting of 
the Parties to this Agreement. 

3. The use of internationally transferred mitigation outcomes to achieve 
nationally determined contributions under this Agreement shall be voluntary and 
authorized by participating Parties. 

4. A mechanism to contribute to the mitigation of greenhouse gas emissions 
and support sustainable development is hereby established under the authority and 
guidance of the Conference of the Parties serving as the meeting of the Parties to 
this Agreement for use by Parties on a voluntary basis. It shall be supervised by a 
body designated by the Conference of the Parties serving as the meeting of the 
Parties to this Agreement, and shall aim: 

(a) To promote the mitigation of greenhouse gas emissions while 
fostering sustainable development; 

(b) To incentivize and facilitate participation in the mitigation of 
greenhouse gas emissions by public and private entities authorized by a Party; 

(c) To contribute to the reduction of emission levels in the host Party, 
which will benefit from mitigation activities resulting in emission reductions that 
can also be used by another Party to fulfil its nationally determined contribution; 
and 

(d) To deliver an overall mitigation in global emissions. 

- 7 -



5. Emission reductions resulting from the mechanism referred to in paragraph 4 
of this Article shall not be used to demonstrate achievement of the host Party's 
nationally determined contribution if used by another Party to demonstrate 
achievement of its nationally determined contribution. 

6. The Conference of the Parties serving as the meeting of the Parties to this 
Agreement shall ensure that a share of the proceeds from activities under the 
mechanism referred to in paragraph 4 of this Article is used to cover administrative 
expenses as well as to assist developing country Parties that are particularly 
vulnerable to the adverse effects of climate change to meet the costs of adaptation. 

7. The Conference of the Parties serving as the meeting of the Parties to this 
Agreement shall adopt rules, modalities and procedures for the mechanism referred 
to in paragraph 4 of this Article at its first session. 

8. Parties recognize the importance of integrated, holistic and balanced 
non-market approaches being available to Parties to assist in the implementation of 
their nationally determined contributions, in the context of sustainable development 
and poverty eradication, in a coordinated and effective manner, including through, 
inter alia, mitigation, adaptation, finance, technology transfer and capacity-
building, as appropriate. These approaches shall aim to: 

(a) Promote mitigation and adaptation ambition; 

(b) Enhance public and private sector participation in the implementation 
of nationally determined contributions; and 

(c) Enable opportunities for coordination across instruments and relevant 
institutional arrangements. 

9. A framework for non-market approaches to sustainable development is 
hereby defined to promote the non-market approaches referred to in paragraph 8 of 
this Article. 

- 8 -



Article 23 

1. Parties hereby establish the global goal on adaptation of enhancing adaptive 
capacity, strengthening resilience and reducing vulnerability to climate change, 
with a view to contributing to sustainable development and ensuring an adequate 
adaptation response in the context of the temperature goal referred to in Article 2. 

2. Parties recognize that adaptation is a global challenge faced by all with local, 
subnational, national, regional and international dimensions, and that it is a key 
component of and makes a contribution to the long-term global response to climate 
change to protect people, livelihoods and ecosystems, taking into account the 
urgent and immediate needs of those developing country Parties that are 
particularly vulnerable to the adverse effects of climate change. 

3. The adaptation efforts of developing country Parties shall be recognized, in 
accordance with the modalities to be adopted by the Conference of the Parties 
serving as the meeting of the Parties to this Agreement at its first session. 

4. Parties recognize that the current need for adaptation is significant and that 
greater levels of mitigation can reduce the need for additional adaptation efforts, 
and that greater adaptation needs can involve greater adaptation costs. 

5. Parties acknowledge that adaptation action should follow a country-driven, 
gender-responsive, participatory and fully transparent approach, taking into 
consideration vulnerable groups, communities and ecosystems, and should be 
based on and guided by the best available science and, as appropriate, traditional 
knowledge, knowledge of indigenous peoples and local knowledge systems, with a 
view to integrating adaptation into relevant socioeconomic and environmental 
policies and actions, where appropriate. 

6. Parties recognize the importance of support for and international cooperation 
on adaptation efforts and the importance of taking into account the needs of 
developing country Parties, especially those that are particularly vulnerable to the 
adverse effects of climate change. 

7. Parties should strengthen their cooperation on enhancing action on 
adaptation, taking into account the Cancun Adaptation Framework, including with 
regard to: 

- 9 -



(a) Sharing information, good practices, experiences and lessons learned, 
including, as appropriate, as these relate to science, planning, policies and 
implementation in relation to adaptation actions; 

(b) Strengthening institutional arrangements, including those under the 
Convention that serve this Agreement, to support the synthesis of relevant 
information and knowledge, and the provision of technical support and guidance to 
Parties; 

(c) Strengthening scientific knowledge on climate, including research, 
systematic observation of the climate system and early warning systems, in a 
manner that informs climate services and supports decision-making; 

(d) Assisting developing country Parties in identifying effective 
adaptation practices, adaptation needs, priorities, support provided and received for 
adaptation actions and efforts, and challenges and gaps, in a manner consistent with 
encouraging good practices; and 

(e) Improving the effectiveness and durability of adaptation actions. 

8. United Nations specialized organizations and agencies are encouraged to 
support the efforts of Parties to implement the actions referred to in paragraph 7 of 
this Article, taking into account the provisions of paragraph 5 of this Article. 

9. Each Party shall, as appropriate, engage in adaptation planning processes 
and the implementation of actions, including the development or enhancement of 
relevant plans, policies and/or contributions, which may include: 

(a) The implementation of adaptation actions, undertakings and/or efforts; 

(b) The process to formulate and implement national adaptation plans; 

(c) The assessment of climate change impacts and vulnerability, with a 
view to formulating nationally determined prioritized actions, taking into account 
vulnerable people, places and ecosystems; 

(d) Monitoring and evaluating and learning from adaptation plans, 
policies, programmes and actions; and 

- 1 0 -



(e) Building the resilience of socioeconomic and ecological systems, 
including through economic diversification and sustainable management of natural 
resources. 

10. Each Party should, as appropriate, submit and update periodically an 
adaptation communication, which may include its priorities, implementation and 
support needs, plans and actions, without creating any additional burden for 
developing country Parties. 

11. The adaptation communication referred to in paragraph 10 of this Article 
shall be, as appropriate, submitted and updated periodically, as a component of or 
in conjunction with other communications or documents, including a national 
adaptation plan, a nationally determined contribution as referred to in Article 4, 
paragraph 2, and/or a national communication. 

12. The adaptation communications referred to in paragraph 10 of this Article 
shall be recorded in a public registry maintained by the secretariat. 

13. Continuous and enhanced international support shall be provided to 
developing country Parties for the implementation of paragraphs 7, 9, 10 and 11 of 
this Article, in accordance with the provisions of Articles 9, 10 and 11. 

14. The global stocktake referred to in Article 14 shall, inter alia: 

(a) Recognize adaptation efforts of developing country Parties; 

(b) Enhance the implementation of adaptation action taking into account 
the adaptation communication referred to in paragraph 10 of this Article; 

(c) Review the adequacy and effectiveness of adaptation and support 
provided for adaptation; and 

(d) Review the overall progress made in achieving the global goal on 
adaptation referred to in paragraph 1 of this Article. 



Article 8 

1. Parties recognize the importance of averting, minimizing and addressing loss 
and damage associated with the adverse effects of climate change, including 
extreme weather events and slow onset events, and the role of sustainable 
development in reducing the risk of loss and damage. 

2. The Warsaw International Mechanism for Loss and Damage associated with 
Climate Change Impacts shall be subject to the authority and guidance of the 
Conference of the Parties serving as the meeting of the Parties to this Agreement 
and may be enhanced and strengthened, as determined by the Conference of the 
Parties serving as the meeting of the Parties to this Agreement. 

3. Parties should enhance understanding, action and support, including through 
the Warsaw International Mechanism, as appropriate, on a cooperative and 
facilitative basis with respect to loss and damage associated with the adverse 
effects of climate change. 

4. Accordingly, areas of cooperation and facilitation to enhance understanding, 
action and support may include: 

(a) Early warning systems; 

(b) Emergency preparedness; 

(c) Slow onset events; 

(d) Events that may involve irreversible and permanent loss and damage; 

(e) Comprehensive risk assessment and management; 

(f) Risk insurance facilities, climate risk pooling and other insurance 
solutions; 

(g) Non-economic losses; and 

(h) Resilience of communities, livelihoods and ecosystems. 

- 1 2 -



5. The Warsaw International Mechanism shall collaborate with existing bodies 
and expert groups under the Agreement, as well as relevant organizations and 
expert bodies outside the Agreement. 

Article 9 

1. Developed country Parties shall provide financial resources to assist 
developing country Parties with respect to both mitigation and adaptation in 
continuation of their existing obligations under the Convention. 

2. Other Parties are encouraged to provide or continue to provide such support 
voluntarily. 

3. As part of a global effort, developed country Parties should continue to take 
the lead in mobilizing climate finance from a wide variety of sources, instruments 
and channels, noting the significant role of public funds, through a variety of 
actions, including supporting country-driven strategies, and taking into account the 
needs and priorities of developing country Parties. Such mobilization of climate 
finance should represent a progression beyond previous efforts. 

4. The provision of scaled-up financial resources should aim to achieve a 
balance between adaptation and mitigation, taking into account country-driven 
strategies, and the priorities and needs of developing country Parties, especially 
those that are particularly vulnerable to the adverse effects of climate change and 
have significant capacity constraints, such as the least developed countries and 
small island developing States, considering the need for public and grant-based 
resources for adaptation. 

5. Developed country Parties shall biennially communicate indicative 
quantitative and qualitative information related to paragraphs 1 and 3 of this 
Article, as applicable, including, as available, projected levels of public financial 
resources to be provided to developing country Parties. Other Parties providing 
resources are encouraged to communicate biennially such information on a 
voluntary basis. 

6. The global stocktake referred to in Article 14 shall take into account the 
relevant information provided by developed country Parties and/or Agreement 
bodies on efforts related to climate finance. 

- 1 3 -



7. Developed country Parties shall provide transparent and consistent 
information on support for developing country Parties provided and mobilized 
through public interventions biennially in accordance with the modalities, 
procedures and guidelines to be adopted by the Conference of the Parties serving as 
the meeting of the Parties to this Agreement, at its first session, as stipulated in 
Article 13, paragraph 13. Other Parties are encouraged to do so. 

8. The Financial Mechanism of the Convention, including its operating entities, 
shall serve as the financial mechanism of this Agreement. 

9. The institutions serving this Agreement, including the operating entities of 
the Financial Mechanism of the Convention, shall aim to ensure efficient access to 
financial resources through simplified approval procedures and enhanced readiness 
support for developing country Parties, in particular for the least developed 
countries and small island developing States, in the context of their national 
climate strategies and plans. 

Article 10 

1. Parties share a long-term vision on the importance of fully realizing 
technology development and transfer in order to improve resilience to climate 
change and to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. 

2. Parties, noting the importance of technology for the implementation of 
mitigation and adaptation actions under this Agreement and recognizing existing 
technology deployment and dissemination efforts, shall strengthen cooperative 
action on technology development and transfer. 

3. The Technology Mechanism established under the Convention shall serve 
this Agreement. 

4. A technology framework is hereby established to provide overarching 
guidance to the work of the Technology Mechanism in promoting and facilitating 
enhanced action on technology development and transfer in order to support the 
implementation of this Agreement, in pursuit of the long-term vision referred to in 
paragraph 1 of this Article. 

- 1 4 -



5. Accelerating, encouraging and enabling innovation is critical for an 
effective, long-term global response to climate change and promoting economic 
growth and sustainable development. Such effort shall be, as appropriate, 
supported, including by the Technology Mechanism and, through financial means, 
by the Financial Mechanism of the Convention, for collaborative approaches to 
research and development, and facilitating access to technology, in particular for 
early stages of the technology cycle, to developing country Parties. 

6. Support, including financial support, shall be provided to developing country 
Parties for the implementation of this Article, including for strengthening 
cooperative action on technology development and transfer at different stages of 
the technology cycle, with a view to achieving a balance between support for 
mitigation and adaptation. The global stocktake referred to in Article 14 shall take 
into account available information on efforts related to support on technology 
development and transfer for developing country Parties. 

Article 11 

1. Capacity-building under this Agreement should enhance the capacity and 
ability of developing country Parties, in particular countries with the least capacity, 
such as the least developed countries, and those that are particularly vulnerable to 
the adverse effects of climate change, such as small island developing States, to 
take effective climate change action, including, inter alia, to implement adaptation 
and mitigation actions, and should facilitate technology development, 
dissemination and deployment, access to climate finance, relevant aspects of 
education, training and public awareness, and the transparent, timely and accurate 
communication of information. 

2. Capacity-building should be country-driven, based on and responsive to 
national needs, and foster country ownership of Parties, in particular, for 
developing country Parties, including at the national, subnational and local levels. 
Capacity-building should be guided by lessons learned, including those from 
capacity-building activities under the Convention, and should be an effective, 
iterative process that is participatory, cross-cutting and gender-responsive. 

3. All Parties should cooperate to enhance the capacity of developing country 
Parties to implement this Agreement. Developed country Parties should enhance 
support for capacity-building actions in developing country Parties. 

- 1 5 -



4. All Parties enhancing the capacity of developing country Parties to 
implement this Agreement, including through regional, bilateral and multilateral 
approaches, shall regularly communicate on these actions or measures on capacity-
building. Developing country Parties should regularly communicate progress made 
on implementing capacity-building plans, policies, actions or measures to 
implement this Agreement. 

5. Capacity-building activities shall be enhanced through appropriate 
institutional arrangements to support the implementation of this Agreement, 
including the appropriate institutional arrangements established under the 
Convention that serve this Agreement. The Conference of the Parties serving as the 
meeting of the Parties to this Agreement shall, at its first session, consider and 
adopt a decision on the initial institutional arrangements for capacity-building. 

Article 12 

Parties shall cooperate in taking measures, as appropriate, to enhance climate 
change education, training, public awareness, public participation and public access 
to information, recognizing the importance of these steps with respect to enhancing 
actions under this Agreement. 

Article 13 

1. In order to build mutual trust and confidence and to promote effective 
implementation, an enhanced transparency framework for action and support, with 
built-in flexibility which takes into account Parties' different capacities and builds 
upon collective experience is hereby established. 

2. The transparency framework shall provide flexibility in the implementation 
of the provisions of this Article to those developing country Parties that need it in 
the light of their capacities. The modalities, procedures and guidelines referred to 
in paragraph 13 of this Article shall reflect such flexibility. 

3. The transparency framework shall build on and enhance the transparency 
arrangements under the Convention, recognizing the special circumstances of the 
least developed countries and small island developing States, and be implemented 
in a facilitative, non-intrusive, non-punitive manner, respectful of national 
sovereignty, and avoid placing undue burden on Parties. 

- 1 6 -



4. The transparency arrangements under the Convention, including national 
communications, biennial reports and biennial update reports, international 
assessment and review and international consultation and analysis, shall form part 
of the experience drawn upon for the development of the modalities, procedures 
and guidelines under paragraph 13 of this Article. 

5. The purpose of the framework for transparency of action is to provide a clear 
understanding of climate change action in the light of the objective of the 
Convention as set out in its Article 2, including clarity and tracking of progress 
towards achieving Parties' individual nationally determined contributions under 
Article 4, and Parties' adaptation actions under Article 7, including good practices, 
priorities, needs and gaps, to inform the global stocktake under Article 14. 

6. The purpose of the framework for transparency of support is to provide 
clarity on support provided and received by relevant individual Parties in the 
context of climate change actions under Articles 4, 7, 9, 10 and 11, and, to the 
extent possible, to provide a full overview of aggregate financial support provided, 
to inform the global stocktake under Article 14. 

7. Each Party shall regularly provide the following information: 

(a) A national inventory report of anthropogenic emissions by sources and 
removals by sinks of greenhouse gases, prepared using good practice 
methodologies accepted by the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change and 
agreed upon by the Conference of the Parties serving as the meeting of the Parties 
to this Agreement; and 

(b) Information necessary to track progress made in implementing and 
achieving its nationally determined contribution under Article 4. 

8. Each Party should also provide information related to climate change 
impacts and adaptation under Article 7, as appropriate. 

9. Developed country Parties shall, and other Parties that provide support 
should, provide information on financial, technology transfer and capacity-building 
support provided to developing country Parties under Articles 9, 10 and 11. 



10. Developing country Parties should provide information on financial, 
technology transfer and capacity-building support needed and received under 
Articles 9, 10 and 11. 

11. Information submitted by each Party under paragraphs 7 and 9 of this Article 
shall undergo a technical expert review, in accordance with decision 1/CP.21. For 
those developing country Parties that need it in the light of their capacities, the 
review process shall include assistance in identifying capacity-building needs. In 
addition, each Party shall participate in a facilitative, multilateral consideration of 
progress with respect to efforts under Article 9, and its respective implementation 
and achievement of its nationally determined contribution. 

12. The technical expert review under this paragraph shall consist of a 
consideration of the Party's support provided, as relevant, and its implementation 
and achievement of its nationally determined contribution. The review shall also 
identify areas of improvement for the Party, and include a review of the 
consistency of the information with the modalities, procedures and guidelines 
referred to in paragraph 13 of this Article, taking into account the flexibility 
accorded to the Party under paragraph 2 of this Article. The review shall pay 
particular attention to the respective national capabilities and circumstances of 
developing country Parties. 

13. The Conference of the Parties serving as the meeting of the Parties to this 
Agreement shall, at its first session, building on experience from the arrangements 
related to transparency under the Convention, and elaborating on the provisions in 
this Article, adopt common modalities, procedures and guidelines, as appropriate, 
for the transparency of action and support. 

14. Support shall be provided to developing countries for the implementation of 
this Article. 

15. Support shall also be provided for the building of transparency-related 
capacity of developing country Parties on a continuous basis. 

Article 14 

1. The Conference of the Parties serving as the meeting of the Parties to this 
Agreement shall periodically take stock of the implementation of this Agreement to 
assess the collective progress towards achieving the purpose of this Agreement and 
its long-term goals (referred to as the "global stocktake"). It shall do so in a 
comprehensive and facilitative manner, considering mitigation, adaptation and the 

- 1 8 -



means of implementation and support, and in the light of equity and the best 
available science. 

2. The Conference of the Parties serving as the meeting of the Parties to this 
Agreement shall undertake its first global stocktake in 2023 and every five years 
thereafter unless otherwise decided by the Conference of the Parties serving as the 
meeting of the Parties to this Agreement. 

3. The outcome of the global stocktake shall inform Parties in updating and 
enhancing, in a nationally determined manner, their actions and support in 
accordance with the relevant provisions of this Agreement, as well as in enhancing 
international cooperation for climate action. 

Article 15 

1. A mechanism to facilitate implementation of and promote compliance with 
the provisions of this Agreement is hereby established. 

2. The mechanism referred to in paragraph 1 of this Article shall consist of a 
committee that shall be expert-based and facilitative in nature and function in a 
manner that is transparent, non-adversarial and non-punitive. The committee shall 
pay particular attention to the respective national capabilities and circumstances of 
Parties. 

3. The committee shall operate under the modalities and procedures adopted by 
the Conference of the Parties serving as the meeting of the Parties to this 
Agreement at its first session and report annually to the Conference of the Parties 
serving as the meeting of the Parties to this Agreement. 

Article 16 

1. The Conference of the Parties, the supreme body of the Convention, shall 
serve as the meeting of the Parties to this Agreement. 

2. Parties to the Convention that are not Parties to this Agreement may 
participate as observers in the proceedings of any session of the Conference of the 
Parties serving as the meeting of the Parties to this Agreement. When the 
Conference of the Parties serves as the meeting of the Parties to this Agreement, 
decisions under this Agreement shall be taken only by those that are Parties to this 
Agreement. 

- 1 9 -



3. When the Conference of the Parties serves as the meeting of the Parties to 
this Agreement, any member of the Bureau of the Conference of the Parties 
representing a Party to the Convention but, at that time, not a Party to this 
Agreement, shall be replaced by an additional member to be elected by and from 
amongst the Parties to this Agreement. 

4. The Conference of the Parties serving as the meeting of the Parties to this 
Agreement shall keep under regular review the implementation of this Agreement 
and shall make, within its mandate, the decisions necessary to promote its effective 
implementation. It shall perform the functions assigned to it by this Agreement and 
shall: 

(a) Establish such subsidiary bodies as deemed necessary for the 
implementation of this Agreement; and 

(b) Exercise such other functions as may be required for the 
implementation of this Agreement. 

5. The rules of procedure of the Conference of the Parties and the financial 
procedures applied under the Convention shall be applied mutatis mutandis under 
this Agreement, except as may be otherwise decided by consensus by the 
Conference of the Parties serving as the meeting of the Parties to this Agreement. 

6. The first session of the Conference of the Parties serving as the meeting of 
the Parties to this Agreement shall be convened by the secretariat in conjunction 
with the first session of the Conference of the Parties that is scheduled after the 
date of entry into force of this Agreement. Subsequent ordinary sessions of the 
Conference of the Parties serving as the meeting of the Parties to this Agreement 
shall be held in conjunction with ordinary sessions of the Conference of the Parties, 
unless otherwise decided by the Conference of the Parties serving as the meeting of 
the Parties to this Agreement. 

7. Extraordinary sessions of the Conference of the Parties serving as the 
meeting of the Parties to this Agreement shall be held at such other times as may be 
deemed necessary by the Conference of the Parties serving as the meeting of the 
Parties to this Agreement or at the written request of any Party, provided that, 
within six months of the request being communicated to the Parties by the 
secretariat, it is supported by at least one third of the Parties. 

- 2 0 -



8. The United Nations and its specialized agencies and the International Atomic 
Energy Agency, as well as any State member thereof or observers thereto not party 
to the Convention, may be represented at sessions of the Conference of the Parties 
serving as the meeting of the Parties to this Agreement as observers. Any body or 
agency, whether national or international, governmental or non-governmental, 
which is qualified in matters covered by this Agreement and which has informed 
the secretariat of its wish to be represented at a session of the Conference of the 
Parties serving as the meeting of the Parties to this Agreement as an observer, may 
be so admitted unless at least one third of the Parties present object. The admission 
and participation of observers shall be subject to the rules of procedure referred to 
in paragraph 5 of this Article. 

Article 17 

1. The secretariat established by Article 8 of the Convention shall serve as the 
secretariat of this Agreement. 

2. Article 8, paragraph 2, of the Convention on the functions of the secretariat, 
and Article 8, paragraph 3, of the Convention, on the arrangements made for the 
functioning of the secretariat, shall apply mutatis mutandis to this Agreement. The 
secretariat shall, in addition, exercise the functions assigned to it under this 
Agreement and by the Conference of the Parties serving as the meeting of the 
Parties to this Agreement. 

Article 18 

1. The Subsidiary Body for Scientific and Technological Advice and the 
Subsidiary Body for Implementation established by Articles 9 and 10 of the 
Convention shall serve, respectively, as the Subsidiary Body for Scientific and 
Technological Advice and the Subsidiary Body for Implementation of this 
Agreement. The provisions of the Convention relating to the functioning of these 
two bodies shall apply mutatis mutandis to this Agreement. Sessions of the 
meetings of the Subsidiary Body for Scientific and Technological Advice and the 
Subsidiary Body for Implementation of this Agreement shall be held in conjunction 
with the meetings of, respectively, the Subsidiary Body for Scientific and 
Technological Advice and the Subsidiary Body for Implementation of the 
Convention. 

- 2 1 -



2. Parties to the Convention that are not Parties to this Agreement may 
participate as observers in the proceedings of any session of the subsidiary bodies. 
When the subsidiary bodies serve as the subsidiary bodies of this Agreement, 
decisions under this Agreement shall be taken only by those that are Parties to this 
Agreement. 

3. When the subsidiary bodies established by Articles 9 and 10 of the 
Convention exercise their functions with regard to matters concerning this 
Agreement, any member of the bureaux of those subsidiary bodies representing a 
Party to the Convention but, at that time, not a Party to this Agreement, shall be 
replaced by an additional member to be elected by and from amongst the Parties to 
this Agreement. 

Article 19 

1. Subsidiary bodies or other institutional arrangements established by or under 
the Convention, other than those referred to in this Agreement, shall serve this 
Agreement upon a decision of the Conference of the Parties serving as the meeting 
of the Parties to this Agreement. The Conference of the Parties serving as the 
meeting of the Parties to this Agreement shall specify the functions to be exercised 
by such subsidiary bodies or arrangements. 

2. The Conference of the Parties serving as the meeting of the Parties to this 
Agreement may provide further guidance to such subsidiary bodies and 
institutional arrangements. 

Article 20 

1. This Agreement shall be open for signature and subject to ratification, 
acceptance or approval by States and regional economic integration organizations 
that are Parties to the Convention. It shall be open for signature at the United 
Nations Headquarters in New York from 22 April 2016 to 21 April 2017. 
Thereafter, this Agreement shall be open for accession from the day following the 
date on which it is closed for signature. Instruments of ratification, acceptance, 
approval or accession shall be deposited with the Depositary. 

2. Any regional economic integration organization that becomes a Party to this 
Agreement without any of its member States being a Party shall be bound by all the 
obligations under this Agreement. In the case of regional economic integration 
organizations with one or more member States that are Parties to this Agreement, 

- 2 2 -



the organization and its member States shall decide on their respective 
responsibilities for the performance of their obligations under this Agreement. In 
such cases, the organization and the member States shall not be entitled to exercise 
rights under this Agreement concurrently. 

3. In their instruments of ratification, acceptance, approval or accession, 
regional economic integration organizations shall declare the extent of their 
competence with respect to the matters governed by this Agreement. These 
organizations shall also inform the Depositary, who shall in turn inform the Parties, 
of any substantial modification in the extent of their competence. 

Article 21 

1. This Agreement shall enter into force on the thirtieth day after the date on 
which at least 55 Parties to the Convention accounting in total for at least an 
estimated 55 per cent of the total global greenhouse gas emissions have deposited 
their instruments of ratification, acceptance, approval or accession. 

2. Solely for the limited purpose of paragraph 1 of this Article, "total global 
greenhouse gas emissions" means the most up-to-date amount communicated on or 
before the date of adoption of this Agreement by the Parties to the Convention. 

3. For each State or regional economic integration organization that ratifies, 
accepts or approves this Agreement or accedes thereto after the conditions set out 
in paragraph 1 of this Article for entry into force have been fulfilled, this 
Agreement shall enter into force on the thirtieth day after the date of deposit by 
such State or regional economic integration organization of its instrument of 
ratification, acceptance, approval or accession. 

4. For the purposes of paragraph 1 of this Article, any instrument deposited by 
a regional economic integration organization shall not be counted as additional to 
those deposited by its member States. 

Article 22 

The provisions of Article 15 of the Convention on the adoption of 
amendments to the Convention shall apply mutatis mutandis to this Agreement. 

- 2 3 -



Article 23 

1. The provisions of Article 16 of the Convention on the adoption and 
amendment of annexes to the Convention shall apply mutatis mutandis to this 
Agreement. 

2. Annexes to this Agreement shall form an integral part thereof and, unless 
otherwise expressly provided for, a reference to this Agreement constitutes at the 
same time a reference to any annexes thereto. Such annexes shall be restricted to 
lists, forms and any other material of a descriptive nature that is of a scientific, 
technical, procedural or administrative character. 

Article 24 

The provisions of Article 14 of the Convention on settlement of disputes 
shall apply mutatis mutandis to this Agreement. 

Article 25 

1. Each Party shall have one vote, except as provided for in paragraph 2 of this 
Article. 

2. Regional economic integration organizations, in matters within their 
competence, shall exercise their right to vote with a number of votes equal to the 
number of their member States that are Parties to this Agreement. Such an 
organization shall not exercise its right to vote if any of its member States exercises 
its right, and vice versa. 

Article 26 

The Secretary-General of the United Nations shall be the Depositary of this 
Agreement. 

Article 27 

No reservations may be made to this Agreement. 

- 2 4 -



Article 23 

1. At any time after three years from the date on which this Agreement has 
entered into force for a Party, that Party may withdraw from this Agreement by 
giving written notification to the Depositary. 

2. Any such withdrawal shall take effect upon expiry of one year from the date 
of receipt by the Depositary of the notification of withdrawal, or on such later date 
as may be specified in the notification of withdrawal. 

3. Any Party that withdraws from the Convention shall be considered as also 
having withdrawn from this Agreement. 

Article 29 

The original of this Agreement, of which the Arabic, Chinese, English, 
French, Russian and Spanish texts are equally authentic, shall be deposited with the 
Secretary-General of the United Nations. 

DONE at Paris this twelfth day of December two thousand and fifteen. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, being duly authorized to that effect, 
have signed this Agreement. 

- 2 5 -



Attachment C








	Agenda - 09.13.17 Regular Meeting
	1. Minutes - 08.23.17  Regular Meeting
	2. Report of Checks Paid - August
	3. Grand Jury Response
	A. Response Letter
	B. Grand Jury Report
	Home
	Issue
	Summary
	Methodology
	Glossary
	Background
	Discussion
	Findings
	Recommendations
	Request for Responses
	Bibliography
	Appendixes
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C

	Responses
	San Mateo County Sheriff
	City of Millbrae
	Town of Portola Valley



	4. Revise Personnel Policies - Uniform Allowance
	A. Resolution - Uniform Allowance
	B. Salary Schedule

	5. Colma Systemic Safety Analysis Report
	A. Resolution
	B. Agreement

	6. Updated Agreement with RGS for Financial Services
	A. Resolution
	B. Agreement

	7. Fourth Quarter Financial Report
	A. Financial Report Q4 FY2016 - 2017

	8. Semi-Annual Report of Investment Holdings
	9. CIP Funding Adjustment
	A. Resolution
	B. FY 2017-18 Budget Excerpt CIP (2)

	10. Farallon Company - Notices of Completion
	A. NOC Mass Grading & Site
	B. Farallon - NOC Foundations

	11. Further Amendments to Preferential Parking Permit Plan
	A. Ordinance - Preferential Parking
	B. Reso 2017-XX Preferential Parking Admin Code
	Exhibit A - Administrative Code 6.01


	12. League of California Cities Resolutions
	A. 2017 Annual Conference Resolutions Packet

	13. Response to LAFCo Progress Report Request
	A. Progress Report Request – 2015 MSR & SOI Update – Town of Colma
	B. Draft Town Response Letter - LAFCo
	C. Final 2015 MSR & SOI Study for Town of Colma
	D. 2015 Response Letter to LAFCo regarding draft MSR & SOI Report

	14. Support of the Paris Climate Agreement
	A. Resolution in Support of Paris Agreement
	B. Paris Climate Agreement
	C. NRDC Information on Paris Climate Agreement




